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Dear Shareholders,

The year 2023 was a difficult year for all major economies around the world.
Consumer sentiment is depressed in the major markets of the Group, particularly
the, the United Kingdom and other countries in Europe, due to high inflation and
high interest rates in these regions. As a result of a decline in consumption power
caused by high inflation, coupled with consumer concerns over the uncertain
economic outlook, consumers become more cautious and the retail industry has
weakened, with various brands experiencing inventory accumulation. In the face of
the severe market environment, the Group has endeavored to maintain its position,
proactively reduce costs and increase efficiencies, in order to safeguard stable
cash flow of the Group and the sustainable development of its business segments.

BEURE :

TECC-EERTELERB TR
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BHEEEZ ANSBREZHENTE B
MmEBEEERLEMKARAMBER
ETAEREER TEXRT FEmMH
REEEBHNER EBHRENTHIRE
EBERRFRE BBEREH UREEE
REMRBMNEREEFNOFELERE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R

05



06

Chairman's Statement EEiR S

FIGHTING AGAINST THE ECONOMIC DOWNTURN

In the face of uncertainties in the macro environment, the Group is always

mindful of the market situation, securing sufficient capital to maintain the healthy
development of its multi-brand consumer goods business. While advancing its
international multi-brand consumer goods business in a pragmatic and orderly
manner, the Group will also pay attention to potential merger and acquisition
opportunities, with a view to becoming an outstanding international brand operator
and enriching its brand portfolio in a timely manner.

In January 2023, we increased our holdings in the Clarks brand, with the effective
equity reaching 51%, making us the largest shareholder in Clarks. During the year,
we steadily implemented the rebranding program for Bossini, identifying a new
brand positioning with a sporting emphasis on cycling, and realigned our products
and channels. In June 2023, we successfully transferred from GEM to the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and were included in the Hang Seng
Composite Index and the Hong Kong Stock Connect in early September, signifying
the capital market's recognition of the Group’s value and confidence in its future
development.

The Clarks brand has a heritage of nearly two hundred years and it is one of

the Group’s most important sources of revenue. During the year, the Group
realigned its Clarks products and channels. In particular, the European and
American markets have rebuilt their online shopping platforms to comprehensively
enhance the consumer experience and to complement marketing promotions
and community interactions, so as to drive online sales and increase the share

of e-commerce revenue in the future. Meanwhile, the Group has implemented
the “China for China" strategy in the Greater China region to develop and design
products for Chinese consumers. During the year, the brand has launched its first
batch of products developed and designed for Chinese consumers. In the future,
we will continue to explore the potential of different markets, in order to continue
to enhance Clarks' influence in the Asia-Pacific market. In terms of channels,

we have opened a number of directly-operated stores in first-tier cities such as
Beijing, Shanghai, Tokyo and Osaka, showcasing our design concepts as well as
our fashion language to consumers in the Asia Pacific region. In the coming year,
we will open more directly-operated stores to complement our existing wholesale
business and increase market penetration while building a young and fashionable
brand image.

The new brand bossini.X has undergone significant adjustments on its products
and channels during the year. In terms of products, in 2024, the brand will attract
more energetic young consumers with sports outerwear and light outdoor designs,
combined with professional sports technology fabrics and fashionable designs
integrating cycling culture. In terms of channels, we will close inefficient stores in
the Mainland China market to enhance operational efficiency on the one hand, and
accelerating the deployment of channels suitable for new product positioning on
the other. In the future, the brand will also cooperate with cycling clubs and sports
experts to strengthen its connection with the target customer groups and enrich
the user experience.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S
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TO SERVE THE PUBLIC AND GUIDE THE PURSUIT OF
ELEGANT, ENJOYABLE, HEALTHY AND LEISURELY
LIFESTYLES

The Group is committed to creating elegant and pleasant fashion experiences,
connecting with the pursuits and needs of the public, providing high-quality
products and services, and promoting healthy and leisurely lifestyles to enhance
people’s quality of life and sense of well-being. The core values of our enterprise
are based on the following five principles: uncovering brand value, pursuing
product quality, individuals and teams collaborate to create value, organizational
capabilities determine sustained business growth, and harmonious development
of employees, the company, society and nature. By adhering to these values, we
are committed to the continuous pursuit of excellence and the realization of our
mission and vision. We believe that the pursuit of happiness is a global endeavour,
and we will strive to contribute to the well-being of people by bringing more high-
quality brands to the public, serving the pursuit of elegant, enjoyable, healthy and
leisurely lifestyles.

The Group’s current brand portfolio includes a range of well-known domestic
and international brands with strong historical and cultural heritage. In the future,
we will continue to respect the history and heritage of our brands and maximise
their core values by connecting traditional and contemporary elements of vitality
to meet the needs and expectations of the public. Meanwhile, we will continue to
enhance the competitiveness of our products through research and development
and innovative design in order to provide consumers with product experience
equipped with brand empowerment.

PRUDENT DEPLOYMENT OF RESOURCES FOR
SUSTAINED BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Looking ahead, there is still great uncertainties in the global economy. According
to the World Economic Outlook Report released by the International Monetary
Fund in October 2023, the current economic growth prospects in Europe and the
United States remain uncertain. The economic growth rate is expected to slow
down to 1.4% in the coming year, while the economies of the Asia-Pacific region
show development potential, with economic growth rate expected to reach 4.2%
in the coming year, which is higher than the global economy’s growth rate of
2.9%. The Group will deploy its resources prudently and strategically to develop
our international consumer goods business in a sustainable manner, with a strong
foothold in the China market and a solid presence in overseas markets, as well as
an orderly approach to brand transformation and rebranding.

As the Group’s transfer from GEM to the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, moving towards a wider capital arena, we have been able to better
utilize our capital market resources to let more investors to invest in the Group’s
development plans and grow with us. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express my high respect to the management team and all employees of the
Company for their outstanding performance in the past year, and to express our
sincere gratitude to our shareholders and business partners for their unwavering
trust and continued support to our Group. In the face of a challenging and ever-
changing macro-environment, we will uphold our original intention of serving the
public and continue to strive for the long-term development of the Company and
the value creation for our shareholders!
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Business Review
X FolEE

Looking back in 2023, inflation and high interest rates in global major markets,
particularly United Kingdom and other areas of Europe, have led to a rise in the
cost of living and a weakening of people’s appetite for consumption. The retail
industry has been hit hard, with many brands have excessive inventory. As a
consumer brand operator, in the face of the enormous challenges posed by the
macro environment, the Group continued to promote its multi-brand consumer
goods business in a steady and pragmatic manner. On the one hand, the Group
will develop its existing brand portfolio in a healthy and orderly manner, and on the
other hand, it will continue to keep an eye out for quality merger and acquisition
opportunities in the market, so as to enrich the portfolio of the Group's brands at
an appropriate time.

PRAGMATICALLY EXPANDING “MULTI-BRAND
CONSUMER GOODS BUSINESS” TERRITORY

The Group endeavours to be an outstanding international brand operator.
Through its matrix of consumer brands, the Group develops products for different
consumer groups, creates elegant and enjoyable fashion experiences, connects
with the aspirations and needs of the public, and delivers quality products and
SErvices.

Clarks is a globally recognised footwear brand with operations in nearly 80
countries around the world and is one of the Group’s most important sources of
revenue. During the year, the Group completed an increase in its shareholding

in Clarks, bringing its effective equity to 51%, making it the largest shareholder.
As a result of the impact of high inflation and interest rates in major markets, the
brand’s direct sales channel recorded a lower than expected revenue, there's a
need for impairment on right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in
some directly-operated stores, and the brand’s organizational restructuring also
caused one-off restructuring expenses. The Group expects that the reduce of the
brand's expenses in 2024 following the restructuring will help the brand improve
its operational efficiency and profitability.
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In the European and American markets, Clarks has rebuilt its online shopping
platform to comprehensively enhance the consumer experience and to
complement marketing and community interaction, so as to drive online sales
and increase the share of e-commerce revenue in the future. The Group has also
implemented the “China for China” strategy in the Greater China region, a region
with great growth potential, by setting up a team to develop and design products
suitable for Chinese consumers. The first batch of products had launched in
2023. During the year, the brand opened a number of shops to present the brand
image in first-tier cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Tokyo and Osaka, to express
our design philosophy and fashion language to consumers in the Asia Pacific
region. In 2024, the Group will continue to strategically promote its marketing and
business coverage in the Asia Pacific market, expanding the proportion of “China
for China” products in China to continue to enhance Clarks' influence in the Asia
Pacific market. Meanwhile, more directly-operated stores will also be added to
complement its existing wholesale business and engage with young consumer
groups for the long-term deployment of the brand in the Asia Pacific region.

Bossini is a well-known casual wear brand in Greater China and Southeast

Asia with a history of forty years. During the year, retail business in Hong

Kong improved due to the stimulation of consumption following the resume of
quarantine-free travel, which not only resulted in a significant increase in sales
revenue, but also lower discounts, leading to a significant increase in gross profit.

Meanwhile, the brand has injected cycling sport elements through sponsorship
of the China National Cycling Team and the research and development of
professional cycling sportswear, and introduced fashionable designs that
incorporate cycling culture. The brand will appeal to a wider range of young
consumers with its sporty outerwear and light outdoor designs, combined with
specialized sports technology fabrics. Apart from that, the Group has continued to
optimize the sales channels of the bossini.X brand. On the one hand, the Group
has closed inefficient stores in the Mainland China market to improve operational
efficiency, and on the other hand, the Group has accelerated the deployment of
channels suitable for the new positioning of products. The brand will cooperate
with cycling clubs and sports enthusiasts in the future to enhance the connection
with its target customer groups and enrich the user experience.
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Business Review 3 7% [0l g8

STEADY GROWTH IN THE SPORTS EXPERIENCE
BUSINESS

During the year, the Group’s sports experience business maintained steady growth,
with an increase in overall revenue as compared to 2022 and a slight profit
recorded. The Group successively established three Li-Ning Sports Centres in
Jiangshan Zhejiang, Guangzhou, and Ningbo, and opened two new ice skating
rinks in Beijing, which continued to promote national fitness and health and

to contribute to the regional development of sports. Meanwhile, our e-sports
team LNG successfully reached the top eight of the League of Legends World
Championship, achieving its best-ever result and demonstrating strong teamwork.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2024, global consumption remains cautious in the face of
economic headwinds that may arise at any time, and the overall retail environment
is expected to remain difficult in the coming year, even as the economy begins

to show signs of recovery. McKinsey & Company’s survey also pointed out that
despite the expected slowdown in inflation, only some European consumers are
optimistic about the economy, while the majority of consumers said they will be
cautious on consumption, such as concerns about continued interest rate rises,
rising living expenses, which will further undermine consumer confidence.

In the face of the challenges of the macro-environment, the Group will prudently
deploy resources, conduct reasonable cost control and maintain stable cash flow
to cope with the impact of market uncertainties and to sustainably develop our
internationalized consumer goods business. In addition, the Group will always be
on the lookout for potential merger and acquisition opportunities. With the aim
of becoming an outstanding international brand operator, the Group will enrich
its brand portfolio in a timely manner and lead the public in their pursuit of an
elegant, enjoyable, healthy and leisurely lifestyles.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S

BHEREBRILRE

FRNEEETRRETESRRER B
BRUAER_E__FHMEALREN
Fle EEEBINMIIWL EBMNANERKHR
STI$*%:§13EP/D’thAjtﬁﬁi‘%Ibkiﬁ’

EEEHEREEERER BHER
E‘m?éJ:' [3) B - 3% {P9 A9 B8 35t B BXLNG R )
JAREHRBERE)\B EBSELRY
pAE  BEIR TR E B S (RIS o

B

BT ME 2CHENBEIE UE
HEREHRNEAETR @R CER
BARKRIR B REBRTEIREND
MR- BESHATNBEETEL  BER
BRAERER RSERDHNEUNEEEHK
BRIRSEFEE KB HEEIRTE
BRIEE ZNEBFENNE L7 T
EHRNETRAXST BEHRE-—TITE
HEEE D

ERRBIREORE > &R FEME
EER ETOERAES REREMR

B LU S5 15 R R M A R A
BHEERRMNVEFEICHERER S
EEOREZERETHNERES > Mk
HEENERCREEEmSER BF
SEBRTHREES  SIBRREER 17
R~ RE - AREEEREBR



RESULTS

Revenue
Breakdown by segment

Financial Review
B4 #% [0l g8

Uy
#5508

Year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=+-HLEE

2023 2022 Changes

—E-=H —E-C 2ig

HK$'000 % of revenue HK$'000 % of revenue %

FET hlEEDTE T HEREENT Bt

Clarks Clarks 9,646,492 86.0% 5,386,883 78.1% 79.1%
Bossini EHIRE 609,502 5.4% 593,509 8.6% 2.7%
Other consumable businesses HitHERER 425,969 3.8% 419,154 6.0% 1.6%
Multi-brand apparel and footwear % miGER 10,681,963 95.2% 6,399,546 92.7% 66.9%
Sports experience EERE 537,453 4.8% 500,844 7.3% 7.3%
Total 4t 11,219,416 100.0% 6,900,390 100.0% 62.6%

TRZIHERES D AMBEEClarksH £
P BE an 2 B U a -

The following table sets out Clarks and Bossini brands’ revenue by sales channel
for the financial year:

Year ended 31 December

HE+T_A=+-HLEE

2023 2022 Changes
—E-=H —E-C g
HK$'000 % of revenue HK$'000 % of revenue %
FTHT HEEEDL FET HBREEDL Bt
Clarks Clarks
Direct-operated stores BEE 4,286,745 44.4% 2,496,510 46.3% 71.7%
Wholesales and others HEREM 4,052,344 42.0% 2,097,030 38.9% 93.2%
Onling channels G rEE 1,307,403 13.6% 793,343 14.8% 64.8%
Total Mzt 9,646,492 100.0% 5,386,883 100.0% 79.1%
Bossini E¥ije
Direct-operated stores BEE 538,577 88.4% 495,414 83.5% 8.7%
Wholesales and others MR EAM 50,779 8.3% 55,392 9.3% -8.3%
Online channels g RE 20,146 3.3% 42,703 7.2% -52.8%
Total Mmst 609,502 100.0% 593,509 100.0% 2.7%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s consolidated revenue was BHE_ZE-_-_F+ZRA=+—HLEFE>
HK$11,219.4 million (2022: HK$6,900.4 million), representing an increase of KEEZEEWEA11,219,400,0008 75 (Z
62.6%. The increase in revenue was primarily due to the full-year impact of the =T T4 16,900,400,00077T) 0 1 AN062.6% ©
consolidation of Clark Group’s financial result which the acquisition was completed WHmENBHFERHRNKBSEER S
in July 2022, —_—FEtRAEM affCakEBNM B EEA
T RNEFR EMN -
Clarks business contributed 86.0% of the overall revenue to the Group for the BHE_ZE-_-_F+ZRA=+—HLEFE>
year ended 31 December 2023. Its revenue increased by 79.1% as compared ClarksZ 75 AN £ B B2 A2 U 22 86.0% o H W
with 2022 to HK$9,646.5 million (2022: HK$5,386.9 million) which was W ZE T ”FIENN79.1%%9,646,500,000% 71
attributable to the full year impact of consolidation of its financial result. (Z&E— —4 :5,386,900,000%7T) > JT5EAR
EHHEMBEEMT RN FREFRN -
Bossini business contributed 5.4% of the overall revenue to the Group for the BHE_ZE-_-_F+ZRA=+—HLEFE>
year ended 31 December 2023. Its revenue increased by 2.7% as compared ERMEEBGEAREBEERBUWERS 4% HIX
with 2022 to HK$609.5 million (2022: HK$593.5 million). The increase in M T T T FIEIN2.7%ZE609,500,00078 7T
Bossini's revenue was due 1o the significant improvement in the retail business in (Z2& — Z 4 :593,500,0007&7T) o EHize

Hong Kong, but partially offset by the decrease in online channel business due to WERIEMTAHREESEEXEHRELS
the consolidation of traditional e-commerce platforms in the PRC during the year. HHAWENBESTEERETFAER
R ERE %?’zﬂé"\ﬁﬁ?&ﬁé o

Gross profit and gross profit margin ENKREF=X

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-_A=+-HLEE

Changes in

2023 2022 gross profit

—ZCZ= ~%-ZC EF21E

Gross profit Gross profit

HK$'000 margin HK$'000 margin %

TAERT EME ThET EVIES ERalss

Clark Clark 4.567,224 47.3% 2,672,617 49.6% 70.9%

Bossini F e 310,192 50.9% 281,578 47.4% 10.2%

Other consumable businesses HtrHERER 115,163 27.0% 84,911 20.3% 35.6%

Multi-brand apparel and footwear % mISER 4,992,579 46.7% 3,039,106 47.5% 64.3%

Sports experience EHRER 137,680 25.6% 121,483 24.3% 13.3%

Total @zt 5,130,259 45.7% 3,160,589 45.8% 62.3%
Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 was rEEBHEE_E_=+-_B=+—H
HK$5,130.3 million (2022: HK$3,160.6 million), representing an increase of IEFEEZEFR A5130,300,0008 7T (ZF
HK$1,969.7 million or 62.3% as compared to the previous year, which was in — 4 :3,160,600,000787T)  BRA&A FE N
line with the increase in revenue. 1,969,700,0008 75 362.3% > A Rz 18 & —

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s overall gross profit margin
remained flat as compared with 2022. The decrease in gross profit margin of
Clarks business was fully offset by the increase in gross profit margin of Bossini
and other consumable businesses.

Clarks business’s gross profit margin decreased by 2.3% point as compared with
2022 10 47.3% (2022: 49.6%). The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to i) impact of write-down of inventories; and ii) relatively higher retail
discount offered under the economic downturn during the year.

Bossini business’s gross profit margin increased by 3.5% point as compared with
2022 10 50.9% (2022: 47.4%). The increase in gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to the reduction in the retail discount offered in the retail business in
Hong Kong.

Significant improvement in the gross profit margin in other consumable businesses
in the current year was mainly due to i) less write-down of inventories in other
brands including Testoni and LNG as there was continuous improvement in the
sales performance of these brands during the year; and ii) there was notable
increase in the gross profit margin of our footwear OEM services because of the
continuous improvement in its production efficiency.

Other income and other gains/(loss) — net

Other income and other gains/(loss) — net for the year amounted to HK$103.0
million (2022: HK$1,023.6 million). Other income and other gains/(loss) — net
during the year was mainly attributable to i) interest income of HK$57.4 million
(2022: HK$24.5 million); ii) government grants of HK$50.8 million (2022:
HK$52.9 million); iii) foreign exchange loss of HK$8.4 million (2022: HK$31.7
million) and iv) fair value loss on derivative financial instruments of HK$34.4
million (2022: fair value gain of HK$23.0 million). No gain on bargain purchases
and fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss was
recognised in current year (2022: HK$956.3 million and HK$46.1 million).

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses for the year amounted to HK$4,585.2 million
(2022: HK$2,713.3 million), representing a significant increase of HK$1,871.9
million or 69.0% as compared to the year of 2022. The increase was primarily
due to the full-year impact from our acquisition of Clark Group in July 2022 and
the consolidation of its financial result which contributed HK$3,956.8 million
during the year (2022: HK$1,989.5 million).

Financial Review B4#5[E] 8
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Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses together with impairment loss on
financial assets-net (the “Administrative Expenses”) incurred for the year amounted
to HK$1,607.4 million (2022: HK$1,085.3 million) which represented an
increase of HK$516.1 million or 47.6% as compared to the year of 2022, The
increase in Administrative Expenses was primarily due to i) full-year impact from
our acquisition of Clark Group in July 2022 and the consolidation of its financial
result which contributed HK$1,053.7 million during the year (2022: HK$454.1
million) and i) donation of HK$20.0 million to The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology for research projects in 2023,

Finance costs - net

Finance costs — net for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
HK$130.0 million (2022: HK$57.8 million). The increase in finance costs was
primarily attributable to increase in interest expenses on bank loans and lease
liabilities resulting from the full-year impact of consolidation of Clark Group’s
financial result in 2023.

Share of profit less losses of associates and joint ventures

The Group held approximately 272,121,000 ordinary shares of Li Ning Co
Limited (“Li Ning Co”") as at 31 December 2023, representing 10.3% equity
interests in Li Ning Co and 23.8% on the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2023,

Investment costs of Li Ning Co as at year ended 31 December 2023 was
HK$1,380.2 million. Dividend received from Li Ning Co was HK$244.6 million
during the year ended 31 December 2023. Please refer to Note 15 for the fair
value of the investments.

Li Ning Co’s principal activities include brand development, design, manufacture,
sale and distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment and accessories
in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has ceased to adopt the
provision in relation to lag reporting on the financial results of Li Ning Co.
contained in HKAS 28 based on the facts and circumstances after the transfer

of listing from the GEM to the Main Board and the financial result disclosures
requirements would be the same for both listed entities since then. The Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 included
the Group’s share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the fifteen months
ended 31 December 2023. Comparatives were not restated on the basis that
starting to use the coterminous financial statements of Li Ning Co in the current
year instead of non-coterminous financial statements was due to a change in
circumstances.
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The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 include the Group’s share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for

the twelve months ended 30 September 2022 and adjusted for any significant
events or transactions for the period from 1 October 2022 to 31 December
2022 if any. The Group has adopted the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby
it is permitted to include the attributable share of associates’ results based on
accounts drawn up to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must be
no greater than three months.

There was no non-coterminous period end for associates and joint ventures during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Li Ning Co’s adjusted net profit for the year amounted to HK$4,512.9 million
(2022: HK$5,090.5 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 11.3%
resulted from challenging retail market during the year.

Li Ning Co will continue to promote the strategy of “Single Brand, Multi-categories,
Diversified Channels”, strengthen and improve the core business focuses, remain
devoted to create LI-NING's experience value, and focus on enhancing efficiency
in order to achieve healthy and sustainable profit growth in the future. Backed
by various favorable policies to support the development of the sports industry
and the consumption upgrade driven by national economic growth, consumption
concept of the general public has changed gradually with more and more
consumers giving great consideration to product innovation and brand value.
Along with the increasingly mature consumption concept, consumption demand
of people will become more refined and diverse, which will pose even more
challenges to the brand and product competitiveness in the market.

During the vear, the Group shared the profits less losses of associates and

joint ventures amounting to HK$527.2 million (2022: HK$543.3 million). The
decrease was mainly due to decrease in contribution of Li Ning Co resulted from
the challenging retail market.
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Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company

During the year, the Group has recorded a net loss attributable to equity holders
of HK$119.0 million comparing to a net profit attributable to equity holders of
HK$850.4 million for the year 2022, representing a decrease of HK$969.4
million. The decrease was mainly attributed to i) there was a gain on bargain
purchase amounted to HK$956.3 million due to the completion of acquisition of
Clark in 2022, which was non-recurring; ii) there was an one-off restructuring
expense for Clark Group in 2023, which certain positions of the Clark Group
were cut to streamline its business and improve its profitability; and iii) higher
impairment on right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment and
inventory provision in 2023, which was attributed to the worse-than expected
performance of directly operated stores as a result of the challenging retail market
since the second half of 2023, especially in the United Kingdom and the United
States markets.

Non-HKFRS Measure

In addition to the results provided in accordance with HKFRS throughout this
financial review section, the Company provides the adjusted EBITDA as an
alternative measure. The adjusted EBITDA measure is not intended to replace

the presentation of financial results in accordance with HKFRS. Rather, the
Company believes that the presentation of the adjusted EBITDA measure provides
additional information to investors to facilitate the comparison of past and present
results, excluding those items (including non-cash items which are consisted of
impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets, deemed dilution gain on decrease of interest in an associate and gain on
bargain purchases, and non-recurring restructuring expenses) that the Company
does not believe are reflective of our core operating performance during the
periods presented.

The adjusted EBITDA is calculated as profit/(loss) before income tax plus

finance costs-net, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets and amortisation of intangible assets (collectively as “depreciation and
amortisation”) and minus interest income, and exclude results from impairment on
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets, gain on
bargain purchases, deemed dilution gain on decrease of interest in an associate
and restructuring expenses.

The following table sets forth the reconciliations from profit/(loss) before income
tax under HKFRS to the adjusted EBITDA.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—ALEE

2023 2022
—g=-= —g==

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Profit/(loss) before income tax IRErSRAEET (B518) (556,159) 871,151

Finance costs — net MRS R AR 3R 129,996 57,802

Interest income FE WA (57,385) (24,528)

Depreciation and amortisation HT & R i 814,062 499,712

Impairment of property, plant and M- BERFZERE

equipment 121,523 64,285

Impairment on right-of-use assets FREEERBE 439,630 276,756

Impairment of intangible assets mEEERE - 64,837

Restructuring expense %fnﬁ%ﬁﬁ 44,568 -

Gain on bargain purchase HEWE W= = (956,346)
Deemed dilution gain on decrease of /)',E D—EBERB T HEmELEY

interest of an associate RIEEE W = (7,016)

Adjusted EBITDA KA IZEBITDA 936,235 846,653

Adjusted EBITDA was increased by HK$89.6 million or 10.6% to HK$936.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, which was mainly attributed to i)
share of fifteen months profit of an associate, Li Ning Co, in FY2023 (FY2022:
share of twelve months profit) due to the cessation of adoption of the provision
in relation to lag reporting contained in HKAS 28; and ii) improvement in the
performance of our core operations in both multi-brand apparel and footwear
segment and sports experience segment.

SEGMENT

Multi-brand Apparel and Footwear Business

The Group continued to expand its “multi-brand apparel and footwear business”
and strived to develop a diversified product category to meet the needs of the
prime consumers in different areas such as sports outerwear, affordable luxury and
high-end luxury.

In 2022, the Group completed the acquisition of a well-known international
brand, Clarks, and further increased our effective equity in Clark Group to

51% in January 2023. During the year, the Group realigned Clarks’ products

and channels, including the rebuild of its online platforms in the European and
American markets to enhance consumer experience in order to drive its online
sales. Apart from that, Clarks has also implemented the “China for China”

strategy in the Greater China region to develop products specifically for Chinese
consumers and launched its first batch of “China for China”" products. The Group
will continue to explore the local market potential and enhance Clarks’ influence in
the Asia-Pacific market.

ESZ:ZE_V_ F+ZAE=+—HILEER
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During the year, the Group also continued to expand Bossini, a renowned

leisure brand in Greater China. The Group has taken the new brand “bossini. X"
as its development focus. Through its sponsorship of the China Cycling Team,
professional cycling spirit has been injected into the brand which helps it to
connect with target consumer groups. In terms of product design, apart from
integrating cycling elements and upgrading sports fabrics to develop professional
sportswear categories, the brand also merges lifestyle, trend, and culture to
develop sports fashion categories suitable for daily wear. During the period,
“bossini.X" expanded its presence in both Mainland China and Hong Kong
markets, and launched around 100 retail stores in commercial districts with more
footfall in the first- and second-tier cities by the end of December 2023.

The multi-brand apparel and footwear segment generated revenue totaling
HK$10,682.0 million (2022: HK$6,399.5 million) for the year, which represents
a significant increase of HK$4,282.5 million or 66.9% as compared to last year.
The increase was primarily attributed to the full-year impact from our acquisition
of Clark in July 2022 and the consolidation of its financial result which contributed
HK$9,646.5 million during the year (2022: HK$5,386.9 million). This segment
reported an operating loss of HK$767.0 million (2022: HK$309.9 million).

The increase in segment operating loss in the current year was mainly due to
higher impairment on right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment and
inventory provision in 2023, which was attributed to the worse-than expected
performance of directly operated stores because of the challenging retail market.

Sports Experience

Sports experience segment comprises operation, service provision and investment
of sports destinations (including sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating
rinks), sports competitions and events as well as an e-sports club.

For sports experience, it is the Group's strategy to drive the establishment of
an integrated sports platform by leveraging on the existing resources of its
sports business. The Group will therefore continue its effort to capture and
maximise the commercial values of the sports resources under our management,
and encourage social participation in sporting activities through commercial
management of popular sports events and competitions, operation of an
e-sports club, sports talent management. In the meantime, the Group has been
selecting suitable cooperation opportunities to invest in and operate potential
sports destination projects, including sports parks, sports centres and ice-
skating rinks that promote healthier living and sports awareness in the PRC.
We hope to capitalise on this opportunity where nationwide physical fitness is
becoming more popular and to engage more people in more diversified sports
experience by operating sports destinations that are open to the public, which
is expected to benefit the medium to long term development of our business.
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The sports experience segment generated revenue totaling HK$537.5 million
(2022: HK$500.8 million) for the year, which represents an increase of HK$36.7
million or 7.3% as compared to the year of 2022. This segment reported an
operating profit of HK$20.6 million during the year (2022: operating loss of
HK$17.8 million). The improvement in revenue and operating result was mainly
contributed to the recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic as part of the Group’s
sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks were temporarily suspended
their operation in response to the national pandemic prevention measures in
2022, plus that there was an impairment loss of on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets amounted to HK$25.5 million for certain ice-skating rinks
in 2022 which was non-recurring.

Financial Position

Net assets value of the Group has decreased from HK$10,998.2 million as

at 31 December 2022 to HK$9,056.4 million as at 31 December 2023. The
decrease was mainly due to i) payment of HK$1,084.7 million cash consideration
to acquire the remaining 49% interest in Viva QiLe Limited (previously known as
LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited); ii) recorded loss of HK$446.7 million
during the year; and iii) recorded other comprehensive loss of HK$531.0 million
during the year, which was mainly consisted of exchange difference on translation
of foreign operation of HK$228.0 million and actuarial loss on pension schemes
of HK$291.1 million.

Total non-current assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023 maintained at a
similar level with last year at HK$8,751.0 million (2022: HK$8,796.6 million).

Current assets of the Group recorded a decrease by HK$2,708.7 million from
HK$8,675.3 million as at the beginning of the year to HK$5,966.6 million as at
the end of the year. The key components of the current assets at the reporting
date were cash and bank balances included restricted bank balances and deposits
HK$1,283.6 million (2022: HK$2,981.4 million) and inventories of HK$3,321.4
million (2022: HK$4,067.1 million). The significant decrease in cash and bank
balances including restricted bank balances and deposits was mainly due to
payment of cash consideration to acquire the remaining 49% interest in Viva QiLe
Limited.
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Total current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2023 were HK$3,803.2
million, representing a decrease of HK$625.0 million or 14.1% from that as

at 31 December 2022, primarily attributed to the decrease in trade, bills and
other payables of HK$739.3 million and the decrease was partially off-set by
the increase of accrual of HK$126.8 million. As at 31 December 2023, the

key component of non-current liabilities was non-current lease liabilities of
HK$1,381.5 million (2022: HK$1,438.1 million).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group recorded a net cash inflow in operations of HK$631.9 million for the
current year (2022: HK$74.9 million). The increase in net operating cash inflow
was mainly due to the improvement in the performance of our core operation in
both multi-brand apparel and footwear segment and sports experience segment.
A net cash outflows in investing activities of HK$398.5 million for the current
year (2022: cash inflows of HK$969.5 million). The cash outflows used in
investing activities in 2023 was mainly due to purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, while that in 2022 was due to the net
cash acquired through the acquisition of subsidiaries. A net cash outflows from
financing activities of HK$1,903.5 million for the current year (2022: HK$590.0
million), representing an increase of HK$1,313.5 million compared to last year.
The increase in net cash outflow from financing activities in the year of 2023
was mainly attributable to the payment of HK$1,084.7 million cash consideration
to acquire the remaining 49% interest in Viva QiLe Limited. As a result, together
with the effect of foreign exchange rate change of HK$10.2 million, the cash and
cash equivalent (included bank overdraft) of the Group as at 31 December 2023
decreased by HK$1,659.9 million from the beginning of the year.

The Group had banking facilities of approximately HK$2,501.7 million (2022:
HK$2,614.8 million), of which approximately HK$489.3 million has been utilised
(2022: approximately HK$786.4 million) as at 31 December 2023. The Group’s
gearing ratio was approximately 0 (2022: 0) as at 31 December 2023. The
Group defines gearing ratio as ratio of net debt over equity plus net debt in which
net debt represents total bank and other borrowings less cash and bank balances
(including restricted bank balances). The current ratio (ratio of current assets to
current liabilities) of the Group as at 31 December 2023 was approximately 1.6
(2022: 2.0). The Group's gearing level and liquidity position has been maintained
at a healthy level as at the reporting date. It is the Group’s strategy to maintain a
healthy and effective gearing ratio in a range of 0 to 1.
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Financial Management Policy and Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s finance division at its headquarters in Hong Kong manages the
financial risks of the Group. One of the key objectives of the Group's treasury
policies is to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. It is the Group’s policy not to engage in any speculative activities. The Group
operates primarily in the United States, United Kingdom, Mainland China and Hong
Kong, most of the revenue and trading transactions are settled in either US$,
GBP, RMB and HK$. Accordingly, the majority of the Group's net current assets
were denominated in either US$, GBP, RMB and HK$. Deposits placed in various
banks are mainly denominated in these currencies. Bank borrowings are mainly
denominated in US$ and GBP. The policies in place to manage foreign currency
risk have been followed by the Group for several years and are considered to be
effective with the current foreign currency risk still manageable. The Group has
assessed its foreign exchange rate risk exposure and has entered into forward
currency contracts to mitigate foreign currency risk during the year and as at the
reporting date. For details of financial risk management objectives and policies,
please refer to Note 41 to the financial statements.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment of HK$7.1 million
(2022: HK$8.5 million), financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income of HK$nil (2022: HK$8.0 million), inventories and trade receivables of
HK$184.0 million (2022:HK$863.9 million) had been charged as security for
bank borrowings of subsidiaries of the Group.

Guarantee
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has the following guarantee;

i) guarantee related to arrangements with landlords, His Majesty’s Revenue
& Customs ("‘HMRC") and insurance cover of HK$45.0 million (2022
HK$54.5 million); and

ii) bank guarantees given in lieu of utility and property rental deposits of
HK$8.2 million (2022: HK$8.9 million).
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Commitments for Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had commitments totaling HK$49.7 million
in relation to capital contribution, acquisition of associates and joint ventures and
for the purchase of property, plant and equipment which were contracted but not
provided for (2022: HK$99.3 million).

Employees and Remuneration Policies

Staff remuneration comprised of monthly salaries, mandatory provident fund
contributions, medical benefits, housing benefits, education allowances and
discretionary share options issued based on their contribution to the Group.

Staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to HK$2,249.3 million (2022: HK$1,398.6 million). The Group
also engages professional consultants to ensure the competitiveness of the
remuneration policy which, in turn, would support the business growth of the
Group. As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed approximately 5,400
full-time employees (2022: 5,800) and their remuneration was calculated with
reference to the market rates.

Material Transactions

The Group entered into the following material transactions:

(@  On 17 November 2022, Viva China Consumables Limited (“Viva China
Consumables”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and the LionRock
Capital GP Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the
acquisition of the remaining 49% interest in Viva Qile Limited (the “Clark SPA").
Pursuant to the agreement, Viva China Consumables agreed to acquire 490
shares of the Viva Qile Limited at the consideration of GBP114,900,000.

Following the shareholders” approval of the agreement at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 18 January 2023, the acquisition was completed in
January 2023 and Viva Qile Limited become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group and the effective interest of the Group on Clark Group increased from 26%
to 51%.

Further details of the above were set out in the Company's announcements dated

17 November 2022 and 30 January 2023 and the circular dated 30 December
2022,
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(b)  On 24 February 2023, Bossini International Holdings Limited (“Bossini”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group with its shares listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 592), proposed to implement a rights issue
on the basis of one (1) rights share for every two (2) existing shares held on the
record date at the subscription price of HK$0.370 per rights share.

The rights issue was completed on 28 April 2023 and 852,362,086 rights
shares were issued with gross proceeds of approximately HK$315 million. A total
of 696,791,061 rights shares were allotted to Dragon Leap Consumables Limited
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, ‘Dragon Leap Consumables”) and the
aggregate interest of the Company in Bossini was increased from approximately
56.41% to approximately 62.91% immediately after the completion of the rights
issue.

Details of the above were set out in Bossini's announcements dated 24 February
2023 and 27 April 2023 and the listing document dated 3 April 2023.

Transfer of Listing from GEM to the Main Board of Stock
Exchange

On 28 March 2023, the Company submitted an application to the Stock
Exchange in respect of the proposed transfer of listing of the share from GEM to
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The dealings in the shares of the Company
on the Main Board were commenced at 9:00 a.m. on 27 June 2023. Details of
the above were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 28 March
2023 and 20 June 2023.

Subsequent Events

On 1 February 2024, Shanghai NingYue Enterprise Management Co. Ltd

(the “Buyer"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the

share purchase agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement”) with individual
shareholders (the “Seller”), pursuant to which the Seller conditionally agreed to
sell and the Buyer conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital
in Shanghai HuiJin Enterprise Development Co. Ltd (“Huidin") at a consideration of
RMB252.5 million (the “Transaction”). Upon the completion of the Transaction, the
Group’s interest in Shanghai Double Happiness Co., Ltd. (“Double Happiness”) will
be increased from 10.0% to 19.5%.
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Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies

EEREREEABZHGE

MR. LI NING

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFIGER AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Li Ning, aged 61, has been the chairman (the “Chairman”) and an executive
Director since June 2010. Mr. Li is also the chairman of the nomination
committee, the chairman of the executive committee and the chief executive
officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) of the Company. He is responsible for
overseeing the overall management, business strategic development and general
operations of the Group, convening and hosting Board meetings, and hosting
general meetings of the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Li is the founder of the LI-NING brand. He has been appointed
as an executive director of Li Ning Co™ since 4 March 2004 and is currently its
executive chairman. Mr. Li was appointed as interim chief executive officer of

Li Ning Co* on 18 March 2015 and has been re-designated as its joint chief
executive officer with effect from 2 September 2019. Mr. Li is the younger
brother of Mr. Li Chun, a substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined in
the SFO) and the uncle of Mr. Li Qilin, who is an executive Director.

Mr. Liis one of the most outstanding athletes in the 20th century. In the 6th
World Cup Gymnastics Competition in 1982, Mr. Li unprecedentedly won six

gold medals in men’s artistic gymnastics events and was named the “Prince of
Gymnastics” (TB&#2 F 1) in the PRC. In the 23rd Los Angeles Olympic
Games in 1984, Mr. Li won three gold, two silver and one bronze medals, making
him the athlete winning the most medals of that Olympic Games. In 1987, Mr.

Li became the member of Athlete’s Commission of the International Olympic
Committee. From 1993 to 2000, Mr. Li served as a member of the Men’s
Artistic Gymnastics Technical Committee of the Federation Internationale De
Gymnastique. He is currently an honorary member of the Federation Internationale
De Gymnastique. In 1999, Mr. Li was voted as one of the “World's Most Excellent
Athletes in the 20th Century” by the World Sports Correspondent Association.

After retiring from his athlete career in 1989, Mr. Li initiated the idea of LI-NING
brand with the goal of creating the first national sports goods brand in the PRC.
He has dedicated the past over 30 years to the development of the business of
Li Ning Co and its subsidiaries, achieving great contribution to the development
of the sporting goods industry in the PRC. Mr. Li is the non-executive chairman of
LionRock Capital GP Limited.

Mr. Li holds a bachelor’s degree in law from School of Law of Peking University
(JE XA ER) | an executive master of business administration degree from
Guanghua School of Management of Peking University (3t R K 22 L EEE 18
E2[52) , an honorary doctorate in technology from Loughborough University in the
United Kingdom and an honorary degree of doctor of humanities from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. In June 2010, Mr. Li was also conferred honorary

fellowship from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Mr. Li has also been actively involved in charities via his “Li Ning Foundation”
(== E ) and supporting educational development in impoverished and
remote areas in the PRC. In October 2009, Mr. Li was appointed by the United
Nations World Food Programme (WFP) as “WFP Goodwill Ambassador Against
Hunger”. Mr. Li is an honorary president of the Hong Kong Association of Youth
Development and a life member of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce,
Hong Kong.

*

The shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange

MR. LI CHUNYANG

EXEGUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Chunyang, aged 55, was appointed as an executive Director on 2

June 2010 and is a member of the executive committee of the Company.

He is responsible for overseeing the sports parks and sports centers overall
management, business strategic development, supervision and general operations
of the Group. Mr. Li is a director of FEFLSBBE B & E (ER) BIRA R,
Viva China Community Development Holdings Limited and various subsidiaries

of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from Peking University in 2004 with a
bachelor’s degree in finance. In 1989 and 1991, he won the World Gymnastics
Championships.

MR. LI QILIN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Qilin, aged 37, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 6 June
2013. Mr. Li has been re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director and appointed as a member of the executive committee of the
Company with effect from 13 November 2015. He is responsible for overseeing
the overall management, business strategic development and general operations
of the Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in June 2013 and is a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li had been a director of Lead Ahead Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Li has been appointed as a non-executive director of Li Ning Co* since 13
December 2017 and re-designated as its executive director with effect from 19
June 2018,

Mr. Li has considerable experience in financial services industry and was an
analyst of Persistent Asset Management Limited during the period from January
20710 to July 20183. Mr. Li is the son of Mr. Li Chun, a substantial shareholder
of the Company (as defined in the SFO) and the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the
chairman, chief executive officer and an executive Director of the Company.

The shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange
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MR. VICTOR HERRERO

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Victor Herrero, aged 55, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 14 January 20271. He is responsible for
participating in strategic planning and advising on significant decision-making of
the Group. Prior to the appointment, he was a senior advisor of the Company.
From 24 July 2020 to 4 April 2023, Mr. Herrero served as the chairman and a
non-executive director of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Bossini
International Holdings Limited*.

Mr. Herrero has extensive experience in corporate management and business
operations in the consumables industry. Mr. Herrero currently a director and the
chief executive officer of Lovisa Holdings Limited (ASX: LOV), a company listed
on the Australian Securities Exchange which is principally engaged in retail sales
of fashion jewelry and accessories. From 2015 to 2019, Mr. Herrero served as
the chief executive officer and director of Guess Inc. (NYSE: GES), a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange, which is principally engaged in designing,
marketing, distributing and licensing a lifestyle collection of contemporary apparel,
denim, handbags, watches, footwear and other related consumer products around
the world. Prior to joining Guess Inc., Mr. Herrero served as the head of Asia
Pacific and managing director of Greater China of Industria de Diserio Texil,

S.A. (Inditex Group), an international fashion retailer with brands including Zara,
Massimo Dutti, Pull & Bear, Bershka and Stradivarius. Mr. Herrero was a board
member and a supervisory board member of Global Fashion Group S.A. (FWB:
GFG) (an e-commerce fashion site operator and owner of Zalora and The Iconic,
the shares of which are listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange). He is also a
board member of G-Il Apparel Group, Ltd (Nasdag: Glll) (a US manufacturer and
distributor operating through a portfolio of brands, the shares of which are listed
on the Nasdag Stock Market in the US).

Mr. Herrero graduated with a master of business administration from Kellogg
School of Management at Northwestern University and School of Business and
Management at the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2008.
He obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration from ESCP Europe
in Paris, France in 1992 and a bachelor’s of law degree from the University of
Zaragoza in Spain in 1993. He was also awarded “Best CEO in the Sustainable
Apparel Industry” in 2018 by the European CEO Magazine.

The shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange
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MR. MA WING MAN

NON-EXEGUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ma Wing Man, aged 58, has been a non-executive Director and a member
of the audit committee of the Company since 2 June 2010. He is responsible for
participating in strategic planning and advising on significant decision-making of
the Group. Mr. Ma has over 30 years of experience in finance and administration.
Mr. Ma has been employed by “Li Ning Foundation” as the financial controller
since 2005. From 1992 to 2005, Mr. Ma had been employed first as accountant
and later as financial and accounting manager of Jianlibao Holdings (H.K.)
Company Limited, which was a wholesaler and retailer of Jianlibao drinks.

Mr. Ma graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (predecessor of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in 1989 with a diploma in business administration. In 1993,
he obtained a diploma in accounting from School of Professional and Continuing
Education, the University of Hong Kong. In 1998, he obtained a professional
diploma for financial controllers & finance directors of foreign investment & foreign
enterprise in China, which was jointly awarded by the School of Management
Zhongshan University, China and The Hong Kong Management Association. In
2003, he obtained a bachelor of business administration degree with honours in
accounting from the Open University of Hong Kong.

MS. LYU HONG

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Lyu Hong, also known as Lu Hong, aged 52, has been a non-executive
Director since 18 November 2022 and is also a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. She is responsible for participating in strategic
planning and advising on significant decision-making of the Group.
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Ms. Lyu has over 20 years of experience in global human resources management.

She joined Pfizer Pharmaceuticals Limited (¥83m 24 Z2H PR /A F) , a group
member of Pfizer Inc. (NYSE: PFE), a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange which is a global biopharmaceutical corporation (together with its
subsidiaries, the "Pfizer Group”) in September 1993 and started her career in
the industry as a human resources learning and development manager in the
PRC in August 1997. Since then, she progressed through increasingly senior
human resources leadership positions within Pfizer Group. From June 2011 to
August 2016, she was employed by Pfizer Business Service (Dalian) Co. Ltd.
(fEIH A FE RS (KB) B FRA ) and served as the vice president of
human resources for the Asia Pacific region, leading a human resources team
consisting of 260 team members which provided human resources and strategic
management services to all business units, senior management and more than
30,000 employees across 15 Asia Pacific countries or regions. In 2016, Ms. Lyu
was appointed as the vice president of the global human resources operations
based in the New York headquarters of Pfizer Group and was subsequently
redesignated as a senior vice president of human resources and relocated to
Shanghai after the establishment of Pfizer's Upjohn division in December 2018.
Upon the merger of Pfizer's Upjohn business (its primarily off-patent branded and
generic established medicines business) with Mylan N.V. (a global pharmaceutical
company) forming Viatris Inc. (NASDAQ: VTRS) in November 2020, Ms. Lyu

has been redesigned to be employed by Upjohn US Employment Inc. (a group
member of Viatris Inc.) and currently as the head of human resources for Greater
China region and Japan, Australia and New Zealand region.

Ms. Lyu had been a director of C&J Clark (No 1) Limited (“Clark”) from February
2021 to December 2021 before Clark became a subsidiary of the Group. Ms.
Lyu also previously acted as a non-executive director of Pfizer Limited (BSE:
500680), a company listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange, from December
2015 to November 2016.

Ms. Lyu obtained an executive master of business administration degree from

Peking University in July 2006, and also obtained a bachelor degree in economy,

major in international economy and trade, (through long distance learning) from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (88 15 BA 48 A 22) in January
2007,
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MR. LI QING

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIREGTOR

Mr. Li Qing, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of both the audit committee and the remuneration committee

of the Company on 20 December 2019. He is responsible for supervising

and providing independent judgement on the Group’s strategies, performance,
resources management and standard of conduct. Mr. Li has accumulated over 20
years of experience in investment and asset management, merge and acquisition
and business operation in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li graduated with an
executive master of business administration degree from Guanghua School of
Management of Beijing University b R A2 EEE B 2 B5) in 2006.

Mr. Li has been appointed as an executive director of Crystal Clear Electronic
Material Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Suzhou Crystal Clear Chemical Co., Ltd.)
(SZSE: 300655), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, in July
20716 and is currently its chairman and chief strategy officer. He is currently the
chairman of both Jiming Asset Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd and Ma'anshan
Jishipujiang Asset Management Co., Ltd. He was appointed as the president of
HuaAn Funds Management Limited from May 2010 to September 2014 and a
director of China Investment Information Services Limited, from July 2001 to July
2010.

MR. PAK WAI KEUNG, MARTIN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member

of the nomination committee of the Company on 13 February 2019. He is
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement on the Group’s
strategies, performance, resources management and standard of conduct. He has
accumulated over 25 years of experience in finance, accounting and corporate
governance affairs. Mr. Pak graduated with a bachelor of commerce degree from
the Murdoch University, Australia in 1991 and a master of corporate governance
degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2009. Mr. Pak is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries).
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Mr. Pak has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited* (Stock Code: 1229) and Dragon Mining Limited*
(Stock Code: 1712) with effect from 19 September 2017 and 5 November 2018
respectively. Mr. Pak had been an independent non-executive director of China
Huiyuan Juice Group Limited (previous stock code: 1886) since 12 June 2019.
The trading in securities of such company had been suspended since 3 April
2018 and such company was subsequently delisted from the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 18 January 2021, Mr. Pak had also served as an independent
non-executive director of Convoy Global Holdings Limited (previous stock code:
1019) since 8 December 2017. The trading in securities of such company had
been suspended since 7 December 2017 and such company was subsequently
delisted from the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 4 May 2021,

The shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange

MR. WANG YAN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXEGUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the remuneration committee, and a member of the audit
committee of the Company on 1 July 2017. From July 2017 to October 2023,
he served as the member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Wang is responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement on the
Group's strategies, performance, resources management and standard of conduct.
From May 2003 to March 2021, he was a director of Sina Corporation (“SINA”)
(previous Nasdag: SINA), which was previously listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market
in the US and delisted on 23 March 2021 after privatisation. During the period
from 1996 to March 2021, as the co-founder of SINA, Mr. Wang successively
held the posts of chief executive officer and chairman. In May 20271, Mr. Wang
has been appointed as an independent director of Weibo Corporation which is
listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market in the US (Nasdaq: WB) and the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9898).

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor degree in public law in July 1997 and a master
degree in international relations in September 2020 from the Université Paris-
Panthéon-Assas in France.
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PROFESSOR CUI HAITAO

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIREGTOR

Professor Cui Haitao, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the nomination committee of the Company
with effect from 26 October 2023. He is responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgement on the Group's strategies, performance, resources
management and standard of conduct. Professor Cui has started his teaching
career in tertiary education as Lecturer of Marketing in 2005 at Carlson School
of Management in University of Minnesota Twin Cities (“UMN"). He is currently a
Deputy Associate Dean for Global DBA Program, Ecolab-Pierson M. Grieve Chair
in International Marketing and Professor of Marketing of UMN. He is also an
affiliated professor at the Department of Industrial & System Engineering, College
of Science & Engineering at UMN,

Professor Cui is widely recognized for his contributions in areas of behavioral
modeling in marketing, branding, competitive strategies, distribution channels,
marketing-operations interfaces, and pricing. He has served as a departmental
editor of “OM-Marketing Interface area at Production and Operations
Management” and “Customer Experience, Behavior, and Decision-Making area
at Service Science” since 2021 and 2019 respectively. He has also served as
a guest associate editor for “Management Science” since 2016. He has also
been the Vice President of the Behavioral Operations Management and Research
Society at Operations Research Society of China since 2015. Professor Cui was
also the Vice President of the Production and Operation Management Society
College of Behavioral Operations from 2017 to 2019,

Professor Cui was selected as the one of the American Marketing Association-
Sheth Doctoral Consortium Fellow in 2004, 2017 and 2020 respectively. He
received the Meritorious Service Award from 20171 to 2019 by “Management
Science” and Distinguished Service Award in 2014 and 2017 and the 3M
Non-Tenured Faculty Award from 2007 to 2010. He was nominated to be the MSI
Young Scholars in 2011 and the Chang Jiang Scholars by Ministry of Education of
China in 2016.

Professor Cui obtained his Bachelor's Degree in Industrial Engineering and Degree
in Fluid Machinery and Fluid Engineering and International Master of Business
Administration from Tsinghua University in 1998 and 2000. He received his
Master of Business Administration in Operations and Information Management and
Doctor of Philosophy in Managerial Science & Applied Economics from Wharton
School of University of Pennsylvania in 2002 and 2005 respectively.
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Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies EEREREBAS 2 HE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. CHEUNG CHI

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Chi, aged 57, chief financial officer of the Company, joined

the Company in August 2018. He is responsible for investment and merger,
financial management and treasury functions of the Company as well as investor
relations. Mr. Cheung is also an executive director and chief executive officer of
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Bossini International Holdings
Limited*. He has over 30 years’ experience in financial management, corporate
finance, acquisition and merger, post investment management and administrative
management. Mr. Cheung also possesses extensive experience in apparel
business. He was an executive director and the chief financial officer of Win
Hanverky Holdings Limited”, an integrated sportswear manufacturer, distributor
and retailer for international sports and fashion brands. He was the executive
vice president and chief financial officer of Aspire Holdings Limited, which is a
member of China Mobile Limited. Mr. Cheung was also the chief financial officer
of eBIS Company Ltd. and NIT Education Group, the financial controller of Liuzhou
ZF Machinery Co. Ltd. and a senior consultant of Arthur Andersen (Shanghai)
Business Consulting Co. Ltd.

Mr. Cheung holds a Degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in Accountancy from the
City University of Hong Kong and a Degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

The shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange

Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Li Chunyang and Mr. Li Qilin, being the executive Directors, are
also the senior management of the Group.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies EEREREBAS 2 HE

DISCLOSURE ON CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF EESENEEZEE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, the changes in details of the RiE EHHBRBIEI13518)E  REAQATIEHE
Directors’ information subsequent to the date of the interim report of the Company TETZFARBZ+tHIEANERZHER
for the six months ended 30 June 2023 are set out below: STHER EFERNEHFEEHINT
Name Details of Changes

H EEFS

Professor Cui Haitao

EBSHE

Mr. Wang Yan

RIS E

Mr. Victor Herrero

Victor Herrerost &4

appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a member of the nomination committee of
the Company with effect from 26 October 2023. Details of his appointment were disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 26 October 2023.

ELZEARARIBUFRTEEARLEZEENE B2 =ZF+AZ 1
HEEM RZBEFBEREAATINBBRA T _=ZF+RZ+/"BZREAK

& o

resigned as a member of the nomination committee of the Company with effect from 26 October
2023. Details of his resignation were disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 26 October
2023.

HEARBREEZEEENE B2 =F+8Z+/<H EEEAZ 2 BE1EsF
BERAANBHEEA _E_=0+B -+ "HZAERIKE

with effect from 2 February 2024, the emolument package was revised to an annual director’s fee of
HK$200,000 and an annual salary of GBP52, OOO.

BEE_ME_A_HE #FNTBETABFEEME200 0008 T REH
52,0003 §% o
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a multi-brand operator principally engaged in design and
development, branding and sales of sports and lifestyle apparel and footwear,
and provision of sports experience under a multi-brand strategy. The Group offers
sports experience through (i) management and operation of sports parks, sports
centres and ice-skating rinks under its sports destination development business,
and (i) management and operation of e-sports clubs, coordination of sports
events, and sports-related marketing services under its sports team and event
management business.

The principal activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 39 to the financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the year ended 31 December 2023
is set out in the Chairman’s Statement, the Business Review and the Financial
Review of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends to declare final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023 of HK$0.008 per share of the Company and an equivalent amount of
dividend to the holder of the issued and outstanding convertible bonds of the
Company as-converted basis. Subject to obtaining the approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the final dividend is expected to be paid on or before 22
July 2024,

The Group'’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 154 to 275.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company recognizes the importance of maximizing return to Shareholders
and believes that driving growth creates significant value to Shareholders. The
Company has adopted a dividend policy with the objective of achieving right
balance of the amount of dividend and the amount of profits retained in the
business for various purposes. The Board would consider the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividend:—

financial results of the Company;

Shareholders’ interests;

general business conditions, strategies and future expansion needs;
the Company’s capital requirements;

the payment of cash dividends to the Company from its subsidiaries;

CHCHGHEAC

D
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() possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the Company; and
(g)  other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the applicable
laws and the Company's Articles of Association.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
five financial years is set out on page 277 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the vear, the Group made charitable and other donations amounted to
approximately HK$23.5 million.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued 41,863,000 Shares in aggregate upon
exercise of share options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme of the Company
(as set out in the section of “Share Option Scheme” in this report) adopted by the
Company on 18 January 2021 and the consideration received thereon amounted
to approximately HK$28,048,000.

Details of the share capital and the perpetual convertible bonds during the year
are set out in Notes 30 and 32 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, save for the Earn-out Convertible Bonds,
the Share Option Scheme of the Company (as set out in the sections of “Directors’
Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” in this
report), the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement, nor did
any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end of the year.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's reserves available for distribution
to Shareholders comprising share premium account less accumulated losses,
amounted to approximately HK$225,190,000 (2022: HK$232,448,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 40 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 158 respectively.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers (including
LN Group) accounted for approximately 15.6% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 4.6%
of the total sales.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
18.1% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 5.0% of the total purchases.

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
and an executive Director, was also deemed under Part XV of the SFO to have
personal interest in 4,208,983 LN Shares and 1,230,630 unvested restricted LN
Shares under the restricted share award scheme of Li Ning Co, which in aggregate
amounted to 5,439,613 LN Shares and underlying LN Shares (representing
approximately 0.21% shareholding interest in the share capital of Li Ning Co as
at 31 December 2023). Mr. Li Ning is also the executive chairman, the joint chief
executive officer and an executive director of Li Ning Co. As at 31 December
2023, Mr. Li Qilin, an executive Director, was also deemed under Part XV of the
SFO to have personal interest in 1,104,965 LN Shares and 164,135 unvested
restricted LN Shares under the restricted share award scheme of Li Ning Co,
which in aggregate amounted to 1,269,100 LN Shares and underlying LN Shares
(representing approximately 0.05% shareholding interest in the share capital of

Li Ning Co as at 31 December 2023). He is also an executive director of Li Ning
Co.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major customers or
suppliers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist in the jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands in which the
Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the Company during the year.
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REDEMPTION OR PURCHASE OR CANCELLATION OF
REDEEMABLE SECURITIES

There was no redemption, purchase or cancellation by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries of any redeemable securities of the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Chunyang
Mr. Li Qilin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Victor Herrero
Mr. Ma Wing Man
Ms. Lyu Hong

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Qing

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin

Mr. Wang Yan

Professor Cui Haitao (appointed on 26 October 2023)

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company's articles of association.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. LI Qilin, Mr. Victor HERRERO and
Mr. PAK Wai Keung, Martin will retire as Directors by rotation and, being eligible,
offers themselves for re-election in accordance with articles 108(A) and 108(B)
of the articles of association of the Company and pursuant to Appendix C1 of
the Listing Rules. Professor Cui Haitao will retire and, being eligible, offer himself
for re-election in accordance with article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company. Further particulars of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent

together with this annual report. All other existing Directors shall continug in office.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 24 to 33 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the year are
set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors” and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company’s or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or its
connected entities had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly) subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and shaort
positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as referred to in the Appendix
C3 of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debenture WA A TN « HHEIRS R EESE 2 HF
of the Company B

Number of Shares/
underlying Shares held
FrsRtin /KD & B .
Approximate
Nature of interests percentage of
EEtE shareholdings
Number of as at
Personal Corporate share 31 December
Directors Capacity interest interest options held Total interests " 2023
{ZEZ=
+ZH
=+-H
P B A PR gt
) g% VN 37 NEEG B i nEr ] BAE DL
(@) The Company
P NG|

Long positions in the ordinary shares (the “Sllgres”), underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
REAFEER (TR HARGREREZFE

Mr. LI Ning Beneficial owner 879,508,000 - 7,000,000
FERYE BaREBA
Interest of controlled corporation - 5,812,443,151 - 6,698,951,15111 68.90%
ZEGEERER
Mr. LI Chunyang Beneﬂc@l owner 15,451,669 - 36,000,000 51,451,669 0.53%
TEHBEE EHEAA
Mr. LI Qilin Beneficiary of trusts 3,680,022,769@ - -
THBEE Bt
Beneficial owner - - 20,000,000@ 3,700,022,769 38.06%
BEnEBA
Mr. Victor HERRERO Beneficial owner 29,168,000 - 34,000,000 63,168,000 0.65%
Victor HERRERO%E £ BanEBA
M. MA Wing Man Beneficial owner 2,000,000 - 4,000,000© 6,000,000 0.06%
Bkt BanEBA
Mr. LI Qing Beneficial owner = = 1,800,000 1,800,000 0.02%
)bl BEnEBA
Mr. PAK Wai Keung, Martin Beneﬂc@l owner - - 1,800,000© 1,800,000 0.02%
HE®REE BanEBA
Mr. WANG Yan Beneficial owner - - 1,800,000® 1,800,000 0.02%
AREE BanEBA
Professor CULHaHao Beneﬂc@l owner 4,984,000 - - 4,984,000 0.05%
EREHR BanEBA

(b) Associated Corporation - Bossini International Holdings Limited (“Bossini”)
HEEE-ZMEERERARAR (TEHHE)
Long Positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of Bossini (the “Bossini Shares”)

REmESREGEIETZERR (EhERN)) 258

Mr. LI Ning Interest of controlled corporation - 2,090,373,183% - 2,090,373,183 62.91%
FBEE EeLIP L
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Mr. Li Ning is interested in 6,698,951,151 Shares, among which 21,508,000
Shares, the share options which are exercisable into 7,000,000 Shares and

the convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$278,850,000 which are
convertible into 858,000,000 Shares are held as personal interest, and is deemed
to be interested in the long positions of 5,812,443,151 Shares in aggregate
through his interests in Lead Ahead Limited (“Lead Ahead”), Victory Mind Assets
Limited (“Victory Mind Assets”) and Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited
("Dragon City"), respectively as follows:

(a) the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares is held by Lead Ahead, which is
owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by Mr. Li Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also
a director of Lead Ahead;

(b)  the long position of 1,680,022,769 Shares is held by Victory Mind Assets
which is owned as to 57% by Ace Leader Holdings Limited ("Ace Leader”)
and 38% by Jumbo Top Group Limited (“Jumbo Top”). All shares of Ace
Leader are held by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. (“TMF") in its capacity as trustee of
a discretionary trust. Mr. Li Ning is the settlor of the trust and is therefore
deemed to be interested in such 1,680,022,769 Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a
director of each of Victory Mind Assets and Ace Leader; and

(c) the long position of 2,000,000,000 Shares is held by Dragon City in its
capacity as trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned as to 60%
by TMF and as to 40% by TMF, each as the trustee of separate discretionary
trust. Mr. Li Ning is the 60% shareholder of Dragon City and a founder of the
unit trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such 2,000,000,000
Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a director of Dragon City.

See note 1(b) and note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the share capital of the Company” below.

The detailed information activating to the Share Options of the Company, please
refer to the section “"SHARE OPTION SCHEME",

As at 31 December 2023, the total number of shares of Bossini in issue

was 3,322,720,177 and Dragon Leap Consumables Limited (“Dragon Leap
Consumables”) was interested in 2,090,373,183 Bossini Shares. Dragon Leap
Consumables was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. As such, Mr. Li Ning
was deemed to be interested in the same 2,090,373,183 Bossini Shares by virtue
of his interests in the Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2023, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to

be and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 12 October 2012 (the
“‘Acquisition Agreement”) entered into between the Company and Victory Mind
Assets and Dragon City as the vendors (the “Vendors”), the acquisition by the
Company of 266,374,000 LN Shares, representing approximately 25.227% of
the then issued share capital of Li Ning Co was completed in December 2012,
for the aggregate consideration of HK$1,358,507,400, which was satisfied by
the issuance to Victory Mind Assets, one of the Vendors, 1,780,022,769 Shares
and to Dragon City, the other Vendor, unlisted initial convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$780,000,000 (the “Initial Convertible Bonds") which
are convertible at an initial conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share, subject

to adjustment provided under the terms and conditions of the Initial Convertible
Bonds. All Initial Convertible Bonds were converted into 2,400,000,000 Shares
on 6 June 2014,

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement and the deed dated 30 August 2013
entered into between the Company and the Vendors (the “Deed”), the Company
issued unlisted earn-out convertible bonds (the “Earn-out Convertible Bonds") in
the principal amount of HK$340,782,000 to Victory Mind Assets and the Eamn-
out Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$439,218,000 to Dragon
City in November 2013 subject to certain undertaking under which a portion of
the Earn-out Convertible Bonds may be returned to the Company in the event that
certain performance targets of LN Group are not met. The Earn-out Convertible
Bonds are convertible into 2,400,000,000 Shares at an initial conversion

price of HK$0.325 per Share. On 10 April 2017, the condition for releasing

the undertaking has been met and the Company has released all the Earn-out
Convertible Bonds held by the Vendors in accordance with the terms of the Deed.
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Victory Mind Assets is indirectly held by the corporate trustee of two discretionary
trusts, the beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr.

Li Ning, an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, his
brother, Mr. Li Chun and Mr. Li Qilin, an executive Director. Dragon City is the
frustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned by two family trusts, the
beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Li
Chun and Mr. Li Qilin. Mr. Li Qilin is the son of Mr. Li Chun and the nephew of Mr.
Li Ning.

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Interests and Short Positions of Directors and the Chief Executive in the
Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporation” of this report, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any holding company, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year had the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
entered into any contract of significance or any contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the Directors, the interests and
short positions of the persons (other than the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed above) in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant

to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company are set out
below:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
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MR RAERRG ZFE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares/underlying shareholdings as at
Capacity Shares held 31 December 2023
BRZEZ=
+=ZA=+—H
FR¥sRg1n FRERg
B ELER0Y G REMEALT
Substantial Shareholders
FTERRE
Mr. LI Chun® Beneficial owner 60,000,000
TS ED Em#EEA
Interest of controlled corporation 5,812,443,157
BESEE RS
5,872,443,157 60.40%
Lead Ahead®? Beneficial owner 2,132,420,382 21.93%
BmEAA
Victory Mind Assets® Beneficial owner 1,680,022,769 17.28%
BEm#EEA
Ace Leader® Interest of controlled corporation 1,680,022,769 17.28%
SZEGEE#E R
Jumbo Top® Interest of controlled corporation 1,680,022,769 17.28%
ZEGEE S
Dragon City® Trustee 2,000,000,000 20.57%
ZEEA
TMFO® Trustee 3,680,022,769 37.85%
=EEA
Other Persons
Hfh AL
Mr. ZHAQ Jianguo® Beneficial owner 293,000,000
g e BE@m#EEA
Interest of spouse 700,000,000
BBt m
Interest of controlled corporation 12,963,200
SEGEE#E R
1,005,963,200 10.35%
Ms. LI Ying® Beneficial owner 700,000,000
ey kogunld BEm#EEA
Interest of spouse 293,000,000
BBt m
Interest of controlled corporation 12,963,200
SEGEE#E R
1,005,963,200 10.35%
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Mr. Li Chun has personal interest in 60,000,000 Shares and is deemed to be
interested in the long positions of 5,812,443,151 Shares in aggregate through
his interests in Lead Ahead, Victory Mind Assets and Dragon City, respectively as
follows:

(a) the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares is held by Lead Ahead, which is
owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by Mr. Li Chun;

(b)  the long position of 1,680,022,769 Shares is held by Victory Mind
Assets which is owned as to 57% by Ace Leader and 38% by Jumbo Top.
All shares of Jumbo Top are held by TMF in its capacity as trustee of a
discretionary trust. Mr. Li Chun is the settlor of the trust and is therefore
deemed to be interested in such 1,680,022,769 Shares. Mr. Li Qilin is a
beneficiary of the trust and is also therefore deemed to be interested in such
1,680,022,769 Shares. Mr. Li Chun is also a director of each of Victory
Mind Assets and Jumbo Top; and

() the long position of 2,000,000,000 Shares is held by Dragon City in its
capacity as trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned as to 60% by
TMF and as to 40% by TMF, each as the trustee of a separate discretionary
trust. Mr. Li Qilin is a beneficiary of one of the said separate trusts and is
also therefore deemed to be interested in such 2,000,000,000 Shares. Mr.
Li Chun is taken to be interested in 40% of the shares of Dragon City and
is therefore deemed to be interested in such 2,000,000,000 Shares. Mr. Li
Chun is a director of Dragon City.

Lead Ahead is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by his brother, Mr. Li
Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also a director of Lead Ahead.

See note 1(b) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief
executive in the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” and note 1(b) above. For avoidance of doubt and double
counting, it should be noted that Ace Leader, Jumbo Top and TMF are deemed to be
interested in the 1,680,022,769 Shares which Victory Mind Assets is interested in.

See note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief
executive in the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” and note 1(c) above. TMF is deemed to be interested in
the 2,000,000,000 Shares which Dragon City is interested in.
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) Mr. Zhao Jianguo has personal interest in 289,666,667 Shares and the share
options which are exercisable into 3,333,333 Share. Ms. Li Ying, the spouse of
Mr. Zhao, has personal interest in the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$227,500,000 which are convertible into 700,000,000 Shares. Double Essence
Limited was interested in 12,963,200 Shares and is owned as to 50% by Mr. Zhao
and 50% by Ms. Li respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, save as disclosed above, so far as was known to
the Directors, no other person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had any interests or short position in the shares and/or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a share option scheme on
18 January 2021 (the “Scheme”) which remains in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from 18 January 2021.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives and/or reward to participants
for their contributions to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-
calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Participants of the Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business
associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise
contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary who, as the
Board or a committee comprising Directors and members of senior management
of the Company (as the case may be) may determine in its absolute discretion,

is regarded as valuable human resources of the Group and has made important
contributions to the development of the Group based on his work experience,
knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors, and subject to such
conditions as the Board or such committee (as the case may be) may think fit,
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The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the Board or such committee, save that such period shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of grant. The options granted under the
Scheme will be vested according to the terms and conditions determined by the
Board on a case by case basis.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or such
committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Shares on the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Shares.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date of grant. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the number of Shares in issue from time to time. The total number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Shares in issue as at
the date of its adoption (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company may, from
time to time, refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting. Once refreshed, the total number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under Scheme
and all other share option schemes of the Company under the limit, as refreshed,
must not exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshment by the Shareholders. On the basis of 9,496,332,726 Shares
in issue on the date of adoption of the Scheme, the maximum number of Shares
that may be issued upon exercise of share options that may be granted under
itis 949,633,272 Shares. The number of options available for grant under the
Scheme was 653,350,605 as at 1 January 2023 and 657,989,938 as at 31
December 2023 respectively. As at the date of this report, the total number

of shares available for issue under the Scheme is 843,689,271, representing
approximately 8.68% of the existing number of issued Shares.
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Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

Detail of movement of the share options under the Scheme during the year ended

31 December 2023 are as follows:
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Exercised Gancelled Lapsed Balance
Balance as at during during during as at Exercise
Grantees Date of grant 1.1.2023 the year the year the year 31.12.2023 price Exercise period
i
R’ kSt
—8-= _‘|‘:ﬁ
‘ —A_H - o . T e
ERA it B g% RERT RERFE RERKH L 18 TEBE
(HKS)
(&)
Directors
S
Mr. LI Nin 18.01.2021 2,333,333 - - - 2,333,333 0.67 18.01.2022-17.01.2027
3= 2,333,333 - - - 2,333,333 18.01.2023-17.01.2028
2,333,334 - - - 2,333,334 18.01.2024-17.01.2029
7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000
Mr. LI Chunyang 18.01.2021 9,333,333 - - - 9,333,333 0.67 18.01.2022-17.01.2027
zEBRE 13,333,333 - - - 13,333,333 18.01.2023-17.01.2028
13,333,334 - - - 13,333,334 18.01.2024-17.01.2029
36,000,000 - - - 36,000,000
. LI Qi 18.01.2021 6,666,667 - - - 6,666,667 0.67 18.01.2022-17.01.2027
FHBRE 6,666,667 = = = 6,666,667 18.01.2023-17.01.2028
6,666,066 - - - 6,666,666 18.01.2024-17.01.2029
20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
Mr. Victor HERRERO 18,01.2021 20,000,000 (6,000,000) - - 14,000,000 0.67 18.01.2023-17.01.2028
Victor HERRERO & 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 18.01.2024-17.01.2029
40,000,000 (6,000,000) - - 34,000,000
. MA Wing Man 18.01.2021 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - - - 0.67 18.01.2022-17.01.2027
BRXLE 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 18.01.2023-17.01.2028
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 18.01.2024-17.01.2029
6,000,000 (2,000,000) - - 4,000,000
Mr. PAK Wai Keung Martin -~ 18.01.2021 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.67 18.01.2022-17.01.2027
AR®EE 600,000 - - - 600,000 18.01.2023-17.01.2028
600,000 - - - 600,000 18.01.2024-17.01.2029
1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
Mr. WANG Yan 18.01.2021 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.67 18.01.2022-17.01.2027
IT%E 600,000 - - - 600,000 18.01.2023-17.01.2028
600,000 - - - 600,000 18.01.2024-17.01.2029
1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
M Ul Qin% 18.01.2021 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.67 18.01.2022-17.01.2027
=k 600,000 - = S 600,000 18.01.2023-17.01.2028
600,000 - - - 600,000 18.01.2024-17.01.2029
1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
114,400,000 (8,000,000) - - 106,400,000
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Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Balance
Balance as at during during during as at Exercise
Grantees Date of grant 1.1.2023 the year the year the year 31.12.2023 price Exercise period
®
I k-
ZEC= +28
o = _H_ = " X + AE 4= /=
ERA RHBEH g8 RERTE  REREHE  REAXN o3 1B TEHMA
(HKS)
(&)
Other employees
EfER
In aggregate 18.01.2021 562,000 (552,000) - (10,000) - 0.67 18.01.2021-17.01.2023
a5t 11,869,001 (1,553,667) - (5,333) 10,310,001 18.01.2022-17.01.2027
45533336 (31,757,333) - - 13,776,002 18.01,2023-17.01.2028
45,533,330 - - (1,000,000) 44,533,330 18.01.2024-17.01.2029
103,497,666  (33,863,000) - (1,015,333) 66,619,333
08.07.2022 4,768,000 - - (1,208,000) 3,560,000 1,30 08.07.2023-07.07.2028
4,768,000 - - (1,208,000) 3,560,000 08.07.2024-07.07.2029
4,768,000 - - (1,208,000) 3,560,000 08.07.2025-07.07.2030
14,304,000 - - (3,624,000) 10,680,000
232,201,666 (4,863,000) - (4,639,333) 185,699,333
Notes: MoaE
(1) No share options under the Scheme were granted or cancelled during the year ) BEZZE=_F+"HA=+—HLEFE"
ended 31 December 2023, BEmET R IE TR e E o
(2)  The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date on 2 BRONRZREEREETESHANMEFR
which the options were exercised was HK$1.31. B HEAR131EB T
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence and it is the Group’s policy
to compensate each employee fairly and equitably. The Group has a system
for measuring employees’ performance against agreed-upon goals with
specific performance standards. Performance discussion is carried out on an
ongoing basis and a formal evaluation is conducted at least once a year to
review employees’ overall performance, achievements, and areas in need of
improvement. Salary review would be based on individual's performance and
subject to Group's discretion.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by a listed
company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job responsibilities
S0 as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as is fit and
appropriate. The details of remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management are set out in Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements. During

the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no arrangement under which a
Director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

The existing share option scheme enables the Company to grant options as an
incentive to directors and eligible participants. Details of the scheme are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 45 to 48 of this annual
report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is set out on

pages 52 to 66 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In addition to the discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance in the Business Review of this annual report, a detailed
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report complied with appendix C2
of the Listing Rules is set out on pages 67 to 144 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year 2023 and up to the date of this report, according to the Listing
Rules, the following Directors have interests in the following businesses which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group other than those businesses where the Directors

of the Company were appointed as directors to represent the interests of the

Company and/or the Group:

XER
AARNERRERBRPZLEE
BEEAREZ HBERNAFRERE

RIE-HHERERKRS

PR AFREFOBERERAEAER ZIRIE
HERFRBEZ w0 LTiFE%EEJJWﬁz
CCHREZERE HEREARSHEBEN
KERFECTE144H o

EENBGFEETHZ2ED

TR _—FERREERARESAH K
AREMEFEZEABTREBNESY
RERERB R/ HAEBMBIF) I R
EHRA THEEHES THRRBER
%%ﬁ?ﬁ&iﬁ&ﬁ&“%%?%%&
PFHEFED -

>

& o P

Businesses which are considered to compete or likely to compete with the businesses of the Group

BWARRALERER BN R FHAEBRRFNES

Name of Director Name of Entity

Nature of interest of
the Director in the

Description of the Entity’s Business Entity

ERENZERNE

BEENS ER%E BRENEZBHN mHE
Mr. Li Ning Li Ning Company Limited mainly engaged in brand marketing, research director and substantial shareholder

and development, design, manufacturing,

(within the meaning of the SFO)

distribution and retail of professional and
leisure footwear, sport apparels, equipment and
accessories under the LI-NING brand and other

licensed brands

FEXE FZERRAF TERE

BREMBEERET BEERIERF (EERIZFH
WEERINEELE  BFRE

CEBRMA REAE RG]

EETﬁFE’Hﬁf B3R5t RE D

REE
Mr. Li Qilin Li Ning Company Limited  as disclosed above director and substantial shareholder
(within the meaning of the SFO)
FREBE T A FERRAF W EXPRiREE EERTERR (EERES

K ERE A% )
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Note:

Mr. Li Chun, an elder brother of Mr. Li Ning, the father of Mr. Li Qilin and a substantial
shareholder (within the meaning of the SFO) of the Company, is deemed to be interested in
the shares and underlying shares of Li Ning Company Limited held by the Company.

As the Board of Directors of the Company is independent of the board of the above-
mentioned entity and none of the above Directors can control the Board of the Company,
the Group is therefore capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm'’s
length from the businesses of this entity.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report, there was a
sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year under review have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By Order of the Board
Li Ning
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and meet its objectives to maximize the interest of its
shareholders by further expand into the multi-brand consumer goods business
which has been further discussed in the directors’ report of this annual report on
the performance of the Group. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2023, the Company had complied with the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules,
save for the disclosure below.

The code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Li Ning holds both the positions of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer. Taking into account of Mr. Li's expertise and insight
of the sports field and consumables business, having these two roles performed
by Mr. Li enables more effective and efficient overall business planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies of the Group. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority is ensured by the operations

of the Board, which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals and
adequate independent element in the composition of the Board, with over one-
third of them being independent non-executive Directors.

The application of the relevant principles of the CG Code is stated in the following
sections.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE

The Group operates multi-brand consumer products and sports experience
business, committed to creating an elegant and pleasant fashion experience,
connecting with the pursuits and needs of the public, providing high-quality brand
products and services, and promoting healthy and leisure lifestyles to enhance
people’s quality of life and sense of well-being.

The Group pursues fashion excellence and strives to build a reputable brand
image globally. We focus on creating a good compliance corporate culture, always
adhering to the business principles of abiding by the law, being open and honest,
and acting with high ethical standards. The Group believes maintaining good
corporate governance will maximize shareholder wealth and create long-term
value for employees, business personnel, communities, and other stakeholders.

The Group aims to achieve a high degree of convergence and harmony in
corporate governance, corporate culture, and operating strategies, ensuring that
directors act with integrity, lead by example, and strive to promote corporate
culture; all employees are law-abiding, responsible, honest, and self-disciplined,
and report and handle breaches equitably. The Group has established the following
mission, vision, and values as the core of its corporate culture: —
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Mission:
To serve the public and lead the way in the pursuit of a life of elegance, pleasure,
health and leisure

Vision:
Endeavours to be an outstanding international brand operator.

Values:

Exploring brand value

Pursuing product quality

Organizational capabilities determine the sustainable growth of the enterprise
Jointly creating values between individuals and teams

Harmonious development of employees, the enterprise, society and nature

By upholding an excellent corporate culture, the Group are committed to the
continuous pursuit of outstanding development on sustainability, strengthen
compliance concepts, and contribute to the public.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group’s affairs and
activities with a view to develop its business and to enhance shareholders’ value.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the

management. Decisions on important matters are specifically reserved to the
Board while decisions on the Group’s general operations are delegated to the
management. Important matters include those affecting the Group's strategic
policies, risk management and internal control systems, major investment and
funding decisions and major commitments relating to the Group’s operations.

The Board currently comprises of three executive Directors (the “Executive
Directors”), three non-executive Directors (the “Non-executive Directors”) and four
independent non-executive Directors (the “Independent Non-executive Directors”).
The Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition of
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Li Ning has been the Chairman since 2010 and takes the lead to oversee the
Board functions and the direction of the Group. Mr. Li Ning took the role of Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 22 May 2013 to further align the management
expertise of the Board to complement with the Group’s core strategies. Executive
Director Mr. Li Qilin is the nephew of Mr. Li Ning.
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Non-Executive Directors

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the
Company's articles of association.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The current Independent Non-executive Directors are Mr. Li Qing, Mr. Pak Wal
Keung, Martin, Mr. Wang Yan and Professor Cui Haitao. The Independent Non-
executive Directors help the management to formulate the Group’s development
strategies, ensure the Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports
in strict compliance with required standards, and ensure the Company maintains
appropriate system to protect the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
All Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee and

the Board also consider all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The Company
considered all the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Board Composition and Board Processes

Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the formulation of strategy,
policies and decision-making by attending the Board meetings in person or by
electronic means. During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor financial performance
and review the financial results of the Group. Additional Board meetings may be
convened for considering and approving other significant matters. Apart from
formal meetings, matters requiring Board approval will be arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions.

Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is pivotal in good corporate
governance and Board effectiveness.

Following mechanisms are adopted by the Board and reviewed annually by the
Board to ensure their effectiveness and the Board considered that the mechanism
was effective for the year under review:

1. The Board must have at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors
and must appoint Independent Non-Executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board.

2. Onan annual basis, all Independent Non-Executive Directors are required
to confirm their compliance of independence requirements and to disclose
the number and nature of offices held by them in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments.

3. External independent professional advice is available as and when required
by individual Directors.

4. The Chairman of the Board meets with Independent Non-Executive

Directors annually without the presence of the Executive Director and Non-
Executive Directors.
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The composition of the Board together with the information in relation to
the number of meetings of the Board and each of its committees, namely
the audit committee (the "Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committeg”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination

Committee”) and the executive committee (the “Executive Committee”), and the
general meetings of the Company held during the year 2023 and the attendance

of each Director are set out in the following table

“$EHE5JZLHZK’&T T —FHET
ZEFERHREEY (Eﬂé’fﬁué% (T
ZEEg)) HHEEE (FMEEE)
RLEEE ((RLEEE)) " HITEEY
(MATEEE))) RRRAEZEZRY
ZERBNURBEFHREBREN TER:

Meetings held in 2023
RISZ=F87283
Annual  Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration Nomination Executive General General
Board  Committee Committee  Committee  Committee Meeting Meeting
B TS BE
BXY BRZET FWZ8T RRZEE WTEEY BEEKY HAXE
Number of meetings THERY 5 3 1 1 1 1 1
Executive Directors 2}1, _§§
M. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief BRE (TERTHER)®
Executive Officer)® 5/5 - - 17 17 17 0/1
Mr. Li Chunyang® TEBRRE 5/5 - - - 11 1N A
Mr. Li Qilin? il 5/5 — - - 11 1N 1M
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Mr. Victor Herrero Victor Herrero%t 4 5/5 - - - - i "
Mr. Ma Wing Man Bs s 5/5 33 = = = 10 11
Ms. Lyu Hong BAZT 4/5 = n = = i i
Independent Non-executive BIJEHITES
Directors
M. Li Qing ER Gk 5/5 303 1 - - o 10
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin HE®REE 5/5 33 = 11 = 10
Mr. Wang Yan®* Py It i 5/5 3/3 11 0/0 - 1N A
Professor Cui Haitao* (appointed on £ /8 ZHR' (M _E =&
26 October 2023) +EZ+/BEZD 11 = = 11 = 0/0 0/0
Notes: BT
1. The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings a 1. HEXRBIEEZERHEZXRE E#E
Director is entitled to attend. FEZEZRH-
2. Mr.LiQilin is the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer 2. FHBAEAFFR - THERRITES

and an Executive Director.

o Directors were unable to attend the general meetings of the Company due to his
other business commitments. To gain balanced understanding of the Shareholders’
views, questions and opinion raised by the Shareholders will be duly recorded and

forwarded to the Board.

4, Professor Cui Haitao has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the nomination committee of the Company with effect from 26

October 2023.

Mr. Wang Yan has resigned as a member of the nomination committee of the

Company with effect from 26 October 2023.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional development
programme to ensure that they are aware of their responsibilities under the legal
and regulatory requirements applicable to the Company. During the year, the
Company has provided the materials on directors’ duties, corporate governance
and updates on regulatory development for continuous professional development
of their knowledge and skills in performance of their functions. On 26 October
2023, Professor Cui Haitao has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. He has attended training provided by the Group's legal
adviser on the requirements under the Listing Rules that are applicable to him as a
director of a listed issuer. The Group’s legal adviser has also provided explanation
to him on all applicable requirements and procedures for making an undertaking
and the possible consequences of making any false declaration or giving false
information. On the same day, Professor Cui Haitao confirmed that he understood
his obligations as a director of the listed issuer.

The Company has maintained records of training received by the Directors. To
summarise, the Directors received trainings on the following areas to update and
develop their skills and knowledge during the year:
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RERENFEEXER - N _T_=F+
ARZ+RB 2858 XEEZEREA
AIBIFERTEFT - RESMABALERZE
REMREEEBA LHRUBEBTERNKF
RALETETAESHNRENEN -AEH
EREER TR AR B REFT A (F AR E A
RE RAZ B A AF tH AR o] B R B PR Bl 4R 1
EREAAIEELENRR -RNEH &85
HREEIMBABFALETETAESEY

e

ARBDEREEFEREIZE - BIEM
ECESEREABERIUTHENFIMN
B R EE R ERAGH

Training on
corporate
governance,
regulatory
development and
other

relevant topics
TEESE

ERERR
Hhi8RA
FEE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) TERY (FEFTHEL) v/
Mr. Li Chunyang FHEERE v
Mr. Li Qilin FEEB Y 4
Non-executive Directors ERITES
Mr. Victor Herrero Victor Herreroc & v
Mr. Ma Wing Man Bkt v/
Ms. Lyu Hong B+ v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIJERITES
Mr. Li Qing ErhkE v
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin RERLE v/
Mr. Wang Yan VERES A v
Professor Cui Haitao (appointed on 26 October 2023)  ‘ER/EHE M E_=F+A-+/,~H% v/
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Whistle-blowing policy and Anti-corruption policy

Whistle-blowing and anti-corruption policies are established. More details and the
mechanism of the policies could be found in the ESG report of the Company from
page 67 to page 144.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing
Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors, and the Directors have
confirmed compliance with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2023,

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the same Model
Code. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2023,

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee as integral elements of good
corporate governance and to oversee relevant aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The authorities and duties of the committees are set out in their respective terms
of reference. More details of these committees are set out in separate sections in
this report.

The terms of reference adopted by the Board for the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the CG Code are published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with written terms
of reference. The current Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Li Ning, the
Chairman and an Executive Director. The other members of the Nomination
Committee are Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin and Professor Cui Haitao, both are
Independent Non-executive Directors,

The duties of the Nomination Committee include review of the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board and provision of recommendation on
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
senior management, the chairman and the chief executive of the Company to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee also recommended
Professor Cui Haitao as an suitable candidate to the Board for appointment as an
independent non-executive Director after its assessment with reference to a range
of diversity perspectives.

The Company adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) with effect
from 1 January 2019. The purpose of the Nomination Policy is to set guidelines
for the administration by the Nomination Committee of the nomination, evaluation
and termination of each member of the Board. The Board shall be composed

of members with balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies,
operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of the Board shall possess,
be recognized for and be able to exhibit high and professional standard of the set
of criteria as established in the board diversity policy adopted by the Company
(the “Board Diversity Policy").

According to the nomination procedure, the Nomination Committee is responsible
for identifying potential new Directors and evaluate against the criteria before
recommending to the Board for decision. If appointment is considered by

the Board, the appointment shall be subject to the approval by the Board in
accordance with the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the
Listing Rules and the Nomination Policy. If the candidate is nominated by the
Shareholders, the nomination and appointment shall follow the procedures (if any)
set out in the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Listing
Rules and the Nomination Policy. The Nomination Policy shall also be governed by
other additional and relevant rules under the Company’'s Memorandum and Article
of Association and the Listing Rules applicable to the nomination, appointment,
election, re-election, retirement, and termination of Directors.

Summary and Measurable Objectives of the Board Diversity
Policy

The Company recognises the importance of board diversity which is beneficial

for the enhancement of the Company’s performance. The Board has adopted

a Board Diversity Policy with effect from 12 August 2013, which provides

that the nomination and appointment of Board members should be based on
meritocracy, taking into considerations of the diversity of Board members from
different aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, and discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.
The Nomination Committee’s role includes monitoring the implementation of the
policy and review the same as appropriate.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity of the Board
from perspectives the composition of the Board from diversified angles up to date
of this report:

FR RLEEEREFETHEAFS T
BAERNBEARSEHNEFTSZ I

R

No. of Directors

EEAH

Gender: Male
MR Bt
Female

7

Ethnicity: Chinese
MBI Z=A
Non-Chinese

FEEA

Age Group: 31-40

FHER 31-408%
41-50
41-50%%
51-60
51-605%
>60
B 1B605%

Length of Service (year); <1

ARFSFHR () - D14
1-10
1105
>10
HBiE105

The Nomination Committee considered the current Board composition had
achieved necessary diversity appropriate including gender diversity for the
business development of the Group. Maintaining the current composition on the
basis of the abovementioned perspectives would be the objectives to achieve
board diversity in 2024. The Nomination Committee will review the composition
and diversity of the Board on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.
The Company has also taken and will continue to take steps to promote gender
diversity at all levels of the Company, including but not limited to the Board and
senior management levels and improve the composition of the Board in order to
develop a pipeline of potential successors.

As at 31 December 2023, approximately 69% of our total workforce (Including
senior management) were female, which met our objectives of containing the ratio
as 50%. We will continue with our endeavor to maintain and hope to increase
female representation in our different level of workforce. On the other hand,
promote gender diversity across the workforce through diversity courses, staff
training, and recruitment,

9
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1 August 2005 with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible
for making recommendations to the Board regarding the Group's policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management. The Board has
adopted the operation model, where the Remuneration Committee has duties to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wang Yan (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Li Qing
and one Non-executive Director, Ms. Lyu Hong.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by

a listed company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job
responsibilities so as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as
is fit and appropriate. During the year, the Remuneration Committee (i) reviewed
adjusted the remuneration packages of the Directors (Including newly appointed
Director); and (ii) reviewed and recommended to the Board the director's fee
of by reference to their academic qualification, experience and duties and
responsibilities with the Group.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board with specific terms of
reference. The committee currently comprises three Executive Directors, Mr. Li
Ning (chairman of the Executive Committee), Mr. Li Chunyang and Mr. Li Qilin. The
primary duties of the Executive Committee are to propose and implement business
strategies and plans for the Group, monitor the operations of companies of the
Group and approve matters relating to their day-to-day operations.

The Executive Committee is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which include the development and review of the Company’s policies

and practices on corporate governance, review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors

and review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report of the Company. During the year, the members of the
Executive Committee considered and reviewed the compliance of the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company as required
under the Listing Rules.

The Executive Committee also has duty to design, implement and monitor the

risk management and internal control systems and to provide confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed on 17 March 2000 with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
financial statements, annual reports, half-year reports and risk management and
internal control systems and to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Li
Qing and Mr. Wang Yan and one Non-executive Director, Mr. Ma Wing Man. This
annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the year, the committee members met together to review the half-year
report and annual report before submission to the Board. The chief financial
officer of the Company was also invited to attend these meetings in order to

give a full account of the financial statements of the Group. The Audit Committee
also reviewed (i) the changes in accounting standards and their impact on the
Company'’s financial reporting and (i) the risk management and internal audit plan
and reports. In order to have effective communication, external service providers
including but limited to Company's auditor were also invited to attend the meetings
and regular report will be provided to the committee members.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Tsz Ping has been appointed as the company secretary of the Company.
During the year, Ms. Chan have duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts of the
Company.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
approved adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, made
judgments and estimates that are appropriate, and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor about their financial reporting are set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 145 to 153 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION BAND OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the details of the remuneration of
senior management of the Company are set out in Notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statement
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total fee paid and payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers in relation to the audit and non-audit services for the
financial year ended 31 December 2023, amounted to HK$26.2 million and
HK$1.8 million respectively. The sum for non-audit services included HK$1.2
million for the agreed upon procedures performed on the Group’s interim results
and quarterly results, HK$0.1 million for other agreed upon procedures and
HK$0.5 million for tax services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and the Board has the responsibility to
review and monitor the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually covering financial, operational and compliance
controls, to ensure that the systems in place are adequate and effective.

The Group'’s risk management and internal control systems are, however, designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board considered it would be more cost effective to engage external
consultant. Therefore, during the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged
Acclime Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited (“Acclime”), as its risk management and
internal control review advisor for the year ended 31 December 2023, to review
the Group’s risk management and Internal Control system.

The procedures used to identify, evaluate and manage major risks by the Group
are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

° Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business and
operations.

Risk Assessment

° Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria developed by
the management; and

° Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal control procedures
to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting

U Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risks and ensures that
appropriate internal control procedures are in place;

° Revises the risk management strategies and internal control procedures in
case of any significant change of situation; and

° Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and the Board
regularly.

The Board considered that major risks of the Group were managed within the
acceptable level and the management will continue to monitor the residual risks
and report to the Board on an ongoing basis.

The management and various departments conduct periodic self-assessment of
the effectiveness of the internal control policies and procedures. Acclime was
engaged and assisted the Group to perform a review of the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal control systems that covers financial, operational and compliance
controls.

The Board, supported by the Audit Committee and Acclime, is directly responsible
for risk management and internal control systems of the Group and for reviewing
its effectiveness. Based on the reviews performed by the management, comments
from the Audit Committee and recommendations for areas of improvement

from external auditor and risk management and internal control review advisor,
the Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company maintains a framework for the handling and dissemination of inside
information and the disclosure policy of the framework sets out the procedures
and internal controls to ensure inside information remains confidential until such
information is appropriately disclosed and the announcement of such information
is made in a timely manner in compliance with the SFO and the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and employs
a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to the Shareholders
and the investors. The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with the Shareholders through various means.

Procedures for requisitioning an extraordinary general
meeting and for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company signed and deposited in accordance with Article 64 of
the Company's articles of association, require an extraordinary general meeting

to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in the
requisition.
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Shareholder(s) may propose a candidate for election as a Director at any general
meetings of the Company by a requisition signed by the Shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) of his intention to propose such person for election
as a Director together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected in accordance with Article 113 of the Company’s articles
of association.

No person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given of his intention to propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the Head Office or at the Registration Office within 7 days after the
day of despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period, being a period
of not less than 7 days, commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of such meeting and ending no later than 7 days prior to the date
appointed for such meeting, as may be determined by the Directors from time to
time).

The articles of association of the Company set out the procedures for the
Shareholders to convene general meetings, to move a resolution at general
meetings and to propose a person for election as a Director are available for
viewing at the Company’s corporate website www.vivagoods.hk.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of communication
between Shareholders and the Board. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries to the Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company
whose contact is as follow:

Address of Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong: 2/F, PopOffice, 9 Tong Yin
Street, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone: 37961111
Fax: 37961100

The company secretary of the Company shall forward the Shareholders’” enquiries
to the Board, where appropriate to answer the Shareholders’ questions.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company recognised the importance of effective communication with the
Shareholders and adopted the shareholder communication policy.

The Board and management maintain a continuing dialogue with the Shareholders
and other stakeholders through various channels including but not limited to the
Company’s general meetings. The Company encourages all shareholders to attend
general meeting which provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. During the year, one extraordinary general meetings and an
annual general meeting of the Company were held to pass resolutions which are
significant to the operation of the Company.

To provide timely and effective communication, the Company maintains a
corporate website (www.vivagoods.hk) where information and updates on the
Company's business developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public access.

Shareholder communications policy is summarized below:
1. The board of the Company shall, through different means, maintain an on-
going communication with Shareholders, and will review this Policy on

annual basis to ensure its effectiveness.

2. Information shall be communicated to Shareholders mainly through:

(i) the Company’s financial reports;

(i) annual general meetings and other general meetings of the Company
that may be convened;

(i) all the disclosures posted on the website of the Stock Exchange; and

(iv)  the Company’s website.

3. Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders shall be
maintained at all times.

The implementation and effectiveness of the shareholder communication policy is
reviewed by the Board during the year. The Board considered the current channels
would be sufficient for the Company to communicate with the Shareholders. Thus,
the policy was considered as effective. Shareholders can refer to “Shareholders’
Communication Policy” posted on the Company's website for more details.
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Changes in the Gonstitutional Documents

During the year 2023, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of
Association (the “Memorandum and Articles of Association”) were amended (the
‘Amendment”) in order to reflect the Change of Company Name mainly. The
special resolution in relation to the Amendment was passed in 13 April 2023. For
further information, please refer to the announcement of the Company on 8 March
2023 and the circular of the Company dated 21 March 2023.

New Arrangements on Dissemination of Corporate
Communications

Pursuant to Rule 2.07A of the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association, the
Company will disseminate the future corporate communications of the Company
(as defined in the Listing Rules) (the “Corporate Communications’) to its
Shareholders electronically and only send Corporate Communications in printed
form to the Shareholders upon request.

For more details of the arrangement, please refer to the one-time notification
published by the Company on 19 February 2024.

Therefore, a notice for the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. Upon
request of the Shareholders, printed form of the notice would be despatched
together with the Annual Report 2023 to the Shareholders as soon as practicable.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S

HASEXHED
f:v_—fﬁf’ EBERAMKRERE

(W@JJ)MIE&W’&?%%%E& B
%1@DTEIJ¢T%IJ/\D%7KE;E/\\:7__EIEE
T=HBBE -E—PE F2RERELRFIRN
e )%/\EIB’J’“HS’Z$’ATEIHH
HRIBT=_F=ZA"+—HHE

B BB Z

B EHIRAI B OTMEM R AT ERE &
AT U BT ERS AR R HRA
SRBHADEN (EHR EHRA) (A
S ) o i 2 A AR 5 K ) EL B A ED R
AR B A T B -

ERZBETHENE LS a%:*@amm
RZE_WFE_B+HABHE—EE

H
= °©

HiIt ZRBEERRBFEFRGESRE
Bt SXPR RAN A BB L B3 o FEARERE K
ZBEAMBVEIR A ER — T — = FF R
DIEATER TERTETRER-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Report Introduction and Standard

The purpose of this annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “Report”) is to disclose to stakeholders the latest update on the
environmental, social and governance (‘ESG") efforts of Viva Goods
Company Limited (“the Group”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”, “we” and
“Viva Goods") for the year 2023. On 19 June 2023, the Group transferred
its listing from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong (“HKSE"). Accordingly, this Report was prepared in accordance with
the revised requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide, Appendix C2 (the
“ESG Guide") of the Main Board of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX"), and has complied with all provisions of
“mandatory disclosure requirements” and “comply or explain” set out in the
ESG Guide.

Reporting Period

The reporting period of this Report is from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

Reporting Scope

The reporting scope covers the businesses' that have the most significant
impact on the Group’s environmental and social performance, including
sports experience and multi-brand apparel and footwear businesses. The
scope of reporting includes the following companies:
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Sports Experience business ° Li Ning Sports Park, Sports Centres (of which Hangzhou Sports Park is

BHERET

s iy B Z
FEER

included in the new scope)

CEFO (HPRNEE E AR EE)

° All Star lce Skating Club

ERREBKE

144

The disclosure scope of the Report includes subsidiaries that have been in operation for over 12 months, and for this year have included Hangzhou
Sports Park for the sports business, and Laibin Ningjuli Footwear Company Limited for the apparel and footwear business.
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2

Multi-brand Apparel and Footwear Business ° Bossini?

Z MR ERES EHge

° Laibin Ning Juli Shoes Company Limited (new scope)

REBRNEEARAT GER)

° LNG
° TESTONI
. Clarks

The content of this Report has been determined through a systematic
materiality assessment process, covering materiality issues relevant to
different stakeholders and setting the reporting scope in accordance with
the materiality principle.

For a full list of ESG Aspects, respective key performance indicators (“KPIs")
and their references within this Report, please refer to the HKEx ESG Guide
Content Index on page 138 to 144,

Reporting Principles

The following principles have been followed in the preparation of the
Report:

Materiality

The Group has identified and ranked key issues by a combination of many
criteria and industry factors and has presented these key issues in the
Report.

Quantification

To provide a more comprehensive assessment of the Group’s ESG
performance during the Reporting Period, we disclose the quantitative KPIs
applicable to the ESG guidelines and the criteria and methodology used for
the data, as well as the source of the key conversion factors.
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This year, Bossini has expanded its disclosure scope to include key performance indicators from mainland China and Singapore.
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Consistency

In order to provide a more meaningful comparison of quantitative KPIs, the
statistical methodology used in the Report remains broadly consistent with
previous years and any changes to the statistical methodology or relevant
factors such as KPIs are explained®,

Balance
The Group’s ESG performance for the period under review is disclosed
objectively to fully demonstrate the Group’s operations.

Report Statement

The Report has been reviewed by the Board, which is responsible for the
truth and validity of the information contained herein and has ensured
that there are no false entries or misleading descriptions. This Report is
published in both traditional Chinese and English languages. In the event
of any inconsistency or discrepancy between the traditional Chinese and
English versions, the traditional Chinese version shall prevail,

Suggestions and Feedback

We welcome feedback on our ESG performance and disclosures. Please
share your views by email (info@vivagoods.hk) or by phone (+852 3796
1111).

—Et
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£ Finfo@vivagoods.hkBY 2 B +852 3796
111170

During the Reporting Period , the inclusion of some new subsidiaries as to enhance the overall data coverage, the environmental and social performance
indicators for the multi-brand apparel and footwear business have undergone significant changes compared to previous years.
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ABOUT VIVA GOODS
Business Introduction

The Group is committed to becoming a leading international consumer
brands operating company. We have two main business lines: “Multi-brand
apparel and footwear business” is engaged in the design and development,
brand promotion and sales of consumer products; “Sports experience
business” is engaged in the management and operation of sports parks,
sports centres and ice skating rinks and operating e-sports clubs,
coordinating sports events and sports-related marketing services.

In 2023, the Group continued to expand the footprint of its “Multi-brand
Apparel and Footwear Business” and endeavored to develop a diversified
product series to capture the consumer demand in different segments, such
as sports and leisure, affordable luxury and high-end luxury. In 2022, the
Group completed the acquisitions of Clarks, an internationally recognized
brand, and TESTONI, a century-old Italian luxury brand. In addition, the
Group has continued to expand its well-known casual wear brand Bossini in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, and developed its affordable luxury brand
“LNG”, with its business territory covering Europe and the United States,
Greater China region, Japan and Korea, Southeast Asia etc.

In terms of “Sports experience business”, the Group has set strategies

to leverage the existing resources of the sports experience business to
promote the establishment of an integrated sports platform. Its business
includes the operation, services and investment of sports destinations
(including sports parks, sports centres and ice skating rinks), sports events
and e-sports clubs.

Major Events in 2023

In January 2023, the Group completed the acquisition of the remaining
49% equity interest in LionRock Capital Partners Qile Limited, further
increasing the effective shareholding of Clarks to 51%.

In May 2023, the Group announced its change of name from “Viva China
Holdings Limited” to “Viva Goods Company Limited”.

In June 2023, the Group transferred its listing from GEM to the Main Board
of the HKEX. The transfer of listing provided the Group with more funding
channels and laid the foundation for sustainable development in achieving
its goal of becoming a leading international consumer brands operating
company.
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In terms of “Multi-brand apparel and footwear business”, the
Group completed an increase in its shareholding in the Clarks
brand in January 2023, bringing its effective shareholding to
51% and making it the largest shareholder of Clarks. Clarks
accounted for over 85% of the Group's overall revenue for the
full year 2023.
EIZmBERES I TR AEER -2 "=
— B FEIE FiClarkssu b > BB REZEFI51% 0 A7
ClarksfY £ A B B8 o ClarksTE2023F & F WL A b &
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ESG Awards and Honors
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SME ESG Best Practices Recognition Programme
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In terms of “Sports experience business”, the Group
successively established three Li-Ning Sports Centres in
Jiangshan Zhejiang, Guangzhou, and Ningbo, and opened two
new ice skating rinks in Beijing. During the Reporting Period,
the Group operated a total of 12 sports parks and 13 ice rinks
across China.
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STEADY GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

ESG Governance Structure

The Board holds the overall accountability for the Group's ESG strategies
and reporting. The Board (Executive Committee) is the core of ESG
governance, responsible for formulating and reviewing ESG strategies and
objectives of the Group. In addition, the Board receives regular training
on corporate governance, understands new ESG requirements, maintains
communication with the Executive Committee from time to time, assesses
and determines the Group’s relevant ESG risks, opportunities and materiality
issues, establishes a notification mechanism for ESG-related matters, and
ensures that the Group has put in place an appropriate and effective ESG
risk management and internal control system in order to minimise the
negative impacts of ESG risks in the course of business development.

The Group’s ESG governance is carried out by the ESG Management
Committee, which is responsible for planning and coordinating the day-to-
day implementation of the Group's environmental, social and governance
strategy, and reporting to the Board in writing on an annual basis on the
progress of the relevant objectives and initiatives. In the ESG Management
Committee, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group serves as the team
leader, the Chief Financial Officer of the Group serves as the deputy team
leader, with overall responsibility for the ESG Management Committee.

The person in charge of the Investor Relations Department, Human
Resources and Administration Department and Company Secretary
Department of the Group serve as the members. The Investor Relations
Department coordinates the ESG work, and is responsible for climate target
management in collaboration with an external ESG advisory consultancy;
the Human Resources and Administration Department coordinates the data
collection with subsidiaries and is responsible for emergency response

in case of extreme weather; and the Company Secretary Department
oversees ESG compliance and is responsible for climate impact analysis

in collaboration with external risk management agencies. The main
responsibilities of the ESG Management Committee of the Group include:

1. Formulate and improve the “ESG Management Measures of Viva
Goods Company Limited” (the “ESG Management Measures”), and
update in a timely manner in accordance with the listing regulations
of the HKEX;
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Recommend the ESG work plan and targets of the Group, and
conduct annual reviews in accordance with the requirements of the
Board;

[dentify, screen and advise on ESG materiality issues for discussion
by the Board to ensure oversight by the Board;

Maintain effective environmental and financial data management
systems and coordinate the ESG data collection of the subsidiaries
and ESG report preparation;

Monitor the identification, assessment, management and reporting of
ESG risks, opportunities and materiality issues;

Terms and conditions related to stakeholder engagement (e.g.
organizing stakeholder engagement and survey activities on a
regular/irregular basis to understand stakeholders' expectations and
requirements, and providing regular feedback to the Board) to further
enhance the level of compliance and integrated ESG governance;

Oversee other ESG matters (e.g. overseeing the development of
ESG strategies such as carbon neutral planning, ESG initiatives

or projects such as ESG rating enhancement programmes and
community investment projects). ldentify, assess, manage and report
on materiality issues;

Other tasks assigned by the Board.
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The ESG governance of the Group is mainly implemented by the ESG
execution team. Under the guidance of the ESG Management Committee,
the ESG execution team promotes the identification and assessment of
ESG risks and the implementation of relevant management strategies in

accordance with the "ESG Management Measures of Viva Goods Company

Limited” and in collaboration with the relevant persons in charge of other
departments and business units. In particular, the Investor Relations
Department, the Human Resources and Administration Department, the

person in charge of the subsidiaries” business and the ESG work liaison of
the subsidiaries are involved in the ESG work by division of labour. Its main

responsibilities include:

1.

Implement the ESG work objectives and tasks assigned by the ESG
Management Committee, including promoting the ESG work plan,
monitor and track the progress of the established objectives, and
oversee the rectification of ESG risks;

For major ESG issues that may have an impact on the Group’s
operation, asset security, financial condition and reputation, such
as major violations involving the environment, climate change,
occupational health and safety, employment, labour standards,
product responsibility, corruption, or subject to investigations or
penalties imposed by the government and regulatory authorities, or
the occurrence of major environmental accidents and major safety
accidents (such as the death of one or more persons), the person
in charge of the subsidiaries’” business shall report the matter to
the ESG Management Committee via a dedicated ESG affairs email
within 24 hours after the occurrence of the matter and follow up to
resolve the matter;

The ESG work liaison cooperates with the ESG Management
Committee and promptly reports the ESG data and information
required for the preparation of ESG reports;

The person in charge of the subsidiaries’ business and the ESG
work liaison of the subsidiaries co-operate with the Internal Audit
Department in conducting ESG-related audits;

Other tasks assigned by the ESG Management Committee.
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ESG Management Committee
ESCEEZEZ

ESG Execution Team
ESGEL1T/NAR

ESG Governance Structure of Viva Goods
JENLSBBESGE AN ERE &

For details of our detailed corporate governance structure, functions and
responsibilities, please read it together with the “Corporate Governance

Report” in the Company’s “2023 Annual Report” for a comprehensive
understanding of the Company's governance performance.

ESG Risk Management

The Group regards risk management as an important component in the
construction of corporate sustainability and has been deepening the
construction of risk management. In order to enhance the Group'’s risk
prevention capability and business flexibility, and to ensure the Company's
security, stability and healthy development in a sustainable direction.

The Group has proactively established a robust risk management and
internal control system and has incorporated the identification and
management of ESG-related risks into the Company’s risk management
system, which involves multi-dimensional aspects, including but not limited
to: climate change, public health, natural disasters, conflicts, political
impacts, and other factors affecting the disruption of the underlying value
chain. In addition, we also emphasize the identification, assessment and
management of climate change risks, and will comply with the Working
Group on Disclosure of Climate-Related Financial Information and the
HKEX's “Guidelines on Climate Disclosures” in carrying out our work and
disclosing the risks associated with climate change and the measures to be
taken in response to such changes.
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The Board oversees the Group's risk management system from a macro
perspective, including ESG risks, in particular climate-related risks. The ESG
execution team specializes in identifying and assessing sustainability-related
risks. With the support of professional advisors, the ESG execution team is
responsible for consolidating the results of risk investigations and selecting
risks of strategic and financial significance to the Company to provide
recommendations to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s ESG execution team has
undertaken an ESG risk assessment work to assist the Board in evaluating,
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prioritizing and managing the significant risks identified, and proactively BHE BRI REEEZANEDN

incorporating ESG risks into the Group's risk management system. The BARE > BIBZESCAEREMAERR

Group's process for assessing ESG risks is as follows: R EIER R o AEETAESCRA AR
BUWTAR:

Confirm the prioritisation of ESG risks Confirm the prioritisation of ESG risks

b SDESGE % B B R EE ESDESGA R B R BEF

Develop and distribute ESG risk
assessment questionnaires

B Rk ZFESGRE M T &

1. Establish an ESG risk database: Based on the “Report on Risk
Management of Viva Goods Company Limited and its Subsidiaries”
(the “Risk Management Report"), ESG issues database, and trend
analyses, ESG risks relevant to the Group were identified and the
Group's ESG risk database was constructed;

2. Formulate and distribute an ESG risk assessment questionnaire:
Based on the Group’s identified ESG risk database, survey
questionnaires are formulated and relevant departments of the Group
are invited to prioritize ESG risks;

3. Confirm the ESG risk prioritization: Analyze and confirm the
prioritization of ESG risks by analyzing the survey results.

Based on the results of the ESG risk assessment questionnaire, the Group
assessed the level of ESG risk in terms of “Significance of ESG risk
impact” and “Possibility of occurrence of ESG risk” and calculated the

risk prioritization score to construct the ESG risk matrix. Next, the Group
analyzed the results of ESG risk assessment and risk management gaps,
discussed the prioritization of ESG risks and reviewed the management

of relatively significant ESG risks to further improve the Group’s risk
management mechanism. The following table shows the ESG risks that have
been identified as being critical to the Group’s operations and business,
and a review of the related management practices has been undertaken to
ensure that these risks are effectively controlled.
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FESGE PR £ Rg =M A T ESGE, fe 2%
BT BE 1% B 4 E ST {EESGR PR A2
ElztE R ERDE  BESCE R
B HE ZIK%I%JESGHB ST 45
BEREMEEERETS N BIESG
RABEHNERETUREREENEE
RIESGEPE FMEBER  E—F ==
AERENEAREEHS c TR EH
AHHAEREERNEREBHEEN
ESGR\ B » W $T ¥ /AR E IR B AT
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Risk level ESG risks Internal Management Methods

R EEE ESG/E & A EERS E

High Supply chain and product quality risks e (Conducted daily phone monitoring, weekly
= HEENERESRE plant performance evaluations, and monthly

direct meetings with suppliers at the
operational level;
TEEEENMHERETSHES
B SEIRENTH BREEE

.
%Eﬁ )

e Monitor supplier performance through the
balanced scorecard and key performance
indicators (E.g. quality, development,
corporate social responsibility, cost and
audit-related performance assessments);
BBTE D R RARERISE W !
BE - HE -CEAEERE MANSE
STAERARV AR R ETE ) R BRI FE S
BIBEMRIR ;

e (Conduct technical audits of suppliers and
provide training to suppliers on identified issues;
HEEEETRM S Wi B IR
B R HEEEHIEI

e Fill staff vacancies in the supply chain team in a
timely manner;

REMaEHEREERNASER ;

e Integrate reputable suppliers and maintain
good relationships by improving the way we
communicate with them;
BERTEBEENHER LRBNE
BMPIREE S AU EE RIFRIE

e Use Acceptance Qualification ("AQL") 1.0
standards for Level 1 and Level 2 product
quality acceptance;

AR E(AQL) 1.0/Z2ZE R —4
R ZRRERETEREERK ;

e Establish management processes for second-

and third-tier suppliers;

BRUHE _=—MHEEENEERE

e Monitor the ESG performance of our suppliers.

B L FE B RUESGR IR
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Communicate with Stakeholders

During the Reporting Period, we regularly and proactively communicated
with various stakeholders through a variety of channels and maintained
close contact with our key stakeholders in order to continuously improve
the transparency of our operations and to help us better identify relevant
ESG risks and opportunities. Meanwhile, it can also help us proactively
understand and respond to the expectations and requirements of our
stakeholders, to understand their views on the Group’s ESG performance
and strategic concerns, and to make appropriate responses. This will enable
us to achieve mutually beneficial interactions and create sustainable values
for our stakeholders.

The following table summarizes the main stakeholders of the Group, the
relevant communication channels and the expectations and requirements of

Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRiZ - 1 E R EARRE

B mAME RS

RAERSH HACHBEEZERE
BBAZN@mEREETER BE
SN mAERE R ERBEE > IR
ReXRMEENERE  LEBKM
5 47 3t 38 Bl AR BEESG /R fR 1 14 38 © [F
B> BRI AE B R MEER T A O
ERNZEAAENPENEZR HHM%T
AT RREHRNEEFEESCH EB
RIFU R EBE E PR E B8 » WA
PEECE - EREZEEFMNEME
> UAMmBARERENFEEE-.

TERBEXFEBRN T2 mAERBEE
BN BEBEREUKRSH mERERN

each stakeholder.

Major Stakeholders

FEM=AEME

Communication channels
BEERE

HAZ MK o

Expectations and requirements
HAZ B E R

Shareholders and investors

REKRKEE

Information disclosure, shareholders meeting,
investor meeting

EENBE REAG KEEGE

Business strategy, profitability, progress of mergers
and acquisitions, transparency of information
disclosure

KERBEBAGET HEEE
EREREERE

Senior management

Management meetings, intranet mailboxes,
group activities

Labor standards, health and safety, supply chain
management, product quality management

SREEE EIEEGZR NEIMHE EEHEZE STEARREAZS  HEEEE
EmEEEE
Consumer Customer service hotling, satisfaction survey, Product quality, after-sales service, privacy
marketing campaign, official website protection
HEE BERERGRE - mEERAE EmEE ERRH BALRE

EIHEE B oA

Distributors and Suppliers

R R R

Daily exchanges and visits, cooperation
agreements, strategic negotiations
BERZMED e Fth BB SA

Fair cooperation, integrity performance, mutual
development
NEEE-AEEN -HEBERE

Employees

BT

Intranet mailboxes, group activities

RAEERAE  EEEE)
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Materiality Issues

During the Reporting Period, Viva Goods engaged an independent
professional organization to conduct a questionnaire on internal and
external stakeholders, to collect stakeholder opinions, and prioritize issues
based on materiality analysis. The materiality assessment was conducted
with the participation of the ESG Management Committee of Viva Goods
and was reviewed by the Board, to investigate the materiality issues for the
Reporting Period based on the materiality issues for 2022 and the actual
business changes of the Group, in order to ensure that the ESG materiality
issues highlighted and disclosed in the Report can continue to respond to
the expectations and aspirations of the major stakeholders. The materiality
assessment process for the Reporting Period was as follows:

Confirm the criteria for

EEMRE

RAREH  ENABBFBEILIEE
WEERIIBNZBFEEETHES
B WEFN@mAEEER TiRZEE
EUESMEREETEREIRFHF-
AREEMFTEBFIENLEHBESCET
AN HEFEER > BN202FE
EZHRBEUREERBEREHEH
BREHARESHERMRBEETH
B DB ARRE RS ERERESGE
EMZEN LT ERIE X2 m AR
ENRERAF R - NEAREHANER
M EARARNT ¢

Identify stakeholders determining the materiality

involved in the survey of issues Analysis of
A SERBEN BRETEEEE survey results
FEMERE BEEMNRS AIMEERELER

Review and identify potential Prepare and distribute Information disclosure in ESG

materiality issue database survey reports based on results
BRIEDBETEEN BERAERE LIRS 45 RTEESGER S P ETT

BEE

Following the Group's analysis and examination of survey results on
materiality issues for the year 2023, the Board has finally confirmed that
the materiality issues identified by the Group during the Reporting Period
are shown in the chart below:

EERE

AEETEH0BFESENZERNE
B ERET O URFEE &
EFEREER AEERERSH
A AV E BB TR
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Materiality to Stakeholders

HAUDEMAENERM

Employee development
and training )
BIZEMEI

Employee compensation
and beﬁeﬂts B
BIEMAET

Business model and product
innovation

BERANERAH

Supply chain labour

Just transition on climate rights and human rights
change and indigenous rights 138 88 55 T HEF) B2 A 12

&5 nw“mwiﬁ/////a
RAER M A 857

Customer experience and transparency

ERERNBERE

Community
development and
charity Investment
H&ESsEAz Product carbon
=5 footprint

Importance to Stakeholders
HAHmEMENEEN

=SS0 Raw materials
sourcing B
Biodiversity and R IR B
land use
=7
%?iﬁ% 4 Global greenhouse gas
il emissions
ZIRERBHIK

Water Stress
(consumption and

Deforestation, climate change
resilience, vulnerability and

transition planning pollution)
AMRIE RIEECIRE KERE S
71~ M55 KB B FR & (ERESH)

Equity, diversity and inclusion
REZHRMUEMEBEMN

Occupational
health, safety and
welfare

W ZEGRRR

Z 2 FEF]

Compliance and legal operation,
risk prevention aﬂd control
BREEEE BT

Product quality and safety
EmmEEZe

Business ethics

mEBE

Consumer privacy and data
protection \
HEBEERMMELRRE

Clear and transparent ESG report

75 Biff 5 BR BYESGR &5

Business resilience
“//%%%%

(A4
Chemical management
E2mERe

Product trageabmy and supply chain transparency
Emr B EEREREE

Hb/ XQT%Djﬁi /}?{%ﬁﬁ
Energy efficiency and renewable energy use

Waste and recycling

g = A B

Product deswgn and circularity

Em R T M AR AE I

Local air quamy
h iﬁ D‘E /— m?

Packaging materials and waste

BEY R EEY)

Materiality to the Company
HRABHNEERY

List of ESG Materiality Issues in 2023 by Viva Goods

JENBAB T _=FESGEEMRETIXR

Soma\ — Product quality and safety
fHteg-EndEEgied

Social — Equity, diversity and inclusion
HE-AT - -ZREMBSN

Social — Occupational health, safety and welfare
HE-BERER L2MNEF

Social — Gonsumer privacy and data protection
HEHEERMLNER RE

Social — Employee development and training
HE-BTEREMEI

Social — Chemical management
HEEEnERE

Governance — Compliance and legal operation, risk
prevemion and control

E. /|:| = %@ /f@% N @ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ
Governance — Business ethics

BA-mEEE

Governance — Business resilience
BA-ETEE N

Governance — Clear and transparent ESG report

R BM B PRRIESGER &
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PEOPLE-ORIENTED AND GROWING UP TOGETHER

We recognise the value of our employees and regard them as a core
competence for the long-term development of our business. We are firmly
committed to creating an inclusive, safe, respectful and harmonious working
environment, respecting the basic rights of our employees, in order to
promote their career development and enhance their sense of achievement.
In order to ensure the realization of this objective, the Group has put in
place a series of internal policies covering remuneration, recruitment,
termination, promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunities,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits, and has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations to ensure that all employees are treated fairly
and reasonably.

Employment and Working Conditions

In order to attract and retain talents, the Group attaches great importance
to the welfare and working conditions of our employees. The Company
provides our employees with open, transparent and attractive remuneration
and benefits, including extensive medical care, diversified product
discounts, as well as birthday leave, study leave, paid paternity leave
breastfeeding leave and other benefits. In addition, we offer a wide range
of employee benefits to our subsidiaries, such as regular bodychecks,
afternoon tea for employees, birthday benefits and wedding gifts. We
maintain regular communication with our employees to understand the
prevailing remuneration and benefit arrangements in the market and
regularly review the Group’s staff policies, benefits and facilities. As the
market recovered in 2023, the talent market gradually flourished. During
the salary review period, we conducted various market surveys and
consolidated the salary levels of all employees in relation to their positions
and experiences, and gradually adjusted the salaries of our employees

to the market median to the 75th percentile, which is closely in line with
the market rate of salary adjustment, in order to increase the sense of
belonging of our employees, safeguard employees’ competitiveness, and
enhance the employee retention rates.

4.

UABZT LEME

RPFRANEINEE TRHETRD
EERMERNZOBEZ I - HME
EMBIRITE—BRBRES %
2 EENNENIMHFRRE B8
THEAED  EEE TR
R AMAIB TR TR - 73 7 B
RE—BRNER AEEERET
— R AR REFM BB
RE-BH TEFH8 RE - TEHH
g Zulb RIRFEHMEMBRGE
WETAEERER  UEFRABE
THESNEBSAFTHNEENTS-

{13 B T 11514

BTRSIMNBEAS mEB+DE
METINFEBN T ERGE - REAE
TRHARBHE - BARSI B9 H
HEN AEEEEENBREAR
ZEMERITIH  UREBREE
B-HHEER WILRSEENZ I
S HPIRETWE RS RHEZ KA
WETIREHMN SFEEHER - 8L TF
R EHMEBEEANF RARKTHEE
TEHBRE > 785 L ZER
MEM 2 TR AERNET
R @AM 2023FE h R8>
AT HI5E B R PEHERER
i TR ETSRE BETHA
ETHREEUARERNFENKT &
THRETIMNHFELAETHENRUE
75D L 8> B PG T 35 F8 R WK LUKE
MEIRB -RESEINHRFI AR
FETIHEER-
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4

4

Meanwhile, any employment contract of the Group should be terminated
on reasonable and lawful grounds, and the termination process should
be regular and in accordance with the applicable local labour laws and
regulations.

As an employer concerned about family harmony among our employees,
we have been endeavouring to implement corresponding measures, such
as setting up well-equipped breastfeeding rooms and kindergarten in the
office areas, to support our employees in striking a balance between family
and work. We firmly believe that we can help our employees achieve a
win-win situation between work and family through these family-friendly
measures and create a harmonious working atmosphere.

The Group is also committed to fostering a work environment free from
prejudice and discrimination and places a high value on the rights of

its employees. We have established internal policies in our subsidiaries,
the Global Equality, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Principles and the
Speak Up and Non-Retaliation Policy. The above policy aims to ensure
that all employees have a working environment free from prejudice and
discrimination. We support multiculturalism and select, recruit and promote
our employees fairly and equitably on the basis of their individual expertise,
skills and qualifications, regardless of nationality, gender, pregnancy,
marital status, race, religion, disability and family status. In addition, we
also have in place an Anti-Harassment Policy which does not tolerate

any unlawful behaviour including harassment, vilification and personal
injury to employees. During the Reporting Period, we have not committed
any breaches of the relevant legislation and regulations* in respect of
recruitment and employment.

EF > AEBENERERSORRRE
BERGFERKL  BERZRER
LW EEMBERFEERER -

ER— KB TBIREMENEE
B —BEZ N EHRBENERR W
RURBEEHNE (F) AE HAE
ERNNEE UXFETHEXRRER
THRZEEETE - RMARE BES
EXERENER EHNBEHNETE
RIFNRENER  T=5— @R
BN TIESRE -

FEBERNINEB—ERERER
ERNIFERE TSEERE TR
m RPIENBARRILAIBEER(E
KTPE-ZHEME - ATFHNEFTRU X
(BESE2FBERR) - LAKRE
REREEEETEEE —ELXAERR
RERUTERE  ZMAEXFZT
XAE > EmamEFE R B IE IR
MRS RECBERMRERR &K
FIEB LU A B XA 8~ S BEM B
HETETAFTALEMNERE BN
Bt o IS HAHBIE T (R BREBE
R BABTEMIFENTR BF
BRE -PENEINABEE - INER
S RMAERERERTEILERE
R AR RRE B K AR BN BY BT

Including but not limited to the legal documents and regulations on recruitment and employment as set out in Appendix 1.

BIEERRRMER R B RRIBIE R ER D E D mEERXXERRM -
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We actively create an atmosphere of work-life balance in our office and BMBEHREETFELETLEHNNEA
organise various festivals, sports and entertainment for our employees. For SECWAETRTEEBEHEKRES
example, Mid-Autumn Snowy Mooncake Warkshop and Sports Challenge YREEB o BN - RRKEE BEF T E
Day. HEEPREH o

Mid-Autumn Snowy Mooncake Workshop Sports Challenge Day

Rk RZ B B T e EEkEA
Table of Human Resource Overview ANERBRRE
For Sports Experience Business in 2023 2023 2022 2021
2023F EENRERET 20234 20224 20214
Human Resource Overview °
AHEBREER
Total number of staff Person 762 737 633
BTHAR A
Number of staff — by gender
BERNEIDET A
Male Person i} 367 316
3 A
Female Person 389 317 317
Z A
Number of staff — by age group
RERMANEDTET A
<30 years old Person 259 285 267
<307% A
30-50 years old Person 454 407 332
30-507% A
>50 years old Person 49 45 34
>507% A
E In order to further improve data disclosure, disclosure of number of staff by geographic region and turnover rate is added for the year.

: RE—PEERERE AFEMEREZMER NNET ABRRELEK-
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For Sports Experience Business in 2023 2023 2022 2021
2023 EEERER 20234 20224 20214

Number of staff — by employee type
RESEINZNDEIAH

Full-time Person 687 661 550
2 A
Part-time Person 75 76 83
o R A

Number of staff — by geographic region

e E T A
Hong Kong Person 27 25 Nil
58 A
Mainland China Person 735 712 Nil
FR [ P A
Others Person 0 0 Nil
HAith A

Staff Turnover ©

BIRKS
Overall staff turnover rate % 64 56 52

BTHRAREK

Staff turnover rate — by gender
o klIE-Ua =R

Male % 75 65 59
Es
Female % 53 47 45
7

Staff turnover rate — by age group
BERANS DB IMAX

<30 years old % 122 99 75
<30%%

30-50 years old % 33 30 36
30-508%

>50 years old % 35 22 27
>50%%

Staff turnover rate — by geographic region
BIEEIH B THLE

Hong Kong % 44 28 Nil
N
Mainland China % 64 57 Nil
R E A i
Others % 0 0 Nil
HAith
g The formula to calculate the staff turnover rate of each category is: the number of employee turnover of the category for the Reporting Period/the total

number of employees in the category at the end of the Reporting Period x 100%.
J FENETRAEABEARNS | REEHZBRHNETREAARFAREHFERZBHLLE T AZK100% o
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For Multi-brand apparel and footwear business in 2023

2023F L MR EE AR £ TS
Human Resource Overview’ 2023 2022 2021
ANNE R R 20234 20224 20214
Total number of staff Person 8,851 627 1,123
ETHAH A
Number of staff — by gender
BB D E T AH
Male Person 2,594 198 485
2 A
Female Person 6,257 429 638
g4 A

Number of staff — by age group
BERAERNIDBEIAH

<30 years old Person 3,741 195 495
<30%% A

30-50 years old Person 3,811 346 598
30-50%% A

>50 years old Person 1,299 86 30
>50%% A

Number of staff — by employee type
BREEFERENET A

Full-time Person 4,575 548 1,067
28 A
Part-time Person 4,276 79 56
T A

Number of staff — by geographic region

BEHEENE T A
Hong Kong Person 307 257 Nil
5A A
Mainland China Person 1,962 211 Nil
R Ay ith A
United Kingdom Person 3,825 - Nil
[ A
The United States & Canada Person 1,900 - Nil
EBERMEK A
Others® Person 857 165 Nil
H e A

The formula to calculate the staff turnover rate of each category is: the number of employee turnover of the category for the Reporting Period/the total
number of employees in the category at the end of the Reporting Period x 100%.

FHEMETIRAEAE LRSS  AREPZBAIMNE T RRAANE AR EHFRZERINEE T AZx100%

Other countries and regions include: Singapore, Bangladesh, India, Italy, Spain, Poland, Japan, Malaysia, Korea, Taiwan, Australia, Canada, Vietnam,
Cambodia, Ireland, Portugal, France, Netherlands, Germany, Switzerland, Sweden, Macau.

HMERMM & EE  #nE 0 NE > BAF B Kl B BRER BE> 2 BAFG ME
KoHE SRR BREE AT A FE EF Int o IR R
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For Multi-brand apparel and footwear business in 2023

2023F 2 mR B IR EF

Staff Turnover®

BT mKe
Overall staff turnover rate
BTHmAE

Staff turnover rate — by gender
MR8 0B ITmAE
Male
s
Female

£74

Staff turnover rate — by age group
BERANS DB IMAX

<30 years old

<30%%

30-50 years old

30-508%

>50 years old

>50%%

Staff turnover rate — by geographic region
Eih&e 0 8 TmAE
Hong Kong
N
Mainland China
FHED A i
United Kingdon
=
The United States & Canada
EERMEKX
Others'®
H,f 10

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

64

64

63

91

49

26

27

72

68

60

34

46

46

45

78

33

22

70

38

18

28

18

36

34

22

57

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

In order to further improve data disclosure, disclosure of number of staff by geographic region and turnover rate is added for the year.

RE—STERERE AEENERERMEI ONE T ABMKRELR

Other countries and regions include: Singapore, Bangladesh, India, Italy, Spain, Poland, Japan, Malaysia, Korea, Taiwan, Australia, Canada, Vietnam,

Cambodia, Ireland, Portugal, France, Netherlands, Germany, Switzerland, Sweden, Macau.
HMBEIRMMEEHE K> ZIAIE EDE > RAR > A K> B4 SREas > 88E
KR RIEE BWE GES A FE EE HLo HmHA s B

= W
=/s

VRAFIEE S NE
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Training and Development

We attach great importance to the growth and development of our
employees and attach great importance to staff training. We actively
provide a wide range of internal training for our employees to enrich their
professional knowledge and enhance their job skills, thereby improving their
work quality and efficiency, and meanwhile, cultivating their learning and
problem-solving abilities. We make every effort to support our employees in
enhancing their knowledge, skills and management capabilities. We provide
customized training to meet the needs of employees in different areas and
at different levels. During the Reporting Period, we provided a wide range
of training, such as industry-specific professional training for our staff in the
Human Resources Department, including the Core Competency of HRBP
Certification Course and Recruitment Skills Workshop. Meanwhile, we also
arranged for finance executives to participate in a corporate consultancy
forum to understand the market dynamics in the Mainland China and Hong
Kong.

In addition to internal training, our employees are also encouraged to
attend relevant external training courses. We have established a Training
and Development System in some of our subsidiaries to help employees
received subsidies from the Company for relevant training costs upon
completion of the courses and passing the examinations.

1Eal A 3 R

BFFEIEBINMEMER I
+THERETHEI - ZMABEESET
REBEEZ KRR EI - 5T E MM
B R G R U se > /MR
SIFEENME RREEMFN
SBENMEREERIFES] - 1B
BENIFHETIENH KENEE
FHEBBENRI o $HH A F B
KRB THF R HFREMHESE
e RIMEHT > HAURME T —RTIBIEE
A PN/ AN EREPINE TR MH
TEEEREI BEANBEREER
AR R AR SR E MBI
T -BR ZPELHMBaES
HYTEBMRE THRERNEER
NHIEEAL -

Br T MEREE > PIBEBE T 20
TR RSN BRI ERAZ - I FIFE — £ 1
BRABHRRILT (FINRERGE)
HEYPSETHEHARBELEBE AR
ERS A REHEREINIER-
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Table of Training Hours 2l R R R AR
For Sports Experiences Business in 2023 2023 2022 2021
2023 FEEREEER 20234 20224 20214

Employee Training"
EEEam

Percentage of trained employees to total % 65 64 Nil
employees'?

RilEELEEA T D"

Percentage of trained employees — by gender

BrHuRENRIEET DL

Male % 50 51 49
5
Female % 50 49 51
Z
Percentage of trained employees — by employee
category
RESENINZIEER DL
Functional heads % 8.4 8.0 12.0
EFEE
Management % 4.0 3.0 11.0
Egid=
General/technical staff % 87.6 89.0 77.0
—f /BB T
Average training hours per employee' Hours 13.99 12.00 Nil
BREETFHAZIIRE N

Average training hours — by gender

BRI B9 F 19 2 5| By B

Male Hours 13.11 12.00 16.00
% INBF
Female Hours 14.84 12.00 16.00
Z INBF

The formula to calculate the average training hours per employee of each category is: the number of training hours of employees of the category/the

number of employees trained of the category.

i FHENNERETFHTIINYFELNS | ZENETZIERES/ZENNZINET A&

e The formula to calculate the percentage of trained employees to total employees is: the number of trained employees/total number of employees at the
end of the Reporting Period x 100%.

2 ZIEEGEEEANLEHEARS TIETAB/ARSHAERNEET AEXI100%-°

The formula to calculate the employee trained rate of each category is: the number of employees trained of the category/the number of employees

trained x 100%.

B FEANETEIEHELANS ZEHNZIET ABZIIE L AB100%-
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2023 FEENRE R ETS

2023
20234

2022
20224
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2021
20214

Average training hours — by employee category

REERAE D TR

Functional heads
EPEE
Management
il

General/technical staff

—f&R /BB T

For Multi-brand Apparel and Footwear

Business in 2023

2023F % Ga hR E AR ZE 55

Hours
INEF
Hours
INEF
Hours

1N

12.18

1m.77

14.66

13.00

9.00

12.00

6.00

37.00

16.00

Employee Training'*
EE &

2023
20234

18

2022
20224

39

2021
20214

Nil

Percentage of trained employees to total %
employees'®

RilEE G REEB R DL

Percentage of trained employees — by gender

EERENRIEEB DL
Male % 38 22 15
3
Female % 62 78 85
Z

Percentage of trained employees — by employee

category

BEESANINDZIEEB DL
Functional heads % 7.81 8.00 1.00
BPIEE
Management % 0.82 3.00 3.00
EIEfE
General/technical staff % 91.37 89.00 96.00
—f /AT

The formula to calculate the average training hours per employee of each category is: the number of training hours of employees of the category/the
number of employees trained of the category.

FHEINEHETFARININMGAELR S | ZEINE I RINRRB/ZENNZIET A#K-

The formula to calculate the percentage of trained employees to total employees is: the number of trained employees/total number of employees at the
end of the Reporting Period x 100%.

ZilREGEELBDLEFAEARSR  DIET AB/ERRSHERNLE T ABK100%
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For Multi-brand Apparel and Footwear

Business in 2023
2023 FE L MR ERER

Average training hours per employee'®

BHREEFHIRIIFHC

Average training hours — by gender
kIR S SE=EHSE
Male
s
Female

%

Average training hours — by employee category
BESLER B 2 T2 IR
Functional heads
EFEE
Management
gl
General/technical staff

—fk/EMET
Occupational Safety and Health

The health and safety of our staff is our
paramount importance, hence we have
implemented different precautionary
measures to ensure compliance with
regulatory requirements. We adhere strictly
to high standards of occupational safety
and health, and actively identify potential
occupational safety and health risks in

the workplace, and strive to provide a
zero-hazard working environment for our
employees. For instance, we carried out
formaldehyde treatment before moving
into a new office, and leased air purifiers
and deodorising greenery to reduce the
potential harm posed to our staff health
caused by renovations. During the Reporting
Period, the occupational health and safety
management systems of the Group’s
subsidiaries were certified to 1IS045001.

Hours 13.99
INBF
Hours 80
INEF
Hours 84
INEF
Hours 15
INBF
Hours 0.8
INEF
Hours 0.0
INEF
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The formula to calculate the employee trained rate of each category is: the number of employees trained of the category/the number of employees

trained x 100%.
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Occupational health and safety guidelines are tailored by the Group to
different business units in response to the unique workplace and operating
activities of our employees. For employees working under our sports-related
operations, we offer them healthcare benefits such as free physical check-
up services and complimentary access to sports facilities of the Company.
In addition, we provided employees in our Hong Kong headquarters

with office equipment such as ergonomic chairs and footrests to reduce
shoulder and neck stress and prevent muscle pain, which is conducive

to reducing the health risks for our employees. Clarks also has policies

in place and utilises questionnaires and health and safety checklists to
conduct occupational risk assessments for each of the three segments,
i.e. retail, logistics and corporate services, to understand and minimise the
health risks to our staff.

We attach great importance to the physical and mental wellness of our staff.
To address the mental and work-related stress of our employees, the Group
set reasonable fixed working hours and organised activities for our staff to
participate from time to time, such as sports day, so that employees do not
neglect their physical and mental health at work. The Group also placed
information and pamphlets on emotional support at various locations, so
that employees in need can easily obtain relevant consultation and support.

To cultivate our safety-first awareness, we continue to organise talks and
workshops and provide relevant trainings, covering mental wellness, first
aid and fire precaution. We also regularly conduct onsite safety inspections
through inspections of firefighting installations, effectiveness of fire
extinguishers and safety of firefighting exits. In addition, we pay special
attention to employees who perform high-risk operations and ensure that
employees are equipped with necessary personal protective equipment,
such as safety goggles, gloves and helmets.

During the Reporting Period, there were no breaches of relevant laws and
regulations in respect of occupational health and safety'”.
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Including but not limited to the legal documents and regulations relating to occupational health and safety as set out in Appendix 1.
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Table of Work Injury TEHBIERE
Indicators’® Units 2023
FE1R" =R ivi 20234
Number of work-related deaths Person 0
HTERAFHMIET A A

Rate of work-related deaths % 0

AT ERAAHMIET AL Bt

Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries’  Days 270
ATEBEATIEAE" H

Labour Standards 8% T 48

As a responsible company, Viva Goods strictly adheres to the law and
employment regulations requirements, and the Group does not tolerate the
use of child labour or forced labour in our operations and supply chain.
We also adhere to the principle that we will not require our employees to
work during maternity leave or sick leave. To this end, we have explicitly
incorporated the relevant policies into our Employee Handbook and conduct
regular internal reviews to ensure that we remain in strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations®. Our subsidiary Clarks publishes the
Modean Slavery Report annually to specifically address the Company’s
management practices to prevent forced labour, which are rigorously
enforced in accordance with the Code of Practice (working condition
standards for suppliers, sub-contractors and service providers) and the
Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Policy.

R —XREEENEE FAEEURK
BRETZENBREREANNER &%
EERAFERMNEEMHEES
HIRERET HRGIE THIBER &K
MTEETFAEERETEERIBR
BB TFRRA - Bt FIE&HE
FERARMAAC(EIFM) » L EH
EITRERR S » IR I FIR A RS
BTEARREER - RANWE AT
Clarks& & % i (R A LR B TR S ) KL
HFIEM A B ERH % THEEE
hit > WARAR (1T R ZE R (BHFE RS ~ AR i
FE M AR5 7 TR IR AR ZEE) DANCIR M
PR BIMACREBER) BEIT

During the Reporting Period, the inclusion of some new subsidiaries data in this Report completes the scope of the overall data statistics, resulting in a
more significant change in the overall data statistics compared to 2022. As a result, data of previous years are no longer comparable and are no longer
shown in this Report. The Group will report the number and rate of work-related deaths for each year from this Reporting Period onwards.
ARREMRT AAREL2BEEET —EHNNBELABSEE & 7T BRBHEBENATHE BR022FBBMBRARtESE
FRANE -FHILTFHBEABFAFHLEEE FTEAARGEVTRTTFH R AERRRARSHRBERSFRL

TR A#B KX

The number of lost work days is defined as the number of days (other than serious injury) that actually caused the person to be absent from work due to
the injury or disease, and it is at least one day from the day following the date of the injury or disease.
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Including but not limited to the legal documents and regulations relating to labour standards as set out in Appendix 1.
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The Group’s Human Resources Department is responsible for carefully
reviewing all identification documents provided by the applicants to avoid
the use of child labour. To ensure full compliance with applicable laws

and regulations, regular audits and internal reviews are performed. If any
employee found to be in breach of our labour policies, we take it seriously
and will take disciplinary action and may even pursue legal action against
them to maintain a fair, legal and ethical working environment,

Business Ethics and Anti-corruption

The Group does not tolerate corruption or malfeasance. To this end, we
have developed internal policies, the Anti-Corruption and Anti-bribery
Commitment, covering the areas of bribery, extortion, fraud, money
laundering and anti-corruption, which are explicitly included in the Group’s
Code of Business Conduct. These policies clearly define the responsibilities
of employees and are detailed in the Employee Handbook, which requires
all employees to comply strictly with the anti-corruption policy.

We strictly prohibit all employees from accepting money or any other gifts
from outside entities such as customers, suppliers, contractors, authorities
or other business partners. Meanwhile, through our internal Conflict of
Interest and Declaration Policy, we require our employees to refrain from
engaging in any activity that may give rise to a conflict of interest with the
Company’s business. Detailed guidelines on responsible business behaviour
are clearly set out in the Group’s Employee Handbook.
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21

21

We are actively building an anti-corruption culture. During the Reporting
Period, we arranged anti-corruption training programmes for our Board
members and employees in Hong Kong headquarters and Mainland China
subsidiaries to update them on the latest anti-corruption enforcements
and proper practice procedures. Clarks is also committed to ensuring that
every employee understands their role in working ethically and protecting
the brand’s reputation by launching a new anti-bribery and corruption
training programme on Clarks online training portal in September 2023,
which includes but is not limited to: the Company’s Anti-money Laundering
and Sanctions Policy Overview, Global Anti-bribery and Anti-corruption —
Training and Policies, Conflicts of Interest — Training and Policies, and Gifts
and Hospitality — Training and Policies.

The Group supports the implementation of our policy on ethical behaviour
by establishing an internal whistle-blowing mechanism. Employees are
encouraged to report any misconduct anonymously or by name as early as
possible through three reporting channels (i.e. email, post or telephone). All
whistle-blowing cases will be treated with strict confidentiality and further
investigated by a designated commissioner to ensure that whistle-blowers
have the freedom to report grievances without retaliation.

During the Reporting Period, there were no breaches of relevant legislation
and regulations®" in the area of anti-corruption and therefore no corruption
litigation cases were concluded.
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Including but not limited to the legal documents and regulations related to anti-corruption as set out in Appendix 1.
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STRICT QUALITY CONTROL AND RESPONSIBLE
SOURCING

Sustainable Supply Chain

Suppliers are the foundation for the quality of our products and the basis
on which the Group communicates its vision of sustainable development.
Through our diversified sports and footwear businesses, we connect with
many stakeholders along the value chain. The Group follows relevant
internal policy documents, such as the Viva Goods Supplier Social
Responsibility Management Handbook, Regulations on Supplier Quality
Assurance, the Procurement Management Regulations, Social Responsibility
and Hazardous Chemicals Pledge and the Supply Chain Management
Regulations, etc., and takes into account the environmental and social
indicators and performance of our suppliers in selecting our suppliers.

We establish long term and friendly partnerships with suppliers with

good performance and ensure that their products and services meet our
expected standards and that their operations will not cause significant
adverse impact on the environment and society. We continually evaluate
our suppliers” corporate social responsibility performance and prohibit any
unlawful or improper business cooperation. We are committed to improving
supply chain risk management by actively engaging our suppliers and
partners in preventing and curbing the occurrence of improper practices
such as corruption and commercial bribery.

The Group identifies environmental and social risks at each stage of the
supply chain by preparing an annual Risk Management Report. The major
raw materials involved in our procurement include leather, rubber, textiles,
metals and related chemicals to support the manufacturing, logistics

and sales of footwear and apparel products. The above processes may
also cause air and water pollution or certain waste emissions and GHG
emissions at the environmental level. At the social level, delays, disruptions
or major quality problems in the supply chain may lead to higher costs for
the Company and affect the Company’s brand reputation. Therefore, we
proactively manage potential risks in the supply chain and promote social
and environmental impact monitoring along the supply chain by establishing
an effective communication mechanism with suppliers and a product quality
control system.
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In terms of supplier communication, the Group monitors the performance
of its suppliers through telephone calls, balanced scorecards and key
performance indicators. It also conducts technical audits on its suppliers
and provides training to those suppliers with problems identified in the
audits, so as to facilitate the improvement of the suppliers. In addition, the
Group maintains cooperative relationships with some of its suppliers by
improving the way they communicate with each other. In terms of quality
control of goods, the Group uses Level 1 and Level 2 of Acceptance
Qualification ("AQL") 1.0 standards for acceptance. We also focus on

the issue of wages in the supply chain, and have taken the dismissal
without payment of wages by the suppliers in India very seriously. The
Group has assigned our Corporate Social Responsibility Team to monitor
subcontracting related issues, and regularly reports on action plans and
conducts procurement review meetings. Through the compliance risk
review, we have standardised our resources and accountability assessment
in supply chain management and established management processes for
second and third tier suppliers.

According to the “Social Responsibility and Hazardous Chemicals Pledge”,
the Group classifies and describes aromatic amine dyes, toxic substances
and other restricted substances that are definitely not contained in our
products, and lists in detail “Aromatic amines that are carcinogenic to
human beings’, “Aromatic amines that are carcinogenic to animals and
possibly carcinogenic to human beings”, “toxic substances” and “chemical
substance standards to be met by children’s products”. In accordance with
the document, we require the relevant suppliers’ plants to comply with the
mandatory standards for textiles and clothing of the People’s Republic of
China (GB18401 2010 and GB31701 2015) in the course of production
and processing, so as to safeguard the health and safety of consumers as

well as employees.

To support the local economy and promote green procurement, the Group
gives priority to cooperation with local suppliers. At the same time, we
promote the procurement of sustainable raw materials and encourage our
suppliers to develop environmental protection policies and management
measures to reduce and control the adverse impacts on human health and
the environment caused by gases, solid wastes, wastewater and hazardous
wastes arising from their production and operation activities. When
evaluating new suppliers, we require them to provide relevant supporting
documents such as environmental assessment reports, emission permits
and use of hazardous chemicals.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S
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Case Study:

LNG used S.Cafe® Eco-Tech Coffee Yarn

LNG, a subsidiary of the Group, has officially
used S.Cafe® Eco-Tech Coffee Yarn in 2023.
S.Cafe® Eco-Tech Coffee Yarn transforms waste
coffee grounds into an eco-friendly functional
fabric that prolongs the life of the coffee

bean and provides superior comfort, odour
absorption, UV protection and quick drying.
Coffee grounds have a natural cavity on the
yarn surface, which provides the best natural
protection against UV rays. The structure of the
coffee grounds allow quick transfer of moisture
to the surface of the fabric to achieve a quick-
drying effect, keeping the body cool and
comfortable during exercise.
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We require our suppliers to strictly adhere to our Supplier Code of Conduct.

The Supplier Code of Conduct specifies requirements for ethical behaviour,
health and safety, labour rights and environmental responsibility. As part of our
monitoring mechanism, we conduct regular audits, site visits and evaluations to
ensure our suppliers fully comply with our requirements. If a supplier fails to meet
the expected standards, we may terminate the contractual relationship with the

supplier.
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Table of number of suppliers — by geographical region
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Total number of suppliers as of the end of the Reporting Period
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Number of suppliers — by geographical region
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Total number of suppliers?® who comply with the Supplier Code of Conduct
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Our Quality Products and Services

The key to the success and long term development of the Group’s business
lies in the quality of its products and services. We attach great importance
to the quality and safety of our products throughout the entire production
and marketing process of our footwear and apparel business. The Group
requires all of its apparel to comply with the relevant product safety and
environmental standards, including but not limited to GB 18401-2010
(National General Safety Technical Code for Textile Products), GB 31701-
2015 (Safety Technical Code on Infant and Children’s Textile Products) and
IS09001:2015 Quality Management Standard Verification before being
sold to customers.
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Other countries and regions include: Austria, Belgium, Cambodia, Canada, France, Germany, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, Netherlands, Poland, Republic
of Ireland, Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, United Arab Emirates, United Kingdom, United States, Albania, Indonesia, Romania, Bangladesh,

Singapore.
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The contracts with the suppliers that do not comply with Supplier Code of Conduct are not renewed after contract expiration.
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Bossini ISO 9001 QME Certificate
Bossini ISO 9001 QMEEB =

In terms of product inspection, the Group has also formulated relevant internal
policies and documents to safeguard the quality of the products, including but not
limited to the “Viva Goods - Quality Management System for Large Production
Suppliers”, “Product Processing and Customisation Agreement”, “Inspection
Report” and “After-sale Returns Procedure”, etc., products are inspected, tested,
approved and accepted by the Group before they are put into the warehouses. If
the products fail to meet the inspection standards and quality requirements, we
shall have the right to refuse to accept the products and refuse to pay for the
unqualified products, and the supplier shall indemnify the Company for all the
losses incurred. In the event of a quality problem for the products, the supplier
shall organise a quality meeting with the relevant personnel to analyse the cause
of the failure and complete an analysis report, and cooperate with us to implement
necessary remedial measures to rectify the problem. During the Reporting Period,
there was no product recall for safety and quality reasons in the reporting business
scope.

Case Study:

Clarks product quality

At Clarks, products are manufactured and inspected in accordance with
international standards relating to quality such as BS, 1SO, ASTM and
DIN. In addition, in order to ensure that Clarks products always comply
with the relevant international footwear standards, Clarks maintains

a high degree of cooperation with SATRA, an independent footwear
research organisation based in the UK, which constantly keeps abreast
of the latest industry trends and conducts product research and testing
to ensure that Clarks can provide consumers with the best quality
products.
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To build a trusting and transparent relationship with our clients, we provide
an easily accessible and responsive customer services hotline and email
for customers enquiries. In addition, we clearly state our product return and
exchange policy at the back of each sales receipt to help provide clarity
and certainty for our customers.

In terms of complaints, customers can lodge their complaints in relation to
products and services via the Company’s complaint mailbox or to the staffs
in person. We will handle and follow-up customers’ complaints in a timely
manner in accordance with the internal policies of various businesses, such
as the "Customer Complaint Management Regulations” of Tianjin Li Ning
Sports Centre.

For the sports experience business of the Group, the total number of
complaints received during the Reporting Period was 32, and for the multi-
brands apparels and footwears business, the total number of complaints
received during the Reporting Period was 10,907, all of which have been
handled.

Advertisement

In order to ensure our sales and marketing products comply with

relevant local laws and regulations and to provide accurate descriptions
and information to our customers, the Group has implemented internal
“Regulations on the Development of Advertising Business” to govern

our advertising practices. We collect relevant advertising certificates in
accordance with local laws and examine whether the contents of the
advertisements are legal, truthful and the concept is in line with objective
facts. Only approved materials can be placed on the market and any
advertisement with false statements, misleading information or exaggeration
will be prohibited.

Data Privacy

In order to ensure the privacy of our customers, the Group is constantly
concerned about the safekeeping of their personal data in a secure and
safe manner. Customer information is regarded as strictly confidential
and the Group has incorporated a privacy policy into the Staff Handbook
to ensure that all staff are aware of and recognise the importance of
protecting customer privacy. In addition, new employees are required to
understand and sign a Data Protection and Privacy document.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S
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Clarks has data privacy teams in both the UK and the EU, with dedicated
personnel to guarantee compliance and handle data privacy issues. Clarks
uses software from One Trust, a globally recognised provider of data privacy
software, to manage cookies, data subject access requests and data privacy
assessments. In April 2023, Clarks reissued its internal data privacy and
protection policy, the Global Privacy Policy, and worked with IT department
to support staff and management in engaging with the policy and training.

During the Reporting Period, we have complied with laws and regulations
relating to consumer privacy matters and data security?*,

Intellectual Property Right

The Group attaches great importance to intellectual property rights and
has formulated an internal “Intellectual Property Management System” and
“Trademark Management Measures”. To protect our intellectual property
rights, the Group utilises copyrights, trademarks, confidential information
and other applicable legal protection. Furthermore, we work closely with
law firms to regularly update and protect our trademarks. At the same
time, new employees are required to understand and sign an “Intellectual
Property Rights” document to ensure that they have a clear and in-

depth understanding of the importance of intellectual property rights. In
addition, the Group requires that employees do not consent to the use of
company names, trademarks, patents and other intellectual property rights
by suppliers in their advertisements, marketing materials or other materials
without the written permission of the Company. We have added relevant
policies on intellectual property rights to our Employee Handbook. These
measures are designed to ensure that the Group’s intellectual property is
properly protected.

All Clarks products are labelled with appropriate patterns to identify the
materials used in the upper, lining and sole. This follows written technical
documentation on labelling and sizing to facilitate machine identification.
The Company also uses written procedures to manage the labelling of
products containing wool, fur and synthetic pelt.

During the Reporting Period, we have been complying with the relevant
laws and regulations in respect of advertising and labelling in relation to the
products and services provided by the Group?.
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Including but not limited to the legal documents and regulations on consumer privacy and data safety set out in Appendix 1.
BIEEARRERIKWERT P HNEREEERNSENS L2 HEAEEXXHERRA

Including but not limited to the legal documents and regulations on advertisement, label set out in Appendix 1.
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HEALTHY COMMUNITY, REWARD THE SOCIETY

Over the years, the Group has been supporting social welfare and has
formulated internal policies to support related activities, including but not
limited to the areas of education, sports and health. Leveraging on its
sports resources and human capital, the Group has organised a number
of sports related activities and community events, and is committed to
promoting active and healthy lifestyles and enhancing the health and well-
being of the public in various locations.

BEME C@ETE

ZERAEF-—BEXFHER T I
HITE 7 P9 EB B SR LA 32 F5 M8 BR S B AV 5
B BEERERHEE RENRES
BE-AEEMNBEENESE RN
ANEXR BT ZHEARSHERBN
EEMAREE NN ERMEE
BREENEEAN  RATRARE
FRANEAL ©

Community Service Statistics Units

HERFB 4t B i

Number of Events and Activities Supported® Time 203
BT RS RE® R

Total Hours of Community Service Contributed Hour 2,883
HE @R RFE NS

Amount of social investment of the Company dollar 3,222,563
during the Reporting Period 7T

REHAATHEREESR

Number of Beneficiaries Served Person 52,964
AR7E = @ A B A

Promoting Sports and Healthy Living EREAERBEESE

It is our commitment to promote a nationwide sportive culture and to
continue to foster wider public participation in different sports and fitness
activities. For example, we organised in Tongxiang the Li Ning Sports Park
Ping Pong Competition, Wutong Street Community Fun Sports Day and
2023 Chinese Badminton Association Amateur Club League Tongxiang
Regional Competition for public participation. In addition, we regularly
communicate with sports related organisations/departments to organise
large scale tournaments, such as the CJBL China Secondary School
Basketball League All Star Game and the China Primary School Basketball
League Grassroots Tournament (Zhejiang Division), to help teenagers
develop teamwork skills and physical fitness from an early age, and to
nurture and develop athletes reserves for the country. We also organised
sports and fun activities for the senior cadre of the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security, which not only promote the concept of
sports and fitness, but also help them develop a healthy and active lifestyle.
During the Reporting Period, a number of sports activities suitable for
citizens of different ages were successfully organised.

BB HEEEEERS XL @&
EHrRSEREBRENRI EH -
B HFPERBERFTERESRE S
EREE BREEAEERLER
RESHEM2023FPREAPEKBEE
RELLBEREREE  BARS
e tboh > FefIE E AR EL S S AERA AR
S BRPYEE ) B ARE SR fINCIBL
TEROTEXBBEZFER  PE/N
BLrENBEEREE (NWIER) > B
NELDFERNEBEEKGIFES 18
SRR U ABKIBEEMEREESR
BAT - HMEEBALEERES
MES BIKEBF FERESHRS
B IR B B fth I & pl R R AR &Y
EEBN-RAREH > HPIEMINE
WMr2RBEEIEAEFRETRZ2MH
- A=DETIK

During the Reporting Period, the inclusion of some new subsidiaries data in this Report completes the scope of the overall data statistics, resulting in
a more significant change in the overall data statistics compared to that of 2022. As a result, previous years' data is no longer comparative and is no

longer shown in this Report.

FARERT AAREL2EBECST —EMONBEATRE 27 BREBENRTERE RONFEEH B R EE
ERARE -ALFEREFIBAEHLEE FBEFARSTRTEERE-

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S



Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRiZ - 1 E R ERRE

Li Ning Sports Parks Ping Pong Competition
TERSESEKLEE

2023 Chinese Badminton Association Amateur Club
League Tongxiang Regional Competition

023FREPEXBERFELLHBRBLAEER

CJBL China Secondary School Basketball League
All Star Game
CBLABEREKHELRER

The foundation of health for all is comprehensive fitness. During the
Reporting Period, the Group actively participated in the Hefei 2023
Swimming Training Subsidy Policy for Primary and Secondary School
Students, with a total of 472 participants. We insisted on strengthening
youth sports, with the main objective of teaching primary and secondary
school students swimming skills and improving their physical fitness. At the
same time, through the provision of swimming training subsidy for primary
and secondary students, we encourage parents to bring their children to
participate in swimming training.

In addition, we have been actively communicating with community leaders
to organise regular activities to enhance public health awareness. For
example, we held Physical Fitness Monitoring activities in the community to
help those in need understand their own health conditions and promote Li
Ning Sports Centres to enhance the brand’s influence.

Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security

Senior Cadre Activity
At B ERELEE

EREENEREZERE -ELXW
SR AEERE2EGHET2023
FrNB AR IE MR EER - £ 5
472 N2 ERBER-HFMRFMAEE D
FREIF TEZEEREHRP/NE
ERAKENRESMPNSEERER
BRIk AL BEBERTNBE]N
KIBFIA B R EHBMPIAZ
F2mMigxiEl e

5 AT EEETRBBEE A
B EMBMARRE BT ARH
REEH - LLMBITRESGEEM
&R BEREFENATHEES
BRI TEEFEEHT ORI
mhRR S
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National Physical Fitness Monitoring in Jiangsu Xingfu Property CT #f S &4 )
HRBEEENEEIHREZEYE

National Physical Fitness Monitoring in Jing Hai (3% 38 i)
BlREEE R EEF SN

National Physical Fitness Monitoring in Likang community (B BE L&)
BREBEEIEEERTE

National Physical Fitness Monitoring in The Aqua (R 78 28 #k /&)
BRBESEAEEREEME

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S



Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRiZ - 1 E R ERRE

National Physical Fitness Monitoring in Qinbel village (Z=3b#¢)
HREBEENEERINTE

National Physical Fitness Monitoring in Jiangoutou (48 7&88) community activity
ERBEEAEEREBHLEEH

EREEENEELSENNZE
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Fostering Social Inclusion

In line with the spirit of “Giving back to the Community”, the Group has a
strong sense of responsibility to the communities we depend on, operate in
and serve. The Group actively promotes social inclusion and fully supports
the Group's interaction with the local community, including but not limited to
the youth and socially disadvantaged groups.

During the Reporting Period, the Group launched a large number of

public welfare activities in the communities in Mainland China, such as

the “Women’s Day Public Welfare Lecture”, the “Art Public Welfare Class”,
the “Fitness Knowledge Popularisation Community Walk”, the “Teenagers’
Health Lecture Volunteer Clinic” and the “Drowning Prevention Public
Welfare Seminar”, etc., which attracted more than 10,000 participants in
total. We spread knowledge about health, safety and culture to groups from
all Community Groups, and popularise a positive attitude towards life.

We also insist on donating resources to groups in need or social welfare
organisations for distribution to people in need. We also utilize online charity
to make charitable donations to help those in need.

REHEHRE
AEERAKZHE BZHE W
o AEBEHFIPTIRE FrEE R
PIRBNTRAEZRMUNEER &
EEEBREETEHR 2NXFE
EEAEMAENR R HREEE
ARERBLVERTEFEBERE-

AREHAN AEBRTEPEAMAE
METREA@ES A T=ZN\&E
UM RmBE BN mRE) TR
SMHERTEARTI TBLER
BRABEZRDTEIMBIBKAS
B1EE HtRSIBEEASHE [
HEXIRNEEEEERRER 22
Bk XACAERABY RN 88 & K B iRih
BYEERREE

RAPBERFRNARTENERE HEL
BEREBRLYE UEKELETE
AT -HFITHRAGRLEE I ETT
BERT BBHERENAL

Case Stuady:

FEN BHREE %' (L R) 22 8] -
Donation of Love

During the Reporting Period, in line
with the Group's long-standing love
and sense of social responsibility to
the community, JEFLSBEEE B &R
(A6 3) ‘A FImade a donation to the
children of migrant workers at Yuehe
School (B2 4Z) in Tongzhou
District, Beijing. The donations included
TVs, computers, clothing, T-shirts, table
soccers, mugs, desktop purifiers and
other living and learning materials.
Providing them with better learning
environment and in turn get quality
education and development.

FEN BHAEE % R
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Case Study:
Ningbo Li Ning Sports Park — Blood Donation
On 19 February 2023, the Group's Ningbo
Li-Ning Sports Park hosted a blood donation
activity entitled "Donate Blood for Love without
Boundaries" initiated by Ningbo City Blood
Station, the Party’s Joint Secretariat of Qianwan
New Zone Pioneer Public Service (Fili& &
BROERBEMZR) and Rainbow
Bay Social Work Service Centre. The activity
was well received by the staff and residents
of the Group. The blood donation activity not
only contributed to the social welfare cause,
but also fully demonstrated the Group's staff's
commitment and dedication.

B B E [F] — A S R

FR2023F 28190 ZAEBEME K E
ERSEAMTHEKEMAOM
U FEE AN B R EW
ERE -FIEMETERBILE
BABENTRAmMEEE ) EER
MEBNEHNEBRN T RAEBDLES
THNERBEZNBEMERE -BRES
Holt RRAIMEFEN A EALE RS
EXMEHTERM BERSBERTK
EEETHREE BRFHVA

e

Clarks, a subsidiary of the Group also has a strong commitment to
social responsibility, having partnered with UNICEF and MiracleFeet, an
international charity focusing on children with Talipes equinovarus since

2012, and has developed a new sustainability strategy in 2023, which has

elevated ‘community development’ to the level of the Company's strategy.

Case Study:

Clarks charity business

During the Reporting Period, Clarks demonstrated its strong sense of
social responsibility by donating £20,000 to UNICEF, £10,000 to the
British Red Cross and £60,000 to “MiracleFeet”, helping many groups
in need internationally. Meanwhile, during the Reporting Period, Clarks
employees also raised £4,273 for charities in the local communities
where the company is based and distributed £1,900 worth of shopping
vouchers to local community groups, including schools and other
community organisations.

Clarks has teamed up with Sals Shoes and ShoeAid, UK footwear
charities, to donate shoes to communities in need, and has launched a
shoe recycling programme, 'ShoeShare', which enables members of the
public to donate their old shoes to be reused, repaired or recycled. As
of October 2023, more than 53 tonnes of shoes have been recycled
through the programme.

SEBRKE AT Clarksth B # B &
EEBFHUHTGEEFNIEE o Clarksiit
012FEMBREBMEERERESEM
—REFREHLRXMEFRENERKR
Nt HE T MiracleFeet | R & 1F > W 1E
2023FHIE T N E R EEK B
MEZERIRAZADEKER -

ClarksA9 2\ 7 B 2

EFREHR  Clarksm B eH R EE
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Z$58810,0005 8% > ) [ MiracleFeet 138
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HEETR PR ClarksE TETE
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CONSERVATION OF NATURE AND HARMONIOUS CO-
EXISTENCE

The impact of the Group’s business activities on the environment and
natural resources includes, but not limited to, GHG emissions, energy
consumption, wastewater and related hazardous/non-hazardous waste
arising from product design, packaging, production, logistics and
distribution, and corporate operations. In order to fulfil our commitment to
environmental protection, the Group has systematised its environmental
policy to effectively manage our environmental impact. We focus on
reducing emissions, improving energy efficiency and exercising prudence
in the use of the earth's resources. At the same time, we endeavour to
build up internal environmental awareness and continue to enhance the
environmental consciousness of our staff, guiding them to adopt the
concept of sustainable development in their daily work and to make the
best use of resources. To this end, we have also formulated internal policies
to implement the relevant initiatives, including but not limited to the “Energy
Saving and Consumption Reduction Management System”, the “Facilities
and Equipment Management System”, the “Waste Reduction Targets and
Measures to Adopt” and the “Office Energy Conservation System”. The
Group promotes green office practices through internal circulars, reminders
on energy and water conservation labels and notice boards. We also
organise regular trainings on environmental activities covering topics such
as waste reduction, energy conservation and carbon reduction. The Group
follows relevant guidelines and principles to reduce its own environmental
footprint and that of the entire value chain, and continues to promote green
transformation, take an active role in climate change responsibility, and
implement various measures such as raw material management, packaging
material control, pollution reduction and waste management.

In addition to international and regional laws and regulations, our
subsidiaries adopt and comply with internationally recognised management
system standards and other relevant certifications, such as the 1ISO 14001
environmental management system and the Convention on International
Trade in Endangered Species of Wild Fauna and Flora (CITES), depending
on the nature of their business. Clarks, a subsidiary of the Group, has also
formulated its own internal “Animal Welfare Policy” to ensure the protection
of wild animals, the prevention of international trade of endangered species,
the welfare of domestic livestock used in the supply chain is addressed,
and to promote the sustainable use and protection of natural resources.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S
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The subsidiaries of the Group are also committed to packaging
sustainability, responsible sourcing of leather, minimising GHG emissions,
increasing the use of renewable energy and working to improve the
efficiency of waste recycling, through the adoption of internal Codes

of Conduct within each company, and guided by the United Nations’
sustainability goals on climate action and responsible consumption and
production.
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We have set quantitative environmental targets for 2021, with carbon
emission targets, waste targets, energy use targets and water use targets,
but as the Group completed the acquisition of Clarks in 2022, whose
revenue in 2023 account for more than 85% of the Group’s overall
revenue. Therefore, in the Reporting Period, the Group was required to take
into account Clarks’ situation and re-establish its directional environmental
targets to set the foundation for specific quantitative targets in the future.
The detail of the key environmental targets and actions are set out in the
subsequent sections.

During the Reporting Period, the Group adheres to comply with international
and regional legal and regulatory requirement?” regarding environmental
protection and there were no non-compliance cases relating to air and GHG
emissions, discharges into water and land, and the generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes.

Climate Change

In order to continue echoing the national dual carbon targets of “strives
to reach the peak of carbon dioxide emission by 2030, and to achieve
carbon neutral by 2060" as set out by the PRC government, as well as to
address the significant financial and non-financial risks that may be faced
by different areas of the Group’s business, the Group is firmly committed
to managing climate-related issues and has formulated strategies for
mitigation, adaptation and resilience. We have formulated corresponding
internal policies and documents, such as the “Climate Change Management
Act” and “Climate and Related Response Actions Affecting the Company”,
according to the characteristics of each of our businesses, in order to
monitor the impact of climate change on our business, to cope with the
corresponding risks and to capitalise on the opportunities.

HBEFSETWEH  AEBETHERER -

For details, please refer to Appendix 1: Compliance with Laws and Regulations by the Group.
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According to the content of the "ESG Risk Analysis” section, climate
change may trigger more frequent and severe extreme weather events such
as hurricanes, floods and heavy rainfall. These physical risks of climate
change could cause damage to our production facilities, warehousing and
transportation corridors, which in turn could affect our supply chain and
delivery capabilities, resulting in higher insurance claims or disputes. At the
same time, climate change can cause business interruptions, shop closures,
product damage or loss, and even threaten the lives of employees and
customers. In order to cope with these emergencies, we have formulated
clear contingency policies, such as the Emergency plan for flood prevention
and control, Windstorm Plan and other internal documents, to cultivate

our staff's awareness of the relevant climate risks and to ensure we are
fully prepared. Clarks, a subsidiary of the Group, also organised a TCFD
(Taskforce on Climate Related Financial Disclosures regulations) seminar

in Q4 2023 to help identify climate related risks and opportunities in the
business at both its own and Group levels. In addition, we will engage with
stakeholders to discuss and address the impacts of climate change, support
our business partners in achieving decarbonisation targets and work with all
parties to build a sustainable business model.

In order to address the risks associated with climate change we have
identified, we have set up relevant directional targets and are actively
contributing to their realisation through specific plans and steps. We will
continue to promote the Group’s clean and low-carbon transformation
to enhance our climate resilience and sustainable competitiveness. At
the same time, we will continue to refine, detail and quantify our climate
change objectives and related targets, integrate our climate agenda into
our business operations and ensure we can effectively respond to the
challenges brought about by climate change.
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Business
Target Scope Segment Environmental Target Specific Plans and Steps
BiIRE R EFEIRIR IRIEERE AR RD R
GHG Emission Multi-brands e 7o achieve carbon neutrality by 2050; e Focus on low-carbon product marketing and
mERE apparels and 2050 FE ERIBRK M ; communication activities, and actively create a
HEW footwears business low-carbon scene in shops;

Z iR AR
e

Vigorously launch publicity and
education work on the concept of
green operation, and integrating
the concept of sustainable
development and green awareness
into the work and life of our
employees.

ARG EESEISH
BRI BoFEERE
SHGBRERAMRAS
THIRELEE-
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ERBRERSHER DT BRE
FIERESERKESR

Introduce low carbon products with high price/
quality ratio, quality and variety according to the
characteristics and needs of consumers;
RBHEE AFFHMBRELHS S
B -SEE - ZKRIENERER ;

Encourage staff to adopt green communication
methods such as video and teleconferencing;
HEETHRAZBEBEL I WERK

REEGE

Conduct regular inspections of the Group's
vehicles;

HAEEE NEEMERETIRA

Ensure the emissions of the Group's vehicles are
in compliance with the standards and control the
level of emissions;
ERAEEEMOBERFFBTER

2 FERIBRROKTE ;

Strictly control the use of air-conditioning. When
the indoor temperature is suitable, staff can use
air-conditioning intermittently without opening the
windows and doors to avoid wasting energy on
cold air leakage.

BARERIERANER - BEENRER
HE BT UEEMERZER > 5
FIg» B %R /e RIMNEREEIR



Target Scope
BHiE#HE
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Business
Segment
EERIR

Environmental Target
RIEBE

Specific Plans and Steps
ARt AT R

Sports experience e
business

EFREBRES

To achieve carbon neutrality by
2050;
FL2050F BRI B IR A ;

Vigorously launch publicity and
education work on the concept of
green operation, and integrating
the concept of sustainable
development and green awareness
into the work and life of our
employees.
KOTHBRGBEZIESH
BRI BoFEEEE
THABRERRAMAR
THITREAE-

Utilize the influence of sport to encourage
stakeholders and sports enthusiasts to take action
on climate change;
NAREESHNTEHEBF 8k
ENEHBHFERNTEREIESE
1E 5

Encourage staff to adopt green communication
methods such as video and teleconferencing;
BB THRAGBERSIV WHEA

REBEEE

Conduct regular inspections of the Group's
vehicles:

MHAEEE NEEERETRA

Ensure the emissions of the Group's vehicles are
in compliance with the standards and control the
level of emissions;
ARAEBEEMNERFRAT SR

2 FEHIBEBOKTE 5

Strictly control the use of air-conditioning. When
the indoor temperature is suitable, staff can use
air-conditioning intermittently without opening the
windows and doors to avoid wasting energy on
cold air leakage.

BTG ERENER - BEERNREE
HE > BTRUESMERAZER > T
FIgg R 2 RIMNERESEIR ©
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Case Study:

In Zhejiang Province, rainfall and typhoons are common from June to
September every year, so we have formulated an emergency plan for
flood prevention and control and set out the relevant countermeasures:

1. In the event of extreme weather, such as typhoons, relevant
management measures issued by the local government will be followed;

2. Inview of the occasional extreme weather, the countermeasures
are mainly to check the weather forecast and prevent the impact of
weather changes on the Company in advance, and to check the local
weather notices and guidance in advance.

Improve Energy Efficiency

The Group recognises that improving energy efficiency is an important
measure to reduce the impact of climate change. For this purpose,

we have formulated internal policies such as the“Energy and Water
Resources Management Measures” and “Li Ning Sports Park Energy
Saving and Consumption Reduction Management Regulations” for the
purpose of refining and improving the Group’s internal management
measures and implementing the energy saving target tasks. The following
table demonstrates the Group’s environmental targets and the specific
implementation plans and steps in respect of energy usage.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRiZ - 1 E R EARRE

I B F6R-98  RKKEE AR
ZoRMBEL R ARZTRE
51 BAAE R AR 4 T

T WAEBREXRR UREAZFRE
o RIE B BUT H =R AER T E
BT S

2. WIHmRRMBE BHERTIE
MRAMBEERARRMIEFRLX
RELCHARNELENTE REE
BEEMETHRRELCENNIEE
ER-

e S AE IR ARE
FEERRRESERIEXZRBRIE
SUERENEERE B AAHE
TR KEREEPE)N(EER
BEESEMREEERE) FAMBEER
BARAEMTEEERN R EEEH
ZREBHEEREB TRERTEE
EEEREASTENREERUKER
BEHBHt I RP -

Business
Target Scope Segment Environmental Target Specific Plans and Steps
BHEHE EBRIR IRIERT BRitERIE
Energy use Multi-brands e Minimise the use of non-renewable e Building of energy-efficient office;
BETRE R apparels and or fossil energy; FEMBWAE ;

FA ARV IFRIB AR
ARERERLER;

footwears business
% MR
e

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S

Replace incandescent lamps with energy-saving
lamps;

LERBe G B B 8E

Installation of sensor-activated lamps;

ZEEHPREESR ;

Replace business travel with teleconferencing
where appropriate;

MENBREERAEBBEER

Encourage the use of public transport among
staffs.
BRBEBIFRAAHBIA.
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Business
Target Scope Segment Environmental Target
BHiIRgE EFHEIRIR IRIEEE

Specific Plans and Steps
AR RS R

Sports experience e Minimise the use of non-renewable

business or fossil energy;

EHRRmERS ol geR P IFRT LRI
ARERFERALEE;

e (Gradually adopt the use of clean
energy for energy supply (new
energy vehicles, solar power
installations).

BELEMER B R RME
AE (FAE RSB ~ KFZREEE

BRE) o

The Group is committed to creating energy efficient offices, promoting LED
lighting, PIR sensors and solar heating. In particular, Clarks, a subsidiary of
the Group, has sourced and used 100% renewable energy and replaced
over 500 fluorescent light bulbs with LED alternatives in its UK offices,
distribution centres and directly owned and controlled shops. During the
summer, the Group maintains air conditioning at 25 degrees Celsius and
requires staffs to follow the ‘switch off’ practice by switching off relevant
electrical equipment at the end of the working day. Our refrigeration system
regulates indoor temperature using smart technology and data analysis to
optimise energy performance and promote energy conservation.

Building of energy-efficient office;
ITEHMEBEMAE ;

Replace incandescent lamps with energy-saving
lamps;

LUER BE G B AU B B

Installation of sensor-activated lamps;

ZEBPREEER ;

Replace business travel with teleconferencing
where appropriate;
EUNRRGRAEEBER;

Encourage the use of public transport among
staffs;
HEETIHERAAHTBEIR;

Installation of photovoltaic power generation.
ZERNRBELE -

REBBROIRITEHERAE  HE
LEDERBE~PIRIE X2 R KFGRENIER o H
o s 5 [ Y /B /A B) Clarks 1E B 55 B ¥
B REPALOUKREEES T
M EN SR A100% A 5
EHETR W ALEDE A HEN T 500218
I (T E RN E > RERTE
TR EERERSE T ERETE
BEETAEEZ/MI ML THEEE
FERBEERBEEZ KN LSRR
FBENE R EF B S SR R EE S
MrARBEAE TR M FE R EE BT AE ©
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To alleviate the pressure of energy shortages, reduce emissions, and
promote the innovative and efficient use of energy, we have taken a
number of measures. Firstly, we are reducing air transport by improving our
operations, for example by using lower-emission land transport. Secondly,
we have endeavoured to enhance the efficiency of our energy usage

by increasing the proportion of clean energy use, actively introducing
renewable energy, and upgrading the hardware of our sports and footwear
businesses to capture energy saving opportunities. In addition, we have
added more electric vehicle charging facilities in our sports facilities to
support the development of electric vehicles in the country. In addition to
installing solar panels and solar hot water systems, we are also committed
to providing more charging facilities for electric vehicles.

Responsible Resource Management

For the effective management of the large amount of municipal water
required by our sports facilities and to achieve our water conservation
targets, we have adopted a variety of measures in accordance with the
Emergency plans for environmental protection and Resource utilization
management regulations. While the Group has no problem in sourcing
water, we conserve water and actively control the amount of water used

in our daily operations. For example, we have installed rainwater and
wastewater recycling systems at selected sports venues to collect and
reuse water resources for toilet flushing, irrigation, cleaning and sanitation.
We also regularly check for water leakage in water pipes and regularly
inspect water meters. If we find abnormal water consumption, we will

trace the cause and make timely corrections. In addition, we install water-
saving devices such as sensor-activated taps and water-saving devices to
improve water efficiency throughout the office. At the same time, we are
also investing in environmental protection infrastructure, including water
reuse systems, centralised sewage treatment and centralised solid waste
treatment facilities. The aim of these measures is to ensure that we manage
our water resources effectively, achieve the water saving targets in the table
below and promote environmental protection.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S
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A TIEBETREMRNED B/ TR
BERRE R 3 BE TR BT A = R A 3K
FIREN T 2B - B J > HMIEBN
ENEVEE > B U0 B HE B R A9 B
B AR EE o H MR
RFBERF BN E - 8N T B RER
MR BBSIETBEER I
HEMNBEENERERETEGH
4R MFE?AM%ﬁ‘m% HME
BEARNEIELPFLEHAERER
E.uihlmﬁ REBEMNERRT

R REMRM KIZRERKRGFIN
ﬁﬁmﬂﬁm%ﬁ%%mﬁ%miﬁ
B I o

EIEHEkE R
ATANEERMBERMAENK
%ﬁﬁ%migﬁ KB ZE> &ﬁﬁﬁ
(RERERSXERE)IN(ERERE
ﬁﬁm)%ﬂ?%@%m o HANEE
AXREKESFEAEBRZE BREMEY
THBEEEDEL A K BBIZEH K
HNERE AN ZMERENEE S
Frie 8 T FRAKFIEE KB R & 47 > LUK
EMBFBKER BRFMITRIFT
B BEENEE -BMESTHRE
KERKIER  EEAWE KR 03
BESHKE BT L%EII&
RREETIEIE LN HPEAMWAE
ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ*%ﬁﬁ NkEBEEH k
= LUR B BE W A B A A KK
KoFR HABFASEIBKENIRIR
REERLHERER 8FFKEBA
B SKERMERENERBEEYED
EERM SLEMNENERMAER
MERNEBKER BRTITRTHEH
KB EIRIE(RE o
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Business
Target Scope Segment Environmental Target Specific Plans and Steps
BHiE#HE HEFEIRIR IRIGE T AR RD R
Water use Multi-brands e Save water and enhance water e |nstallation of water saving taps;
KEIJREA  apparels and efficiency; LA EIKIKBERE ;
footwears business  EIAY AR K I A B KA
% B AR e Regular monitoring of water meters and timely
e e FEliminate the discharge of rectification if abnormal water consumption is

untreated sewage and wastewater
in the production process.
MABE EBRE P RERIE
B975 7K ~ BEIKBET ©

Sports experience e Save water and enhance water
business efficiency.

BEFRERES OB RARKEme

Reduce Waste

As a part of our environmental management, we endeavour to promote
waste reduction and recycling at our subsidiaries, sports venues, retail
outlets, offices and warehouses. We have formulated internal policies such
as "Waste Reduction Targets and Measures to Take” and “Environmental
Hygiene Management Regulations” to categorise, collect and manage solid
waste within the Group, which is collected and disposed of by professional
organisations.

Waste categorisation: installation of different types of
waste collection bins
IR | R E R ERE IR AE

detected.
EHESER KR WEZRRBKEES
BET MR-

L BERY
ERARMREEEN—BH > KM
IRENBAS BB B TEE
e Z= M 2 B o R D BE ) A [B] U R
R J&MIBIE T Cri D BRI B IR K
FRERER V36T ) GRIFEEBEERE)
FRBEPER > HARE B AR E R R
METDE - WENEE TREXER
BETWEMRE -

o

Recycle paper for repeated use
Bl AR sR > Z X F] B
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Business
Target Scope Segment Environmental Target Specific Plans and Steps
BiIRE R EFEIRIR IRIFER B8RSR
Waste generation Multi-brands e Increase product packaging Increase recycling rate of packaging:
BEEYESLE  apparels and recycling rate IR B4R -

footwears business
% MR
e

e EmE KRR

Increase office waste paper
recycling rate
REmAEERLBWE

Increase office electronic
equipment recycling rate
EEWAEE FRERLIUW

=

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E B R A S

e Phase out non-essential disposable packaging
and halt usage of plastic bag packaging;
B AR EN—RMEE > ~fF
FZERIEREIEL

¢ Increase proportion of environmentally friendly
materials used in product packaging (eco-friendly
wax ropes, recycled PE material moisture-proof
bags, PE tapes, etc.);
ReREMBTEEREERNFERGE
(RRIBAE ~ B AEPEM KL L ~ PERR
wE)

e Use of decomposable packaging materials;

R DRI ;

Categorised recycling:

DB

e For recyclable waste, including waste paper
and waste metals, set up collection points for
recyclable waste, which will be collected by the
waste recycling department,
HOJCWEEY EERE BB
BoRBECWEEYWER RER
& LU EFFIEI U ;

e For hazardous waste, set up hazardous waste
warehouse for storage and appoint qualified third
party to handle and dispose of the waste in a
uniform manner to ensure compliance with the
laws and regulations on the disposal of hazardous
waste.

HEZEZEY BiUGERAERFR
EEEBEEE = REREE"
BRETHEEREEVRERNERER
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Business

Target Scope Segment

BRI

EFH R

Environmental Target
IRIEERE

Specific Plans and Steps
AR RS R

Improve office waste recycling system and keep
statistics on the amount of waste paper recycled;
TEMREREEYLIN ARG Rt
MEIWEHE ;

Encourage paper reprinting and set the default
mode of all network printers to duplex printing;
EENARRERITED W ASFT B A48T
ENM BB R AR A EEITED ;

Digitise internal communication and distribute
memoranda and reports electronically;

HF LR ER UBEFEADEE
SRS

Electronic equipment recycling:

BT BHEY

Develop an electronic equipment recycling
programme and monitor its status on a regular
basis;

HIEEFRELIUSTE > EHHGE RS
SPETAR
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Business
Segment
HEIERIE IR

Target Scope
BiIRE R

Environmental Target

5B 1R

Specific Plans and Steps
AR RS R

Sports experience
business

BHRERES

Increase office waste paper
recycling rate
ST YNENCESRAEI LS

Increase office electronic
equipment recycling rate
EEWAEE FRERLIUW

=

Categorise recycling waste

pap Bt ETY)

Case Stuady:
Clarks environmentally friendly packaging

targets for the future.

In recent years, Clarks, the Group's subsidiary, has also been committed
to reduce the environmental impact of packaging, focusing on the
development of fully recyclable, FSC (Forest Stewardship Council®)
certified plastic-free shoeboxes. The Company plans to phase out
single-use plastic bags from its shops in Europe and the UK with paper
bags over the course of 2024 to help it set and meet its waste-related

120
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Categorised recycling:

DB

Provide different bins for recyclable waste, non-
recyclable waste and non-hazardous waste and
calculate the respective recycle rates;

# o] [ EEEY) ~ A0l [l BEEE Y

BREBEEYIRHRENNIRAR > I 5t

HEBBEIWE;

Improve the office waste recycling system and
keep statistics of the amount of waste paper
recycled;

TEMREREEYLIRARS  HistEE
MEIWEE ;

Encourage paper reprinting and set default mode
of all network printers to duplex printing;
ENARSREERITED WP A 4BASFT
N AR RE AR A EEITED

Digitise internal communication and distribute
memoranda and reports electronically;
HFEREBER UBFERADEE
SER IR

Electronic equipment recycling:

BFREEL :

e Develop an electronic equipment recycling

programme and monitor its status on a regular
basis;
HlEEFRELIUWEE > EHHBER
SPETAOR

ClarksBY IR 1R B 22

TEF R REBEB F AR Clarksth
—BERNORNBLVEERRENE
2, ZNRE T 2RI BFSC
(Forest Stewardship Council®)58 58 A4 £ 2
T2 o ABFTEITE2024F AR ZE F
FRAR L8 TR EL 7R BUM A 22 B 7 5 R
—RMEERLL UNEBETERRK
B E I ZEREEE BB F o
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Table of Environmental Performance Data* IRIBRIAHIE R IR

2023 sports experience business 2023 2022 2021
2023F EENRE B TS 20234 20224 20214
Emissions

BER

Carbon emissions in total and intensity
MR EREE

Scope 1 emissions® Tonnes 1,923.0 664.6 703.2
#HENHEHEY N\

Scope 2 emissions® Tonnes 15,280.3 12,4245 12,763.8
#HELHEHE N\

Scope 3 emissions®! Tonnes 27.5 Nil Nil
#HEBHEHE® N

Total emissions Tonnes 17,230.8 13,089.1 13,467.0
B E N\

Total emission intensity Tonnes/FTE* 26.1 19.8 24.5
YR E AWE,FTE®

During the Reporting Period, the inclusion of Clarks data in this Report completes the scope of the overall data statistics, resulting in a more significant change in the overall data statistics
compared to that of 2022. As a result, previous years' data is no longer comparative and is no longer shown in this Report.

EARSHT AARE2BE S TC0aksH R TE T EBEBENRAEE BORFERYBERAEREBRANE -ALFEHETIBAE

Scope | (Direct Emissions) GHG of the Group are mainly derived from direct GHG emissions and refrigerant emissions from the consumption of fossil fuels (e.g. petrol, diesel, natural gas)
in the Company’s operations/production processes, and the methodology for calculating the refrigerant emission data refers to the "Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” set out in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules.

AEEBHE - (EEHRN BRETERNATES £EBSRHECAEMNEENEZRE RN WSH 5l RAR) UKL EIHE
SSHEIF R BIR E A2 B(EMRA) M ERc2z (Miik — | BIBRRERUERERIES|) -

Scope 2 (Indirect Energy Emissions) of the Group only includes emissions from electricity consumption. Scope 2 GHG emissions are mainly indirect GHG emissions from purchased
electricity and steam consumed in the Group's operations/production processes, which are calculated with reference to the “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”

in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules, and the emission factors used for the calculation refer to the latest data from the state and power grids involved, as well as the emission factors
provided by the GHG Protocol. In 2023, we refined the scope of the purchased electricity statistic compared to 2022, with the addition of purchased electricity from Clarks™ shops
globally.

AEEBHEZ GERBEHN ERSEHEEELENR HEZRERBIREFERNEEEE HEBEHENIINESHMESFREEN
FMEAERBIN sTEAEZ2R(LETRA) WikCoz (Mitk = | RIBRMBAENISRERISS) BRsTENHFREFHESEMY REIR R EH
BRI U BERIBIZEIE R (GHG Protocol) Fr i BB HE KA T 0 2023 F H FIMHER2022E R E N BB EM A T EE > FTIEClarks2 BKPIIE BISH
Scope 3 (Other Indirect Emissions) of the Group only includes emissions from waste paper disposed of at landfills and emissions from travelling by air on business trips, and the emission
factors used in the calculation refer to the ICAO Carbon Calculator.

AEEHE= (HMEEHR EZEENBEBEE Y ERAURFLRBEIAREENEO BRFAENHREF2ERNEREMABSRE
98,

FTE: FTE stands for the number of hours worked by a full-time employee over a fixed period of time (e.g., a month or a year). The concept is used to convert the working hours of a
number of part-time employees into those of a full-time employee.

FEFERAREZBEB T EZEEHKEA FIN—ERH—F) NIHENKHE - ZMSANRKLLRRE TN T FREFRA2HE T T (EiFRH -
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2023 sports experience business 2023 2022 2021
2023 FEBRBERET 20234 20224 20214
Other Emissions
HhHrmR
NOx emissions Kg 68.8 167.1 16.2
KA T
SOx emissions Kg 6.8 20.7 0.2
meEEHEm T
PM emissions Kg 8.1 0.4 1.4
TR HE T

Resource usage

BERERE

Resource usage in total and intensity*®
EERFEREERTES

Purchased electricity MWh/FTE 26,895.0 21,804.3 16,738.8
SNEEE R T1E T FLBF

/FTE
Renewable Energy MWh/FTE 349.6 7.2 Nil
B EAE R T1E T FLBF

/FTE
Natural gas consumption MWh/FTE 347.5 1,111.6 2,203.2
RIRRHFE TE T ELEF

/FTE
Gasoline consumption MWh/FTE 58.3 86.6 121.7
FURIHFE T1E T FLBF

/FTE
Purchased electricity intensity MWh/FTE 39.1 33.0 30.4
SNEEERE T1E T FLBF

/FTE
Natural gas consumption intensity MWh/FTE 0.5 1.7 4.0
RARHERE TE T ELEF

/FTE
Gasoline consumption intensity MWh/FTE 0.1 0.1 0.2
FURHFERE T1E T FLBF

/FTE

X Energy use from the group, includes related usage and intensity of natural gas, gasoline and diesel.
% AEBEREAGERAT RN HERBEEREE
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2023 sports experience business 2023 2022 2021
2023 EERERER 20234 20224 20214

Water consumption in total and intensity

BKBEEREE
Water consumption m? 246,114 .1 208,583 279,123.0
FXxE K
Water consumption intensity m*/FTE 358.2 315.6% 507.0
FXZE A AKFIE

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste®*

EERBEEREY”

Hazardous waste in total and intensity®
EEBEYEEREED

Waste carbon battery and alkaline battery Kg 38.68 17.50 Nil
EEEAR MBS A ag MBS T

Discarded lamp Piece 122.00 200.00 Nil
BEEE &

Discarded cartridge Piece 32.00 35.00 Nil
EEES &

Hazardous waste intensity*” Kg/FTE 0.10 0.10 Nil
EEBEENEEY F 5. FTE

The water usage and water intensity have been adjusted in 2022

02FAKERAKEECHE

In order to further improve data disclosure, disclosure of hazardous waste in total and intensity (including discarded plastic bucket, discarded iron bucket,
discarded cloth strip and discarded plastic solution )from the apparel and footwear business, is added for the year.

RE—STESHEBERE AFENMERBEEREBNESEENIIR QIEERR  BEER - BER IR EER ZEKAREA
EREE-

The total volume and intensity of hazardous waste and the intensity of hazardous waste recycled by the sports experience business were disclosed during
the Reporting Period.

ARERRE T EDRBRESNESEEYEEREE NESEEEYLNRERE

Hazardous waste intensity is calculated based on discarded lamp as 250g/piece, discarded cartridge as 54g/piece.
EEREEYBELEEE2505/ME  BERBE5458/E

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £ R

123



124

Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRiZ - 1 E R EARRE

2023 sports experience business 2023 2022 2021
2023 FEE R ET 20235 20225 20214
Hazardous waste in total and intensity
BEEREEYLERERRE
Waste carbon battery and alkaline battery Kg 1.57 0.00 2.00
JBE B0 14 BB s B s 1 B TN F=
Discarded lamp Piece 0.0 Nil Nil
BEEE &
Discarded cartridge Piece 15.0 Nil Nil
BEEZ &
Hazardous waste intensity Kg/FTE 0.00 0.00 Nil
BEEBEYLNRERTE T FIE
Non-hazardous waste in total and intensity
BREBEVEERERE
Paper Tonnes 5.26 1.10 0.80
B4 N
General Waste Tonnes 14.4 13.4 9.6
—RREEEY) N
Glass Kg 9.6 10.0 0.0
18] F=
Non-hazardous waste intensity Tonnes/FTE 0.03 0.02 0.02
BREBEYEE AWE,FTE
Non-hazardous waste recycled and intensity
BEBREYLKRERRE
Paper Tonnes 0.72 1.60 2.0
F#R NI
General waste Tonnes 8.80 0.30 0.00
—REEEY) YN
Glass Kg 0.00 Nil Nil
% IE T
Non-hazardous waste recycled intensity Tonnes/FTE 0.010 0.003 0.004
REBEREYLKRERE AMEFTE
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2023 multi-brands apparels and footwears business 2023 2022 2021
2023 F S mEERER 20235 20224 20214
Emissions
BEmn
Carbon emissions in total and intensity
MR EREE
Scope 1 emissions Tonnes 209.0 64.6 0.0
HEBIHRE NI
Scope 2 emissions Tonnes 26,381.3 1,080.7 1,448 .1
SEEIHRE NI
Scope 3 emissions Tonnes 307.8 Nil Nil
SHEBBIHRE NI
Total emissions Tonnes 26,898.1 1,145.2 1,448 .1
MW E NI
Total emission intensity Tonnes/FTE 5.9 2.1 1.3
MEHEREE AWE,FTE
Other Emissions
H kg
Nitrogen Oxides emissions Kg 276.3 9.2 Nil
KRACYHK T
Sulphur Oxides emissions Kg 1.1 0.4 Nil
W B HE IR T
Particulate Matter emissions Kg 1.3 0.2 Nil
SRR T
Resource Usage
BERERE
Energy usage in total and intensity
EERERAERERRE
Purchased electricity MWh 68,859.1 2.656.0 2,781.8
ShEEEE &+ FLBs
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2023 multi-brands apparels and footwears business 2023 2022 2021
2023F S mEERETR 2023% 20225 20214
Natural gas consumption MWh 13,425.4 437.9 Nil
RIRRHFE TE T ELEF
Gasoline consumption MWh 514.4 176.4 Nil
FUBDH AR T1EF FLBF
Diesel consumption intensity MWh 298.6 7.8 Nil
SORHAE T1EF FLBF
Purchased electricity intensity MWh/FTE 15.1 4.8 2.5
SNEEERE T1E T FLBF
/FTE
Natural gas consumption intensity MWh/FTE 2.9 0.8 Nil
KRR HEEERE TE T EE
/FTE
Gasoline consumption intensity MWh/FTE 0.1 0.3 Nil
FURHFERE T1E T FLBF
/FTE
Diesel consumption intensity MWh/FTE 0.1 0.0 Nil
SORHFERE TE T ELEF
/FTE
Water consumption intensity
RKBEREE
Water consumption md 5,4118.3 2,157.0 4,874.0
k2 I K
Water consumption intensity m%/FTE 11.8 3.9 4.3
BKEE LK FIE

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste

EEREERREY

Hazardous waste in total and intensity

EERRYBERTERE

Waste carbon battery and alkaline battery Kg 0.8 0.0 Nil
JBE B0 14 BB s B s 1 B RN F=

Discarded lamp Piece 100 0.0 Nil
BEEE 12
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2023 multi-brands apparels and footwears business 2023 2022 2021

2023 F S mEERER 20235 20224 20214
Discarded cartridge Piece 51.1 28.0 Nil
BEEZ 1@
Chemical Waste Kg 626.7 Nil Nil
B2 RE KL T
Hazardous waste intensity Kg/FTE 0.1 0.003 Nil
BEEBREYEE F 5, FIE

Hazardous waste recycled and intensity

EEBEEYLNREREE
Waste carbon battery and alkaline battery Kg 0.8 0.00 2.60
BE ZE 0% 14 BB s B s 14 B T
Discarded lamp Piece 100.0 Nil Nil
BEEE 1@
Discarded cartridge Piece 51.1 Nil Nil
BEEZ 1@
Chemical Waste Kg 626.7 Nil Nil
B2 RE KL T
Hazardous waste recycled intensity Kg/FTE 0.1 0.00 Nil
BEEREYLWERZE F 5, FIE
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2023 multi-brands apparels and footwears business 2023 2022 2021
2023 FZ mEERER 2023% 20225 20214
Non-hazardous waste in total and intensity
BEBRREVREREE
Paper Tonnes 3,276.7 121 5.1
B NLUT|
Plastic Tonnes 2,223.5 28.7 Nil
B2 N
Metal Tonnes 8.5 0.0 Nil
B N
General waste Tonnes 1,709.4 30.2 9.6
—RRBEEY) N
Shopping bag Tonnes 69.4 14.9 13.6
B NI
Non-hazardous waste intensity Kg,FTE 1,592.9 34.3 16.7
BREBEVEE F 5/ FTE
Non-hazardous waste recycled and intensity
BEBREYLKRERRE
Paper Tonnes 708.4 8.4 0.1
B NLUT|
Plastic Tonnes 2531 17.5 Nil
B N
Metal Tonnes 8.5 7.9 Nil
B N
General waste Tonnes 126.7 16.2 Nil
—RRBEEY) N
Shopping bag Tonnes 0.87 Nil Nil
B NI
Non-hazardous waste recycled intensity Kg/FTE 239.9 14 0.1
BEBRREYLWERZE F 5/ FTE
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APPENDIX 1: COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND Mgkl . ZEBETRERER
REGULATIONS BY THE GROUP

The relevant departments of the Group proactively obtain information on business- AEEBREBPIBRK R EIREEF A
related laws and regulations in a timely manner to ensure the usual operations of HERZEZREN UBRAEBEREEE
the Group are in compliance with the provisions of the relevant laws applicable in ThiE TS E M R R A BIIE X o FEAS
the places of operation. During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied REPR AEBEREETHELE BN
with the laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its operation and NMERERREEAREN IR EIREER
compliance status, including but not limited to the following: AR -

Areas Laws and regulations with significant impact on the Group

g5 BEASEEEATENERER

Emissions e

HERH

Law of the People's Republic of China on Promotion of Cleaner Production
(PEARHANBEREEREZE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Conserving Energy
(PzE ANRHNBEESAERE)

Renewable Energy Law of People’s Republic of China
(PEARHENBETBEERE)

Circular Economy Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PE ANRHANRBRLBREL)

Regulations of the People’s Republic of China on Nature Reserves
(hEANRHNE B AR REREGD

Convention on Biological Diversity

(EWZ M RE)

Environmental Protection Act 1990 (UK)

Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999 (UK)

Pollution Prevention Act 1990 (US)

California Health & Safety Code, (HSC), Division 20, Chapter 6.5 (Hazardous Waste Control Law)

Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (UK)
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Areas Laws and regulations with significant impact on the Group
] = HAEBBEATENERER

Employment e Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57)

1’ (12 1E 1% B ) (Cap. 57)

Employees' Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282)
(1B B ERA) (Cap. 282)

Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap.608)
(R 1& T & &) ) (Cap.608)

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485)
(R EI M R TEE ST EIR A ) Cap. 485)

Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2009)
(FREARIEMEIZESE) (2009&1F)

Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China(amended in 2012)
(FREARHEMBESHESEE) (201281E)

Regulations for the Implementation of the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (2008)
(FREARIMEIE S S EEBHERF ) (2008)

Employment Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China(amended in 2015)

(PEARHEMBBEREE) (2015E1E)

Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China (2011)

(PEARHEMBLERERE) (2011)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Rights and Interests of Women (amended in
2018)
(FREARHEMBEIRE LR REZE) (201818 1E)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Disabled Persons (amended in 2018)

(PEAREMBEEAREE) (2018E1F)

Regulations for the Employment of the Disabled (2007)
(TR = A SLZEEH ) (2007)

Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487)
(TR N AR & B ) (Cap. 487)
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Laws and regulations with significant impact on the Group
HARERBFEALENEZRER

e Measures on Having a holiday for National Annual Leaves and Memorial Days

(2EEH RSB BRIEE)

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on Mediation and Arbitration of Labor Disputes (2008)
(REANRHANBES ESHFRHAAEHFIE) (2008)

e Regulations on Paid Annual Leave of Employees (2008)

(B T 55 3 SRR 15 A1 ) (2008)
e National Minimum Wage Act 1998 (UK)
e Equality Act 2010 (UK)
e Employment Rights Act 1996 (UK)
e Working Time Regulations 1998 (UK)
e Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (UK)
e Pensions Act 2008 (UK)
e Data Protection Act 2018 (UK)
e Immigration and Nationality Act 1952 (US)
e Equal Pay Act 1963 (US)
e Federal Fair Labour Standards Act (US) & various US state wage & hour laws

e Age Discrimination in Employment Act 1967 (US)
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Areas Laws and regulations with significant impact on the Group
i) HEERFEARTLENEZRER

e Employee Retirement Income Security Act 1974 (US)

e Pregnancy Discrimination Act 1978 (US)

e |Immigration Reform and Control Act 1986(US)

e Americans with Disabilities Act 1990 (US)

e Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 1991 (US)

e Family and Medical Leave Act 1993 (US)

e (Constitution of the Italian Republic (IT)

e Civil Code — Book V of Labor (IT)

e law 20/5/1970 n. 300, known as the "workers' statute"(IT)

e Legislative Decree 14 September 2015, n. 151— Implementation of the Jobs Act (IT)
e Legislative Decree 4 March 2015, n. 22 — Naspi (IT)

e Legislative Decree 8 April 20083, n. 66 — Working hours (IT)

e Legislative Decree 11 April 2006, n. 198 — Equal Opportunities (IT)

e Legislative Decree 15 June 2015, n. 81 — Reorganization of employment contracts (IT)
e Legislative Decree 26 March 2001, n. 151 — Maternity (IT)

e Law 28 June 2012, n. 92 — Labor market reform (IT)

e Law 10 December 2014, n. 183 — Jobs Act enabling law (IT)

e National collective labor agreement for workers in the footwear industry

e National collective labor agreement for workers in the retail and services industry (IT)
e Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act 1994 (US)

e Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 2008 (US)
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Areas Laws and regulations with significant impact on the Group
i) HEAEBRBFEATENERER

Health and Safety e (ccupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap.509)
RENEER (BiZE L 2 M BERIRA ) (Cap.509)

Labour Contract Law of the People's Republic of China (amended in 2009)
(FREARKMBEESE) (2009 1E)

Safety Production Law of the People's Republic of China (amended in 2014)
(REARXNMBAZEEEE) (2014B1E)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases(amended
in 2017)

(FREARIEMBEIRZERIGAZE) (2017 1E)

law 81/2008 integrated by Legislative Decree no. 106 of 3 August 2009 (IT)

Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances (amended in 2010)
(ZHEREREA D (20101E5T)

Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (UK)
The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999 (UK)

Occupational Safety and Health Act 1970 (US)

Labour Standards
SIRE

Labor law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2009)
(REARHEMEIS EE) (2009 1E)

Regulation on Prohibition of Child Labor (2002)
(ZEIEFERZETHRT (2002

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors (amended in 2012)

(PEAREMBIKRBE AREE) (2012(E1E)
Children & Young Person Act 1933 (UK)

National Labor Relations Act 1935 (US)

Fair Labor Standards Act 1938 (US)

Uyghur Forced Labor Prevention Act 2021 (US)

Occupational Safety and Health Act 1970 (US)
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Areas Laws and regulations with significant impact on the Group
] = HAEBBEATENERER

Product Responsibility e National General Safety Technical Code for Textile Products (2010)
EmEE (BIRABEREXRZ 2 RAMARE ) (2010)

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.486)
(B ANE KL (FABR) 1551 (Cap.486)

e Product Eco-responsibility Ordinance (Cap. 603)
(ZE RIRFREEMRA ) Cap.603)

e Sale of Goods Ordinance (Cap. 26)
(EREERA ) Cap.26)

e Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance (Cap. 456)
CHE Mm% 2% %51) (Cap.456)

e Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Cap.362)
(75 GmER BR& B ) (Cap.362)

e Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2018)
(FREARHEMBEIESE) (20188 1)

e Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2013)
(FREARIEMEIFEZE) (20138 1E)

e Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2008)
(FREARIEMBEIEF]ZE) (20088 1E)

¢ Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2009)
(REARHEMBEEREEE) (2009 1E)

e Law of the people’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumers’ Rights and Interests (amended in
2013)
(REAREMBEVEEEE T IREZE) (20138 1E)

e Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China (2010)
(FREARIEMBEE#EEEE)(2010)

e Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2010)
(FREAREMBEZEREZE) (2010B1EF)
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Laws and regulations with significant impact on the Group
HARERBFEALENEZRER

Standardisation Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2017)
(FREARIMBEZRELZE) (20171EE])

Import and Export Commodity Inspection Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2018)
(REARAMBEEL O REEE) (2018&1F)

Implementation Regulations on the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2014)

(PEARHEMBBEREERE) (2014E5])

Trademark Law Treaty

(BRRERL)

WIPO Copyright Treaty
55 0 580 22 M AR A R R AR A )

United Nations Guidelines for Consumer Protection

(BB BUHEEREZR])

Toxic Substances Control Act of 1976 (US)
Consumer Product Safety Act of 1972 (US)
Federal Trade Commission Act 1914 (US)

Regulation (EU) 2023/988 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 10 May 2023 on general
product safety

"Regulation (EC) No 1907/2006 concerning the Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of
Chemicals (REACH)"

Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directive 2002/95/EC(2003) (EU)
California PROP65 & other US State PFAS regulations
Canada's Anti Spam Law 2014

Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act 2000 (Canada)
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Areas Laws and regulations with significant impact on the Group
i) HEERFEARTLENEZRER

e (General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679

e Data Protection Act 2018 (UK)

e (California Privacy Rights Act (CPRA) 2020 and other equivalent US State legislation

e the European regulation 2016/679 GDPR (General data protection regulation) (IT)

e Personal Information Protection Law (PIPL) 2021 (China)

e "Bureau of Indian Standards (Conformity Assessment) Regulations, 2018"

e Transparency in Supply Chains Act (California, US) and other equivalent US State legislation

e "Assembly Bill AB352 (2021) (New York Fashion Sustainability & Social Accountability Act)"

Anti-corruption e Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201)

k&5 (B LE BB BR A5 A1) (Cap.201)

e Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2017)

(REAREMBEFNE) (2017EIE)

e Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China (2007)
(FREARHEME R IEEE) (2007)

e Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (amended in 2018)
(REARHEMBEIREED (20188 1F)

e Law of the people’s Republic of China on Anti Unfair Competition (amended in 2017)
(REAREMBERAESEHRFEED (2017185])
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Laws and regulations with significant impact on the Group
HARERBFEALENEZRER

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Tenders and Bids (amended in 2017)
(REARSNMABEREE) (20171 E)

Regulations on the Implementation of the Tendering and Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China
(amended in 2018)
(REARZNBEBEREEBEMEA ) (201818 1E)

Supervision Law of the People's Republic of China (2018)
(FREARHMBEEEZRIE) (2018)

Fraud Act 2006 (UK)

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 (US)
Bribery Act 2010

"Money Laundering Regulations 2017 (UK)
Legislative Decree 231/01 (IT)

Legislative Decree 24/2023 — new Whistleblowing Directive (IT)
Anti-Money Laundering Act of 2020 (US)
Companies Act 2006 Sec.175 (UK)

Financial COI 18 U.S.C 208 (US)

EU Financial Regulation (Article 61 FR 2018) (EU)
Anti Competition Law (UK)

Anti Trust Law (US)
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APPENDIX 2: HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX Migg2 : BMRXFR(RIE-HEKRE R
IREIESI)NB RG]

General Disclosure

and Key Performance Page Number/
Indicators (KPIs) Description Remarks

— AR 1% B T A

BRIER Eipar B s
General Disclosure Information on: 110-122
—RIME (@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste

BERBERBEREN AR S - AERESE

BEYMNELESEN
@) BER; &
b)) BFEHBITABEAZENEREIERRRANEL -

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 123-124, 127
BRI 1B 48 R AR RA BRI B ©

KPIA1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in 123, 127
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

E#% (BEN) kfeREE (EE2) REREHFHE LA E)
kR (NBR BE MUSEEEM BERXRME) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.  125-126, 128-129
per unit of production volume, per facility).
FRELEBEEEEYREE UREE) kX (WER BE (MMUE
EEBM -SERME) -

KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity 126, 130
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FTELERESEEYRE UAWE) X (MER) BE MUS
EEM -BIERXREE) °

KPIA1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 120-122
W] NI EE R R A ET S LB RMREA L 5o
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a  120-122

description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HMLREESERESEEYN S L REMAEIINRER
BRAEINSLEERAREL R
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Page Number/

Indicators (KPIs) Description Remarks

— AR iR BB R A 52

BMIERE bi:pan B

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw ~ 110-118

— R E materials.
BXERER (BEFER  KREMEME) WER

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in 124, 127-128
total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RBAADNEER/ REEER QE - RIUH) EFEE (U
TEFERSE) RBRE (WUASEEBU -SERKTH) °

KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per 125, 128
facility)
MEKERTZE WUASESEBEMN SERKFAE) °

KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve  116-117
them.
HMPRET IR AN B R kA ERE LB RIS

KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, 119
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HIMSKEERXKR ERI BE AR MU APrE] I8 A KM &
BRkAEDEEEEMERINAL R

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,  During the Reporting

with reference to per unit produced.
WU mATAEEMNNEE UAMEE) X (WEB
BAfhE-

) BEE

Period, total packaging
materials used included
71.46 tonnes of price tag,
84.32 tonnes of plastic
packaging bag, 100.52
tonnes of carton box, and
32.72 tonnes of copy
paper.

WREBA Fﬁ@ﬁﬁ
e MR s

= .46/\@&151%7@‘;
8] 84.32 MHE B
BHEE L 100.52A W8
HFE 32,72 AMEKE
EN#K -
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General Disclosure
and Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs)

— A% % 8 R i 3
BEARIER

Description

it

Page Number/
Remarks

B A

General Disclosure
—RIRE

KPI'A3.1

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI'A4.1

General Disclosure

—BINE

KPIB1.1

KPI B1.2

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and
natural resources.

HEETANRERRAERENEATZENBR-

118

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BT EBTHHRERRARERNEARZRERERNEER
X ZH1TE -

118

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

B REHERKOUEEHBETAEETENE AR IEHEAE
EEHNBRE-

118

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.,
HTERRAEEHETAELERENEARREEFRSEE
K EE1TE) ©

118

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

B mE - BEREA TENE - BRE -FEEHE 2
T RIREU R EMEFEREF D :

@ R &

) BFEHBFTABEARZENERZERRRANEE -

82

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

R EEEL - FRANRMEE DNESEH -

84-85

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

R FRAENRMEE DR EEMRLER-

85, 87
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Page Number/

Indicators (KPIs) Description Remarks
— R 4% 28 F R 52
BMIERE bi:pan B
General Disclosure Information on: 91-92
—RINE (@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
FRREZE2TIHFRERREEERCBEMEEN !
@ R &
b)) BEBFHEBETABEAEZENERERERANER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. 0
ETERIAMETHAB KRS
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 270
RITEERIIEH&#H-
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they — 91-92
are implemented and monitored.
HAPT RN B A REEAZ 2T URBBRITERERAS
V£ o
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for discharging duties at 88
— MR E work. Description of training activities.
BRRFAEERBIT LRI E AV A & K i AE AU R o #1555l
EE o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.  88-90
senior management, middle management).
U REERRN WehEEE -PABEIEES) 29H%
dlfEEB DL
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee 89, 91

category.

BRUEREEERE D BREETHRINNFIIRH-
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General Disclosure
and Key Performance

Page Number/

Indicators (KPIs) Description Remarks

— g 4% 28 K B 52

BMIERE Hi 4t B st

General Disclosure Information on: 93-94

— I E (a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRI IEE T8 HI5E THY -
@ R &
b BIFHBETABEAEZENERERERANER -

KPI B4 .1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and  93-94
forced labour.

S SRR B R B T RARHS T o

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 93-94
A IRERB R HRB B IE LT ERERY & BR o

General Disclosure PoHcieS on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 96-99

— R E BIEHERBNIRRERTERMBEE-

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 99
M@ DN EEREE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers  96-99
where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

ML ERMERAEREENEN mERITERAEMNNHER R
BE-URBREBHANBITRERG %

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and ~ 96-99
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HETTREHEEERECELHARERERKRRBENEG UKk
MERERITRERG A

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and ~ 96-99

services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HLTEREHEEEREELARRERARBINIESG > UKk
MEARITRERF L
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Page Number/

Indicators (KPIs) Description Remarks
— R 4% 28 F R 52
BMIERE bi:pan B
General Disclosure Information on: 100-103
—RINE (a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
ERFRHERNMRBNERELZE - BEE REAMEEE
MR AEER
@ R &
b)) BEBFHEBETABEAEZENERERERANER -
KPI 6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and ~ No products have
health reasons. recalled for safety and
health reasons during the
Reporting Period.
BERCEXEQEHFRZ2ERBEAMBLHKNES RERFHAASER
tE o Ze2RBEREG
ElEmM-
KPI 6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are 101
dealt with.
BERNRERRRBNRFHEUREEHF -
KPI 6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property 102
rights.
Tt B A B R (RPR A B ERE B BBV IB A o
KPI 6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 100
HhEEMEBREREmBIWRERF-
KPI 6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are 102

implemented and monitored.

HAHBEERRERMBEER  UREBARTRERS A
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General Disclosure
and Key Performance

Page Number/

Indicators (KPIs) Description Remarks
— AR 1% B8 T A
BMIERE Hi 4t B st
General Disclosure Information on: 94-95
— RN E (@ the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRA LIRS - $ R - RFFROE B8R0 ¢
@ R &
b)) BTFTHBTABEARZENEREZRRRGOINER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against 95
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
CRBRARNEETANEEERELEEENE SHAEY
H#E RaFRER o
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how 95
they are implemented and monitored.
Wt iE i B RET  URBRARITREER G L
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff, 95
HitmEERETRENRETHEC
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 104-109
— MM E communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
ERUHE2ERTHREEMTHRRENRERAEEZERE T
ERHERAHAVER
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour ~ 104-109
needs, health, culture, sport).
ErEREE (MEE - BESE - FIEXR - BE - XE B
) o
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 104

TEIBEABAER WEBIER) o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

=
pwec

To the Shareholders of VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Viva Goods Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 154 to
275, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Inventory provision

° Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

° Valuation of defined benefit plan obligation

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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Key Audit Matter
ATt HIE

Inventory provision

FEEE

Refer to Note 3 — critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgments and Note 19 — inventories to the consolidated financial
statements.

FHR2RGREVERRMNEIIEZAGSE BRKRH
B R M sE197FE & o

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net inventories of
HK$3,321.4 million, carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in the consolidated financial statements.

RIBZ=ZF+"RA=+—H> EEENFEEFHE
7$3,321,400,0008 70 > AR B M B IR AR P pl 45 £ A]

REEREEI K-

The apparel and footwear industry is highly correlated to seasonal
factors, economic environments, customers’ preferences and
competitor actions which affect the amount of inventory provision
to be provided. The Group has an inventory provision policy and
such provision is made for inventory items whose costs may not be
fully recoverable. The inventory provision is estimated by reference
to data such as inventory ageing, historical sales experience and
expected subsequent year-end sales.
HREHEHSHEEREZ KERE BEARGAFESYH
FHBEUMER MZEAERELELTRENES
BEtE SEERAFERERR > LRMRAT
EREITE2WENEEEEFHERMEBE TEEE
B2EZEERKE ERHESCBRERBREFREE
BREHBEMEE -

We focus on this area due to the size of inventory balance, and
the judgment involved in estimating the net realisable value in
management’s impairment assessment.
EMEI%EBEENGEEGRENRE  UNEEE
TE R E T P 1 51 B 3R F B R P B B9 H1 B o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM B st R IERARELFIE

Our audit procedures relating to the inventory provision included:

RPERFERBENSIREFEE

= Understood and evaluated internal controls over management’s
estimation of net realisable value and periodic reviews of
inventory obsolescence and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

- TEREMITEEEHTERFENGEREER
ETHESHNAIES > I @EE R L st 2 A
BARENEEREMES RABRERZRKFE (WK
HM-FEUE - S2HRHEEEREIMEFHER
M) ST ERERRMNEE R ;

= Tested the ageing of inventory items categorised into different
seasons by checking to relevant documents including goods
receipt notes, on a sample basis, and recalculated the
mathematical accuracy of the provision made for the selected
items; and

-  FibmEpEEExXy (eEmalis) s o8
RAAFEHNEFEEEEREK WEHFTEMNET
TEEPTEEENBEERMY ; &

= Assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by challenging
management’s projections on current trends and demands for
the remaining inventories, with reference to historical sales
experience and comparing the carrying values of inventory
items, on a sample basis, to actual prices for subsequent year-
end sales.

- FHEREEEYEEBRRAGTFEEKRNTE
A T2ERELHELCRRBERFFEEBRA
BERBEFRHENERERETLLE TG
HEHEE -

Based on the procedures described above, we found that
management’s judgments in estimating the inventory provision to be
supported by the available evidence.

ERtmERr BMEREEE G EEEENFE
Il SR
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Key Audit Matter
FAREtEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets
¥ -BERREREBESEREEG

Refer to Note 3 — critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements and Note 12 — property, plant and equipment and right-
of use assets to the consolidated financial statements.
F2RAGRETERRNEAIEARAG A - BREH
BT 1I2ME -BERRBERERAEEE-

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of the Group's
property, plant and equipment amounted to HK$1,558.4 million
(after impairment provision of HK$121.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023), and right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$968.1 million (after impairment provision of HK$439.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023).
RZE_=F+"A=+—H> BEENYE-K
ERRERMEES1,558,400,0008 7T AKREE_Z
_=F+Z“A=+—BLFEZEER#E121500000
BoT) REAEE EREE 968,100,000 7t (0B
BHE_ZT_="F+-_A=+—HULEFEZREEE
439,600,000 7T) ©

The operations of the Group’s retail stores was adversely affected
by the challenging global economy and weak consumer demand,
and certain of the Groups's retail stores were loss making during
the year. Management regards each individual retail store as a cash
generating unit (“CGU") and carried out impairment assessments by
determining the recoverable amounts of the retail store assets which
have impairment indicators. The recoverable amounts of the assets
of the relevant retail stores are determined by the value in use (“VIU")
calculations using discounted cash flow projections based on sales
forecasts prepared by management with key assumptions including
budgeted sales and gross margin, revenue growth rates and discount
rate.

D IKAS T H R IEPkE @%ﬁ?ﬁwwﬁméﬂz%ﬁfm
RBRNEERRKYE SE£ERTEENZEESHIANE
ZUHFERN EERETZESHREGEE -BIERE
REBITEEA—EREELEN (REELE
fii) WEBEEAEBRRENRRNSEEEEZ K
ElEfETREN G - HATEEEE 2 JE &2
DBIREEEEGENEER (FERIBIEREH
EREME - W SR R RAIRER) FAMIRREER
ERAETNEREE ((EREME) StEMET

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EANBA A EERRBETEE

Our procedures on auditing management’s property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets impairment assessment mainly
included:

BRMHEBEEME -BREARERERAEEERET
BETHNEAERFEITERE

Understood and evaluated the internal controls over the
identification of indicators and the determination of recoverable
amounts of the assets of the relevant retail stores including
the preparation of the cash flows forecast and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

- Tﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁm%ﬁﬁ‘ifiﬁém% = B Al e ]
WElEE (BEFFIRESRETER) BR3P E
ol > W 3@EE R L5t 2 FHBRRNREE R H i
BB REEERNKTE (NEHME S TH M “3@3}3’2
HERERRE NP FNERE) T HEARERMR
MBI EA EE

- Tested the reasonableness of the data used and challenged
management’s key assumptions adopted in the future cash flow
forecasts mainly in relation to:

- HAHEPFABENGEN THEEEEZRKIRE
/uLEiE ARSRABANTIERRIEHER T2 K
MFAmE:

the budgeted sales and gross margin, by comparing
them with actual historical financial data of the stores
and questioning senior management about their business

plans;
R R E & ) K S B R E L
?TF%E#E ETLEB wmEREIEEHREER

i the revenue growth rates, by comparing them with
relevant economic and industry forecasts, including
forecasts sourced from external parties; and

i R EREREEERSERTETER (B1F
REINEBE FRVTER]D) EITLER ; &

iii. — involved our internal valuation experts and assessed the
reasonableness of the discount rate derived from relevant
market data of comparable companies;

ii. FEANGEEZERSETGAEERATNERE
TG B EHEEEKE’JAEE % 5
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Key Audit Matter
ATt HIE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)
ME- -BERIERERESEREEG (8)

We focused on this area due to the size of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, and the significant judgement and
estimation involved in determining the recoverable amounts of the
relevant assets subject to impairment assessment.
EMEI%EEEERNYE - BRERIXEBEREAES
ENRE URTEETEBETRETGHNEREEN
B U [Cl £ R R P R B9 B8 K B AN 51 o

Valuation of defined benefit plan obligation
REBFIEFEREE

Refer to Note 3 — critical accounting estimates, assumptions
and judgements and Note 18 — Defined benefit schemes to the
consolidated financial statements.
FR2RGREHBRRMIIBARGSHEE - REKRH
T & fYsE 18R ERBFETEY o

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's present value of the defined
benefit plan obligation amounted to HK$8,447.8 million.
RN_ZE_=_F+"HA=+—H> SEE£EENATEFN
st 8| BT IR{E %48,447,800,0008 7T ©

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM B st R IERARELFIE

- Tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculations of the
recoverable amounts of these stores; and

- AEHEZEEH2IKREEENHEERY ;
P4

- Evaluated the sensitivity analysis to ascertain the extent of the
change in the key assumptions that would result in the retail
store assets being impaired and discussed with management
the likelihood of such a change in the key assumptions arising.

- FHMEERESN O UREEENTEEEER
ENETERINETECEE TRBEESREE
RBEWNZEL BB EE S

Based on the procedures described above, we found that the
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets made by management to be supported by the available
evidence.

BERtER RMEREEBHYE -BRERRE X
FERAEEENRET GBI ARZEZF-

Our procedures on the valuation of the defined benefit plan obligation
mainly included:

A ERA A EEEERNNEFETERRE !

= Understood the management’s valuation process involving
the use of members data of the schemes, formulation of
assumptions in determining the present value, and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

- THREEENMGHERE BERSKRERSEINRE
B e ERENERIUKLTLEKRERR
BB RE A AT EMGESHIEEENEE
REMEA RERZRNKE (B T8N
BIEREHEERERRE TSR ;

- Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
third-party actuaries involved in the valuation of the defined
benefit plan obligation;

- AP ERATERMNFEEEHENE=HEEL
NEE-BEXEBRRETEHMN ;
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Key Audit Matter
FAREtEE

Valuation of defined benefit plan obligation (Continued)
REBFEIFEREE (8)

In determining the present value of the defined benefit plan
obligation, the Group conducted an actuarial valuation on the
aforesaid defined benefits obligations with the assistance of third-
party actuaries. The key assumptions applied include discount rates,
rates of inflation and mortality rates.
BEERATRMNAEERRER SEETE=7K
HEB T B EMARATERMNETETEEMGEE
FANFEBRZEEMRR -BRELFETE-

We focused on the valuation of the defined benefit plan obligation
due to the size of the defined benefit plan obligation, and the
significant judgement and estimation involved in determining its
present value.

BN AERMAEEENREUREEHIRE T RN
BARHE (5t BEPIRDER REEH B FER
fHE

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EANBA A EERRBETEE

- Engaged our actuarial experts, met with management
and communicated with their actuaries to understand the
judgements made in determining key assumptions used
in the calculation of the defined benefit plan obligation
including discount rates, rates of inflation and mortality rates.
We assessed the reasonableness of those assumptions by
comparing to our own independently determined benchmarks
considering the potential impact if these assumptions are to be
changed within a reasonable range.

- ZEREER HEEESEY AR SHNEEN
BEOUTHRAEBEEREEAGFEEEFAEPRE
ANFERRK (BERRE -BRIEKRIFETE) &
FrfEHBF B o FMBEEKMBITRIEEN
BEEESTHES THZERINGEY > T EE
AU RZERRECEHERNELEELLHNBER
4B o

- Performed testing over the members data used in calculating
the defined benefit plan obligation. Dependent on the member
categories, we tested through a combination of analytical
review, test of details and consideration of member-related
controls at the administrators.

- HHAEARATEMNFEEERERANMEBIRET
AH - RERBERN BMEREESDTES A
AR REEASNEERAETNZE RRFRET
AE o

- Assessed adequacy of the disclosures related to defined
benefit plan obligation in the context of the applicable financial
reporting framework.

- TEANMBRESERTHEERRATCEN 2
EEMNKBENT DG -

Based on the procedures described above, we found that
management’s judgments and estimation in determining the valuation
of the defined benefit plan obligation to be supported by the available
evidence.

ERtimEr BMEREEETEERTEN 2
SEGERNFE Rt A AERES e
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or, otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Hfthiz 2
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going e HEFEHH ? BREFHERNNE
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, EMIEHGH BIEMERNE R
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that BT 7£T FHEHEFEIED |ﬁ nE
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going BNEARATHEEM M EER
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required % EEENFEKEED ?E%iﬁ
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the RE-UNRBEMBAGTEEARIETE
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, IE HIENEEZHMBSEFIRFERE
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence B % ARG E T EIRFRPAEB R
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or B yWaBRANKEERE 8 ?JMFH
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. J‘g 2 ’E.‘Ff% EEFREBERR -HMNGEH

ThER B‘%zﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁiatﬁﬁﬂy E’J%ui‘
REE AT » KRR FIE OB T B AE
R EEEAFEFERKSE-

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated o TGS BmMRMWEREIHS

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the ,\M%*D W@ BRI E UREGES T
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and RERBEAFE2IERARZZMEIE

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Qbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial e It EEERNERBRAERITNTHE
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express SEENGZE BEMNEFTRE U
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for @%ﬁ*é,ﬁﬁ“% RERRBRR -EME
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain s EEEBHNAE BEEM#ITC
solely respansible for our audit opinion. KMAE EJr EREAER Kff?c °

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the BrEMEBEN BMAEZEERER 7

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any SEINESTHE B L EAEST IR

significant deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during our audit. L BREAMESBIPHF H RSB ESN
Rl & K ERBE ©

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with KFAEMBZZEGIRIEN > R HE KM

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with EREE MBI ENERH ii? EEEEX>

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear :It E—i Tﬁ FI78i8 A Al fE 5 Bt B A E‘ wE
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or HMBILMENFBERGENEMEIE UKk

safeguards applied. FEERNBRT BLUBKREENITE S

RER BB E0HE B o

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those REBEZEZEGEBENFTER HMETE
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial HAPGEUBRERNEBEARAEENS
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We B AMBREREENEZE HMEEZH
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes MR SR E L =18 BRIEEREZIRAF
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we AHALFHBEEELEZTE AEHBHEERDN
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the BRAT URSEBHRHERMBESHES
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the ~ HEIBEMMNEH B RBBELEN A ZH
public interest benefits of such communication. m BPAREFREERS P EBRZEIE.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report HEARBIZEMBEHNESTEEEEA

is Lo Kai Leung Thomas. _RERRE-

PricewaterhouseCoopers EERKEGSTENE R

Certified Public Accountants =2 EET

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024 5B ZTEMNFE=FB=+H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
oo kHEMEEER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE B _=®F+_B=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—EZ=H —EZCH
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FET TFABT
Revenue g 5 11,219,416 6,900,390
Cost of sales H & A A 7 (6,089,157) (3,739,801)
Gross profit EF 5,130,259 3,160,589
Other income and other gains/(loss) — net HMU A K B A
Wi (B518) 338 5 102,997 1,023,644
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHEMAX (4,585,174) (2,713,306)
Administrative and other operating expenses 17 B Kz EL{th 45 & &5 FF (1,543,613) (1,080,679)
Impairment loss on financial assets — net MHREEZ RERIEFEE 41 (57,822) (4,617)
Finance costs — net B BN 6 (129,996) (57,802)
Share of profits less losses of associates and D fEHEE AT R EE ¥
joint ventures wa F R ES 18 15 527,190 543,322
Profit/(loss) before income tax PREFIGIATEF (F58) 7 (556,159) 871,151
Income tax credit FrigiRik e 10 109,463 1,860
Profit/(loss) for the year FEwimdl (§518) (446,696) 873,011
Other comprehensive income/(loss):  EHfth 2 EUzE ~ (§518) :
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently BB AIEM D EEE T 2 1E
to profit or loss, net of income tax: B {IBRFIER
— Exchange differences on translation of —REBINER ER
foreign operations =58 (228,028) (536,156)
— Effective portion of changes in fair —BEREf AT E
value of cash flow hedges ) 2 BB D (9,958) (20,281)
— Reclassification adjustment for —NAFEEFIHERE A
subsidiaries and joint ventures REeEtEREHND
deregistered during the year fEFAEE (3,062) 66
— Release of exchange reserve upon —NHERBIEHEN B
disposal and deemed disposal of NE) B IRIRIE R
subsidiaries 1,897 =
— Share of other comprehensive loss of — M —EEERE
an associate Hitt2mEE (753) (773)
— Change in fair value of financial —FBEMEEREEA
assets at fair value through other TEIFAEZHHEEE
comprehensive income ZAFEES (21) 110
(239,925) (557,034)
ltems that may not be reclassified HEBAAEMDEEEGRZ
subsequently to profit or loss, net of IHE  {0BRFTEIR
income tax:
— Actuarial loss on pension schemes —RBRAREFEZBEBHIE (291,067) (440,531)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, R HE th 2 EE51E >
net of income tax NFREA1SIR (530,992) (997,565)
Total comprehensive loss for the year F R EEIE4E%E (977,688) (124,554)
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE_E_=F+_H=+—HILEFE

2023 2022
—EZ=H —ECE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5% FET TFET
Profit/(loss) attributable to: MTFALEEEN (58 :
— Equity holders of the Company —KPNBEREHEFTEA (118,990) 850,416
— Non-controlling interests —JEEER Em (327,706) 22,595
(446,696) 873,011
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UTATEEZERES
attributable to: (B518) #48%5 :
— Equity holders of the Company —KRPNBEEEHFTEA (564,171) 253,088
— Non-controlling interests —JEER E m (413,517) (377,642)
(977,688) (124,554)
Profit/(loss) per share attributable to AT #EFIFHE AEWN
equity holders of the Company: SEF 7 (B518) -
Basic (HK cents) BAR (FB1L) 11 (1.04) 7.48
Diluted (HK cents) #58 (B1WL) " (1.04) /.39

The notes on pages 161 to 275 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

BINE2EMHCMERZFEEGYH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FaMBRAR

As at 31 December 2023 WMW_E_=#+"-_H=+—H
2023 2022
—E=HF —ECHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FET TFET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME~ BB REE 12(A) 1,558,432 1,382,750
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 12(B) 968,098 1,249,135
Investment properties KRB 13 101,500 104,400
Intangible assets mLEE 14 742,094 594,398
Interests in associates and joint ventures REgERANE REGEPEZ R 15 4,127,679 4,151,810
Prepayments, deposits and FENRE-EEK
other receivables H fhfE U 78 21 102,442 341,776
Restricted bank balances PR & M4 SR 17 45 B 23 188,375 16,980
Financial assets at fair value through other HREMEERmEATE
comprehensive income HEZHHEE 16 8,229 7,959
Derivative financial instruments TTEMBITA 17 572 2,785
Defined benefit surplus REBMBER 18 492,865 821,348
Deferred tax assets RILIRIEE E 28 450,666 120,127
Other non-current assets HMIERIHEE 10,057 3,149
Total non-current assets EREELEE 8,751,009 8,796,617
CURRENT ASSETS MEMEE
Inventories 78 19 3,321,449 4,061,130
Trade debtors and bills receivable & AT BR R e e LU R 4% 20 766,821 859,478
Prepayments, deposits and SEENET =R e
other receivables H fth fE I =R I8 21 577,131 681,272
Derivative financial instruments TTEMBTA 17 17,673 89,202
Tax recoverable EIEQEIE R - 2,832
Restricted bank balances PR &l M4 SR1T 45 85 23 2,262 2,635
Bank deposits with maturity period over EFREABE =R ZR1TEXR
three months - 3,962
Cash and cash equivalents REXIRSEEY 22 1,281,312 2,974,803
Total current assets M B EMLE 5,966,648 8,675,314
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik 2 R=R
Trade, bills and other payables FEfTER R FE B2 K
Hfh &I =18 24 2,057,262 2,796,593
Accruals FEst &R 25 769,529 642,695
Contract liabilities aHas 5 116,454 129,117
Deferred income IR IE U A 26 947 453
Income tax payable FES P18 %3 43,592 67,642
Lease liabilities HEaRE 12(B) 566,202 519,199
Bank borrowings IRITER 27 22,040 55,934
Derivative financial instruments TTEMBETA 17 59,315 28,445
Provision B 29 130,098 94,293
Other current liabilities Himghad 37,791 93,821
Total current liabilities MBIEEELR 3,803,230 4,428,192
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position 2 &

MBRAR

As at 31 December 2023 M-_EBE_=F+"_B=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-_HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 2,163,418 4,247,122
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEHEERRSERE
LIABILITIES 10,914,427 13,043,739
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred income IR IEUT A 26 5,229 5,726
Other payables HihpETIa 5,419 5,314
Lease liabilities HEas 12(B) 1,381,462 1,438,100
Provision B 29 80,594 108,068
Bank borrowings RITER 27 165,161 288,196
Derivative financial instruments TEMBIA 17 5,811 11,469
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 28 99,231 96,664
Defined benefit obligation RERNEME 18 115,090 91,974
Total non-current liabilities | =R = E-E 1,857,997 2,045,511
NET ASSETS HEFE 9,056,430 10,998,228
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity holders of RABERTEA
the Company FE{L R ==
Issued capital B & TR A 30 486,114 484,021
Perpetual convertible bonds KA BRES 32 810,621 810,621
Reserves # 33 6,422,392 6,698,533
7,719,127 7,993,175
Non-controlling interests JEERE e 1,337,303 3,005,053
TOTAL EQUITY HEm4EEE 9,056,430 10,998,228

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March

THBFERRER_Z_NE=RF_+H%E

2024, EEgHE-
Li Ning Li Chunyang
Fx e 1

Executive Director
HITEF

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

FERITBAE

16&2755%%2%&%&%? B 7%
R Z R ER D

The notes on pages 161 to 275 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HaRmDE2ER

Year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZE-_=F+"A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FAAREREARS
Share Perpetual Exchange ~ Investment Non-
Issued premium ~ convertible  Shareoption  fluctuation  revaluation Cash flow Pension Reserve Retained controlling
capital account bonds feserve feserve reserve  hedge reserve reserve funds eamings Total interests  Total equity
B&f & KAkTH BRE  ERRE BE  RERE Efg FER
2 R Rif% [ B EfEE  HHER ff  BREE  REEY &5t E  EREE
Notes HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000
i Tn TEn T Tin TEn TEn T TEn TEn Tin T TEn T
Asat 1 Jenvary 2022 A"85-"E-F-f 41,062 1,080,868 810,621 17,378 177,25 - - - 241 4,865,682 1616217 138,165 1754482
Profitfor te year Epigh| = = = = = = = = = 850,416 850416 25% 873,011
Oter comprehenshe income/(os)for e year: EREMEENE/ (FE)
Eichenge difrences on ersaon of i cpetions.~ E BN ER 2 EREE = = = - t76.874) - - - - - {476,874 (30.80) [336,156)
et porion ofchanges n fir v of ReneHpATEEY,
cash flow edges BHER = = - - - - (5275 = = = (5275 (15,006 20281)
Shae o offer comprehensig oss of an associale RE-ERENTZ R
- - - - m - - - - - - i
e n vl of ol s e o) BBEMAENARATEHEY
ofhercompichensie incame HRBREZATEES - - - - - 110 - - - - 110 - 110
Reclassfcaon adusmentfor subsares deregitred MEE&MTE ANENIE
dlring the year - - - - 6 - - - - - 66 = 66
At s 0 pnson sfees um AL - - - - - - - (s - - (MR By (M)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ~ EA2ERE/ () B8 - - - - {é77,581) 110 [5.275) (114582 = 850416 263,088 (377,642) (124554
Roquistion o sbsidres WEHBAR - - - - - - - - - - - 3,206,751 3206751
Haistion o on-conolin eess WEEARER - - - - - - - - - 1209 1,209 (1.209) -
St st upon exrose of e opfs EREENRELTZRR 295 am - [11142) - - - - - - 004 2103 4174
Equty-seted share opon amangements YREEE BRERS: 3 = - - 94443 - - - - - - 24443 B UM
Trensfer ofshae opon fesee upon e fpse of 1§
share opons SRERELE - - = (1,508) = = = = = 1505 = = =
Shae o asonee resene HMEBELT 2 R = - - 59,114 - - - - - - 59,114 - 59,114
Captel contbuonsrecved from frERRER LER
1on-contoling sharefioders ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ B ~ 83602 83640
Dicdend paid o non-conoling shreholders AEERRENSCRE - - - - - - - - - - - (47.357) (47.3%57)
A5 at 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023
44021 1,128,095 810,621 246,288* (300,326 " (114,582 B4 5718812 7993175 3006063 1099228
Loss for e year il - = = = = = = = = = (118.99) (118.990) (327,708) [446,696)
Otercompehensie ncome{oss) for te e ERAfEENE/ (B8)
Exchangs diferences on ensaion of foreign operaions @%EM}%ZE%%&E - - - - (287 551) - - - - - 087551 50523 228.08)
Efecthe porionofchanges in far vl of RERENNATEREH
cash flow edges EM% - - - - - - 208 - - - (208 7914 9958
St ofoer comprenensie os of & associae HE-ERELTZ A
= - - - - 3 - - - - - 783 - (153
Crange i veoe of francid assts e tvough - BBEMAEWERATEHEZ
ol compehensie come IREEZATEED - - - - - ] - - - - ] - ]
Recesfiaton adusment o ubsidaes an REFERHHELAR
Joint venres deregitred durg e year AELEHENAESE - - - - 2.980) - - - (102 - (3062 - 306
Relase o exchengeresrve upon isposel and REERBEHERRARR
deemed disposel o subsdares BRELRBEE = - - - 1897 - - - - - 1897 - 1897
Actuaal los on pension chemes BReHHZERER = = = = = = = (153647) - - (153647) (137.420) (291,067)
Toal comprehensive incomel(oss) for theyear ~ ER2ENE/ (5%8) B8 - - - - ] o (153640 (0 (18%%) 13517
Hoguition ofnon-contollng inferests WEFARER - - - - 30567 - 828) 9301 - 14479 (1,360,029)
Disose ofsusides HEHEAF - - - - - - - - - - - [7.755)
Share s upon greris of shar optons BREENERETZRR 2093 300 - 8074 - - - - - - 8048 -
iy st share opton arangements MRBEE 2 BRERS k] - - - 7383 - - - - - - 738 -
Transer ofshare opon esenve upon e pseof share.—— ABRBER B
aptons SRERELE - - - (5,09) - - - - - 50% - - -
St of asaits resene HEMELE 2 B - - - 38015 - - - - - - 3,015 - 3015
Captal contbuonsreeived from M RRRRRZ HER
non-conoling shareholders - - - - - - - - - (58,692) (56,692 113,561 54,859
Transer o tatuory resene BETITEE - - - - - - - - 8314 8314) s = =
A at 31 December 2023 KZBZ=ZE+2R=+-A 46114 1,162,124 810,621 218 516" (550,126]" 8y (15617 (168,928 33623 5,682,711 1719127 1337303 9,036,430

- These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$6,422,392,000 - ZEREROEFEVERRIERA Z 4
(2022: HK$6,698,533,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. S E#E#6,422,392,0008 T (ZE - =
6,698,533,000% 7T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
.»7r = iﬁﬁ/ﬁ%ﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE_E_=F+_B=+—HLFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B =% FHET TET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING SEEBZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI ENER], (B518) (556,159) 871,151
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs FURCID RN 6 129,996 57,802
Share of profits less losses of DMEBMEND REEREY
associates and joint ventures AR e 1R (527,190) (543,322)
Deemed dilution gain on decrease of interest 78/ — R B & A B 2
in an assaciate EEZAFEEEREA 5 - (7,016)
Interest income ] EUA 5 (57,385) (24,528)
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment KREYEZ NTFEEFE
properties () 13 2,900 (10,600)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial asset FERBERRAFETEZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEEATEEE
(W %) 5 - 46,103
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial ~ $TEM#F LB Z AV {EEE
instruments (W E) 5 34,409 (23,039)
Provision for inventories FEEE 7 78,087 47,037
Gain on bargain purchases ZEWE WG 5 = (956,346)
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELE—FENBARZ
Wz 5 (2,917) —
Net gain from early termination and IR IERBEIEE 2
modification of lease Y & F ER 5 (27,503) (4,152)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEYEFWEK
plant and equipment Bl Ei= bt 5 12,571 8,553
Loss from disposal of intangible assets HEBEEEZEE 5 2,314 6,142
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT ZER 5 254 -
Depreciation e 12 639,186 400,295
Amortisation of intangible assets HE B E N 14 174,876 99,417
Impairment on intangible assets | E E 2 HE 14 - 64,837
Write-off of other payables R L i 8 1 TR 1B 5 = (16,7495)
Impairment loss on financial assets — net A EEZ BERIEF2E 7 57,822 4617
Impairment on property, plant and ME- -BMERKREZHE
equipment 12(A) 121,523 64,285
Impairment on right-of-use assets FREBSEZRE 2(B) 439,630 276,756
Equity-settled share option expenses LIRS HEEE 2 R RS 7 7,383 24,443
529,797 385,690
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERL G 629,422 (292,838)
Decrease in trade debtors and FEE AT AR 0 e P A 22 4 Ul
bills receivable 51,801 30,468
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other  FB{T FRIE S K H Mt FE UL
receivables FRIE R D 53,921 181,379
Decrease in derivative financial instruments 74 BA %5 T & /> 28,448 =
Increase in other non-current assets EMIERENE E L 0 (7,000) =
Decrease in trade, bills and FEERF RN EIR R EM
other payables R A< R IE R (583,790) (84,175)
Decrease in contract liabilities sSHNaERD (12,474) (19,073)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals FESTE R, (R 119,123 (6,200)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income EIEYT AL D, GRLZ) 290 (1,087)
Increase in provision B IE N 7,425 4,390
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilites E M RENEEE 0, GA) (57,306) 36,741
Employer contribution on defined benefit schemes 53 X & #1512 &8 I 3k (5,119) (39,551)
Cash generated from operations EEEFMERE 754,538 195,744
Income tax paid BfER (122,647) (120,836)
Net cash flows generated from SEEHMERE
operating activities e FEE 631,891 74,908
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 428 IRE£RER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE_EB_=F+_A=+—HILEE

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i M3 5E FHET TET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREZHZHAERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from associates BEWBME AT ZKE 15 273,746 167,929
Interest received S \ 57,510 21,348
Decrease in bank deposits with maturity EFRABE={EA ZR1TFENR
period over three months DA 1,108 =
Increase in restricted bank balances PR ) 14 $R 17 45 BR 38 10 (167,904) (12,630)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE -BEREKEZ
plant and equipment P18 ;18 21,034 6,819
Net payment from disposal and deemed HERGIELHENBATZ
disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash TRIEHEE (R E) (4,867) -
Net proceeds from disposal of held-forsale  HEFRFIFHEEE Z FT1ERE
assets FER ‘ - 183,122
Purchases of items of property, BEYE BENKZKEBEER
plant and equipment (216,068) (183,409)
Purchases of intangible assets BEETSE (336,661) (93,987)
Prepayment for the acquisition of property W B4 25 2 TA 1 =18 = (48,360)
Payment for additional investment in BN E—BHE AR 2
an associate TIA 15 (17,398) —
Acquisition of subsidiaries, g /NE]
net cash (paid)/acquired (kg (B /BEWER®) (9,033) 928,631
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) RELFIE, FRA) 2
investing activities == DE | (398,533) 969,463
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEHZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders [ 3F 3% B% BG B R 35 2 1G B = (47,357)
Interest paid BNFE 22 (66,268) (7,070)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings HMIRTERFIERE 22 2,444,810 900,605
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares R EETERETEER
upon exercise of share options FTig I8 28,048 41,747
Payment of lease liabilities HESEZEUR (702,286) (374,389)
Repayment of bank borrowings BIRIBITEM 22 (2,577,965) (1,109,294)
Capital contribution received from PEIEPERR AR R W ER 2 KB B
non-controlling shareholders 54,859 5,776
Acquisition of non-controlling interest W IR IR 38 (1,084,660) =
Net cash flows used in financing activities MESBMARES REFE (1,903,462) (589,982)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HeRESZEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS @, GRsL) $%8 (1,670,104) 454,389
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FE4)IR £ MIBEFEY 2,930,189 2,529,663
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ SMNEEPE R &4 &) » 52 25 28 10,177 (53,863)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRERFEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 1,270,262 2,930,189
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HERHREEEBMERDSH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances other than time EHH?SZ—’XL,WI\Z
deposits IRE MIiR1T4ER 22 800,408 1,561,063
Non-pledged time deposits with original FEREISHBELR=EAZ
maturity of less than three months JER IR EHRE R 22 480,904 1,413,740
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the ~ iz & M FEik i = vk~
consolidated statement of financial position _ B R B & F{EY) 1,281,312 2,974,803
Less: Bank overdraft CIRTTHB Y 27 (11,050) (44,614)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the Jii‘??é.‘ BERESRIEKRZ
consolidated statement of cash flows RBEXRIFSEEY 1,270,262 2,930,189

The notes on pages 1671 to 275 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the ordinary shares of which are listed on the Main Board. During the year, the
Company transferred listing from GEM to the Main Board, and the dealing in the
shares of the Company on the Main Board were commenced on 27 June 2023.

Principal activities
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) were involved in the
following principal activities:

° design and development, branding and sales of multi-brand apparel and
footwear; and

° management and operation of sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating
rinks and management and operation of e-sports clubs, coordination of sports
events and sports-related marketing services.

Li Ning Company Limited (“Li Ning Co”), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed on the Main
Board (stock code: 2331), is an associated company of the Group, whose
principal activities include brand development, design, manufacture, sale and
distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment and accessories in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

These financial statements are presented in HK$, unless otherwise stated.

e M ImRRME

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

1. ATEH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations (“HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements also include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules governing the listing of securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for the following:

° certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) and investment property — measured at fair value; and

° assets classified as held-for-sale — measured at lower of the carrying
amount and fair value less cost to sell; and

° defined benefit pension plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 3.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@) New and amended stanaaras adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time
for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction and International Tax
Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRS for the year ended 31 December
2023 has had no material impact on the amounts reported in these consolidated
results and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated results.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Continued)

(b)  New standard issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that

are not mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting period and have not been

early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to have a material

impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods.

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated

from the date of acquisition, being the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset and liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

2. EXEHHRHE@®

22 BHEBRRIREEH (@)

b) ERMERKRENZFZTER
ETHEI S ERRZ2RERM RN
T —F+-A=+—HHRESHABEHEKRR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

(@  Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts

payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of

exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being

the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent

financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is

classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial

liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value

recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group's accounting policies.

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not

control. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of

accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,

and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's

share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s

investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the

acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the

cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s

identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it

has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

When the most recently available financial statements of an associate is different
from the Group's reporting date, the Group may take advantage of the provision
contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the attributable share
of associate’s results based on the financial statements drawn up to a non-
coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than three
months. Adjustments shall be made for the effects of significant transactions or
events that occur between that date and the date of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in an associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is not individually
tested for impairment. Accounting policies of the associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case,

the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profits less losses of associates and joint ventures' in
the profit or loss.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the
profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment primarily consist of buildings, leasehold

improvements, machinery and office equipment, furniture and fixtures, and

motor vehicles. They are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any

impairment losses. Freehold lands are stated at cost less impairment losses.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the

item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or l0ss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold lands
Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Not depreciated

2% 10 5%

6.7% to 33% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

3% to 33.3%

5% to 33.3%

9% to 33.3%

Machinery and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Where parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the

carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other income and other gains — net’ in
the profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

(@)  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, represents the excess of

the consideration transferred over the Group'’s interest in net fair value of the

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair

value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups
of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Impairment reviews of goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries are
undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value
at the date of acquisition. When determining the useful lives of such intangible
assets, the Group generally takes into consideration (i) the estimated period during
which such asset can bring economic benefits to the Group, (i) the estimated
useful lives of similar assets disclosed by comparable companies in the market,
and (iil) legal factors which impact the period over which the entity controls access
to these economic benefits. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is

an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continuea)

(b)  Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually

either individually or at the CGU level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.

The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to

determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If

not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted

for on a prospective basis.

Trademarks and licensing right and membership

Separately acquired trademark and licensing right and membership are shown

at historical cost. Trademarks and licensing right and membership acquired

in business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Trademarks and licensing right and membership that have finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks and licensing right and membership over their estimated useful lives.

Operating rights

Acquired operating rights are shown at historical cost. Operating rights acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They
have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of operating rights over their estimated useful lives
of 15 to 20 years.

League qualification

League qualification has definite useful life and is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. It is initially measured

at fair value of the consideration given to acquire at the time of the acquisition.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
league qualification over its estimated useful life of 9 years.

Players’ registration rights

The costs associated with the acquisition of players registrations are capitalised
as intangible assets at the fair value of the consideration payable, including

an estimate of the fair value of any contingent consideration. Subsequent
reassessments of the amount of contingent consideration payable are also
included in the cost of the individual’s registration. This assessment is carried out
on an individual basis. The costs are amortised over the period covered by the
individual's contract of 1 to 3 years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Software

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense

as incurred.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique software products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible

assets where the following criteria are met.

° it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for
use

° management intends to complete the software and use or sell it
° there is an ability to use or sell the software

° it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future
economic benefits

° adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the software are available, and

° the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be
reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from
the point at which the asset is ready for use.

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life using the straight-
line method over the following periods.

o Trademarks and licensing right and membership  2-20 years

° Operating rights 15-20 years
° League qualification 9 years

° Players’ registration rights 1-3 years

° Software 3-10 years
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the

date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also
included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and
security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments
based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received

° any initial direct costs, and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset's useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, which extended the practical expedient to

lease payments that were due on or before 30 June 2022,

The amendment provides an optional practical expedient allowing lessees to
elect not to assess whether a rent concession related to COVID19 is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may account for qualifying rent
concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications.

The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions
are met;

o the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due on or before 30
June 2022; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets
not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Hedge accounting

Cash flow hedges

The Group designates forward exchange contracts as hedging instruments in
respect of foreign currency risk in cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship
between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk, which is when the hedging relationships meet all of the following
hedge effectiveness requirements:

° There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the
hedging instrument;

o The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result
from that economic relationship; and

° The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting
from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group actually hedges and the
quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that
quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement
relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management objective for that designated
hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the
hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying
criteria again.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Hedge accounting (Continuead)

Cash flow hedges (Continued)

The Group designates the full change in the fair value of a forward exchange

contract (i.e. including the forward elements) as the hedging instrument for all of

its hedging relationships involving forward exchange contracts.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the forward exchange
contracts that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserve, limited to the
cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
profit or loss within other income and other gains — net. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or
loss. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of
a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
removed from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the
non-financial asset or non-financial liability. This transfer does not affect other
comprehensive income. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the
forecast transaction is no longer highly likely to occur in the future, that amount is
considered ineffective, and immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average cost method. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the

profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@  Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured

at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

(b)  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at

the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments

in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continuea)

(b)  Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected

to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based

on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Revenue and other income

Revenues are recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or services is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the business model, terms of the
contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods and services may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods and services is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation, depending
on the nature of the good and service to be transferred, is measured based

on one of the following methods that best depicts the Group's performance in
satisfying the performance obligation:

° direct measurements of the value of individual services transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

° the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

If contracts involve the sale of multiple goods, goods followed by related services,

or multiple services, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance

obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone

selling prices are not directly observable, they are estimated based on expected

cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach, depending on the

availability of observable information.

When either party to a contact has performed, the Group presents the contract
in the statement of financial position as a contract asset or a contract liability,
depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the
customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services that the Group has transferred to a customer. Contract assets and assets
arising from costs to obtain or fulfil a contract that are recognised in accordance
with HKFRS 15. The Group uses practical expedients to recognise the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred as the amortisation
period of the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one year or
less.

If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers a good or service

to the customer, the Group presents the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is made. A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration from the
customer.

A recelvable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for the principal revenue
streams of the Group:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when control of the goods has been transferred to
the buyer, which is upon the acceptance of the goods in an amount equal to the
contract sales prices less estimated sales allowances for sales returns.

(b)  from providing services including integrated sports content production

and distribution, sports talent management, community development consultancy
service and sports park facilities and ice-skating rinks hiring, in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue

is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to be provided because the customer
receives and uses the benefits simultaneously;
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the

Group is a principal if it obtains control through one of the following way:

o Control the good or services before it transfers to the customers;

° Has the ability to direct another party to provide the service to the customer
on the entity’s behalf; or

° Providing a significant service of integrating services and obtains control
of the inputs to the specified good or service and directs their use to create the
combined output that is the specified good or service.

If control is not clear, the Group will analyse the three indicators (1) who is the
primary obligator; (2) who has the inventory risk and (3) who has the discretion in
establishing the price to assist the analysis of control. Sometimes, control are not
always clear and judgement are need in analysis of whether the Group is principal
or agent.

If the Group is principal, revenue will be recognised at the ‘gross’ amount paid
by the customer for the specified good or service and record a corresponding
expense for the commission or fee that it has to pay to any agent, in addition

to the direct costs of satisfying the contract. If as an agent, revenue will be
recognised net of the commission or fee earned for facilitating the transfer of the
specified goods or services (the ‘net" amount retained).

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease terms.

Sale of gift vouchers

Revenue from the sale of gift vouchers is initially recognised as a liability to the
customer. This is released to revenue as the vouchers are redeemed. An element
of breakage is recognised upfront on gift voucher sales based on historical data.
The value of unexpired gift cards is not considered to be material.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange for dissimilar products, the

Group recognises all of the following:

(@)  revenue for the transferred products in the amount of consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled (therefore, revenue would not be
recognised for the products expected to be returned);

(b)  arefund liability; and

(c)  anasset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) for its right to
recover products from customers.

Loyalty scheme

The Group operates loyalty programmes wherein customers earn points based
upon the amount spent on purchases of products, which can be redeemed for gift
vouchers once a specified number of points is attained. Points issued represent

a separate performance obligation providing a material right. The portion of the
total transaction price allocated to the points is determined based on the value

of the points to the customer when redeemed, adjusted for expected redemption
rates or breakage. The consideration related to points earned is deferred and
recognised as a contract liability. Revenue is recognised as the earned vouchers
are redeemed by the customers.

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the net fair value
gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as part of other
income and other gains-net.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

Royalty income
Royalty income is recognised on a time proportion basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable

assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all

attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit
or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Employee benefit

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options or shares granted on
grant day:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's share
price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or holding shares for a specified period of
time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that

are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds

received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal valug) and share premium when the options are exercised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where shares are forfeited due to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service

conditions, any expenses previously recognised in relation to such shares are

reversed and effective from the date of the forfeiture. Where the options are

expired after the vesting period, any share option reserves previous recognised

in relation to such shares would be transferred to accumulated losses or retained

earnings.

Pension plans

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. In countries where there

is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included

in finance cost-net in the statement of profit or loss. Remeasurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as
past service costs.

The Group operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined
benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

- The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the mainland
China are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
schemes. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.

- The Group operates pension schemes in the UK and US including defined
benefit and defined contribution sections. Detalils are referred to Note 18.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

31 December 2023 —E_=F#+"HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continuead)

Pension plans (Continued)

— The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong, namely the
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”), for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5%
of the employees’ relevant income with a maximum monthly contribution
of HK$1,500 per employee are made by each of the employer and the
employees. The employer contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions
of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries are made by the employer and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the ORSO Scheme. The rates of contributions made by the
employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary of each employee at the
discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme
prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting fully,
the ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be reduced by the
relevant amount of forfeited contributions. The assets of the MPF and ORSO
Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

— The Group’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident
Fund Scheme, which is a contribution plan established by the Central
Provident Fund Board in Singapore.

Foreign currency translation

(@  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency borrowings
used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currency transiation (Continuea)

(b)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost

in foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

translation dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the translations. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire

interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a

subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint

control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal

involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign

operation), all of the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in

respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated currency translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Other accounting policies

Besides the material accounting policies as described above, the Group has
also adopted other accounting policies in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. See below for the summary of other potentially material
accounting policies.

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill,

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligation of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are

eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised

losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an

impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have

been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, has been identified as the management that makes
strategic decisions.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
interest under an operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at

fair value, representing open market value determined at each reporting date
with reference to valuation report where applicable. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset.

Property under construction or development for future use as an investment
property is classified as investment property under construction. If the fair value
cannot be reliably determined, the investment property under construction will be
measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or construction
is completed.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the profit or loss as part of a valuation
gain or loss in ‘other income and other gains — net’. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or 10ss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and those to be measured at amortised
cost. The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

31 December 2023 —E_=F#+"HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-

date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. At initial

recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case

of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction

costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

o Amortised cost; Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain

or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or
oss.

° Fair value through profit & loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value through profit & loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit & loss is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

° Fair value through other comprehensive income: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from

the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For further details on the Group's accounting policies for management of financial
assets, see Note 41 credit risk.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency
contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income
and later reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Perpetual Convertible Bonds

Perpetual Convertible Bonds issued by the Group gives holders the right to
convert these Perpetual Convertible Bonds into a fixed number of the Company’s
ordinary shares at any time at a fixed exercise price per share, subject to
adjustments as provided in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The Perpetual
Convertible Bonds have no maturity date and are not redeemable. They are
treated as equity instruments and are not remeasured in subsequent years.
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

Trade debtors and bills receivable and other receivables

Trade debtors and bills receivable are amounts due from customers for goods sold

and services rendered in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade

debtors and bills receivable and other receivables is expected in one year or less,

they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade debtors and bills receivable are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
debtors and bills receivable with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 20 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade debtors and bills receivable and Note 41 for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and other short term highly
liquid investments with maturity of three months or less, less bank overdrafts,
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank borrowings in current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

() Impairment of gooawill and intangible assets

Indefinite life intangible assets and goodwill are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Both
calculations require the use of estimates. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. In estimating the value in use of
assets, various assumptions, including future cash flows to be associated with the
non-current assets (such as future sales forecast, expected capital expenditure
and working capital requirements) and discount rates, are made. If future events
do not correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable amounts will need to
be revised, and this may have an impact on the Group’s results of operations or
financial position.

The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU with goodwill. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs with goodwill have been determined based on
value in use calculation which use cash flow projections or fair value less costs
of disposal calculation which use valuation technigue such as enterprise value-to-
sales model. These cash flow projections are derived from the approved business
plan which has a forecast covering a period of 5-10 years and have incorporated
necessary updates. The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations or
fair value less costs of disposal calculation are set out in Note 14. The carrying
amounts of the Group's goodwill as at 31 December 2023 were HK$43,606,000
(2022: HK$44,732,000).
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(1) Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting period in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in Note 2.3. This requires an estimation of the value in
use and fair value less cost of disposal of the asset. Estimating the value in use
for the impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the asset using key assumptions such as the estimated future store
performance, economic environment and the sales growth rate and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amounts of the Group's property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2023 were HK$1,558,432,000 (2022:
HK$1,382,750,000) and HK$968,098,000 (2022: HK$1,249,135,000),
respectively. For details, please refer to Notes 12(A) and Note 12(B).

(i) Provision for inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at the end
of each reporting period, and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The assessment
of the provision amount involves management judgements and estimates by
considering historical sales patterns and expected subsequent sales based

on internal budgets and certain market factors. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate, such differences will
have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and provision charge/
writeback in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition,
physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in order
to determine whether provision needs to be made in respect of any obsolete
inventories identified. Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period and is satisfied that sufficient provision for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories has been made in the consolidated financial statements.
The carrying amount of the Group's inventories as at 31 December 2023 was
HK$3,321,449,000 (2022: HK$4,061,130,000). For details, please refer to
Note 19.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(iv)  Income taxes and deferred taxation
The Group is subject to income taxes in United Kingdom (“UK") and United States
of America (“USA"), Hong Kong, mainland China, and elsewhere in which the
Group operates. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are recognised when management considers it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses. When the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and taxation charges
in the period in which such estimate is changed.

(v)  Valuation for aefined benefit pension plan obligation

The defined benefits obligations is determined using actuarial valuations. The
actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, rates of
inflation and mortality rates.

Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and the long-
term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.
In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest
rates of corporate bonds in the respective currency. For details, please refer to
Note 18.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management is the Group’s chief operating decision-maker. The management
reviews the Group's internal reports periodically in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

The management considers the business from a product/service perspective. The
management separately considers the different products and services offered, and
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group is organised into
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  the multi-brand apparel and footwear segment engages in design and
development, branding and sales of apparel and footwear consumables; and

(b)  the sports experience segment engages in management and operation of
sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks and management and operation
of e-sports clubs, coordination of sports events and sports-related marketing
SErvices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance

assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss before income tax.

The adjusted profit or loss before income tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit or loss before income tax, with interest income, fair value changes
in investment property and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, gain
on bargain purchase, gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary, deemed dilution
gain on decrease of interest in an associate, equity-settled share option expenses,
impairment on financial assets and intangible assets — net, share of profits less

losses of associates and joint ventures, finance costs, as well as corporate and
other unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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Multi-brand
apparel and Sports
footwear experience Total
BE-Z-=
Year ended 31 December 2023 +ZB=t—-HLEE % mIBER BEHRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TEr TEn
Segment revenue: DK
External 4hEp 10,681,963 537,453 11,219,416
Segment results NHEE (766,992) 20,562 (746,430)
Reconciliation: LI
Interest income IV N 57,385
Fair value loss on investment property RENMEZATEER (2,900)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZER (254)
Galn on deemed disposal of a subsiciary REHE—RRBAR 2 &G 2917
Equity-settled share option expense MRESE 2 BRERS (7,383)
Impairment loss on financial assefs — net MRBEZAERERR (67,822)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses rEREMRI RS (198,866)
Share of profits less losses of associates and joint ventures ~ MEME AT REELE 2 BHHER 527,190
Finance costs - net BN (129,996)
Loss before income fax PR R RAI (956,159)
Other segment information: Hitn &N
Depreciation & 607,951 22,551 630,502
Add: depreciation related to corporate i BE£EE7NE 8,684
639,186
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment NE BRERZEZEERS 215,271 9,508 224,779
Add: capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment 11 : B EE W%  BERF
related to corporate ZEXRER 306,226
531,005
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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Multi-brand
apparel and Sports
footwear experience Total
BE_E_C
Year ended 31 December 2022 +ZA=+-HLEE SmiaER EBRh st
HK$'000 HK$‘000 HK$‘OOO
TET THET THT
Segment revenue: EE
External M 6,399,546 500,844 6,900,390
Segment results PEER (309,861) (17,800 (327,661)
Reconciliation: R
Interest income GIEYON 24,528
Fair value gain on investment property RENEZ AT ERR 10,600
Fair value loss on financial assets at EREGHRATENEL
fair value through profit or loss MBBEEATESE (46,103)
Gain on bargain purchases ZERER R 956,346
Deemed dilution gain on decrease of interest in an assoclate JE/D —RiMtE AT 2 R EE 2 BIE
gElE 7,016
Equity-setfled share option expense DURTEAEE 7 B ER S (24 443)
Impaiment on intangible asses BRBEZHE (64,837)
Impaiment loss on financial assets  net HBEEZRERETE (4.617)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses PEREMKERY (145,198)
Share of profits less losses of associates and joint ventwres ~ AMEBE AT R A E ¥ 2 EHHER 543,322
Finance costs — net HBMATE (57,802)
Proftt before income tax PRA SR ETER 871,151
Other segment information: Hit A HER
Depreciation b= 367,072 30,416 397488
Add: depreciation refated to corporate I BEEBREZIE 2,807
400,295
Capital expendiure on property, plant and equipment NE -BERZEZERES 171,038 13,113 184,151

Add: capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment
related o corporate

m:BEEER2NE BERRE
ZEEREX
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184,252
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no customer contributed
more than 10% of total revenue.

Geographic information

The Group's revenue from external customers and non-current assets other than
interests in associates and joint ventures, derivative financial instruments and
deferred tax assets, by geographical location, are detailed below:
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2023 2022
—EZ=H —EICH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
i) Revenue from external customers i) REIIHEEZWE
UK and Republic of Ireland (“ROI") HE & ZF LM
(TEWMBEEME) 3,846,069 2,327,041
America =M 4,537,550 2,415,651
The PRC (including Hong Kong and Macau) FE (BiEEERREM) 1,976,881 1,667,244
Asia (Other than the PRC and Middle East) T (PR R ERLAGN) 479,355 294,344
Euro, the Middle East and Africa (“EMEA’) BUMN~ AR B JEMN(TBRIEER)) 379,561 196,110
Total 4mst 11,219,416 6,900,390
ii) Non-Current Assets i) IERENEE
UK and ROI TR K B R A0 B 1,956,916 2,000,530
America ZM 1,041,803 1,308,544
The PRC (including Hong Kong and Macau) FE (BEEERERM) 1,034,771 1,039,488
Asia (Other than the PRC and the Middle East) T (B K R ERLUSM 107,498 100,047
EMEA BRIERER 31,104 73,286
Total 4mst 4,172,092 4,521,895
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31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSS) - 5. Y HthWwARHEM
NET W~ (§518) /348
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and other gains/(loss) — net are AEB WG HtWA R Etiim, (B518)
as follows: BT
2023 2022
—EC=HE —EZCE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FET TET
Revenue I &=
Sales of goods HEESR 10,625,565 6,362,315
Sports content production and distribution BEANSRIMERETIRA
income 253,304 238,116
Sports park facilities and ice-skating rinks BERE&MABKEZHEEW
hiring income and other service income AR E AR FE U A 210,178 203,855
Royalty income EHEWA 76,775 57,050
Sports team management income BEAEBREAEEEWA 40,206 28,579
Community development consultancy 1 & ERE AR WA
service income 8,275 2,597
Gross rental income FH & U A 4828 5,113 7,884
11,219,416 6,900,390
At a point of time TR bR 10,625,565 6,362,315
Overtime Vi BF RS 593,851 538,075
11,219,416 6,900,390
Other income Hnug A
Interest income B U A (a) 57,385 24,528
Government grants BT 48 By 50,848 52,895
Others Hh 25,141 20,598
133,374 98,021
Other gains/(loss) — net Hihks ~ (B518) F %8
Deemed dilution gain on decrease of B —EEE AR 2 R EE
interest in an associate ZREE B R 15 - 7,016
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative financial ~ #7&EM#E TEZ
instruments NEEWT (E518) 17 (34,409) 23,039
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment property R E ¥ 2 AFEWER
(E548) 13 (2,900) 10,600
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value EiBIBHIZAFE2E 2
through profit or loss VHREEZ AFEEIE = (46,103)
Gain on bargain purchases ZBUWE WS - 956,346
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELE—BRBARZ W 2,917 -
Foreign exchange 10ss bE 1R (8,363) (31,663)
Net gain from early termination and AR IEREEIREZ
modification of leases Y 3 0% KB 12(B) 27,503 4,152
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME -BEMSKEZEIE
equipment R (12,571) (8,553)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HEBTESEZHE (2,314) (6,142)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBRBZEE (254) -
Write-off of other payables 3t EL A FE (S FRIE - 16,745
Others Hh 14 186
(30,377) 925,623
102,997 1,023,644
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSS) -

NET (CONTINUED)
Note:

(a) Total interest income on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost for the
year was HK$57,385,000 (2022: HK$24,528,000 at amortised cost).

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with

5. Uad ~ H U A R HAth
. W (B548) B8R (@
@) SRR A A B IS E A RER S

I A 57,385,000 70 (ZF - Z4F © BN x
24,528,000% 7T) ©

MENB AR RS
AEBERIENMIEATRENERNER:

customers:

2023 2022
—EF= —F=Z

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Contract liabilities — receipts in advance HBHEE—-FARE 110,082 109,232
Contract liabilities — customer loyalty programme EHNEE-FF F'E\uﬁjz}*%Jr%'J 6,372 19,885
116,454 129117

Note:

Revenue recognised during the year that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year was HK$93,470,000 (2022: HK$97,027,000).

As at 31 December 2023, included in contract liabilities was an amount of
HK$2,802,000 (2022: HK$2,887,000) received from associates, which is based
on normal commercial terms offered by the Group to major customers.

6. FINANCE COSTS — NET

MIsE :

HAEVESHNABGEHR 2 ENCBRIKE A
93,470,000 7T (ZE = =4 . 97,027,000 7T) °
A TE_=ZF+-_BA=+—H BBEQ
T EY 2 2R 182,802,000 T (ZE -4
2,887,000 7T) et A EE JH:ME}F
AEERAFERRRH EEHEKEAE

E o

6. MBEHNAFE

2023 2022
—F= —F-Z

Notes HK$°000 HK$ 000

N B 5 F#ET FABT

Interest on bank borrowings RTERFE 77,300 20,864

Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNER B 12(B) 87,663 50,229
Net interest income on the defined AREBAEE 2 F) WA FEE

benefits schemes 18 (34,967) (13,291)

129,996 57,802
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31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRERfEREILEF (E518)

The Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NEBZRMERAGER, (BB J5&N
Br Gt A) TEIRIBER :

2023 2022
—EC=HE —EZCE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &% FET TFABT
Cost of sales HE R A
— Cost of inventories sold —BEEFERE 5,622,269 3,326,493
— Provision for inventories —GFEEE 78,087 47,037
— Cost of services provided — PR AR 75 A A 388,801 366,271
Depreciation of praperty, plant and equipment #13 ~ R B K5 T & 12(A) 189,853 125,314
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 12(B) 449,333 274,981
Amortisation of intangible assets EEE#HE 14 174,876 99,417
Auditor's remuneration 1% 2 6T B <=
— audit and audit-related services — 12 B e 7% B R AR 75 26,207 27,036
— non-audit services —IEZEARTS 1,798 3,156
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ B 2 @A (BFEEE S
remuneration (Note 8)): (ff¥8)) -
— Wages and salaries —T&EKRF=E 2,086,612 1,272,307
— Equity-settled share option expenses —URRREE 2 B ERS 31 7,383 24,443
— Defined contribution retirement plans — E R FRIRETE 147,034 96,518
— Defined benefit scheme —RERAETE 18 8,221 5,367
Impairment loss on financial assets-net MR EEZ HERIEFEE 41 57,822 4617
Impairment on property, plant and equipment  #) 2~ BRE K 5% 6 2 BB 12(A) 121,523 64,285
Impairment on right-of-use assets FREEEZRE 12(B) 439,630 276,756
Impairment on intangible assets BB EZRE 14 - 64,837
Foreign exchange loss b 2 B5 18 5 8,363 31,663
Fair value loss on financial asset at fair value BBV HIZAFETE 2
through profit or loss MHREEZAFEEIE 5 - 46,103
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial ~ TEME TR Z AFE
instruments B8 (W) 5 34,409 (23,039)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERFEEEZEE 5 2,314 6,142
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT ZEE 5 254 -
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment REMEZ NFERE/
properties (W) %58 13 2,900 (10,600)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME -BERREZ
equipment Ei= PRt 5 12,571 8,553
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELE—FENB AR 2 Wam 5 (2,917) =
Gain on bargain purchases ZBEUWE WS 5 - (956,346)
Deemed dilution gain on decrease of AL —EBE AR 2 ERESL
interest in an associate ZREE B 5 - (7,016)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%
31 December 2023 —EB-=%+"HB=+—H
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEME

Directors’ remuneration for the year disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIBFEBATEAEI3MNER AT (HE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of EENmER) ROE2HBIFECFEES

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

M= :

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

\ FET FET

Fees wE 1,996 1,774

Other emoluments: HAE = -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind (including ~ #rs& “REF R BV @R (B

discretionary bonus) 15IEAT) 15,166 15,176

Equity-settled share option expenses DIRRHEE R 2 RS 3,492 8,243

Pension scheme contributions BREFHE RN 205 199

18,863 23,618

20,859 25,392

RAFEERBEFE EFTESFHEAR
EERERBMRBEARBBRESEE
SERE BRE—FPHFBHNRPBRE
MEE31 - ZEBREZ R T ERBRHES
M AR m s W HER L AEE
Mt AXFEMBRERZHBESFALX
FIRBEZEEMEA -

During the current and prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of

the Company, further details of which are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair values of such options, which have been recognised in profit
or loss over the relevant vesting period, were determined as at the respective
dates of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current
year are included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

SW
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31 December 2023 —E-_=F+_HB=+—H
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EFEM=E=w
An analysis of the directors’ remuneration, is as follows: EEMESMUT
Salaries, Equity-settled Retirement
allowances and Discretionary share option scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind Bonus expenses contributions remuneration
e R HREGEHZ BikE:E
ok RNER MBI R 3 &8st
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i FET FET FET FET FET FHET
2023 —Z-=f
Executive directors: WiTES:
M Li Ning FREL 200 10,538 - 177 18 10,933
Mr. Li Chunyang ZEBEE 200 927 - 1,010 169 2,306
Mr. Li Qifin FHBEE 200 3,236 465 505 18 4,424
600 14,701 465 1,692 205 17,663
Non-executive director: FERiTES
Mr. Victor Herrero Victor Herrerofe 4 200 - - 1,514 - 1,714
Mr. Ma Wing Man Bk ks 200 - - 151 - 351
Ms. Lyu Hong Bzt (a) 200 - - - - 200
600 - - 1,665 - 2,265
non BIUFFRTES:
Mr. Wang Yan TERE 250 - - 45 - 295
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin HE®RTE 250 - - 45 - 295
Mr. Li Qing ERkE 250 - - 45 - 295
Professor Cui Haitao EEEAR (b) 46 - - - - 46
79 - - 135 - 931
1,996 14,701 465 3,492 205 20,859
Salaries, Equity-settied Retirement
allowances and Discretionary share option scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind Bonus expenses contributions remuneration
e Rk MRREEY @W%@J
ik BYER FETEAL BRERS R B Hest
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o= FET FET FTERT FET FET FET
2022 —F-CF
Executive directors: BiTES:
Mr. Li Ning FEEE 200 11,866 = a7 18 12,501
Mr. Li Chunyang ZEREE 200 830 = 2,383 163 3,576
Mr. Li Qilin FHBEE 200 2,015 465 1,191 18 3,889
600 14711 465 3,991 199 19,966
Non-executive director: FniTES:
Mr. Victor Herrero Victor Herrero s 4 200 - - 3,574 - 3,774
Mr. Ma Wing Man Bk 200 = = 357 = 557
Ms. Lyu Hong Bt a) 24 - = = = 24
424 = = 3,931 = 4,355
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:
Mr. Wang Yan TSRS 250 - - 107 - 357
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin HERTE 250 - - 107 - 357
Mr, Li Qing b 250 - - 107 - 357
750 = = 321 = 1,071
1,774 14,711 465 8,243 199 25,392
Notes: [ e
(@  Ms. Lyu Hong was appointed on 18 November 2022. @ BAZTR_Z_F+—FB+/N\BEZ
fEo
(b)  Professor Cui Haitao was appointed on 26 October 2023. b BEEBBEERZZEZ="F+BZ+/,HE
HfEo
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no emoluments were paid by the gE_E_—F+_A=+—HLEE

Group to any of the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil). There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

(ZEBE-__F ) o = &
B=+t—BLEEER" ¢E5E7:“$Jiﬂz$12ﬂ
ERETMNEZZH (CE - _F:H)o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £ 5§

P AEEBEEEAEES S
U&%IHD)\YHDJ\Z&%E’Jﬁl%b‘kﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁfg

1E%S

199



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included two senior management
(2022: two), and these two senior management included one director (2022;
one), details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 8 above. Details of

the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2022: four) highest paid
individuals who are neither a director nor a chief executive of the Company are as

9. RaREHMAL

FALEEREHMALEEMLSREER
(ZZ-"F M) EMBsREER
FEE—RLEE(CEI2F —48)  Hil
BN EXWEEs FRHEERNR (T
T TF I 0R) FEARREFTHITHER

follows: ZEEHFMATZMESFBEOT
2023 2022
—EBC=HF —EBCHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYEF 46,411 47,926
Equity-settled share option expenses DS HEE 2 BRERS 3,006 8,956
Retirement scheme contributions BRI 652 371
50,069 57,253

The number of the non-director and non-chief executive highest paid individuals
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HINBUATHREZFEERIFTHBHZ
KoM AT Z AT :

Number of employees

EEAZ
2023 2022
—EZ= —EC-CF
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7 75 £6,500,00078 75 3 1
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 8,500,001 75 £9,000,00078 75 - 1

HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 75 £9,500,00078 7T -

HK$31,000,001 to HK$31,500,000 31,000,0017 7c £31,500,0007 7T 1 =
HK$32,500,001 to HK$33,000,000 32,500,001 7 75 233,000,000 7T - 1
4 4

In prior years, share options were granted to the non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid individuals in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid individuals remuneration disclosures.
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10. INCOME TAX

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

10. FR1GHR

2023 2022
—EC=HE —EZCE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B &% FET FTET
Current tax — Hong Kong FHRIE-—FE
Charge for the year FRZH 195 1,051
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEERE (6) (399)
Current tax — other jurisdictions FHRIE-HMBEEE
Charge for the year FRZH 111,330 89,043
Underprovision/(aver-provision) in prior years 3B 1E F E B 15
e/ (B (28,994) 6,465
Deferred tax IRERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary BB = BRI EE A A #E (o]
differences 28 (191,988) (98,020)
Income tax credit FRiSIRIR % (109,463) (1,860)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. The PRC
corporate income tax provision in respect of operations in the PRC is calculated
mainly based on the statutory tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof. UK corporate tax has been provided at the rate of
19% to 25% (2022: 19%), on the estimated assessable profits arising in UK. The
US corporate income tax provision is subject to US federal corporate income tax
at a rate of 21% (2022: 21%) and state income tax at rates range from 2.5%

t0 9.9% (2022: 2.5% t0 9.9%) to the extent of the apportioned profit. Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

The Group is within the scope of the OECD Pillar Two model rules. Pillar Two
legislation was enacted in Cayman Island, the jurisdiction in which the Group

is incorporated, and will come into effect from 1 January 2025. Under the
legislation, the Group is liable to pay a top-up tax for the difference between the
Global Anti-Base Erosion Proposal (‘GloBE) effective tax rate for each jurisdiction
and the 15% minimum rate. All entities within the group have an effective tax rate
that exceeds 15%.

ERFEREREANET BRI G5HE
SRR IR ZE16.5% (CF "5 1 16.5%)
BB o ﬁﬂtﬂ!%?‘wﬁzqﬂlmﬁﬁﬁ
BREGETEDNRBEMRABRBTEAR 28
%leféluﬁxﬁﬂa“m&u%m, 5F|JL,{25% (=
BT TF %) ZAEERESE o HE D E
MERNRERES Z Gt ERREN UK
KIQYE2%(C B —FE %) IR B ERH o %
BEFREREBEHEERA% (T
21%) T3 E B4 = B B FB 1> FE FRr 13 ﬁ’IﬁA
DA EAEE L2 5%FE.9% (ZE -
2.5%%F9.9%) MEMMMFTIFR o fﬁﬂﬂ
HEERER M ZRIE HIREAERZE
BIREFRERRBEEE 2 RTRES
%O

AEBRBKSEMATE SR RERANE
BN fE _ AR AER ML
A HEHEMERK IR _T A
E B—HEM Rz EH 2EBE
SEME I ERENEHRRRERR S E
(TGIOBE ) BEMEALS%REMEZ B
EREHMBMKREBE - AEBRNFAEEREN
BRREHBE15%
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H
10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

However, Pillar Two legislation has been enacted or substantively enacted in
certain jurisdictions that the Group operates in, with effect from 1 January 2024
i.e. the Clark Group. An assessment of the potential exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes of the Clark Group has been performed, and based on this assessment, the
Clark Group primarily operates in jurisdictions where Pillar Two effective tax rates
are higher than 15%. The Clark Group does not expect a significant exposure to
Pillar Two income taxes in respect of these jurisdictions. The remaining entities
incorporated in other jurisdiction are still being considered although at this stage
are not expected to materially change the position in the near future. The group
applies the exception to recognising and disclosing information about deferred
tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes, as provided in the
amendments to HKAS 12 issued in July 2023.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before income tax
for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax charge is as follows:

10. FRIGIR @

R E_EEPERETEREENT
WETFE AR (BiClarkEE) BHREE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ BE_Z_MFE—B—HEEM £&
EREHCakERNE X HEMMERNE®T
J—HZ L'TTD:F{E *EF%E%DZD:FTE C\ark%lﬂ?zz
Y_H__SEEEB;X%R SR 15%H B A & S
BoCarkEERBPIAEMZF EZHEBE
:E‘ZHFE SHERERRAR AEET®E
ZRTHMBEHER UNHEGER K
RERARAAGNAREAERARRFEEE
ARE-REFE_S_=—F+-AEHNES
Bt ERBI2RZEFTHRE > ~EBEA
PISMBRFERD RIKBERRASE X EER
NIELEREBEEEREBNEK -

RRBREKRBIMEREFTEREEEEE
BRANGRRFRAENZFTERASER
A HZHERMT ¢

2023 2022
—EZ=H —EICH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETISIRATIEF], (B518) (556,159) 871,151
At the statutory/applicable income tax rates of BAEB AR AT,/ BRRE
different jurisdictions MEHE (136,477) 85,901
Adjustments of deferred tax arising MEEEFELNELRIEAZE
from change of tax rates (18,959) (21,475)
Tax effect of profits less losses attributable to BE AR REELEEGEFIRE
associates and joint ventures BHRE R E (93,615) (91,079)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BARRMAZRBE R E (39,166) (236,329)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AR EE 2 R & 67,164 81,187
Under-provision/(aver-provision) in prior years BEFEEEBRE (BREEE) (29,000) 6,066
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REFREHEEZREZE 130,367 145,057
Tax effect of tax losses utilised EFRAREBEEREZRBEE (17,203) (7,449)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences AERERHEE I RBETE 27,591 36,426
Others Hih (165) (165)
Income tax credit FTiSiRE R (109,463) (1,860)
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. BTG REBEAEBGER
wF (E518)
HE_ S _=FkKk_ZE__F+_A
—+—HLEEZSERELRRF (5Bi8)
DIREBEAABDERFAE ABEEN RN,
(548) RERNBE BT EZER A S HERA T
BN#EFEHestE-o

BE_ ST _=—FKR_ZE__%+_HA
== E&EFZ:&%%%ﬂV’%E

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022 is based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable

to equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue and participating equity instruments during the years.

The calculation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 is based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company after adjustments to the dilutive effects of share of DIREARBEEFTE ABGERRRN,
profits in an associate arising from its potential ordinary shares; and the weighted (B518) (B E’TH/’%E TEREEXZDE—
average number of ordinary shares after adjustments for the effects of deemed F'ﬁ BE AT RN BB EERHAR) ; &
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares at no consideration 48 B 0 *& FEHE ( ERmRIEREA] %? g
at the beginning of the year. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the effect of ~ RBIT RN EHR 2L BT R BT I EBR &
the outstanding share options were not included in the computation of diluted loss 22 H A E) st & o %Z:n:_ = :_flf‘f— ﬁ
per share as they were anti-dilutive. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the —+—HLEFE BRERITENERE
effect of the outstanding share options were included in the computation of diluted BER#EENE RN EESREEEIE
eamnings per share as they were dilutive. B EST R RTEBREZFE-HE
B _F+_A=+—HLEFE -BR
18] K 17 {60 BY B AR A 2L 48 S8 20 FE > (R IE 7Y 5T
%E%T%ﬁ%%%‘J BB 5t M iE AR AT SR B R
2B

2023 2022
—EZ= —E_C

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the AR ESREARAN (B1E)

Company, used in the basic earnings/(loss) per ZHRABEETFTE ANEMHRF]

share calculation (HK$'000) / (B18) (FE7m) (118,990) 850,416
Adjustment to the share of profits in an associate K& T # B = @GR E &L

arising from its dilutive potential ordinary shares ﬁ'ﬁu BEME—EBE R T2

(HK$'000) wmA (FET) - (3,675)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the BARsTESREERN  (B1B)

Company, used in the diluted earnings/(loss) per . UN=IL =2 =DN A b v

share calculation (HK$'000) (518 (F8m) (118,990) 846,741
Number of ordinary shares EiEKR#E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in BAREESRELARRN (B1B)

issue and participating equity instruments used Z2BETEER NS HEKAR

in the basic earnings/(l0ss) per share calculation THRZMEFHE (TR

('000) 11,413,817 11,369,396
Equivalent dilutive shares arising from potential REBETEBRFAEEZEEER

ordinary shares ('000) B8 (TR - 92,293
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and BRI ESREBERT (B8

potential ordinary shares used in the diluted ZE B BB E S ER N

earnings/(10ss) per share calculation ('000) FHE (FR) 11,413,817 11,461,689
Basic earnings/(l0ss) per share (HK cents) SREARR (B18) B (1.04) 7.48
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) SREERY (BB B (1.04) 7.39
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31 December 2023 —E_=F+_HA=+—H

12(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12(A) ME-BERRZE

Leasehold
improvements, Machinery
Land and furniture and and office Motor
buildings* fixtures equipment vehicles Total
TR FEEMERE. 83 R A
g RAREE ERE RE st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET FET FET
31 December 2023 ZEZ=5+ZH=+—-H
At 1 January 2023: RZBE_=%—HF—H:
Cost (DN 761,691 531,415 291,642 5,259 1,590,007
Accumulated depreciation and impairment REMERRE (30,678) (85,376) (88,767) (2,436) (207,257)
Net book amount SR 731,013 446,039 202,875 2,823 1,382,750
Opening net book amount FYREEE 731,013 446,039 202,875 2,823 1,382,750
Additions RE 299,643 150,480 51,653 750 502,526
Disposal EE (907) (8,056) (26,081) - (35,044)
Depreciation charge ey (44,848) (101,014) (43,141) (850) (189,853)
Impairment A (36,385) (73,539) (11,599) - (121,523)
Currency translation differences ERERE 26,890 5,851 (13,111) (54) 19,576
Closing net book amount ERIEEEE 975,406 419,761 160,596 2,669 1,558,432
At 31 December 2023 RIZEZ=fF+"/A=+—H:
Cost (DN 1,080,414 624,313 290,832 5,948 2,001,507
Accumulated depreciation and impairment REtITERRE (105,008) (204,552) (130,236) (3,279) (443,075)
Net book amount BREFE 975,406 419,761 160,596 2,669 1,558,432
31 December 2022 —Z--H+-HB=+—-H
At 1 January 2022: RZZE__#—HF—H:
Cost (DN - 113,258 122,777 5,167 241,202
Accumulated depreciation and impairment KEtTERAE - (53,244) (65,534) (1,658) (120,436)
Net book amount IREFE - 60,014 57,243 3,509 120,766
Opening net book amount FYREFEE - 60,014 57,243 3,509 120,766
Acquisition of subsidiaries WREHT B AR 744,705 405,425 150,248 39 1,300,417
Additions RE 32,170 106,516 44,530 1,036 184,252
Disposal RE (2,363 (9,025) (3,175) (809) (15,372)
Depreciation charge TEE (17,335) (68,243) (39,030) (706) (125,314)
Impairment A (15,111) (47,841) (1333 - (64,285
Currency translation differences EREE (11,053) (807) (5,608) (246) (17,714)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 731,013 446,039 202,875 2,823 1,382,750
At 31 December 2022: RZB__H#+°"A=+—H:
Cost (DN 761,691 531,415 291,642 5,259 1,590,007
Accumulated depreciation and impairment R MERRE (30,678) (85,376) (88,767) (2,436) (207,257)
Net book amount REFE 731,013 446,039 202,875 2,823 1,382,750
Because of worse-than expected performance of directly-operated stores as a HREBE S =—FK_S__F+_8
result of challenging global retail market for the years ended 31 December 2023 —t+t—HEFEZ2KTSEMGERBHE
and 2022, the management of the Group considered that certain property, plan ENEHEENKRIFRMMBELES WAERE
and equipment were subject to impairment. BEIXAETYWE A2 EEEBBFFRRE-
- As at 31 December 2023, land and buildings include freehold land amounted to . RZEZ="F+ZHA=+—H> T &i&

HK$260.6 million (2022: HK$247.3 million).

TFE 273788 BT °

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

12(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
The management estimated the recoverable amounts of the CGUs as follows:

CGUs in relation to the property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

The recoverable amounts of the “bossini”, “bossini. X", “LNG", “lce-skating rinks”
and “Clarks” CGUs comprising from each store have been determined based on a
value in use calculation which was approved by the management using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining useful lives of the
respective items of property, plant and equipment. Key assumptions used for the
value in use calculation as at 31 December 2023 were as follows:

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

12(0) ME-BERRZE @
EEEGHRSELEUZ T IKREISEED
B

BERME -BERSBURERAEESEN
HEEEEN

Mbossini | ~ Mbossini.XJ ~ TLNG 1 ~ B kI8 &
[Clarks 1 IR & E A BN (AEEEHMAER) B9
OlEEEFERESEBHANIRERE
BAGTEHFREEEEE REeREEA
ERNRESVE BEAXFEEERTA
FRERAZHEBEFE R 2=
+_B=+—HstEEREEMXBZE
BREWT ¢

2023

—ECZE
“hossini” “hossini.X" “LNG” “Clarks”
CGUs GGUs GGUs CGUs
T hossini | ThossiniX | TLNG [Clarks |
REEFE( REELE( HEELEN REELE
Sales growth rate HERRX 0% 0% Note fff 5% 0%-20.8%
Gross margin rate EHE 24%-56% 13%-64% 60.3%-82.9% 37.4%-86.1%
Discount rate BRE 13%-14% 13%-14% 14% 9.6%

Note: Sales growth rates for “LNG" CGUs are from 8.4% to 43.4% for the year ending 31
December 2024, from 10% to 20% for the year ending 31 December 2025 and
5% for the year ending 31 December 2026 respectively.

Mizz: TINGIEBRESELEFBEMNHEE_ZT _MNE
+_B=+—HIEEENHEEEEX
A8ANEL3AY BE_E_RAE+_H
=+ HIEFEEMNHERERAI09E
20% MBE_Z-_E+_A=1+—
BIEEERHEEREZERE]A5%
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

12(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
CGUs in relation to the property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (Continued)

The management determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin
rate based on historical operation data and the expectation of future market
development.

Impairment provision on property, plant and equipment of HK$121,523,000
(2022: HK$64,285,000) was recognised for certain stores in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

@ Sensitivity analysis on the impairment assessment of "bossini” CGUs in
relation to the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

As at 31 December 2023, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December
2024 applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini” CGUs had been 10%
higher/lower, a lower of impairment charge of HK$4,597,000 or a higher of
impairment charge of HK$5,016,000, respectively would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2023, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection
for “bossini” CGUs had been 1% higher/lower, a higher of impairment charge

of HK$127,000 or a lower of impairment charge of HK$128,000, respectively
would be resulted.

(b)  Sensitivity analysis on the impairment assessment of "bossini. X" CGUSs in
relation to the property, plant and equipment and right-or-use assets

As at 31 December 2023, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December
2024 applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini.X" CGUs had been 10%
higher/lower, a lower of impairment charge of HK$2,466,000 or a higher of
impairment charge of HK$242,000, respectively would be resulted.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

12(A) M%E - -BER&HE @
ERMME - -BERRXEBEURCEHAEEEN
REELEM (@)
EEEREBTEEHERBHRAREKT R
LREBE CHMHEERRRENR

ETEHZYE - BEAKEBZRERSE
121,523,000 70 (ZZ2 Z 24 : 64,285,000%
oD ERBEE_E_=ZF#+"HA=+—H1L
FEZIEERNER

@) BEYE BERREUREFES
EEHYbossini ) BZ 52 ZE 4 B {7 i (B 57152
R E DT

RZE_=F+"B=+—H WHEBRR

Mhossini IS EXEBUZIEERE2BAZ

BHE_Z_NME+-_B=+—HILEFEEZ

TERISHE N, R 10% 0 1D B E R

B 581 4,597,0008 c o BB EBIE M

5,016,00078 7T ©

RIE_=F+"B=+—H WHEBRR
Mpossini IR ELEEMNZIRER=TEAZ
BRER RN 1% B0 B EBURE S
RE12 10127,00078 7T 34 6 (B == B8 8 210 128,000
BT

) BEYE BERREUREFES
BB bossini X | B2 £ BE 4 8 (i B 1B 5T 1
ZHRE DT

RIE_=F+"B=+—H WHEBRR

Mhossint X J IR EEBANZRERE7EA

ZHE_ZE_NFE+_B=+—HILEEFE

ZIERIEHEE M, R 10% 0 B B EBUR

B R 12,466,000 o Bl R B S 2B M

242,0007& 7T ©



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

12(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
CGUs in relation to the property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (Continued)
(b)  Sensitivity analysis on the impairment assessment of "bossini. X" CGUs
in relation to the property, plant and equipment and right-or-use assets
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2023, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection
for “bossini.X" CGUs had been 1% higher/lower, a higher of impairment charge of
HK$24,000 or a lower of impairment charge of HK$537,000, respectively would
be resulted.

(c)  Sensitivity analysis on the impairment assessment of “LNG” CGUs in relation
fo the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The respective assets that are subject to impairment under “LNG” CGUs are fully
impaired as at 31 December 2023.

(@) Sensitivity analysis on the impairment assessment of “Clarks” CGUS in
relation to the property, plant and equipment and right-or-use assets

As at 31 December 2023, if 0% sales growth rate applied to the cash flow
projection for “Clarks” CGUs a higher of impairment charge of HK$55,460,000
would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2023, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection
for “Clarks” CGUs had been 1% higher, a higher of impairment charge of
HK8,418,000 would be resulted.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

12(0) ME-BERRZE @

ERME - BERREURERESEN

WEEEENMN B

) BEYE BERZEUREHEE
EERY T bossini X 1 B2 & B 4 B (i ) 1B 5F 1%
ZHRE S (B

RZIEZ=F+ZA=+—HB HERR

MbossiniX I IBEELFEMN2RERETE

B Z BRI, 1% DRI B

B £ RB I 024,000 7o 20 R B £ RE R 2L

537,0007 75 ©

© BREDE BERKEARCHEES
EBYING ) F 2 EL E (LB EGZ
B E 7T

N_EBE-=F+"B=+—H’TINGIJ RS
EXBANETATHECHBEEERH
JAE ©

@ BEYE BERZEUREHEE
EERY Clarks ) 32 & EE 4 BB (i Ji (B 77152
R E 2T

RZE_=ZF+"B=+—H ' WHEBR

MClarks I IREEE BNz EEREEIZ

HEREEXA0% BEBRESIEIEMN

55,460,0005 7T ©

R_E_=F+_"_B=+—H HEARN
MClarks IIREELEBAUZREREBEAA
ZREIREIE N % > % B BB E = 5218
8,418,000 7T ©
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

12(B) LEASES
(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases
when the Group is a leasee:

128) #HE

() REBRKRRERNRE
BBRR RS RUTRE (REEFA AR
A) HERARIE ¢

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E=HF —EBCHF
+-_B=+—H +=-B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET

Right-of-use assets FREEE
Buildings and properties BF R 968,098 1,249,135
968,098 1,249,135

Lease liabilities HEAE

Current REN 566,202 519,199
Non-current JER BN 1,381,462 1,438,100
1,947,664 1,957,299

Right-of-use asset of HK$497,708,000 was acquired through addition for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$1,506,608,000 was acquired
through addition and acquisition of subsidiaries).

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

BHE_ZE_=F+_B=1+—HLFEH
BAEMIE BB RE ZE4497,708,000
BT (CE__F  BBAERKENEB
ANEIMIE ANy R #EE & 231,506,608,0007%8
7T) ©



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

12(B) LEASES (CONTINUED)

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s management identified certain shops
which continued to underperform. The recoverable amounts of the “bossini”,
“bossini. X", “LNG" and “Clarks” CGUs comprising from each store have been
determined based on value in use calculation which was approved by the
management using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering the
remaining lease terms. Details on the key assumptions used for the value in use

calculation of the above CGUs are disclosed in Note 12(A).

An impairment provision on right-of-use assets of HK$439,630,000 (2022
HK$276,756,000) was recognised for certain stores in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

12(8) #HE @
@ R R R
N_E_=ZF+_-_8= + E T REEE
EERNETRHERBERNENEH BS
J& & 4B B 2 Mbossini g ~ Thossini.XJ ~ TLNGJ K
MClarks | IR EEE MW Il 2EFE A
EEEBHANRERE/ATEZFEH
ﬁﬁ#m’ﬁéwgﬁ%%%ﬁ%%Tﬁ
EFAC M BEEAE BN LREE
SEMNGEFEREERRBZEERSK
EIBEEEM 120K E o

ETEH2HCAREERERRB
439,630,000 7T (ZZT Z 4 : 276,756,000
B ERBEE_Z_=F#+"_F=+—H
IEFEEZIBERER

(i) MIEERERHRIE
BRFRIWRUTHERRRIE !

2023 2022
—EC=H —ECE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFABT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets TREEEITESE 449,333 274,981
Impairment on right-of-use assets EREEEZRE 439,630 276,756
Net gain from early termination and modification AR IEREFTHE 2 a3 58
of leases 27,503 4,152
Interest expense (included in finance cost) FMEBRRE Gt A ) 87,663 50,229
Expense relating to short-term leases and variable %2 HAFH & K 7] B4 70 & 1< R 4B Eﬁﬁaﬂﬁ
lease payments (included in cost of sales, selling GtAEER A HEHRE
leases and distribution expenses and administrative ’ﬁﬁ%ﬁzﬁi‘i%&ﬁﬁl&ﬂ@%ﬁ
and other operating expenses) B %) 305,089 250,587

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
HK$1,007,375,000 (2022: HK$624,976,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for
The Group leases various offices, sports parks, ice skating rinks, retail stores

and staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to
20 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

BHE_ T+ _B=+—HLEE"
HEENIRE RE 4828 241,007,375,0004
v (:7 T T 4F 624,976,000 7T) ©

(iiiy xEBZHEEETHREAREE
$$%$ﬁ‘f%f¥b¢@iﬁﬁﬁ BEE - BK
DEEHABIES HESHNERR
TI2O¢Z.KEHHBEDTLO$H R 4% 1@ B
EER WEEEZBERRE BRI B E G-
%HETM ELMEMEAR2E HHEEEAF
BREETIER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

12(B) LEASES (CONTINUED)
(iv) Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales aT % % Gi| % ’F] = E R E S R E S B
generated from a store. For certain stores included fixed and variable payment 8 B9 B] 82 (S SRR © LA T IRl E K Bl
terms, the variable payment terms are with percentages ranging from 3% to BNRETNEHMS EJEN%T\T'%%’X}’T
38% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including FIHEZERI3%E38% o FAR B RIERAE
minimising the fixed costs base for newly established stores. Variable lease BRERA CEREEREMREHNETE
payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in Bl 2 B %5( HE RICIHERRR B B HH B (I
which the condition that triggers thaose payments occurs. REEZEMNANEEZEENEABARE
e A EE 20 ©
(v) Extension and termination options (v) ARFARERAEAIAS L0 SBEiRAE
Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases AEENETEMENSOSEMEERE
across the Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of MR EEE & MEEREFSEH
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. HNEEMES EZ EEENERENER
BERAIREEE I_&L °
13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REME
Note HK$’000
B =E FET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 N ZECF—B—HZEEE 93,800
Fair value gain NIFEW @ 10,600
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 and \{\: ; T THE+"A=Z+—HK
1 January 2023 “EC=-F—FB—HZKAE 104,400
Fair value loss ’AQZTEEE?E (2,900)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 R_E_=F+_A=+—HZKREE 101,500
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for 2023 2022
investment properties MEEMEZIBGRBZEE —E-= —E-C
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Rental income & WA 1,591 2,154

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligation for
future repairs and maintenance (2022: Nil).

The Group's investment property was valued as at 31 December 2023 by
Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer,

at HK$101,500,000 (2022: HK$104,400,000). Each year, the Group’s
management decide to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuation of the Group's property. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s management have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation result when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment property are included on page 276.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

RZE_=F+"_A=+—H Fx&EEL
MERWERBBEZNRECRFREE

(_222 D) o
FEBREYERBIEELSERG
BEMZEEBREIEERATIN _E_=
F+ A=+ —HEGTTHZEHES
101,500,00038 7 (Z & = — 4 : 104,400,000
HIT) o AEE Y BIEBE N ESERESEHN
EAEM s N AEBYEETINBGE
B -HEZEQEDHAH#M SE B4

EEMREEE KT AEBEEBRN
FEVHEREETGESTREERR RE
B RAGEMETTMm

ERAEEREMEZE—FTHBHNSE
2768 °



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's

investment property:

31 December 2023

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

13. REBEYE @

ATERE

TERRAXEEREYEZ AT EFER

1B

—E-=F+-"H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

RAZATEHE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BEX BEX
i IR AR FrAIBR
hiERE BARE WA Mt
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(-8 (FEZR) (=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT FHET FHETT
Recurring fair value measurement for: KEMRNFENE
Industrial property TEY= - - 101,500 101,500

31 December 2022

—E-__F+=-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

RAZATEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total

BX BX

VE BB PJ#REL FEHE
mIGRE A BUR WA B K

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(E—8) (E=@) (E=®)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT FTHET THET

Recurring fair value measurement for: KEMEATESE

Industrial property T - - 104,400 104,400
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

The fair value is estimated using a direct comparison approach. Under the direct
comparison approach, fair value is estimated by using the direct comparison
method on the assumption of the sale of the property interest with the benefit of
vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment property,
which include the location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion

and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market price. The fair value
measurement is based on the above property’s highest and best use, which does
not differ from the actual use.

The key input is the unit market price of approximately HK$4,870 (2022
approximately HK$5,000) per sq.ft for industrial building and the car park unit
price of approximately HK$2,200,000 (2022: approximately HK$2,400,000).
A significant increase/decrease in the market price will result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment property.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

13. REWE @
RN E—RBEE_ERETEATEE
ExEE TESARBEE=B2ENR
(CTBZZF  F) o
ANFEDERAEELEE A G -RBiEEE
EE8GE  AFEDUBEELEE L BRYE
BRI NEHENERESRAT IR Z AL
BIHE X S e st o

ETHEREZEREVEZRT 81
UE SRR REEEBREN K
HMEZE > UG HEBAHIFER - A FES
EERRLAYELRBERAERERNRS
REERBBH-

FTEGABEBEATEAENEUTBER
BEFTHFRG4870B T (ZTEZ2F 1 8
5,000 7T) MEBEHBEMNTBERAS
2.200,0003 T (ZB = Z4F : £2,400,0003
70)) cEMHBERAE LA TEBRE gE
REREMEANTFERBLEA Tk



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H
o -
14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BEEEE
Players
Trademark and Operating League Registration Member-
Goodwill Licensing Right Rights Qualification Rights Ship Software Total
BER
BE SRR BiER HEER geg aE EA by
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T#En TR TR TR TR TR T#En TR
A1 January 2023: RZB_=f-F-R:
(Opening net book amount EREEE 4,732 105,437 12,108 35,314 10,652 10,504 375,651 594,398
Additions RE = = = = = = 307,082 307,082
Disposal RE - - - - - - (2,591) (2,591)
Amorisation charge BHE - (10,612) (947) (6913) (4,852) (5,141) (146,411) (174,876)
Currency translation differences ERER (1,126) 1,090 (344) (972) (272) (264) 19,969 18,081
(losing net book amount FRRESE 43,606 95,915 10,817 27,429 5,528 5,099 553,700 742,094
At 31 December 2023: RIBZ=fF
+ZB=+-H:
Cost [ 201,598 130,254 15,276 106,054 16,588 25,497 765,573 1,260,840
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment R BERAE (157,992) (34,339) (4,459) (78,625) (11,060) (20,398) (211,873) (518,746)
Net book amount REFE 43,606 95,915 10,817 27,429 5528 5,009 553,700 742,004
A1 January 2022: RIEZZE-F-H:
Opening net book amount FNREEE 81,516 70,880 14,137 77,049 6,247 17,037 = 266,866
Acaquisiton of subsidiaries I AR - 47,600 - - - - 334,390 381,990
Additions HE = 1,326 = = 17,645 = 118,001 136,972
Disposal BE - - - - - - (6,142) (6,142)
Amortisafion charge BiHE - 9,793 (999) (12,264) (4,762) (5,424) (66,175) (99.417)
Impaiment charge REE (32,134) - - (24,854) (7,849) - - (64,837)
Currency translation differences EREE (4,650) (4,576) (1,030) (4,617) (629) (1,109) (4,423) (21,034)
(Closing net book amount FRRESE 4732 105,437 12,108 35314 10,652 10,504 375,651 594,398
At 31 December 2022: RIEZZE
+ZB=+-H:
Cost A 204,831 142,252 15,735 109,238 33,676 26,262 445,629 997,623
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment R BHERRE (180,099) (36,815) (3,627) (73,924) (23,024) (15,758) (69,978) (403,225)
Net book amount REFE 44732 105,437 12,108 35314 10,652 10,504 375,651 594,398
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) BREE @
Goodwill acquired through business combinations are mainly allocated to the L L EHREHESHNBEEITENDREETY
following CGUs, which are separate business operations, for annual impairment BUEHEENREELEEM LUETE
testing: ERER &
e Sports parks CGU s REERETELBM
e  Esports CGU e &E ﬁiﬁ%?i%ﬁ
e |[ce-skating rinks CGU s BXKEBREELBN
e QOther CGUs e HMIBEELE(
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each CGU with significant amount of FHENRAEIEEREHESERANER
goodwill SEEEBEA
2023 2022
—EZ=H —EICH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Sports parks CGU BEEREELEN 5,410 5410
Esparts CGU EBRIRSELBN - -
lce-skating rinks CGU KGR EE BN 37,479 38,605
Other CGUs HthIREEE BN 717 717
43,606 44732
Impairment testing PEAER:IEY

(i) Sports parks CGU

The recoverable amount of the sports parks CGU has been determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a ten-year period approved by management. Management considers

it is appropriate to apply a financial forecast covering a ten-year period in the
VIU calculation based on the factors including: (i) predictability of the trend of
operating scale; (i) expected sustainability of business growth; and (iii) length of
period to achieve business targets. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 24.5%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the sports parks CGU beyond the ten-year period is 2.0%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the sports parks CGU
for 31 December 2023. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill;

2.0%-27.0%
12.4%-22.8%
24.5%

Revenue growth rate:
EBITDA margin:
Pre-tax discount rate:

The revenue growth rate is for the ten-year forecast period. The cash flow
projection is derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of ten years that is in line with operation period of the sports
parks, and have incorporated necessary updates.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

() BEEREELEEN
BEEREELESEMUNTWE BT IRE
FREETEERRESREREN ENEE
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B 2EREEE ()ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%;ﬁkzﬁﬁ}i
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RER2.0%°
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it B 2.0%-27.0%
EBITDAFI = 12.4%-22.8%
PRI ATARIRE © 24.5%
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing (Continued)

(i) Sports parks CGU (Continued)

The percentage of EBITDA of revenue is the average percentages over the ten-
year forecast period. It is based on the current margin levels, with adjustments
made to reflect the expected future market conditions.

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, management believes that a reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the sports parks CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

(ii) Esports CGU

The recoverable amount of the Esports CGU has been determined based on

a fair value less costs of disposal calculation using the comparable company
method under the market approach, prepared by Roma Appraisals Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer engaged by the Group, to assist in the
determination of the fair value less costs of disposal.

The following key assumptions were used in the estimate of fair value less costs
of disposal of the Esports CGU as at 31 December 2023 in connection with the
impairment testing of goodwill:

() the enterprise value/sales multiples (“EV/Sales Multiple”) observed from
a group of comparable companies engaged in the same business ranged
from 0.3 to 1.8 as at 31 December 2023;

(i) adjustments factors, such as illiquidity discount that market participants
would generally consider when estimating the fair value of the Esports CGU
(2023: 20.5%); and

(i) appropriate amount of cost of disposal.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

14. BEREE @

REAR (&)

() BEERETELEN@E
EBITDAMG W sz~ B o bt A T 8 R B B 7
HE DL THER B A FE =K FE A EH
AR BEFERA R R T B AT ©

PR PR BE IR A IR R AT EL % 3 [ BR A
ReEr BT BERRo

BE_T_=—F+"RA=+— Etﬁf

EEERS LA EMRERRKRAEHTERN
GEEFRITERES lﬁ%&i%ﬁ

M%EEE@HﬂW@Eﬁo

(i) BERBEEEEEMN
BEHRREELEEMUNWOIZEETRAB™S
BZEE TR LERAR L RIBEAFERH
ERFESHE HBEUEXSERMGEME
FERFEERARAGRR  FEBERH
BN E A F BB H & A o

HREENRENS  FE T =
T RA=1t—HNERFTEELBEUMG
STATFEBEHERARBERNTRRER

D2~

) MRZBZ=F+ZRB=+—H 8=
REEREBVALRATFHNF
03E18MB¥EEE MHEEER (Th
EEEHERER)

i) FAERHB NHHB2EEGABHRR
SELEBUATFERERSZENIER
BETIMIR (CE=F:205%) ; &

(i) BEEMNHEMKETEE
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing (Continued)

(ii) Esports CGU (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, management believes that a reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the Esports CGU to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment loss of HK$32.1 million and
HK$32.7 million was recognised for goodwill and intangible assets, respectively.
Impairment was made primarily due to the unpredictable poor performance of
the business in 2022, The impairment loss recognised for the year represented
the difference between the carrying amount of the CGU including goodwill and
intangible assets and its estimated recoverable amount.

(iii) lce-skating rinks CGU

The recoverable amount of the ice-skating rinks CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by management. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 18.7%. The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the ice-skating rinks CGU beyond the five-year
period is 2.0%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the ice-skating rinks
CGU for 31 December 2023. The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

2.0%-7.9%
31.2%-35.5%
18.7%

Revenue growth rate:
EBITDA margin:
Pre-tax discount rate:

The revenue growth rate is for the five-year forecast period. The cash flow

projection is derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of five years and have incorporated necessary updates.

The percentage of EBITDA of revenue is the average percentages over the five-
year forecast period. It is based on the current margin levels, with adjustments
made to reflect the expected future market conditions.

The discount rate used is pre tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing (Continued)

(iii) lce-skating rinks CGU (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no impairment loss was
recognised as the management believes that a reasonably possible change in any
of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of the ice-
skating rinks CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

(iv) Other CGUs
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no impairment loss was
recognised on goodwill and other intangible assets of other CGUs in profit or loss.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

14. BEEE @)
BERE (&)

(iii) BABRESELEEN (B)
EE_Z __EEE’Z_%ZZE‘F_H
Eqr= E&Ef’ﬂiﬁtﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁf

JE 58 7% L I RE B R E&

FE IR AY .:.EE

Eiﬂﬁﬁﬂ'ﬁﬁi&ﬁﬂk%ﬁ%éi%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ

HEBBHEAKEIEEE-
(iv) HthIREEEEM

RBEE_S_=ZFk_FT__F+_H4
=t+—HIEEE BEREZEIEAA
MEMRESESEMNNHEREMETLS

ENREEE -
15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES REERNTIREETEZER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiHT FHIT
Associates /N 4,127,679 4,151,531
Joint ventures EEhE - 279
4,127,679 4,151,810
Interests in associates REEAT 2R

The following is a movement of interests in associates during the year: MU TFAFERRESES NS 2 BEFEH .
2023 2022
—F= g
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
b 5 FHET FET
At 1 January S—H—H 4,151,531 4,123,956
Share of profits less losses for the year DMEFE R RF) B E 18 527,190 543,449
Share of other comprehensive loss DMEEMEMEEER (753) (773)
Share of reserves DAL EE 38,015 59,114
Dividend received BUAEE (273,746) (167,929)
Additional investment in an associate BIMNGE—FEBE AT (a) 17,398 -
Change in interest in associate due to HRREEEER N HE AT
deemed dilution B HE 2 A & - 7,016
Transferred to interest in associate from HRELE—EIHE A 8
deemed disposal of a subsidiary ERBMENT 2SR 5,115 =
Currency translation differences b 2 = 2 (337,071) (413,302)
At 31 December R+-—B=+—H 4,127,679 4,151,531
Note: 5T -
(@)  For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group purchased 919,000 of Li Ning @ BEZZE="F+ZH=1+—HBHLEFE:>

Co Shares by cash amounted to HK$17,398,000 (2022: nil). AEE L IZ$17,398,00078 7588 A919,0002=

EAERGD CE__F:F)-
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 15. RIERATREELEZED
(CONTINUED) (&)

Particulars of the Group's principal associates are as follows: KEBZETEMENT ZEEBUWT ©

Place of

incorporation/ Percentage of ownership interest
Name Note  registration directly attributable to the Group Principal activities

ML SEEBEEELESEERZ
&g Misk sEfRhEs BotE FTEEK

2023 2022
= g

Li Ning Co (b) Cayman Islands 10.3% 10.3% Brand development, design, manufacture, sale and
FENT HEHE distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment

and accessories in the PRC
RPERANERSEMESE RSB
B MRS R et NS - TE R
CITIC Land The PRC 29% 29%  Property development and operation; property
REEE FE management; hotel investment and management;
construction project and facilities contracting and
equipment installations; decoration unit; landscaping and
property development consultancy
EHMERZE K MEEE; BEREBIE;
BETERRIMACORREZE ; B
I%i ) .7M§r?:1b&%iwixé’¥§nun@
Double Happiness (b) The PRC 10% 10% Manufacture, research and development, marketing and
qe=s F sale of principally table tennis and badminton equipment
under its own ‘4L £ = (Double Happiness)” brand and
other sports accessories
S R S KIHEEEARERIAIES
FEN 3T E BB P ELKEE M R H A g ““‘
Bo i

Note: B 5E

(b)  LiNing Co and Double Happiness are regarded as the Group’s associates due to the h) FERANMEEANRFTEATIRILES

existence of significant influence by the representation on the Li Ning Co and Double %%"%E’Jﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁj{%%ﬁﬁ'ﬂ&?ﬁ%ﬂi
Happiness's board of directors. SEEHBE QT
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15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2023, the market value of Li Ning Co's listed shares was

HK$20.90 (2022: HK$67.75) per share. The number of Li Ning Co ordinary

shares held by the Group as at 31 December 2023 was approximately

272,121,000 Shares (2022: 271,202,000 Shares).

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group's
principal associate extracted from its financial information or financial statements
after adjusting for the impacts of adjustments made at the time of acquisition and
adjustments for differences in accounting policies, if any (the one extracted from
Li Ning Co is after adjusting for the impacts of adjustments made at the time of
acquisition and adjustments for differences in accounting policies, if any, and for
non-coterminous periods between the Group and Li Ning Co):

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

15. REE AT REGETEZES
€=)

WN_E_=F+"_BA=+—H ZTERQ

g EmRMpzHEASRKR20.908 T (:%

T THF 67758 o E_=ZF+_
B=+—RH xEEFBEZEE NG &}
e EAA272,121,00018 (ZE ==
271,202,00088) °

..rﬁq

TR AERETBHMERNTD BN
B BEERDEREEMBFE Y
BRE (BN BB Z BB EF
HAE R G RER (WA) FHAE)
(ZERBEFTERATNZEHTERIN I
BRELZARZEFHAZRRMETER
HFBENEZEEABRNER WH) K
THEEGSHHBFERRAR !

2023 2022
—EC=HE —EICE
Li Ning Co Li Ning Co
FERNT ETENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Gross amounts of the associates BENBZEEEE
Current assets MBENEE 15,004,628 15,249,178
Non-current assets ERBEE 24,478,460 26,113,719
Current liabilities MENEE 7,988,057 9,929,185
Non-current liabilities JEREAaE 2,794,633 2,298,162
Net assets BEFE 28,700,398 29,135,550
Revenue for the period RAP W 38,420,732 30,994,547
Profit for the period HA P v ) 4,512,873 5,090,525
Other comprehensive 0ss ET&EEE&‘%E (6,118) (7,479)
Total comprehensive income 2HE @B EE 4,506,755 5,083,046
Reconciliation to the Group’s interests in Zk%ﬁ’:‘ﬂ%“‘"\_l REZE R R
associates
Gross amounts of net assets attributable to the AN 7 HERFAEABLEEZF
equity holders of the associates B48%8 28,700,398 29,132,796
Group’s effective interest REBRS D 10.3% 10.3%
Group’s share of net assets of the associates KREBELEHEATNEEFE 2,956,141 3,000,678
Goodwill BE 552,746 550,722
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial RiFEMBHRARNREE
statements 3,508,887 3,651,400
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has ceased to adopt the
provision in relation to lag reporting on the financial results of Li Ning Co.
contained in HKAS 28 based on the facts and circumstances after the transfer
of listing from the GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the financial result disclosures requirements would be the same for
both listed entities since then. The Group's consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 included the Group’s share of the results
and reserves of Li Ning Co for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2023.
Comparatives were not restated on the basis that starting to use the coterminous
financial statements of Li Ning Co in the current year instead of non-coterminous
financial statements was due to a change in circumstances.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 include the Group's share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for

the twelve months ended 30 September 2022 and adjusted for any significant
events or transactions for the period from 1 October 2022 to 31 December
2022 if any. The Group has adopted the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby
it is permitted to include the attributable share of associates’ results based on
accounts drawn up to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must be
no greater than three months.

There was no non-coterminous period end for associates and joint ventures during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no impairment loss of
investment in associates and joint ventures were recognised in profit or loss.

Commitments in respect of associates and joint ventures
The Group has no commitment to provide funding for associates’ and joint
ventures’ capital commitment as at 31 December 2023 and 2022,

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

15. REBZEATIREGELEZER
€=))
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

16. BBREMEEB@mRAFESE
ZHMBERE

2023 2022
—EF= g
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Government bonds BT ES 8,229 7,959

The above debt investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the objective of the Group in holding these debt
investments is to collect contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.

17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(i) Derivative financial instruments
The Group has the following derivative financial instruments:

LREHFRECSATAIHEMIEE R R AT
Bt ARtIZENm  BREEBRFE X
FEBRENENEWRENET R AN
EMBEE-

17. TTEBMFEIA
(i) TTEHFEIA
rEBBUTTEMBEIA

2023 2022
—EC=HE —EICHE
HK$’000 HK$’OOO
FHET FAET
Forward exchange contracts — cash flow BHESHN-RERERHT
hedges
Current assets MENEE 17,673 6,289
Non-current assets JERIEE 572 2,785
Current liabilities mENAR 59,315 25,226
Non-current liabilities SEREAaE 5,811 11,469
2023 2022
—E= —E2==

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Forward exchange contracts — not BHIESHN-FAREHPES

qualified for hedge accounting

Current assets TMENE E - 82,913
Non-current assets FERFEE - =
Current liabilities V=R - 3,219
Non-current abilities FERBEaE - =

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to reduce exposure to foreign
exchange rates. The derivatives used are designated as hedging instruments of the
cash flow hedges and the portion of the gain or loss that is determined to be an
effective hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income.

AEBEERABRANESHOLURLDINER
RoFIERMTETAREEARREARE
HAMHEA TR BEAAWNH PNED
BN EMERS W m PR o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) . TTEHMBIA®
(i) Cash flow hedge (||) HEREH
The Group’s hedging reserves relate to the following hedging instruments: AREENE FEEBEETIEATEABR
Cash flow
hedge reserve
HEneE
HihfEE
HK$'000
FHET
31 December 2023 —E-=F#+=-"H=+—H
As at 1 January 2023 RW_E2E_=%F—HA—H 20,281
Fair value loss of hedging instrument recognised in other  PREMEEWW AR 2 H A T HE AT (EEIE
comprehensive income 77,849
Reclassified to the cost of inventory ENOBEEGRERAX (65,897)
Reclassified from other comprehensive income to HEME2EmKkAESEERIELDS
profit or loss 4,446
Deferred tax R I (6,440)
As at 31 December 2023 RNZE-_=F+"H=+—H 30,239
Less: non-controlling interest B IEEERR R (14,622)

Hedge reserve attributable to equity holders of the

FABDRER A ABGEE DB

Company 15,617
31 December 2022 —E_”F#+”"HA=+—H
As at 1 January 2022 RNZZEZ_F#—HF—H -
Fair value loss of hedging instrument recognised in other M EMEEUN AR 2 ¥R T B AT EEIE

comprehensive income 25,663
Reclassified from other comprehensive income to profitor B EfMEEWAEDEEIBHE

l0ss 1,378
Deferred tax RIEFR I (6,760)
As at 31 December 2022 RZEZ-_F+"H=+—H 20,281
Less: non-controlling interest B IEEERER (15,006)
Hedge reserve attributable to equity holders of the KRBIERFTE AEBLE B

Company 5,275
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17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(ii) Cash flow hedge (Continued)

Amounts recognised in profit or 108S

In addition to the amounts disclosed in the reconciliation of hedging reserves
above, the following amounts were recognised in profit or loss in relation to
derivatives:

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

17. TTERBIA ®

(i) REJWEH (@)

FIA B HIE B

bR Eat S AB R PR EN SN U
THECEIAETETAHEBNIER !

2023 2022
—EZ= —E_C
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFABT
Net gain/(loss) on forward exchange contracts not AT & 87 A9 H SRR FRYZE ER SN
qualifying as hedges included in profit or loss EaiWsm, (B518) F58 (38,855) 22,521
Hedge ineffectiveness of forward exchange = AASNE & A9
contracts — amount recognised in other gains — st AHMK R EER 4,446 518

Headge ineffectiveness

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship,
and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an
economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument,

For hedges of foreign currency purchases, the Group enters into hedge
relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument match exactly
with the terms of the hedged item. The Group therefore performs a qualitative
assessment of effectiveness. If changes in circumstances affect the terms of the
hedged item such that the critical terms no longer match exactly with the critical
terms of the hedging instrument, the Group uses the hypothetical derivative
method to assess effectiveness.

In hedges of foreign currency purchases, ineffectiveness may arise if the timing of
the forecast transaction changes from what was originally estimated, or if there are
changes in the credit risk of the Group or the derivative counterparty.

# PR
HHEMMEREPERREREE L8
B E HATRA A L S LU R E R IR B 2
HWhITAZEEFELERE

HINEBESE P xEBEREFTAN
RSB TR B B P IR B IR R E 2 RS RY 1B
NI RRR AL AEEBW AWM
ETEMEFG - HERESHTEHN IR
AR TR > BRI RIFNEA N P T ApRAR
FERAB2LE  AEBXRARRKRITE
AHEB I -

ROMEBEH B0 MRS ERI MG
SAERLESE HHAERENNTETARS
HFLEERBREL UEHREMNIG
e
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

18. DEFINED BENEFITS SCHEMES

18. REMRFETE

2023
—EZ=H
UK USA Total
B EEd wet
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Present value of obligation EERE (7,549,417) (898,334) (8,447,751)
Fair value of plan assets SHEIEEATEE 8,042,282 783,244 8,825,526
Defined benefit surplus/(obligation) RERHRBRER (B 492,865 (115,090) 377,775
2022
UK USA Total
HH EH “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TFET TFET
Present value of abligation EERE (6,991,588) (956,092) (7,947,680)
Fair value of plan assets SEIEEATEE 7,812,936 864,118 8,677,054
Defined benefit surplus/(obligation) ARERMERER (B 821,348 (91,974) 729,374

The Group, through Clark Group, operates pension schemes in the UK and USA
including defined benefit and defined contribution sections. The defined benefit
plans under the schemes in the UK and USA are administered by separate funds
that are legally separated from the entities. The trustees of the pension fund are
required by law to act in the interest of the fund and of all relevant stakeholders
in the plan. The trustees of the pension fund are responsible for the investment
policy with regard to the assets of the fund. Both UK and USA schemes were
closed to new participates in 2018.

Full actuarial valuations were carried out by qualified independent actuaries for the
UK and USA defined benefit schemes.

The defined benefit plans in both the UK and USA typically expose the entity to

actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary
risk. This is considered in more detail below.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

18. DEFINED BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan obligation is calculated using a
discount rate determined by reference to high quality corporate bond yields; if
the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently
the plan has a high proportion of its investments in debt instruments with
smaller amounts in equity securities and real estate. Due to the level of risk
associated with each type of asset, the trustees of the pension fund consider it
appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should be invested in
debt instruments, while the long-term nature of the plan obligation means that
is considered appropriate that a portion of the investment portfolio is in equity
securities and in real estate to leverage the return generated by the fund.

Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan obligation but this will
be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference
to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after
their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan's obligation.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference
to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the
plan participants will increase the plan’s obligation.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_HA=+—H

18. DEFINED BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
Salary risk (Continued)
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net

18. REMRFETE (@
#re EEE (8
REEERRTEIBRNEEERERF

defined benefit obligation and net plan assets over the year are as follows: EEFRANTEEEFENESNERBUT
Present value of Fair value of

obligation plan assets Total

EERE HEEELTE Mt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

TER TER TER

1 January 2022 “E_"#-H-H = = =
Current service cost BVARE A 2,094 = 2,594
Administration costs THER 7,191 3,900 11,091
Interest expense/income) FEIH/ (KA 122,593 (135,884) (13.291)
Past service costs BERBHA 2773 = 2,773
Total amount recognised in profit or loss REEPEDEH 135,151 (131,984) 3,167

Remeasurements BENHE
Retur on plan assets, excluding amounts included in SEBERR FEEFA

interest income FEMAZEE = 1480567 1,480,567

Actuarial gain from change in assumptions REBRREHZBEENA (903,079) - (903,079)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income A EL 2 E WA e ER AR 2R (903,079) 1480567 577,488
Acguired in business combination REBLHBRDUE 9,072,310 (10,371,951) (1,299,641)
Exchange differences ERER (97,887) 119,964 22077
Contributions: {115/

Employers Ex - (32,465) (32,465)
Benefits paid B 1R (258,815) 258,815 -
31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 ZECCF+RA=ZT-HR

—®-=#-A—f 7,947,680 (8,677,054) (729,374)
Current service cost SRR B R 8,221 - 8,221
Administraion costs THER 16,464 7,861 24,325
Interest expense/(income) MEZH,/ (RA) 381,966 (416,933) (34,967)
Total amount recognised in proft or loss MERRERAE 406,651 (409,072) (2,421)
Remeasurements Bt =
Retur on plan assets, excluding amounts included in SEBEEDR FEEGFA
interest income MEWAZE% - 83,251 83,251

Actuarial loss from change in assumptions REBRREHZRERR 306,011 - 306,011
Total amount recognised in other comprefiensive ingome EAEWJ%EH&MEJS ke 306,011 83,251 389,262
Exchange differences ERELR 389,536 (419,659) (30,123)
Contributions: (it

Employers Bx - (5,119) (5,119)
Benefits paid B f11&7 (602,127) 602,127 -
31 December 2023 “E-Et-B-1-f 8,447,751 (8,825,526) (377,175)

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S



18. DEFINED BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Salary risk (Continued)

The net assets disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

18. REBFE @
FEREE (8

AR BEEEFERCRERKREES

ZERAWT ¢
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Present value of funded obligations ERESTRE 8,439,967 7,940,622
Fair value of plan assets SEIEEAFE (8,825,526) (8,677,054)
Surplus of funded plans B ETE B (385,559) (736,432)
Present value of unfunded obligations AEESEIRE 7,784 7,058
Total surplus of defined benefit pension plans ARTEEBHEBIREFTERERALEE
(before asset ceiling) (B E LRA (377,775) (729,374)
Plan assets FEIEE
The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows: BB EEAFENEESFEAOT :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equities N 203,865 240,664
Bonds (6= 6,293,917 4,277,266
Real assets/infrastructure BEYEEBRXH 119,397 745,094
Insurance contract fRBE &4 1,891,115 1,778,496
Alternative credit/diversifying strategies BREE ZolbRE 203,384 1,231,225
Cash e 113,848 404,309
Total plan assets BoTEEE 8,825,526 8,677,054

Included in the above, there are debt securities of HK$4,319.9 million (2022:
HK$3,847.0 million) where the fair value of these debt instruments is determined

based on quoted market prices.

YRR EEEFESH431998 8B T (Z
T _HF 13847.0B8BIT)  ZEFEEHEL
BN AFERETIGRERBTE
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

18. DEFINED BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Salary risk (Continued)

The weighted average asset allocations at the year end were as follows:

18. REMRFETE (@
#re EEE (8
FRZMEFHEEDEKLT :

UK plan USA UK plan USA
assets plan assets assets plan assets
as at as at as at as at
31 December 31 December 371 December 31 December
2023 2023 2022 2022
HEHEEE ZHEHALSEE ZEFEEE 2 ZHFEEE

. RZEZ= ATETTFE S
+ZA=+-B +ZA=+-B +-A=+—-8 t-A=+-8

Asset category BEMER

Equities g2 0% 26% 0% 27%
Bonds 8% 75% 30% 52% 22%
Real assets/infrastructure EVEE/ERRNK 0% 15% 7% 22%
Insurance contract R EH 24% 0% 23% 0%
Alternative credit/diversifying strategies ~ BRIEE /S T bR 0% 26% 13% 27%
Cash He 1% 3% 5% 2%
100% 100% 100% 100%

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 12.7 years as
at 31 December 2023 (2022: 11.4).

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

18. DEFINED BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 18. REFFGE @
Plan assets (Continued) FFEIEE (@
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FEBEBRIZAOT .
2023 2022
—EZ”= TECCF
UK USA UK USA
HE EJE] HE EH
Discount rate ARIF = 4.50%-4.55% 5.08% 4.75% 5.40%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment ~ BE DI HIEREX 2.15%-3.25% N/A RiEH 2.45%-3.05% N/A 78
Rate of increase in pensions in deferment IEIEEBE E S EX 2.65% N/A RiE R 2.45% N/A R
Inflation assumption BARERR 3.10%-3.25% N/A RiE A 3.15% N/A T3
UK USA UK USA
as at as at as at as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 371 December
2023 2023 2022 2022
HE E3E] HE EH
RZEZ= MRZBEZ=% RIZ-_"F RIE"HF

+-ZB=+—H +=ZA=+—H +ZA=1+—H +ZA=1+—H

Weighted average mortality rate assumptions used to determine net pension cost for the period end
AUETHAEEERAPEZMETI9FEBPIETE

Male

Member age 65 (current life expectancy) B4 21.9 20.7 22.2 20.7
Female

655% AL B (S Al TRHRES p) gegica 24.0 22.7 24.1 226
Male

Member age 45 (ife expectancy at age 65) B4 23.1 22.2 23.4 222
Female

4558 (6o VTS S) 2 26.1 24.1 25.9 24.1

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit EEARAETEMNEEZFTERERI AR

obligation are discount rate, rates of inflation and mortality. The sensitivity analyses ~ - BRERIET R U TFHREDHHE

below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the RERBRINREHARELENSIETRES

respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding EMEE > MTE AR -
all other assumptions constant.
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31 December 2023 —E-_=#+"B=+—H

18. DEFINED BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 18. RE/HAITE @)

230

Sensitivity analysis: Impact of change in key assumptions on BREESH EXREEETERREDH
actuarial value of obligation -4 -

UK UK

as at as at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

HEH H[H

RIEZ=F R-FT__

+=A +—AR

=+—H =+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Base case EARZA 7,549,417 6,991,588

0.5% decrease in discount rate AR IR Z N E0.5% 7,983,150 7,153,632

1 year increase in member life expectation RETEHRSMIEIN—5& 7,845,867 7,035,632

+0.5% change in inflation BIRZE EH05% 7,859,794 7,032,800

USA USA

as at as at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

EEd EH

RIEZ= A TE T

+=AH +—8

=+—H =+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET TET

Base case EHARZH 898,334 956,092

0.5% decrease in discount rate AR IR T T [£0.5% 951,753 1,011,047

1 year increase in member life expectation RETERREMIZIN—5 921,865 981,046

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

19. INVENTORIES 19. &8
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Raw materials Rt 16,418 9,844
Wark in progress F B 4,472 9,241
Finished goods BBl 3,300,559 4,042,045
3,321,449 4,061,130

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain inventories of the Group’s
subsidiaries were charged as security for bank borrowings. Details are set out in
Note 27.

20. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

R_B_ =R _B__F+_A=+—
B> AEEMNBADNETEEEHIBT
ERRVEIR I o SR B M 7 o

P& Ut Bl R B2 FE MR R 4R

2023 2022

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

B =E FET FET

Trade debtors and bills receivable 7 W AR 7R 52 e U 2 4% 834,344 869,754
Less: loss allowance B ESIEEE 41 (67,523) (10,276)
766,821 859,478

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, generally 30
to 90 days, extending up to six months for major customers. Each customer

has a maximum credit limit. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by

senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade debtors and bills receivable balances. Trade debtors
and bills receivable are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain trade receivables of the Group’s
subsidiaries were charged as security for bank borrowings. Details are set out in
Note 27.

AEBFEERESFAEARTRARZ  EE
B—RA0ENKR  FEFFHERZHIER
EEREAER SR2EFHERSEE
BE%E°;?‘& BEE WM BiRsSeR e A&

EMEBRERERANERERESRITE
T?Eﬁ?&ﬁuujﬂfﬁliigﬁh,\Zﬁﬁ?— & Ut
AR BN ER ARt F B o

N B =FER B _F+HF=+—

B Z&EBNBRABNE FRKKRREM
IRITEMRFIEIR 2 A o sHIBE I sE27
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

20. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
An ageing analysis of the trade debtors and bills receivable based on the payment

20. BRI R EWEE @)
EWEFRREREZERIENRINEAHZR

due date is as follows: BT

2023 2022
—EF= —F=Z

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current BN &R 493,146 583,773
Less than 3 months past due #HA DR =R 219,592 216,288
3 to 6 months past due BHA==XEA 4,417 29,127
More than 6 months past due AR B < E B 49,666 30,290
766,821 859,478

Information about the impairment of trade debtors and the Group’s exposure to
credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest risk can be found in Note 41,

Included in the Group's trade debtors and bills receivable are amounts of
HK$34,284,000 and HK$nil (2022: HK$40,930,000 and HK$42,665,000) due
from associates and a joint venture, respectively.

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

BERHERRINBEURANEETRREES
RS~ NS LB R R R BB 2 Bk 5526
B5E4T o

SAAREEZBWRDRKEWEED H
mERBMEAAR—BEELENE
34,284,000t kEHBT (ZEZZ
40,930,000 7t % 42,665,0007% 7T) ©

21. FEIRRIA - HE R HMEWRIEA

2023 2022
—E-= =2
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By &% F#ET FABT
Prepayments TR RIB 369,870 789,146
Deposits and other receivables & R 2R ERIE @) 404,613 329,223
Less: loss allowance for deposits and other 78l : 2% R EMMAEWRIE
receivables R b 41 (94,910) (95,321)
679,573 1,023,048
Less: current portion B OmENE D (577,131) (681,272)
Non-current prepayment, deposits and other ~ FERENFEFRNIE ~ 2%
receivables Tz H At fE U =118 (b) 102,442 341,776
Note: B EE

(a) Deposits and other receivables are measured at amortised costs. The detail
information about the credit risk and impairment analysis of deposits and other
receivables can be found in Note 41.

(b)  Asat 31 December 2022, the Group had a down payment of approximately
HK$280,976,000 for the acquisition of properties located in Shanghai, PRC which
included in the Group's non-current prepayment, deposits and other receivables. The
acquisition was completed during 2023.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22, RERBREEZEEY
(a) Cash and bank balances comprise (a) RERIRITHERERE
2023 2022
—E=H —EICHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances other than time deposits T HIEFUIN 2 IR & K IR1T 45 6% 800,408 1,561,063
Time deposits — less than three months EHER—LDR=@EAH 480,904 1,413,740
Cash and bank balances B& MIR1T4EER 1,281,312 2,974,803

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$333,848,000 (2022:
HK$316,591,000), approximately HK$285,400,000 (2022: HK$285,581,000)
of which was domiciled in the mainland China. The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies in the mainland China, however, under the PRC'’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RBERAKR AEBUAREAEZRS
K SR 1T 45 8R40 75333,848,00058 5 (B _—
& 316,591,000 75) » HA49285,400,0007%8
7T (T2 T4 285,581,000 7T) 2R HE
Wihec N\EBPRABEAM AT EHTHRS
HME o 28Am > iRiR (P ESNE F 2R H)
RGEE EERNESERTE)  ~EHE
EEBEREETIEER ZRTEAR
BERBhAsHMEK.

RITHREE (EREFEMRERIN REGRRTE
RA R H B EBHINAE - BHAEHE
RRmB—=EZ2=Z@RAEF RIELEEEN

Cash at banks other than time deposits earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one and three months depending on the short-term cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. HWEBRME> Ui BEHEEHERH
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of ~ R BEEF B - R{TE B ERN B EEEY
default. B EERFZIRIT

(b) Net debt (b) &P
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for rEHEEHE_ST _=ZFER_ZT -
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. + - B=1+—RHILEFENEHFEZDN

KB FRE EH) o
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FAET
Net debt B3R
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIRETEEY
(included bank overdraft) (BIFIR1TER) 1,270,262 2,930,189
Deposit with balance with maturity period over GFRERIE =@ B 2 R8T
three months - 3,962
Restricted bank balances PR & 14 3R 17 45 &R 190,637 19,615
Bank borrowings (excluded bank overdraft) RITER FBERITES) (176,151) (299,516)
Lease liabilities HEAE (1,947,664) (1,957,299
Net cash/(net debt) REFRE,/ (BFFEE) (662,916) 696,951
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31 December 2023 —F

== H=r—H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Liabilities from financing activities

22. REKRREEEY @

Other assets

REMEEHZEE HitEE
Cash Deposits
Bank and cash with banks
borrowings equivalents  with maturity Restricted
(excluded bank Lease (included bank period over bank
overdraft) liabilities Sub-total overdraft) three months balance Total
Rek
RITER RE%EY HRE8R
(FaiE (B =Rz TRl
BITER) HEaE Nt RITER) BIER RITHEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTERT THET TERT TER THET FTERT
Net debt as at 1 January 2022 RIBZ_E-B—-BAZEHFE - (486,319) (486,319 2,529,663 4,284 6,855 2,054,483
Cash flows ReEng 215,759 374,389 590,148 (536,573) = 12,630 66,205
Interest expenses FIERX (20,864) (50,229) (71,093) = = = (71,093)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAD (526,841) (1,428,065  (1,954,906) 990,962 = 1,007 (962,937)
Addition — leases HRE—HE = (416,404) (416,404) - - - (416,404)
Modification — leases EBiI—RE = (16,856) (16,856) = = = (16,856)
Foreign exchange adjustments SNERE 32,430 66,185 98,615 (53,863) (322) 877) 43,553
RIE-—E+-A=+-0RK
Net cash/(net deb) as at 31 December 2022 and ZRCZE-PB-HZRGER/

1 January 2023 (BH3H) (299,516) (1,957,299) (2,256,815) 2,930,189 3,962 19,615 696,951
Cash flows Beng 199,423 702,286 901,709 (1,670,104) (1,108) 167,904 (601,599)
Interest expenses FEME (77,300) (87,663) (164,963) - - - (164,963)
Addition — leases RE—E = (497,708) (497,708) = = = (497,708)
Modification — leases BiI—HE - (85,612) (85,612) - - - (85,612)
Disposal of subsidiary HEHBAR - - - - (2,855) - (2,855)
Foreign exchange adjustments SRR 1,242 (21,668) (20,426) 10,177 1 3,118 (7,130)
Net cash/(net deb) as at 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F+-A=+—-H2

R&38/ (B%38) (176,151)  (1,947,664)  (2,123,815) 1,270,262 - 190,637 (662,916)
23. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 23. PREIMEIRITAEER
2023 2022
—— = —_——
—_— —— — T ——
HK$’000 HK$'OO_O
F#ET TET
Restricted bank balances PR &4 $R 17 45 &
Current R 2,262 2,635
Non-current JERED 188,375 16,980
190,637 19,615
A —

As at 31 December 2023, the restricted bank balances were pledged as security
for the operation of sports parks and lease of retail stores and as security for the
pension scheme and bank guarantee for subsidiaries of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the restricted bank balances were pledged as security
for the operation of sports parks and lease of retail stores and as security for bank
guarantee for subsidiaries of the Group.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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24, TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

24, gﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁt R EE R E M
FRIH
2023 2022
—EZ= —E_C
HK$'000 HKS 000
FET FET
Trade payables P& 1 BR X 1,549,638 2,090,720
Bills payable FET 4% 13,353 14,812
Other payables H g 7IE 494,271 691,061
2,057,262 2,796,593
Included in trade payables is HK$216.7 millon (2022:HK$351.6 million) relating ~ FE(IBRR B E A —RRTAHEFHEH
to a vendor financing facility arrangement with a bank, allowing certain suppliers MEZHARZ2167/AE BT (T _—
to be paid earlier (by the bank) than the Group’s standard payments terms. If F 1351688  AFAEBELLRES
this option is taken by the supplier, the Group will no longer be able to make E R AD (FIRTT) B T a (IR 8
earlier direct payments to the supplier and will pay to the partner bank under the HEBXNZEE AEBBIAEBER
Group’s standard payments terms when the payable becomes due. The Group [0 1 1S5 78 48 A 1 K0 T ke AR 3% 2 2 (8 AR 4E
has determined that the terms of the trade payable under this arrangement are S TR RR S FE (S "R I8 2 # s o) &5 (R SR 1 1Y
substantially unchanged and that it is continued presenting the relevant amounts X o ZAT > AR [ B IF ix K HEIE TS HYFE Y
within trade and other payables. R TR RIS EL 7 B 7 g AL 0 (A IE
g‘%%ﬁﬁéﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁz J& 1 BR 7k e & (3 mR I8 R 571
The normal credit period for trade payables generally ranges from 30 to 90 days. RN IEEEEHR MR FI0FEIX -
Ageing analysis of trade payables based on due date at the respective balance REEESRKRO REMMEBEZE
sheet date is as follows: INESEENE A i (I
2023 2022
—E=F —E”_C
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Current BN A 1,515,302 1,925,965
Less than 3 months past due wE DR =@ER 21,298 116,859
3-6 months past due A= Z X E B 6,386 5,685
More than 6 months past due B BAE B 78 B 6,652 42 211
1,549,638 2,090,720
As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade, bills and other payables RE_=ZF+"B=+—H x&EEHZ
are amounts of HK$1,660,000 (2022; HK$7,807,000) due 1o associates. BN BANRBEREMEMREBERRE
FE(J B E AR 21,660,0008x (ZE =
£ 17,807,000% 7T) °
25. ACCRUALS 25. FEEtEHR
2023 2022
—E-= —E-TC
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Accruals == 769,529 642,695
Included in the Group’s accruals is an amount of HK$267,725,000 (2022: AEERGERBERFBEIME
HK$236,616,000) for accrued staff cost. Other accruals mainly represent 267,725,000 75 (ZZ — — 4 : 236,616,000
accrued rent, professional fee and other operating costs. B HMESBERIEAMEGHEAE &
*XERAMEMEEMAE
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

26. DEFERRED INCOME 26. EIEU A B \
The movements in deferred income as stated under current and non-current AR RIFRBEBRE T ZEILEWAZ
liabilities are as follows: EHWT
2023 2022
—E—= —EZHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—HZEKEE 6,179 7.759
Government grants received B U F 488 B 2,813 -
Credited to profit or loss st AE@ (2,523) (1,028)
Currency translation differences bEE 12 = 2 (293) (552)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+_BA=+—HZKEE 6,176 6,179
Less: current portion B mEE S (947) (453)
5,229 5,726
Deferred income mainly represents government grants abtained for the purpose EIEW AT ZIET AL B AR 2 S &M
of subsidising subsidiaries” operation. Government grants received are initially 1S 2 B3 6 B o B WX BURT 48 BE 4D 20 B4R
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as deferred income & B #5 Ak Je 2R O FE 50 7 IR SE WA > 3 3% %
and are amortised through profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in MEENZBSTE THECHBENER
which the grants are intended to compensate. R B o

27. BANK BORROWINGS

2023 2022
—E-= —EZCHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TABT
Bank overdraft, unsecured RITEX  EILIT 11,050 41,652
Bank overdraft, secured RITEX > AL - 2,962
Bank loans, secured RITEF BIKE 176,151 299,516
187,201 344,130
Less: Current portion B mEE (22,040) (55,934)
165,161 288,196
Bank borrowings bear floating rates of i) Tokyo Interbank Offered Rate; ii) China IRTTERMRRIRITEZERE i) P EIET
Interbank Offered Rate minus basis, iif) Euro Interbank Offered Rate plus basis and B SRiEE R X i) & IR1T[A £ #F
iv) secured overnight financing rate plus margin. BIEESXRKivARMEREERNZM
REBE 2 FHFIZEETE o
As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment of HK$7,102,000 RZEBE_=F+"A=+—H">7,102,000%
(2022: HK$8,477,000), financial assets at fair value through other TL(Z T4 18,477,000 7T) MM~ M
comprehensive income of HK$nil (2022: HK$7,959,000), inventories and trade EREE FAEIT(ZFT_F 17,959,000
receivables of totaling HK$184,038,000 (2022: HK$863,883,000) had been B NEBEMEEWSERATFESEZ
charged as security for bank borrowings of subsidiaries of the Group. Bt 755 A Bl 5 184,038,000 L(— 2 — =
£ © 863,883,000 7T) B9F & R EWAETE
?&%;T?%ZK%B’E\—FW% BIRITERZ
The Group has nat breached any covenants for the year ended 31 December AEERBE_S_=F+_H=1+—H
2023 (2022: same). %)&Eaﬁﬁﬁﬁ}if 22N (CEZ2F 14
a]) o

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 28. BEIEMEEERER
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial ERGERBERATRER ZIELERIBEE E
position are as follows: FENMT
2023 2022
—EZ= —E_C
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFABT
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 450,666 120,127
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE (99,231) (96,664)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows: FRREREBEEERBBEZEHUWT .

Depreciation

Impairment allowance in

and other excess

temporary Lease of related
Deferred tax assets movement differences liabilities depreciation Tax losses Total

HEREM BHARNE
EEREEEED ENEE HEaf  ZiEEE HEsE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TER TET TET

31 December 2023 “EZ-E+ZR=+-H
At1 January 2023 R_E-_=%—H—H 184,998 11,697 29,991 240,496 467,182
Credlted/(charged) to profit or loss REEFTA/ (05) (100,211) 6,831 (30,221) 291,899 168,208
Credited to other comprehensive income REMZERZFA 26,826 - - - 26,826
Currency translation difference EREE 7,179 - 937 19,481 26,197
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=%+-B=+—-H 119,392 18,528 707 551,876 690,503
Set-off of deferred tax liabiites BHELRESR (239,837)
450,666
31 December 2022 “E-ZE+ZRZ+-H

At 1 January 2022 R_E__F—F—H 19,061 7,336 - - 26,397
Acquisition of subsidlaries WERB AT 70,575 = 58,263 229,212 358,050
Credlted/(charged) to profit or loss R A/ (05) 88,974 4,361 (27,199) 12,934 79,070
Credited to other comprehensive income REMEEKGEA 6,760 = - = 6,760
Currency translation cifference ERER (372) - (1,073 (1,650) (3,095)
At 31 December 2022 RZE2__F+"A=+-H 184,998 11,697 29,991 240,496 467,182
Set-off of deferred tax liabiies BHETREER (347,055)
120,127
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31 December 2023 —E_=F+_HA=+—H

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

BRIEMBEEERER @

Fair value
adjustments Depreciation
Revaluation arising from allowance in Other
of investment Intangible Pension acquisition of  excess of related temporary
Deferred tax liabilities movement properties assets obligations subsidiaries depreciation differences Total
B KEMBAR  BLUABRE Hity
BEREEEES RENE BYEE RAERE 2ZATEEE ZIERE ERES i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TR TR TR TR TER TER
31 December 2023
At 1 January 2023 (13,020) (33,968) (205,839) (25,863) (98,525) (66,504) (443,719)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A (1) 6,015 21,628 = 10,682 (14,634) 23,690
Credited to other comprehensive income EAH%QE%ZmU\ - - 98,195 - - - 98,195
Currency translation difference ERER - 880 (8,392) (1,387) (4,111) (4,224) (17,234)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F+ZA=+-H (13,021) (27,073) (94,408) (27,250) (91,954) (85,362) (339,068)
Set-off of deferred tax assets BRI EEE 239,837
(99,231)
31 December 2022 —E__F+°A=+-H
At1 January 2022 RZE-__#-F—H 44,480) (43,203) - (55) - = 87,738)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK E AR = - (340,862) 26,030) (92,890) (62,666) (522,448)
Creditea)(charged) to profit or loss PEFEA/ (05 31,460 6,346 8319) = 6,258) (4279 18,950
Credited to other comprehensive income REMPEHREA - - 136,957 - = = 136,957
Currency translation difference ERER - 2,889 6,385 22 623 44 10,560
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ#+ZA=+-A (13,020) (33,968) (205,839) 25,863) 98,525) (66,504) (443,719)
Set-off of deferred tax assels BHELREEE 347,05
(96,664)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$1,949,452,000 (2022: HK$1,771,126,000), subject to the
confirmation of tax losses from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. These
tax losses are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had estimated tax losses arising in the USA
of HK$1,748,982,000 (2022: 1,703,397,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group also has tax losses arising in the mainland
China of HK$1,019,830,000 (2022: HK$783,049,000) that will expire within
five years to offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in companies that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

RZB_ZF+_-_FA=+—0 ' &x&E£ER
EBEERIEEEA,949 452 0005 T (=

B 1 1,771,126,0008 7T) 0 IEBESH
MEBEERRIBEEE MZERIEERT

% R A8 A (IR 84 B IS 1R A 5 2 R AR FE IR IR
) o

RZE_=F+"_A=+—H > &~&£@RK
EHEEEZ Gt RIERIEA1,748,982,000%8
7T (TEZ =4 :1,703,397,000% 7T) > Bl 4%
(REREREEEFERBATHBZERR
@A o

RZE_=F+"RA=+—H>&x&EBF
R A B P ith EE A R TE S $811,019,830,00078 7T
(Z=TZ 4 : 783,049,000 ) > sl AR
I AREERREF > BREREBEEEER
AERKH -
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31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 28. BERMIEEEREE @
Deferred tax liability has not been recognised for withholding taxes that would REBTAMETHRPEHFLILINBAT
be payable on certain portions of the unremitted earnings that are subject to FREHRBA ZE T30 mE S FaN R ER
withholding taxes of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC as BERMBEE RAAZENHE2EAE
all of those profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. KA R 2R DL ©
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by KRB A H RS A A P
the Company to its sharehalders. B
29. PROVISION 29. #fh
Onerous Guarantee
Dilapidation lease to joint
provision® provision venture* Others Total
B X
'R BEE  SEL¥
EERME WHERRFE  REREFE Hith Hit

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TER TER TAR TAR TER

31 December 2023 —E_=#+ZRA=+—H
At 1 January 2023 R_E-=%—H—H 56,714 6,551 94,293 44,803 202,361
Charged to profit or loss REZTA 17,888 - - 10,146 28,034
Amounts utlised EHHELE (3,101) (1,498) - (17,976) (22,575)
Currency translation difference ERELE 2,498 27 (353) 700 2,872
Balance at 31 December 2023 W_E_=F#+"F=+—H

o] 73,999 5,080 93,940 37,673 210,692
Less: current portion BORENE D - - (93,940) (36,158) (130,098)
Non-current portion FEREHBD 73,999 5,080 - 1,515 80,594
31 December 2022 —E_"_¥+-RA=+—H
At 1 January 2022 A B _&F—H—H = = = - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEKTB A E 51,909 7,667 99,680 38,176 197,432
Charged to profit or loss RB@ETA 9,135 3,968 = 11,229 24,332
Amounts utiised REEER (521) (2,132) = = (2,653)
Amount released BRREEE (4,325) (2,660) - (4,376) (11,361)
Currency translation difference ERERE 516 (292) (5,387) (226) (5,389)
Balance at 31 December 2022 ZB__&+ZHA=+—H

BRER 56,714 6,551 94,293 44,803 202,361
Less: current portion B ORENE = = (94,293) - (94,293)
Non-current portion FERBH S 56,714 6,551 - 44,803 108,068

A provision is recognised for expected costs required to restore leased properties to # MBS AT HAYEREER

their original condition per the current closure plan. It is expected that these costs EARFTEN TR N0 B o TB T4 5
will be incurred at the end of the lease agreement. AR A EEGREESL

A provision is recognised in relation to a guarantee provided by Clark Group to its - MMClakEBERMHEG S b XEIRHIERRES—
joint venture. TE 315 o
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. RA&
Shares B& 15
2023 2022
—EC=F g C
Nominal value Nominal value
HfE HE
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$'000
BAnE4E] TAERT BRHEE TET
Authorised: ATE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each EREEETZEBR
(‘Ordinary Shares’) (MEERR) 20,000,000,000 1,000,000  20,000,000,000 1,000,000
Redeemable convertible preferred shares of FREE00ETZTERR
HK$0.01each (‘Preferred Shares’) BiERKR (MBER) 6,000,000,000 60,000  6,000,000,000 60,000
Total st 26,000,000,000 1,060,000 26,000,000,000 1,060,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
Ordinary Shares E@R 9,722,276,727 486,114  9,680,413,727 484,021

A summary of the movements in the Company's issued capital during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

HE_ ST _=F#rK-_ZFE-__+_A
= t+—HIEFERRETBEETRAE S
AN

Issued Capital BEITRE
Number of
Ordinary Share
Shares in Issued premium
issue capital account Total
LERHE BETRE R R ER Bt
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fifsE TET TET TET
At 1 January 2022 R_E__#—-F—H 9,621,242,726 481,062 1,080,868 1,661,930
Issue of ordinary shares BTEER @) 59,171,001 2,959 47,227 50,186
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 WM_E-_F+_B=+—H
kR_E-=%#—HF—H 9,680,413,727 484,021 1,128,095 1,612,116
Issue of ordinary shares BOLBER (0) 41,863,000 2,093 34,029 36,122
At 31 December 2023 W_E_=&#+"F=1+—H 9,722,276,727 486,114 1,162,124 1,648,238
Notes: sk

(a) 59,171,001 Ordinary Shares were issued upon exercise of certain share options for
proceeds totalling HK$39,645,000 during the year of 2022. The proceeds of issues upon
exercise of certain share options had been applied toward general working capital of the
Group.

(b) 41,863,000 Ordinary Shares were issued upon exercise of certain share options for
proceeds totalling HK$28,048,000 during the year of 2023. The proceeds of issues upon
exercise of certain share options had been applied toward general working capital of the
Group.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

() A _FERRTEETHERE
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

() Share option scheme of the Company

(A) 2010 share option scheme

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a share
option scheme (the “2010 Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives

to participants to contribute to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
high-calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to

the Group. Participants of the 2010 Scheme include employee, officer, agent,
consultant, business associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary
or otherwise contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive,
non-executive or independent non-executive director of the Company or any
subsidiary, who, as the board of directors or a committee comprising directors and
members of the senior management of the Company (as the case may be) may
determine in its absolute discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of
the Group based on his working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors, and subject to such conditions as the board of directors or such
committee (as the case may be) may think fit.

The overall limit on the number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2010 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not,

in aggregate, exceed 30% of the number of Ordinary Shares in issue from time
to time. In addition, the total number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted together with all options to be granted under
the 2010 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must
not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Ordinary Shares
in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2010 Scheme (the “2010 Scheme
Mandate Limit"). The Company may, from time to time, refresh the 2010 Scheme
Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of the shareholders in general meeting.
Once refreshed, the total number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Scheme and all other share
option schemes of the Company under the limit, as refreshed, must not exceed
10% of the number of Ordinary Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshment by the Shareholders.

The 2010 Scheme Mandate Limit amounted to 878,060,472 Ordinary Shares
following the approval of refreshment by the Shareholders on 16 June 2017,

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

31. BERHESTE

) E2BZERETR

B ZE—FEERETE
RN_E—FBENB_+tHAH A2 TEB
TEREERMN—BEERESE (22—
ZFEFHE))  EERAREAEBREHERZ
SHEERERBE HELAEETIREE
FRER/ ARSI HEAEBEEBEZAD
BR - ZZE—ZFHEZ2HEEGELAR
BAREMNNBARZEE SREBE
B -ER EBSEBRHIARAELER
BB EMRZEMAL 8FKAT K
EAKMEBRBEMAIT  IERNITHBILIE
HTES MEEGHIHEILATEEZKRDS
BEBEANEERZZEEG RB\ERAME) &
EZRETFERR TEN#R R EMAERE
ZEURTEEETRZEZEE (RB\RM
E) AERAEB2BHR I2REHNBR
EERATREBAEBEEEANER.

HRE T —FF5F REAREEMAMEM
BRESEFREERRITEZRA KR
TEEREETEMAI FTETZEBRY
BZERRE cHEIASBETRKEET
BERBE Z30% It REBE T —=
FEtB A REEMEMBRESE B
EhEGFREZAEBREESTEMAF
HT2EBRBEC SHITBBERMZ
T-EEHIEOMACETEEREE
Z210% ((ZTZE—ZF 5B TE LR K&
ABAAREBANRRAEG EEGRERA
BEUBEM —_ T —FFAHERELR-—F
—TEFIRELR—EEH  FREZ
T -ZEFHBREATREEMBRES
BRFRHZPIAEBREETEMY ¥ &
TZEBEREE RECEMLRARFE
BRFEHLEENEAERTEBRHEBZ
10%

KERER-ZZE—tE A +NBHREERN
% —ZT-—TF5EIRE LIR7878,060,472

R E AR o
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(A) 2010 share option sScheme (Continuea)

The maximum number of Ordinary Shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the 2010 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the Ordinary Shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date
of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2010 Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the board of directors or such committee, save that such
period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board
may otherwise determine, there is no minimum period required under the 2010
Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or such
committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Ordinary Shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Ordinary Shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Ordinary
Shares.

The 2010 Scheme was valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on 29 June 2010 and expired on 29 June 2020. Upon expiry of the 2010
Scheme, no further share options should be granted thereunder. The share options
granted under the 2010 Scheme which remained outstanding immediately prior
to the expiry of the 2010 Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of grant and the 2010 Scheme.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(B) 2021 share option Scheme

On 18 January 2021, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a
new share option scheme (the “2021 Scheme”) for the purpose to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that participants have made or may make to the
Group, to provide incentives and/or reward to participants for their contributions
to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and/
or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group. Participants of the
20271 Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business associate
or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise contributes to
the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary who, as the Board

or a committee comprising Directors and members of senior management of
the Company (as the case may be) may determine in its absolute discretion, is
regarded as valuable human resources of the Group who has made important
contributions to the development of the Group based on his work experience,
knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors, and subject to such
conditions as the Board or such committee (as the case may be) may think fit,
The 2021 Scheme will remain in force for period of 10 years commencing on 18
January 2021.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2021 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the number of Shares in issue from time to time. In addition,

the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options

to be granted under the 2021 Scheme and any other share option schemes

of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount

of all the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2021 Scheme (the
2021 Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company may, from time to time, refresh
the 20271 Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of the shareholders

in general meeting. Once refreshed, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2021 Scheme and all
other share option schemes of the Company under the limit, as refreshed, must
not exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the refreshment by the Shareholders. On the basis of 9,496,332,726 Shares

in issue on the date of adoption of the 2021 Scheme, the maximum number of
shares that may be issued upon exercise of share options that may be granted
under it is 949,633,272 Shares. As at the date of this report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the 2021 Scheme is 843,689,271, representing
approximately 8.68% of the existing number of issued Shares.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

31. BRRESE @
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2HEGR AEENBAEERALIRS
BHAEBREREHEESMNAEEREZ
BEEANBR - _E-—FHEABEE-=
——F—HB+/\BEF0EFERER -

HITERE_ZE - —F58 RAAFEM
HMERESBFRHIERRITEZRA
BMARTEBREMA FETZRMBEE
BRLR GRASBETHEETROK
BZ30%e thoh > RITERE T — —F 5t
B KA R EME ) E A BB AR HE S8R T 1
ZFREBREMA FTETZRMDBE 5
HABBBRM _Z_—F5t8EHFFRA
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RELR)) - ARFIAKEBRRKRREKR
TLERRRMEUEM _T - —F5t3)
RELBR - —T - —F5ERBE LB K
FH RATERBE S - —F5t8RERQ
SIFfTEEMBRES IR TFRUEZAAER
REMAFETZRMNDBE RBEEN
FRASBERRMEETHERSETR
PEEZ10% - BEHRM —ZT ——F5tEH
HAE 317899,496,332, 726 B A& 17 » AT RE#R b
RENBEREETERIEETHNERSR
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(B) 2021 share option Scheme (Continuea)

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the 2021 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date of grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2021 Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the Board or such committee, save that such period shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board may otherwise
determine, there is no minimum period required under the 2021 Scheme for the
holding of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or such
committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Shares on the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding during the year:

31. BB @

() FATZERESE (&

B ZE-——FEREZ (B)
RAEMI2E B BB ANRIEERETETT
2 FFHABEBTEAERZHEEZR
NEE REZAEBBARRANERZE T
BEEETRDZ 1% - TAE—FTRHB
HIE FRZEBREBNREATERKRE
#HkE o

BE_Z - —F58REBREZZHT
REXN B 2H AR MARAER
MM EHIBTZREAAEB-ERD
BREZTEHHEFENEHREESEE
EEERARAASBERD HHES +
F-RIFEFERTHERR “T_—F5t8
WHEREETEMRFAEBREZREH
fR o

BREZTHEEREFTAZEZETE
EIERBER TIRBEZESE()RN R
FERR R B HRTE M S PR 2 IR 18 S (DAR 1D
RERRE B LA BEBRZ
FHRHE ; KR OEE-

BRETERFIHE ARBEREHNEKRE
REREZIER]-

FARERTEBRENT !

Weighted

average Number of

exercise price options

MEFITEE B ESE

Notes (HK$ per share) '000

B & (8RBT T3

At 1 January 2022 N _E__F—H—H 0.67 283,690

Granted during the year REREH (a) 1.30 15,304

Forfeited/expired during the year RERRYEI (b) 0.75 (7,261)

Exercised during the year RERTE © 0.67 (59,171)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 A B "HE+"A=+—Hk ©)

2" =%—HF—H 0.71 232,202

Forfeited/expired during the year RERRIZIH (b) 1.16 (4,639)

Exercised during the year RERTE ) 0.67 (41,863)

At 31 December 2023 W_E2-=F+-A=+—8H (A, ¢ 0.71 185,700
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Equity-settled share option expenses of HK$8,633,000 (2022: HK$17,743,000)
was recognized in profit or loss in respect of the share options granted under the
2010 Scheme and 2021 Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Notes:

(a) The fair values of the share options granted under the 2021 Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2022 were approximately HK$5,540,000 in aggregate, which were
estimated as at the respective dates of grant using a binominal model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

Dividend vield (%) % 52 (%)

Expected volatility (%) TEHR R 18 (%)
Expected life of options (years) FE AR T HR R HR (4F)
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 8 B A 2 (%)

(b) 4,639,000 (2022: 7,621,000) share options granted under the 2010 Scheme and
2021 Scheme were forfeited/expired during the year ended 31 December 2023,

(c) Total 41,863,000 (2022: 59,171,000) share options granted under the 2010
Scheme and 2021 Scheme were exercised during the year ended 31 December 2023.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

. BRRESE @
() ZT=2TZERETE (@)
RBEE_SE_=Z=F+-_B=+—HL=E
E MRE_ZS-—ZSFEFB KT _—%
E+§IJF)H§&ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%&ﬁ““ﬁ&muw&m%
ZEEN RS 248,633,00008 7 (2 -
£ 1 17,743,00058 7T) ©

5%

@ RBE_T-__F+-_HA=+—HLHE
B REBEZZ - —FEMEUBERENATE
B HAIA5,540,0008 70 HIEE BB REREZ
Rk EEER - RABEANE B R L AAE
1T1E5t e TRIVTAAERRN Z WA

5.1

43.2 -52.3
0.08-8
01-238

b)) REE_E_=Z=F+"HF=+—HLE
B RE_S—SEHIR_ZS_—FHEEE
24,639,00019 (ZZ =4 : 7,621,00019) BBA&HE
/XH&/'HHO

© RE-F-FFHERF-—FFER
tH 2 &#£41,863,00013 (Z T Z 24 1 59,171,000
) BREERBEE_S_=F+_"A=+—H
IFEFEETE
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 31. BBRRESTE @

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) () LB ZEERESTE (&)

(d)  Asat 31 December 2023, the Company had 185,700,000 share options d RIZBEZI=F+ZBE=+—H &x28H
outstanding under 2021 Scheme, which represented approximately 1.9% of the Ordinary 185,700,0001%:%:—5d';'JIE—FZr']ﬂEﬁ@EEﬁ
Shares In issue as at 31 December 2023. K - HERZE_=F+"A=+—HzB%

TERERKLA9%-

(€)  The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the ) RERSPRERITEEREZTHEERT
end of the reporting period are as follows: ERAE W -
2023 —E-=
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEEY TEHE
('000) (HK$ per share)
(F4) (SKR&ERT)
31,182 0.67 18/1/2022 to 17/1/2027 —E__E—B+N\BEZZE-tE—RA+tH
53,171 0.67 18/1/2023 to 17/1/2028 —E_=F—B+N\BEZZE-N\F—HB+tH
3,560 1.30 8/7/2023 to 7/7/2028 —EZ=FtBAN\BEZZEZ)N\FEtBtH
90,667 0.67 18/1/2024 to 17/1/2029 —Z_WE—-RA+/\BEZZE-_AKE—A+tH
3,560 1.30 8/7/2024 to 7/7/2029 “E-_MELtBN\BEZZ-hAEtHAtH
3,560 1.30 8/7/2025 to 7/7/2030 —E_HREtANBE_E=ZEtHtH
185,700
2022 —_E_
Number of options Exercise price™ Exercise period
BEiREHE TEE 1TEHE
('000) (HKS per share)
(F13) (ZRAET)
562 0.67 18/1/2021 to 17/1/2023 B EF—B+N\BEZZEZ=F—A+tH
34,002 0.67 18/1/2022 to 17/1/2027 B2 FE—B+N\BEZZZtE—A+tH
91,667 0.67 18/1/2023 to 17/1/2028 —E-F—B+N\BEZZEN\FE—B+tH
4,768 1.30 8/7/2023 to 7/7/2028 B -FTtANBEZZINELBtH
91,667 0.67 18/1/2024 to 17/1/2029 “EME-—B+N\HE_ZE-AFE—B+tH
4,768 1.30  8/7/2024 to 7/7/2029 “ETMELBNBEE_AEtLBtH
4,768 1.30  8/7/2025 to 7/7/2030 TECHETRBN\BEIE=ZEtLHAtH
232,202
The exercise prices of the share options are subject to adjustment in the event of - BRETHEEINER TLTTEEHﬁZME
any capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation, sub-division or reduction of the share BTN ER S RASH - RS HR (B 1TEER

capital of the Company (other than issuance of Ordinary Shares as consideration in respect EARZREERIN FIEHBE
of a transaction)
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the exercise in full of the outstanding share
options under the 2021 Scheme would, under the present capital structure

of the Company, result in the issue of 185,700,000 additional Ordinary

Shares and additional share capital of HK$9,285,000 and share premium of
HK$121,862,000, before taking into account any transfer of share option reserve
to the share premium account.

(I1) Share option scheme of a subsidiary

Bossini, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 592), operates
share option schemes for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the operations of the Bossini
Group.

The share option scheme which Bossini was adopted on 12 November 2013
(the “2013 Bossini Share Option Scheme”) has expired on 12 November 2023.
Following the expiration of the 2013 Bossini Share Option Scheme, no further
share option was allowed to be granted thereunder but the provisions of it shall
remain in full force and effect in all other respects. Bossini adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2023 Bossini Share Option Scheme”, together with the
2013 Bossini Share Option Scheme, the “Bossini Share Option Schemes”) on 15
December 2023, which remains in force for a period of 10 years commencing for
its effective date on 20 December 2023.

The eligible participants of the Bossini Share Option Schemes include any director
or any employee of Bossini or any of its subsidiaries from time to time and are
determined to be qualified for the share options by the board of directors.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in Bossini Share Option Schemes within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the total number of shares of Bossini in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining
from voting in case of 2013 Bossini Share Option Scheme and with such eligible
participants and his/her close associates (or associates if such eligible participant
is a connected person of Bossini) abstaining from voting in case of 2023 Bossini
Share Option Scheme.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

. BRRESE @

() ZTLTZERETE (@)
R|EPR RIBA AT IR EREE
T FHEETHROTEBEREES
ITE®R > BB EEINEETT185,700,0000 &8
% > $E1S EE MR A9,285,00078 7o R BR 17 75 1B
121,862,000 75 (R 51 Kz {1 10] B A% 1 o
BERMDBELR) o

() MEBABZEKRESS
TRBZIFEEWB AT ERMEE ERMHR
B SXPr EMR £ 0 IR LS 1 592) REBR
Bt SEHERERHEMESEREXE
BEENMNFHEMZGERSRAE-

EMER_T—=F+—A+-HHE®MKN
BriEStE (T2 —=FEMNEBRE
gBNERZE_=F+—HA+"HEm®M-"

“E-—FEMEERESIEWRE T
SREZAERLE-—FTERE BHRK

REFMBEMAENAERE TN NI RIFE

B-EMER_TE_=F+"RF+HEHK
,\\Pﬂ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ& sE (T2 =—FEMERR
#st8  BER_E-—=FEHEBRES
Blmmn TEMERRESS)) &=5tE 8
EMAPR T _=F+"B -+ HEF0
FHIBER -

ENERERESINCERZAECREER
MEXNEETAMNBARDTHNERNESENR
EHEE THEFTEEESAERE
SERE-

EEE2{E R HE RN REBREDEMEE
BRESINEREERSHEBLTHIR
PEE LRAEMEREARENE#EIT
B0 MBI % o R AT BB L IR ER Ry & —
TIERBEAKKRRERRAE LHE B
H2REREBBABRL S —=FEMN
HE%HR%JEWME&E’EﬁEﬁA%j@%
HERHEEHBEA (HHEHSERS A
EREMERAEAL BISBMEAN) TFA
—E T -FENERRESINERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £ 5§

247



248

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(Il) Share option scheme of a subsidiary (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from

the date of offer, upon receipt the acceptance and payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 from the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting
period and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the share options. Share options granted during the term of Bossini
Share Option Schemes and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end

of the 10-year period of Bossini Share Option Schemes shall continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within the exercise period

for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of Bossini Share
Option Schemes. The board of directors of Bossini was allowed to impose a
vesting period on the share options granted under 2013 Bossini Share Option
Scheme which shall follow the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules with
effect from 1 January 2023. The vesting period of any particular share option

of 2023 Bossini Share Option Scheme shall not be less than 12 months except
in the following circumstances: (a) grants of “make-whole” share options to new
joiners to replace the share awards or share options they forfeited when leaving
their previous employers; (b) grants that are made in batches during a year for
administrative and compliance reasons; or (c) grants of share options with a mixed
or accelerated vesting schedule such as where the share options may vest evenly
over a period of 12 months.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but

may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Bossini’'s shares on the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the shares of Bossini for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii), if applicable the nominal value of the shares
of Bossini on the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the 2013 Bossini Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of Bossini shall not exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue on 12 November 2013, the date of adoption of the 2013
Bossini Share Option Scheme. Following the expiration of the 2013 Bossini Share
Option Scheme, no further share option could be granted thereunder. The total
number of Bossini's shares which may be issued in respect of all share options
and awards to be granted under the 2023 Bossini Share Options Scheme and
any other share option schemes or share award schemes of Bossini shall not
exceed 10% of the Bossini's shares in issue as at 15 December 2023. The
number of shares issuable under the 2023 Bossini Share Option Scheme was
332,272,017, which represented 10% of Bossini's shares in issue as at 15
December 2023.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
(Il) Share option scheme of a subsidiary (Continued)
The following share options were outstanding during the year:

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H

. Bkt (|
() MEBABZEIKRESS (&)
FAHERTEBRENT !

Weighted

average Number of

exercise price options

MEFITEE BREHE

Notes (HK$ per share) '000

B 5E (BRAET) F15

At 1 January 2022 N _E__F—HF—H 0.58 108,893
Granted during the year REARKREH (@) 0.59 29,000
Forfeited/expired during the year RERRU ZH © 0.54 (37,091)
Exercised during the year REARTHE (d) 0.46 (4,608)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZE-_—_F#+"B=+—H

kR—ZE-_=F—FB—H (M 0.61 96,194

Granted during the year RERKE (b) 0.28 43,031
Forfeited/expired during the year RERRY,FIH (0) 0.48 (55,592)
Adjusted during the year RERNRBE ) 0.61 184
Cancelled during the year R F R 1.06 (15,031)
At 31 December 2023 R_E_=%+_"_H=+—H (f) 0.40 68,786

Equity-settled share option credit of HK$1,250,000 (2022: share option expenses
of HK$6,700,000) was recognized in profit or loss in respect of the share options
granted during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Notes:

(a) The fair values of the share options granted during the year ended 31 December
2022 were HK$6,694,000 in aggregate, which were estimated as at the respective dates
of grant using a binominal model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) A B2 (%)

Expected volatility (%) FERA R 18 (%)

Expected life of options (years) EREEHERR (F)
Risk-free interest rate (%) 7 2L B A 2 (%)

REE_E_=F+"_A=+—HIHF
B ERETEERIDUIRELS
B EREIKEA1250,0008T (CE -
F : BERRHERI6,700,00087T) °

MsE -

@ RB&E_TZ-__F+"A=+—HILHE
}#’Fﬁ%éﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂéﬁ’l AT E S H 76,694,000

ThiEE BIERER N Z MR FER =R
‘t%ﬁ‘tﬁf%@hﬁlﬂ,ﬂﬂ 1T 5t o FRIRATE
BEREXZBARE

4.09-4.84
69.17-71.34
6.0
2.03-3.67
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
(I) Share option scheme of a subsidiary (Continued)
Notes:

(b)  The fair values of the share options granted during the year ended 31 December
2023 were HK$4,040,000 in aggregate, which were estimated as at the respective dates
of grant using a binominal model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) B B2 (%)

Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%)

Expected life of options (vears) FEACRETERR R (B
Risk-free interest rate (%) i [ B A 2K (%)

(c) 55,592,000 (2022: 37,091,000) share options granted were forfeited/expired
during the year ended 31 December 2023 upon the resignation of certain grantees during
the year.

(d) Nil (2022:4,608,000) share options granted were exercised during the year ended
31 December 2023.

(e)  Total 184,000 share options were adjusted upon completion of right issue on 28
April 2023,

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

b REEZSE-_=F+"B=+—HLE
o Fﬁ?“ﬂ:’n%ﬁx%ﬁﬁ@zFﬁm,\%llOllOOOO%
T TR E BRERER B 2GR REHER
NEXNEZBERE BERET T T%%@JTPJ?@
AEX @A SR

4.09-4.86
65.90-73.26
5.0-8.0
3.810-3.806

© RBEEZE-_=Z=F+"-A=+—HILHE
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7)) BREENRERE TARABTEHR R,
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31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 31. i =l & |
() Share option scheme of a subsidiary (Continued) n MEBATEZ! BB G I Lt B (48)
Notes: 5T -

() The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at M  REREFHRERTEBREZITEER

the end of the reporting period are as follows: TERAREIET -
2023 —E-=F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BIREHE TEE* 1TFEERR
('000) (HKS per share)
(F4) (BR#ET)
9,582 0.456 1 Jan 2022 to 31 Dec 2026 —E-__#—H—-RAE-_E-_A®E+-A=+—H
11,586 0.456 1 Jan 2023 to 31 Dec 2026 —E-=f—H—-HAE-E-A#+-A=+—H
10,599 0.456 1 Jan 2024 to 31 Dec 2026 —E_NE—B—HEZZEZAFE+ZH=1+—H
333 1.060 16 Nov 2022 to 15 Nov 2027 —E__f+—B+XBE-E_t&+—H+HA
335 1.060 16 Nov 2023 to 15 Nov 2027 —E_=f+—B+AHEZZ-t&E+—H+EH
335 1.060 16 Nov 2024 to 15 Nov 2027 “E_NE+—RBR+AHEZE-tE+—HB+HH
1,669 0.660 23 Mar 2023 to 22 Mar 2028 ZE--E-HZ+=ZHEZEZ/N\E=B=+Z=H
1,669 0.660 23 Mar 2024 to 22 Mar 2028 —E_mE=-B-+=ZHEZZE-N\F=ZHZ-+=H
1,671 0.660 23 Mar 2025 to 22 Mar 2028 “ETRF=RAZ+=REZEZ/\F=RA=+CH
1,002 0.390 17 Nov 2023 to 16 Nov 2028 —EB_=f+—B+tHEZZEZN\E+—AB+7H
1,002 0.390 17 Nov 2024 to 16 Nov 2028 “EIEE+—RA+tREZSEZN\F+—A+AH
1,002 0.390 17 Nov 2025 to 16 Nov 2028 —EBE_RE+—B+tHEZZEZN\E+—AB+7H
9,332 0.275 20 Jun 2024 to 19 Jun 2029 “ETEEARIHHEZSCASEARBTAHE
9,332 0.275 20 Jun 2025 to 19 Jun 2030 —E_REARBZ+HHEZZ=ZZEEHA+ANH
9,337 0.275 20 Jun 2026 to 19 Jun 2031 ZEZAREANBZ+HEZZE=—F/A+ANH
68,786
2022 —ECCF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE TEERE
('000) (HK$ per share)
(F%) (BRAET)
15,276 0.456 1 Jan 2022 to 31 Dec 2026 —E_HF—B—HE_B_AE+"-_A=+—H
16,942 0.456 1 Jan 2023 to 31 Dec 2026 TEC=HF—B—RBEE_F+B=+—H
16,976 0.456 1 Jan 2024 to 31 Dec 2026 —E_NME-B—HE_EB_AE+-A=+—H
5,996 1.060 16 Nov 2022 to 15 Nov 2027 - _F+—B+HEZ_t&+—B+EH
6,002 1.060 16 Nov 2023 to 15 Nov 2027 B -F+—A+ANAEE-_tE+—HB+AaH
6,002 1,060 16 Nov 2024 to 15 Nov 2027 2 NE+—B+ABE_Z_t&+—B+EH
6,997 0.660 23 Mar 2023 to 22 Mar 2028 B CE=-B"+=HE_E_)N\FE=A”"+_"H
6,997 0.660 23 Mar 2024 to 22 Mar 2028 TETNE=ZA+=ZHE_E-_N\F=ZB_+_H
7,006 0.660 23 Mar 2025 to 22 Mar 2028 B RE=B_+=HE_E-_)N\FE=A”"+_H
2,666 0.390 17 Nov 2023 1o 16 Nov 2028 B =F+—A+tHAE_E-_)N\F+—H+xH
2,666 0.390 17 Nov 2024 to 16 Nov 2028 —ECNE+—A+tHEZE-N\FE+—B+/H
2,668 0.390 17 Nov 2025 to 16 Nov 2028 _ECRE+—A+tHAE_E-_)N\FE+—H+<H
96,194
* The exercise prices of the share options are subject to adjustment in the event of ’ L BRRETEER ‘iﬁﬁﬂi%\gi’%?_ E@:éz‘ﬂb
any capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation, sub-division or reduction of the share ééﬁ;ﬁi\ﬁi HQZIK?T# ﬁzﬁﬂ?«zﬁgﬁ (BEITEER
capital of Bossini (other than issuance of Ordinary Shares as consideration in respect of a R ZNEERIN) BIFHAEEE
transaction)
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

32. PERPETUAL CONVERTIBLE BONDS
The perpetual convertible bonds issued are as follows:

32. KAMARRRES
BETZKAMETBRRESNOT -

2023 2022

—E=H - Sl 5

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Perpetual convertible bonds KA AT BB 25 810,621 810,621

On 30 August 2013, the Company entered into the Deed with Victory Mind
Assets Limited and Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited to advance the
timetable for the possible issuance of earn-out perpetual convertible bonds in
relation to the acquisition of approximately 25.2% equity interest of Li Ning Co
in December 2012. The execution and performance of the Deed were approved
in the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders on 4 November 2013. The
garn-out perpetual convertible bonds with a fair value of HK$1,140,000,000
were issued in advance in November 2013 and were classified as equity and
the related derivative financial liabilities were derecognised at the same time,
the financial impact of which was based on the fair value of earn-out perpetual
convertible bonds upon the Deed becoming effective.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no conversion of
perpetual convertible bonds into ordinary shares.

33. RESERVES

() The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i) The share option reserve represents the fair value of share options vested
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy of
share-based payments in Note 2.3 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when the related share options
are exercised, or transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses should the
related share options lapse or be forfeited.

(i) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-owned enterprise, a
portion of the profits of the Group’s wholly-owned-subsidiary which is established
in the PRC has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

(iv)  The hedging reserve includes the cash flow hedge reserve, see Note 17 for
details. The cash flow hedge reserve is used to recognise the effective portion of
gains or losses on derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges.
Amounts are subsequently either transferred to the initial cost of inventory or
reclassified to profit or loss as appropriate.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

A TE—=FN\NB=+H>A&RQ5E HVictory

Mind Assets Limited5zDragon City Management (PTC)
Limited 3T 37 2248 > LUERI R — B — — &
+Z BB A B #425.2% 8% T AJ Ak 25
TERAMENKAMITARESFNEREER-
LR ZEIRBTR _E—=F+—BI@
BHETHRRFINAG LEESHE -2
F{E#351,140,000,00078 7T 2 B F) 8 71K A4
MR ESERZZ—=F+—BRa#E
ToUREAED R BEATLERFE
BELLBRI HEYBEENLRENZE
FTHERNAEMETKAMITBRES ZA
TEE-

BE_ZT_="FkRZIZB_-_F+°H
=t+t—BLEFE BEXAMIRRES
BN EER

33. f#E
) HSEERI—EFEAEEEESER
H#E R el gemRN 2o

(i) BREREBRECBBERTERERE
ZARVE E—FFBHNMBRRME
2P LIRMEMNZ Gt R - BRAEER
RN ARBREETEREBREERMDEE
AR 0 SRS 7 R R AR SR R T AR R AL Ry 8
ERBEHM,REERE

i) REEZEEBFCLEFZIEBERRZE
R AEBRPABENILZEZENE QB
DENEBARRFARZEEES -

v HTREEBEEERESAENFEHB
BERMNEE17 - REREH B AN
BiEERMNEREABR PZITETRR
mZAMED HEBEREBBREFEZA
I AHEMDRERTE (HER) °



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

33. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(v)  Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign controlled entity
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate
reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when
the net investment is disposed of,

34. NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Viva QiLe Limited (previously as LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited), a

wholly owned subsidiary, holds 51% equity interest of Clark. The details of non-

controlling interest of Clark Group are set out below:

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

33. #EE®

v MESNEEFERELENEREZER
Hth2EmWAFER TR EaP—IHE
BREETERB BTN EEFRER
B OfEEEGe

4. BEEAREERERZIEZEM
BATE

— 2B B AT Viva QiLe Limited (5178

LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited) #E7 Clark

51%RZHE o ClarkEE B 2 FRIE R R 5F 1B H T

Wr:

2023 2022
= —E_C
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling EERERFENRER DL
interests 49% 74%
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) allocated to non-controlling interest DEFIEERERAEF),
(E518) (241,139) 91,756
Divided paid to non-controlling interest TR FIFERERNRE - 46,795
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests at the ~ FEIERGRETEFA R &5 H HARY
reporting date REtEER 1,215,975 2,396,105
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

34. NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of Clark Group.

34. BEEXERER ZIFZEM
B AT (®)
T3 R BAClarkeE B i B BV 2 o T i R 69

The amount disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

TEAEAEEANRSBRFHRIEEE -

2023 2022
—EZ= —E-Z

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHBT

Note

B 5

Revenue & 9,646,492 5,390,187

Total costs and expenses B A T i 7 AR 2R (10,342,414) (5,057,481)

Profit/(loss) after tax prinBIET (B18) (524,856) 124,009

Total comprehensive 10ss SHEIBLEE (757,083) (397,452)

Current assets MBNEE 4,431,693 5,920,202

Non-current assets ERENE E 3,645,278 3,584,576

Current liabilities mMEAaRE (2,999,651) (3,604,069)

Non-current liabilities EREERE (2,595,738) (2,662,288)

Net cash flows generated from operating activities EiEERES IR RE F A 954,380 490,614

Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEHMBZREREFEE (591,426) (164,591)

Net cash flow used in financing activities MELZHTEZRER2/FEE (810,052) (502,238)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (including bank IR%& KIRE EEY) (BIEHET

overdraft) EX) FF B (447,008) (176,215)

Note: Amounts in relation to profit or loss and cash flows were for the period from 2 July
2022 (date of acquisition) to 31 December 2022.

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

As lessor

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group leased sports park facilities
and investment property to independent third parties under operating lease
arrangements, with each lease negotiated for a term of 1 to 12 years.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

Mzt : AREEEAREHRENSEA T —
FELtBE_H (WBAH) ZE_=_—
+-B=+—HERENEEE-

35. IEHEEZRH

ERLAEA
R_B_=ZFR_B__HFT_A=+—
B rx&ERECEHEZHABIE=
HHEEEERAERRENE  KEBEHEE
REBERSEEI2F-

N _E _=FR_E__F+_RB=1+—
H> AEBERBEB P ETILZ A 0] BiH &
EHEEMN T HEBESHHBERRE
FHSARZEWT -

2023 2022

—EF-= —F-=Z
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 10,396 6,494
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EF_EEAF (BIEEEMF) 21,751 12,544
Over five years EEME 18,737 5,044
50,884 24,082

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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36. COMMITMENTS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had the following commitments
for capital expenditure:

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

36. BEXRMZKIE
N _E - =—F KB

F+R=+—

B> AREBRESUT BN AE :

2023 2022
—EC=HE —EZCE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFABT
Contracted, but not provided for: ERESEES 1=
Property, plant and equipment M- BB MERE 32,632 81,733
Capital contribution/acquisition of joint ventures/associates S+ & W E = %
/N 17,091 17,604
49,723 99,337

37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with related parties in the ordinary

37. EXMEALRS
RIESMBHREREMBOFAFLZRZ
S AEBEFAEBEEHBETSRHE

course of business during the year: ATETUTEKRRS !
2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B =% FET FET
Marketing service income from associates REWE AR 2 THIGHEE
AR FS U A (i 264,192 237,752
Purchases from associates Al E QB RS (il 10,220 14,834
Sales of goods to an associate A—EEEABHEES R (i) 252,962 239,679
Office and car-park rental expense MBS AR ZWAE
to associates EEBEERY (iv) 9,988 9,978
Dividend received from associates BWE QB ZKRE W) 273,746 167,929
Consultancy and other service income KE—EBE AR BB &
from an associate HMARFE WA (vi) 1,568 1,103
Sales of goods to a non-controlling m—%IEERKRERFEESm
shareholder (vii) 1,485 -
Consultancy fee paid to a non-controlling A—RIEERKRRESE N2
shareholder BEEE& (viil) - 6,972
Purchase from a non-controlling shareholder ¥R B — & IEIERS RS &= (ix) 6,212 42,360
Sales of goods 1o a joint venture m—EeEtEHESR (x) 25,630 31,354

(i Marketing service income from LN Group™ and Double Happiness™ in
relation to some sports events and competitions and the endorsement of brand
products of LN Group* and Double Happiness® managed by the Group, was
charged in accordance with the terms negotiated between the related parties.

(i) Purchases in relation to brand products of LN Group* and Double
Happiness®, was charged in accordance with the terms negotiated between the
related parties”.

) WMEHAEEEEzETREREEKE
ERFEERMMIEE ZRBERNSEM
REBEE RALE RN HHEBRE
WL AR AEABRART A9 73 19 TE Z IR RR ULE

iy HRFEBEER KRALE mHEE®DHEBE
PREE IS ABRA ST 4977 17 1€ BYARRR UL ©
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37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(i) Sales of goods in relation to brand products of the Group to LN Group*,
was charged in accordance with the terms negotiated between the Group and LN
Group*.

(iv)  During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group leased
certain offices and car-parking spaces from LN Group™ and Double Happiness™.
The lease rates were determined after arm’s length negotiations between the
related parties with reference to current prevailing market rate.

(v)  The dividend received were made pursuant to the dividend rates proposed
and declared by Li Ning Co* and Double Happiness™.

(viy  The consultancy and other service income was charged in accordance with
the terms of an agreement entered into between the Group and an associate.

(vil)  Sales of goods to a non-controlling shareholder was charged in accordance
with the terms negotiated between the Group and the non-controlling shareholder.

(viii) ~ The consultancy fee was charged in accordance with the terms of an
agreement entered into between the Group and the non-controlling shareholder.

(ix)  Cost of purchase paid and payable were charged in accordance with the
terms negotiated between the Group and the non-controlling shareholder.

(x)  Sales of goods to a joint venture was charged in accordance with the terms
negotiated between the Group and the joint venture.

Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Qilin, the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, are common directors of the
Company, LN Group and Double Happiness.

(a) Outstanding balances with related parties
Details of the Group's balances with related parties are disclosed in Notes 5, 20
and 24 to the financial statements.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
Details of directors’ emoluments and highest paid individuals are included in Notes
8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

All related party transactions set out in this note did not fall within the definition of

“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14a of
the Listing Rules.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

37. EXHEALIRS @

i)y HEFFTEEERNFIEEARMELE
Ao £ 6 TR IR I A 5 [ 6 == B AR 47 E BV AR
TR ULER ©

vy REBEE_ZE_=FK_ZT__F+=
B=+—HLEEE ZxEBHRAF=ER"
RAEES Z2ETMRERFE - BRIME
EDHAMEETAOR2ERITHHKELR
THEEBEE -

*

ok

v BUREDREBEFEAGRAE
BEKRERZRERERE -

(v EERREMARFERAREASERRE—
BB E A B 5T 1L 2 h 5 B R TR URER

i) MWIFERRKRRBESRDBERER
£ JEIE RS BR SR 1 E AR R UK ER & A1 o

(i) EREREANEEBIFERRKRREIL
2 1% & Y AR AR UL B

) BENkECHENFERENEERNA
TR R AR R 17 T 2 A5 AR USCER ©

N M—2EECXHEGRDRELE
BEGERRHE ZRRE

TERERTHBBALE (EHEENET)
AFAT FERARAYEZ HAEE

(a) BIEALTZXR(TEER
AEHHHEMBEBEATERZEBEIMBERER
MEsED ~ 202243 BB o

(b) FTEETEEEASZHM
ERESEMEhESHATZFE 25
EYNZECE R N

KM EFEZPAAEREALTRZ L RNBR
EHRAE14BBETRESR RERXZ ) &
FFERIER 57 °



38. ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

On 17 November 2022, Viva China Consumables Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group and the LionRock Capital GP Limited entered into a sale
and purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of the remaining 49%
interest in Viva Qile Limited. Pursuant to the agreement, Viva China Consumables
Limited agreed to acquire 490 shares of the Viva Qile Limited at the consideration
of GBP114,900,000 (approximately HK$1,084,660,000).

Following the shareholders’ approval of the agreement at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 18 January 2023, the acquisition was completed in

late January 2023 and Viva Qile Limited become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group and the effective interest of the Group on Clark Group increased from 26%

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

31 December 2023 —EBE_=#+"H=+—H
W HEIE IR
ﬁé_v T E+—RB+tH x&EBE
ENBATENFTEHERERL T H
LionRock Capital GP Limited it We B&Viva Qile Limited
iJ BRAI R B EEWmE - RIEBEZWH
DERNFEEESRERABBREURE
114,900,000%%% (%91,084,660,0007 7T) Uk B8
Viva Qile LimitedB94908& & 15 ©

ZWmER _E_=F—B+/\BHHNARQF
REFAG LEREHER  WEEE
RIZEZ=F—H NE5%AM  Viva Qe Limited
RAEAEENEZERNBAR RAERR

t0 51%. ClarkE B B9 7B XU #E 7 26 %18 N ZE51% ©
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration RERE 1,084,660
Less: Non-controlling interests attributable to the Clark SPA & : JEIZERZ B B iR Clark & B 177 5% H FE (G #E 2 (1,360,029
Amount to be recognised in reserves — acquisition of non- FYEEE PSR = RE— IR BB IEITI R
controlling interests (275,369

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023:

39. MBABFE
R_Z_=F+_H=1+—HXEHRBL
Bl BAIRIMT

Place of Issued

incorporation/ ordinary

registration shares/paid up Percentage of equity Principal
Company name and operations capital attributable to the Company activities

AR BRITLER
ASE REEHE BRkRE FRAARGREIEILE TEEH

Direct Indirect
E# ik

Viva China Development Limited BVI US$1 & HK$2,079,000,000 100% - Investment holding
ERFEERERAA RBREUHE 12575 %2,079,000,000% 7 RE R
Winner Rich Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding
AHEREERAA B 1A REER
Viva Goods Sports Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$520,000 100% - Investment holding
FRNBUREERBRAR B 520,000 7T REER
Viva China Community Development Holdings Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
FERAEHEREERERAT HEELHE (EH REER
Viva China Premier Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100% Investment holding
FERHEEHNERRAR B 1A RERR
Viva China Consumables Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
FRAAEHERERAS HEELHE 1% RELR

257
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

39. MEBABIFE @

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary
registration shares/paid up Percentage of equity Principal
Company name and operations capital  attributable to the Company activities
SR s BRITLER
SRR REEME BERE FAARGERFEILE  FEEHR
Direct Indirect
H# il
Dragon Leap Consumables Limited BvI US$1 - 100% Investment holding
REHERERAR EBERUHE ESr BREER
KERZEEREESBRAR PRC RMB150,000,000 = 100%  Investment holding
HE AR #150,000,00075 RERK
BRBEEENBREBAX(EEXRE PRC RMB125,000,000 = 100%  Investment holding
Hd (BREH) e AR #125,000,0007% BREER
FBENBEXCELZERRAR PRC RMB500,000 = 100%  Retaling and distribution of garments
(Note i)
HE AR #500,0007% BREERDH
(P 3H)
AR (L8) mEERERA PRC RMB301,650,000 - 100%  Property holding
(Note i)
HE AR #301,650,0007% MERE
(GiE)
FRBENE (LB BRAE PRC RMB25,780,000 = 100%  Retailing and distribution of garments
(Note i)
HE AR #25,780,0007T MREERDH
(B i)
BMNENBEXEBRAR PRC RMB300,000 = 100%  Sports park management and operation
HE AE#300,0007¢ REEEEREE
BTEBEEERRAR PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100%  Sports park management and operation
HE AR #1,000,0007 BEEEEREE
KETRERAXCEBEREMALE PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100%  Sports park management and operation
HE AE#1,000,0007c SEEEENEE

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 39. B ATIFE @

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary
registration shares/paid up Percentage of equity Principal
Company name and operations capital  attributable to the Company activities
SRR SR BRTLER/
NGk REEHE BERE FARAERGRFIEILE TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ei A
FNEHUREER (ER) BRAR PRC RMB144,740,000 = 100%  Sports talent management, competition
(Note Iv) and event production and
management, and sports-related
marketing and consultancy service
FE AR 144,740,000 BEATER BSREHUIE
(B 3Eiv) REBRBEEETIAEE
Kt AR
LERBRELREERAR PRC RMBO = 99%  production and distribution of sports
(Note v) content, management and marketing
of sports talents
HE N EENAMERZET BEAL
(P 5Ev) BERHHEE
BHEER (R BEERERAR PRC RMB14,312,160 = 100%  Operation of ice-skating rinks
(Note vi)
HE AE#14,312,1607T SERLE
(P =kvi)
BEEA (BB BAELSERAE PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Operation of ice-skating rinks
HE A #5,000,0007% SEBIKS
REMBERAREBBSAMERAR PRC RMBS,000,000 = 100%  Operation of ice-skating rinks
HE AR 15,000,000 SEBIKS
REERNEXBRAR PRC RMB45,000,000 = 70%  manufacturing of shoes
HE AE#45,000,0007¢ LEER
Active Link Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 62.9%  Retaling and distribution of garments
ShERRAF 5 5,000,000 7t MREERDH
Bossini Clothing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 62.9% Retailing and disribution of garments
BE 2BTT BREERD
Bossini Distribution Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 62.9% Retailing and disribution of garments
EREIHERAE B 187 BREER D
Bossini Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$?2 - 62.9% Retailing and distribution of garments
ERRECERRAT B AT RREER D H
Bossini Onmay International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 62.9%  Retaling and distribution of garments
EFRE L XERBRAF B AT RREERDH
Bossini Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 62.9% Distribution of garments
BE 2BTT RS
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31 December 2023 —E_=F+_HA=+—H

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

39. MEBABIFE @

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary
registration shares/paid up Percentage of equity Principal
Company name and operations capital  attributable to the Company activities
MM BRITLER
SRR REEME BERE FAARGERFEILE  FEEHR
Direct Indirect
E# il
Bossini Investment Limited BVI US$11,928 = 62.9%  Investment holding
HBRUES 11,928% 7T REZR
Bossini International Holdings Limited Bermuda HK$332,272,018 - 62.9% Investment holding
EHRERERFRAT ABRE 332,272,018 7% RELER
Bossini Retail Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 62.9%  Retaling and distribution of garments
&E 2B BREERDH
Bright Star Fashion Limited Macau MOP$25,000 - 62.9% Retailing and distribution of garments
BERERRLH RP 25,000/2F9 7T RREERDH
BN ERREEEXERAH PRC RMB1,010,000 - 62.9%  Retaiing and distribution of garments
HE AR#1,010,0007 MREERDH
ENERREEZERAR PRC RMB148,000,000 = 62.9%  Retaling and distribution of garments
HE A #148,000,0007T RREERDH
J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Lid. Singapore SGD2,000,000 = 62.9%  Retaiing and distribution of garments
I 2,000,000 103 7T BREERDH
Lead Commence Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 62.9% Retailing and distribution of garments
IRBEERRRAA B 28T RREERDH
Rapid City Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 62.9% Property holding and letting
BAHARAS &E 2B MERERAE
Viva China Premium Brands Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
FRHEEERBERAR ) 10,000/7T REER
a. Testoni S.p.A. [taly EURS,018,542 - 100% Sales of footwear and leather good
BAA 5,018 5428k 7T BEERREH@REE
a. Testoni Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100% Sales of footwear and leather good
EB 1,000,000 7C BERNEEREE
a. Testoni Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY50,000,000 = 100% Sales of footwear and leather good
B 50,000,008 & BEERREH@REE
a. Testoni Korea Co., Ltd. Korea KWD142,860,000 - 100% Sales of footwear and leather good
BE 142,860,00083 & BERNEEREE

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 39. B ATIFE @

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary
registration shares/paid up Percentage of equity Principal

Company name and operations capital  attributable to the Company activities
ML S BRITLER

NGB REEME BERE HAIARERIEILE  FTEER

Direct Indirect
E# i

Viva Qile Limited BvI GBP100,000,001 = 100% Investment holding
HEEUHES 100,000,001328% REER

(G&J Clark (No 1) Limited UK GBP100 - 51% Investment holding
HE 100558 LEER

C & J International Limited (GBP18,028,202 - 51%  Sales of footwear
HE 18,028,202 3% HEEHE

C. & J. Clark Retall, Inc. USA US$3,000 - 51%  Sales of footwear
%6 3,000%7T HEHE

C. & J. Clark America, Inc. USA US$3,777 - 51%  Sales of footwear
=6 3TTTETT HiRHE

C & J Clark China Trading Company Limited China US$200,000 - 51%  Sales of footwear
HE 200,000%& 7T HIRIHE

C. & J. Clark Canada Limited Canada CADG2,300 - 51%  Sales of footwear
IIEPN 62,300 E K 7T HEHE

Clarks Japan Company Limited Japan JPY80,000,000 - 51% Sales of footwear
B 80,000,000 HiRHE

Clarks Shoes Vertriebs GmbH Germany EUR1,512,000 - 51%  Sales of footwear
e 1,512,0008% 75 LRI E

C & J Clark Latin America, Inc USA US$1 - 51%  Sales of footwear
%6 EF HEHE

G & J Clark (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia MYR500,000 - 51% Sales of footwear
BRAER 500,009 5 HARHE

C & J Clark (S) Pte. Ltd Singapore SGD300,000 - 51% Sales of footwear
Eimilid 300,00037 103K 7T HIRHE

Clarks Shoes Benelux BV Netherlands EUR113,445 51% Sales of footwear
ol 11344580 7T HEHE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%

31 December 2023 —E_=F#+"HB=+—H
39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

() The registered capital of RIS IEFLEERS
RMB1,000,000.

XEEFRZERBRAT s

(i) The registered capital of JE LR (=
RMB306,000,000.

B BEBEAREAT IS

(iiy  The registered capital of JE R MBAR AR (£
RMB40,000,000.

B BRAA s

(v)  The registered capital of JE FL4{B L EE &
RMB150,000,000.

ZR OR) ARAR s

(v  The registered capital of =78 BX #8451 £2 B R 8 is RMB100,000.

(vi)  The registered capital of FFZEBRH ER) BEERBERAE is
RMB25,000,000.

Apart from ZRBEZENBEBEXEEEXERERL (FREH)
being registered as limited partnership, all the other principal subsidiaries of the
Company are registered as limited liability companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

M‘JE’\ E=R N E )

I ROSEABECEXZRERADZ
SMEARA A R1,000,0007T

(i JERIIR (BB mEE
BRA AR M306,000,0007T °

(i)  JERMBERE (LB BERATDZEMELR
2 A\ R #40,000,0007T

vy FENEHESZERE R BRABRZEM
ﬁﬁ%AEM%oooooooEo

V) LEERRAKHNEBERABZAMELS
AR #100,0007T °

V) HBERR JGR BEER
BRA AR M25,000,0007T ©
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%
31 December 2023 B -=%F+"HB=+—H

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 40. XATZHMBERRERRIEBEES

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
—E=H —EICHE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M5 FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENE E
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERFRE 69 227
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZKRE 1,376,837 1,376,837
Total non-current assets ERHEELMEE 1,376,906 1,377,064
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Due from subsidiaries FE LB B A Bl 7R I8 3,436,596 3,444,710
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE{T FIE 2 K
H W I 48,820 50,014
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEY 327,564 1,728,281
Total current assets M EEEE 3,812,980 5,223,005
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik R=N]
Due to subsidiaries FE AT Y B8 A B R IE 3,623,911 5,026,790
Other payables and accruals HENRIBERESTE B 6,144 8,253
Total current liabilities V=R 3,630,055 5,035,043
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 182,925 187,962
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEHEENRSERE
LIABILITIES 1,559,831 1,565,026
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,559,831 1,565,026
EQUITY R
Issued capital BEITRA 30 486,114 484,021
Perpetual convertible bonds KA BRES 32 810,621 810,621
Reserves ki (a) 263,096 270,384
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,559,831 1,565,026

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the board of

directors on 20 March 2024,

KRB ZHBERREXRER S _MNF=H

“+tHESE=SHE-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi 5%
31 December 2023 —E-_=#+"B=+—H

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 40. EATIZHMBIRRARREHEES

264

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#8)
Note: MisE
(@  Reserve movement of the Company @ AATZEHEH
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
R fh i HERRE
B =1 S m
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTAET FTAER FTAR TAER
At 1 January 2022 RZE__#—F—H 1,080,868 31,385 (727,814) 384,439
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss for FRBEERFANZEEEEE
the year - - (168,484) (168,484)
Share issued upon exercise of share option EREETERETZRG 47,227 (10,541) = 36,686
Equity-settled share option arrangements DR EE 7 R = 17,743 = 17,743
Transfer of share option reserve upon the lapse of T i O 4 e e S G
share options i = (651) 651
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RIBE__F#+-A=+—H
e 128, 37,936 895,647 270,384
R-®-=Z—H—AH 1,128,095 ( )
i 518 SIRMAEE
Lostshfeo; etzre year and total comprehensive loss for FABEREREEBEERE _ _ (81,876) (81,876)
Share issued upon exercise of share option BREETERZETZRG 34,029 (8,074) - 25,955
Equity-settled share option arrangements DREEE s BRETH - 8,633 - 8,633
Transfer of share option reserve upon the lapse of RERERNFSEERER
. - (589) 589 -
share aptions 1
At 31 December 2023 RIE_=F+"R=+—H 1,162,124 37,906 (936,934) 263,096

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial instruments in
its ordinary course of operations and in its investment activities. The Group does
not have written risk management policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors of the Company meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures
to manage the Group’s exposure to market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest risk and other price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. Generally, the
Group employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk management. The Group
enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts.
The purpose is to manage the foreign currency risk arising from the Group’s
operations. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are
discussed below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has interest-bearing assets and liabilities, mainly in relation to cash and cash
equivalents and bank borrowings, details of which are disclosed in Notes 22 and
27, respectively, to the financial statements. The Group has not used any financial
instrument to hedge potential fluctuations in interest rates. The exposure to interest
rates risk for the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are considered minimal.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has bank borrowing (including capitalised
costs) with floating rate of HK$206,078,000 (2022: HK$302,478,000). If
interest rate increase/decrease by 1%, the pre-tax result of the Group would be
decreased/increased by HK$2,061,000 (2022: HK$3,025,000).

Foreign currency risk

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H
M. MBRAKREEBERER

FEERERBEEBRKREGHPERA

ZHBTEASHBRR AEEDEEME
BREENERIES| AT AADESE
ERECEE A RA RSBt

EARZ 5 R (B1FNERE R \%U%E_@L
S REAMBRER) RHEERARKEE
HBERO—Hyﬁ'ﬁE REBRBERREER
R o ZK%IDTinEMEE 25 FEEE
%&Hﬁ %AQ’J’HEE’J%%’E%§$%¥?§
Fﬁéiz%ﬁ%ﬂﬁmozﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁZ%Eﬁ
g Y&

I == /= i
%IJKJ‘LIZ TFEMBE TR AFERIEESR
EEMSHEEHMEHREB 2RAREE
%ﬁOZIK%E%ﬂ%ﬁ?&%fﬁ’il?g‘?’f&fﬁ
ERIFECEBYURIBITER -BREFEBED
AP BF FS TR R MT 5122 K2 274 B o AREE B W ok
ERE R T AE BTN FH) c K&
fﬁ%&fﬁﬁ%t%%sz%Jﬂﬁﬁ%&?ﬁ%@
il o

N _B_=F+_A=+—H' ~"ERIXF
A XA ENIRTER (BFEREEA)
#206,078,000% 75 (Z & — — 4 : 302,478,000
D) o 5 F RN, RN % 0 A= E B B
R AR R /12 002,061,0008 7T (&
T 13,025,000 7T) ©

51 LB

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a SNERBRIEME TR (FEERBMEQAT 2
financial instrument (excluding investment in associates) will fluctuate because of RE) Z AFEYCRIIE M S G HEE RS
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group operates in the UK, USA, mainland @jﬁ'ﬁﬁiﬂzﬂf‘““ o REEB [~ ER -~ A
China, Hong Kong, European and Asian countries. Most of the Group’s sales are 0 P 3t~ B~ BUM B Z5 N S B 4 o AR
in GBP, US$, EUR, RMB and HK$. The Group invested into various bank deposits REDIHEHUEE - ET BT AR
mainly denominated in GBP, US$, EUR, RMB and HK$. BRBTET AERRENZERITHE
FOFEMUEFE -ET BT ARBNA
JCET{E

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arising from monetary assets and RIS $$D@F$E RIEEE B EBTIAE
liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency of the ENEBENEBEER ,\TEIE)%EE 5

relevant group entities at the end of the reporting period, expressed in HK$, was %EHB UETEEYRUWT

mainly as follows:
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
ZZZZE+ZR=+-H ZEZE+ZR=1+-H

RMB 6BP EUR Uss RIB 6P R Uss
AR HiE B e ARE B B e
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 K000 HKS 000 K 000
TER TER TR TAr TET FET TET TEr
Gash and cash equivalens BERBLZEN 602 an 52,059 476,883 5259 850,816 2373 401,786
Trade receivables R - - 81,136 106,825 - - 62,103 -
Tide pajeles EfiER (28117) - (@8646) (364,160 (25,881) - - 1990,043)
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

It is the Group’s policy to enter into forward currency contracts to mitigate foreign

currency risk arising from material transactions.

The Group uses foreign currency forwards to hedge its exposure to foreign
currency risk. Under the Group’s policy, the critical terms of the forwards must
align with the hedged items.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to
foreign currency risk at year end date.

If GBP appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the pre-tax results of the
Group would be increased/decreased by approximately HK$15,000 (2022:
HK$42,991,000).

If EUR appreciates/depreciates against GBP by 5%, the pre-tax results of the
Group would be increase/decrease by approximately HK$4,198,000 (2022:
HK$4,187,000).

If US$ appreciates/depreciates against GBP by 5%, the pre-tax results of the
Group would be decrease/increased by approximately HK$10,976,000 (2022:
HK$26,181,000).

If RMB appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the pre-tax results of the
Group would be decreased/increased by approximately HK$1,376,000 (2022:
HK$1,087,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligation under the terms of the financial instrument and
cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of its operations.
The carrying amounts of trade debtors and bills receivable, deposits and other
receivable carried at amortised cost and cash and cash equivalents included in
the face of the statements of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

A, BMBEMESEEERBE ®

S LB (48)
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BEARGREEZINER
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B E T
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M TT R EETHE B (EL% > AERRR
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HETREETE BZEL% AEBBRK
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BRIGETEAER B /D 18 H0491,376,000%8 7T
(&= —4 1,087,000 5T) °

EEE R

EERBREVBIAZRZHTRERE
MBTRAZEMBETHESR <4FEEX
RUBBRRZAR AEBARZEER
SETERENAEEBBETRATRET
ZIEE - BRERKREWRE REBHN
R BZREREMERRBEURREE R
ReSBY2REES AMBRRER K
REEBEMEMBEEARZESEER

oo O
7



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)
The Group generally has established long-term and stable relationships with
its customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group generally
allows credit period of one month extending up to six months to its major trade
customers. The credit risk of other receivables arises from that borrowers fail to
repay loans on time. The Group has assessed the historical payment pattern and
credit status of each borrower and the value of the collaterals has been taken
into account when calculating the allowances of expected credit loss. The Group's
historical experience in collection of trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowance and the directors are of the opinion that adequate allowance
for credit loss for uncollectible receivables has been made in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents with reputable banks in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, the UK and USA, therefore the directors consider that
the credit risk for such is minimal. The credit and investment policies have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group'’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model to financial assets measured at
cost, including trade debtors and bills receivable, deposits and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and financial guarantee contracts.

Impairment on trade debtors and bills receivable is measured as the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to

be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, and deposit and other
receivables is measured as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition by considering available, reasonable and supportive information.

Trade debtors and bills receivable, and deposit and other receivables are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there

is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in payments, and the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

M. HEERE

EERE (&)
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements

of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.

Trade debtors and bill receivables

To measure the expected credit losses, trade debtors and bills receivable have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

MBEERE (8

4., BMEEREEEERBEE @)

BARARERFREFSEBYNRZEBMBRS

2E RN 55955 BY IR (B AR TE AR PR - 1B 36 %% 8 A1) 2

AR E RS A ©
P& UK B R e FE LW R 4

B ERMEERE BRIRAREEE
BERBHENGEERBRBBKREBHXRH

WA=
Less than 3to6 More than
3 months months 6 months
Current past due past due past due Total
BEOR BE=ZEXR BEREB
ENB =f@R &8 A ~ER &t
31 December 2023 ZEZ=5+ZHA=1+—-H
Expected loss rate FHEEX 1.9% 8.8% 47.3% 39.8% 8.1%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BEREE (FET) 502,652 240,742 8,384 82,566 834,344
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BREEE (TAT) (9,506) (21,150) (3,967) (32,900) (67,523)
493,146 219,592 447 49,666 766,821
31 December 2022 “E_"_F+-A=t+—-H
Expected loss rate BB EX 0.1% 0.1% 2.5% 22.8% 1.2%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BEREE (TET) 584,222 216,422 29,886 39,224 869,754
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BREERE (FAT) (449) (134) (759) (8,934) (10,276)
583,773 216,288 29,127 30,290 859,478

The movement of loss allowances for trade debtors and bill receivables during the

year is as follows:

FR BRBRRRRERERZGIREES
;AT -

2023 2022

—E-= —EZCHE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFET

As at 1 January W—HB—H 10,276 6,758
Net impairment loss recognised BRI EE 18338 56,259 4116
Currency translation difference bE 2 = %8 988 (598)
As at 31 December R+—-B=+—H 67,523 10,276

As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables of approximately HK$31,573,000
(2022: HK$nil) are related to debtors in which there were objective evidences

that the debtors faced significant financial difficulties. These trade receivables
were assessed individually and the loss allowance associated with these trade

receivables approximately HK$31,573,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022

HK$nil

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S

A B _=F+_HA=+—H ' EKREX
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deposits and other receivables

The management of the Group makes periodic collective assessments as well

as individual assessment on the recoverability of deposits and other receivables

based on historical settlement records and past experiences looking forward. The

Group measures credit risk using probability of default (“PD"), which is similar to

the approach used for the purposes of measuring expected credit loss (“ECL")

under HKFRS 9.

o Deposits and other receivables that are not credit-impaired on initial
recognition are classified in ‘Stage 1" and have their credit risk continuously
monitored by the Group. The expected credit loss is measured on a 12-month
basis.

° If a significant increase in credit risk (specifically, when the debtor is more
than 1 day past due on its contractual payments) since initial recognition is
identified, the financial instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2" but is not yet deemed to
be credit-impaired. The expected credit l0ss is measured on lifetime basis.

° If the financial instrument is credit-impaired (specifically, when the debtor is
more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments), the financial instrument
is then moved to ‘Stage 3'. The expected credit loss is measured on lifetime
basis.

In view of the history of cooperation with the debtors and collection from them,
deposits and other receivables of approximately HK$312,972,000 are classified
in Stage 1 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$236,673,000) and the credit
risk inherent in these other receivables is not significant. The average loss rate of
1% was applied as at the 31 December 2023 (2022 1%).

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

4. BEEMESEEERBE @)
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o
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31 December 2023 —E_=F#+"HB=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deposits and other receivables (Continued)

For the remaining deposits and other receivables of approximately

HK$91,641,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$92,550,000), it was

classified in Stage 3 and the loss allowance associated with these deposits and

other receivables was approximately HK$91,641,000 as at 31 December 2023

(2022: HK$92,550,000).

4., BMEEREEEERBEE @)

& REMBEURIE (&)

RN _E _ZFE+_-_B=Z+—HBHRN&GE &
& R H fh FE I R IE4991,641,0008 7T (Z &
— T 192,550,000 7) EDEAE =K
o mAZERTREMBEWARIERRBEN
BEEBEN _S_=F+_/A=+—HHK
#91,641,0008 7 (ZF = — 4 : 92,550,000
BTT) °

FROREREMBUREBEZGERERE

The movement of loss allowances for deposits and other receivables during the

year is as follows: ER I
2023 2022
—EZ=H —EICH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
As at 1 January n—BA—H 95,321 96,013
Net impairment loss allowances recognised BB IR R ERE R B R 1,563 507
Impairment loss written-off i R (B RS 18 (1,569) -
Currency translation difference bE 2 = &E (405) (1,193)
As at 31 December R+_-_A=+—H 94,910 95,321

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its

obligation associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash

or another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of

settlement of trade payables, other payables and accruals and bank borrowings,

also in respect of its cash flow management.

The Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated basis by
carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term financial
liabilities as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Funding for longer term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate
amount of borrowings and the ability to sell longer term financial assets. The
Group's liquidity is mainly dependent upon the cash received from its trade
customers.

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligation as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Apart from the non-current bank borrowings disclosed in Notes 27 for the
financial statements, the maturity profile of the Group’s major financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is within one year or on demand and the contractual undiscounted
payments approximate to their carrying amounts.

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid assets that
readily generate cash. The Group'’s existing cash resources and other liquid assets
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has bank facilities of HK$2,501,660,000
(2022: HK$2,614,763,000), of which HK$489,291,000 (2022:

HK$786,442,000) has been utilised at 31 December 2023.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

4. BEEMESEEERBE @)
N E & R
mEESRMERNERBREZENHUIRE
NE—HMBEEESFEBVEaEET CRE
B - REBEBEBENER  HMEN
EREHEBRBTEZURESHKES
BAEASRBESRARK-

FEBZEREARERRBEEREKHE
SRBEKT LR RE AR EHEAS
BTRR - AEBZBEEEEZRAYH
%EZL#% MK a8 H & X2 5 5
HERARME  UGEEEEEEHERE
E2EE - BNREPAREEERZES
AR RERKRHE RV BEE /R
SHRE - AEBRBHEET FEBORNK
HESERWWZERE -

KRBEEEH ~EBAIXHEENA
ERERINBAZMBEE °$$E§i@£
HE—BHETRHEETHR IDAZE
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ&yﬁfiﬂuﬁbﬁ%ﬂﬁm"

PRI AR 27 BB 2 JFRIARER1T &
)\57|\ RBERRBRBEGORERERIEES

NZAERTB2UHERINRPBERS—F
Wﬁ?ﬁgiféiﬁ’ﬁ'ﬁé%’ﬂiﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁiﬁ
SREERES

FEERFTFEREEBRBDESAREEZ R
REFBEEZRARERE  HHER
TERKAUMBELARSEZ2HMAHE
E-AERRERTERREMREBEE
RigBHERESRHEK

W_E_=F+_B=+—H > xX&EE#%
BiRTTREE2,501,660,000 T (T2 ==
£ 1 2614,763,0003 70) » ELEH489,291,00058
rz(_v__ﬁ 786,442,000 7T) T

=&+ RA=+—HEH®HAA-
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31 December 2023 — &

Teas— F =8

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the
year, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rate) and the earliest date the Group can be

required to pay:

4., BMEEREEEERBEE @)
/)ILEJﬁ%HFﬁ (n‘éﬁ)

TRIITERENRSORBRRE R

12 (8

EEASNMRFEZFBAMR) 2GS

NEHBERFTEBRIRERERZEER

£
2023
“ECCE
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total Carrying
Within less than less than Over  contractual amount at
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows 31 December
®+ZR
BE—FE BBmER BHRER =+-H
—ER PRRE  OREE BBIF BB ZIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER T#ER THER T#ER TER
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiemBas
Bank borrowings RITER 22,040 - 184,038 - 206,078 187,201
Lease liabilties ﬁﬂﬁﬁ 655,617 478,226 749,952 365,829 2,249,624 1,947,664
Financial quarantee contract to a joint venture EREMBIBRRAN 93,940 - - - 93,940 93,940
Derivative financial liabilities Miﬁﬁ%%
Derivative financial instruments — forward exchange contract ~ #74 BA 75 T - B EASMNE A 40-
acquired after 2nd July 2022 @%%::Etﬂ —B%
— Net settled (foreign currency forwards — cash flow hedges) ~ -LURBEE GMNEEI-HER
=Eap; 59,315 5,811 - - 65,126 65,126
2022
“ETCF
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total Carrying
Within less than less than QOver contractual amount at
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows 31 December
R+=-AH
BE—FEE BEMEE BHRER =+—f
—ER DR mE DREE BRRE EBE ZRmEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TERT TERT
Non-derivative financial liabilities SFMiEﬁ%EE
Bank borrowings RITEM 82,958 26,980 355,646 - 465,584 344130
Lease liabilities HEER 631,503 466,386 703,079 401,804 2,203,272 1,957,299
Financial guarantee contract to a joint venture SECENBBRRAL 94,293 = = = 94,293 94,293
Derivative financial liabilities TEMBAR
Derivative financial instuments ~ forvard exchange contract ~ $T M T AEHSNES
acquired after 2nd July 2022 @ag “#tAZH 1§
— Net settled (foreign currency forwards — cash flow hedges) ~ -LUREBAEE SMNEER-HER
SH) 25,226 11,469 - - 36,695 36,695
Derivative financial instruments — forward exchange contract ~ $T2E B35 T BB HRSMNE A 4-
acquired before 2nd July 2022 (including 2nd July E" “EEXRATHAI (B
2022) E-E-—£tA-p) kE
— Net seftled (foreign currency forwards — cash flow hedges) - IR BEE GMEEIR-BRER
%ﬁ/‘?) 3,219 - - - 3,219 3,219
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value risk and disclosures

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group held certain derivative financial

instruments which are carried in the financial statements at fair value, as further

detailed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2023 and 2022;

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-HB=+—H
M. MERAREEREREE @

DT ERBRRIKE

MU EMHBRERNEITE— Tl K
T —ER“E_"H+-R=+—8"
FEEFEETRATESAMBRERZ
TTEMBH IR

R FEFE
TRENAEBNR _ S _=FEKR_T__
FE+ A=+ —HEBATFEAENTHTE
ERAE:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—k B8k B st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET FER AR
Derivative financial assets TEMBEE
As at 31 December 2023 RIBZ=F+ZB=1+—H
— Forward currency contracts —-BREEKEH - 18,245 - 18,245
As at 31 December 2022 KRB _#+-A=+—H
— Forward currency contracts —-REREHN = 91,987 - 91,987
Derivative financial liabilities TEMBER
As at 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+"B=1+—H
— Forward currency contracts —REEREHN - 65,126 - 65,126
As at 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+ZA=+—H
— Forward currency contracts —-RAEKEH = 39,914 = 39,914
Financial assets at fair value through other EREMZEARERATENEZ
comprehensive income MBEE
As at 31 December 2023 RIBZ=F+ZB=1+—H
— Government bonds —BZWE% 8,229 - - 8,229
As at 31 December 2022 2 f+°H=1+—H
— Government bonds —LBZV & 7,959 - - 7,959

There were no transfers among different categories during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022,

BE_ZT_="FK-ZT_"_F+°-H
=+—BLEFERARBRZ B EEE-
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3l December 2023 —E==F+="H=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value risk and disclosures (Continued)

The Group analyses the financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation

method. Different levels are defined as follow:

Level 1:  The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such

as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) is based on

quoted market prices at the end of the period. The quoted market

price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid

price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 2

Level 3:  If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for

unlisted equity securities.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal structure and shareholder returns, taking into consideration

the future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected capital
expenditure, projected strategic investment opportunities and economic conditions.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,

The Group regards total equity plus total debt (including bank borrowings and
lease liabilities) of the Company presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of financial position as capital, for capital management purposes.

The amount of capital as at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$11,191,295,000 (2022: HK$13,299,657,000), which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected capital expenditures and the
forecast strategic investment opportunities.

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B4 #5 R R Mi =%

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Other than financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and
derivative financial instruments as disclosed in Notes 16 and 17 to the financial
statements, all financial assets and liabilities previously measured at amortised
cost which meet the conditions for classification at amortised cost under HKFRS
9, respectively.

31 December 2023 —E_=F+_H=+—H

42. BB NZMBIAR

PR BRI T RITPIIRBEDEBRBE R
HMEmBRmBAFEABZIMBEERK
TE M #5 T B B A 5o Bl 4% 3 55 5l A 51
EBUBEERBRNAEBMBRGE
A SB9SETE T 0 B4R 8 B AR D 8RB R o

43. GUARANTEE 43. R
2023 2022
—EC=HE —EZCE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTET
Guarantee related to arrangement with BT HEBRAEER
land lords, HMRC and REEAE R <2 HE 2 1R
insurance cover 45,034 54,461
Bank guarantee given in lieu of utility and REKEMREBYERZRE
property rental deposits ZIBITHRR 8,156 8,855
TOTa| /\/\_. D-I— 53,190 63,3w 6
44. DIVIDEND 4. BE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.008 EE D IRF ARG 25 50.008
(2022: HKS$nil) per share BT (CTEZIZHF (BT 91,442 =

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.008 per share for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$nil). The final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent Events

On 1 February 2024, Shanghai NingYue Enterprise Management Co. Ltd

(the “Buyer”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the

share purchase agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement”) with individual
shareholders (the “Seller”), pursuant to which the Seller conditionally agreed to
sell and the Buyer conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital
in Shanghai HuiJin Enterprise Development Co. Ltd (‘Huidin") at a consideration of
RMB252.5 million (the “Transaction”). Upon the completion of the Transaction, the
Group’s interest in Double Happiness will be increased from 10.0% to 19.5%.

EEgRENBE_ZST_=H£+_A8
=+—HIEFEIRZEREKRESTR0.008E
m(_'g::ﬁ THETT) cIREHBLERE

BEOIRNAKREEB I R EHRE LSRR
6& =R

45. HREEIE

Hi&E18

A TE_OME_B—H AR EZENS
NE L BEEHMECXEEERAT ((BA))
HEARKRR(TER) FTILRMDEEHZE
(TR EEEHmEL) »BIL BB KM
FEHEMBEAEREMBEZALEAR
252,500,000 0 W EE B BRI XERE
[RARE (THER)) WEHEBTRA (IR
51) RBTERB AEBRAEEN SR
HFE10.0%E AN ZE19.5% ©
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Particulars of Properties
MEZHE

Investment properties KREME
Approximate Site
Location Group’s Interest Tenure Area (sq.m.)
BE49 {5t E AR
i g TEBED A HA (FEFHK)
Units 1 on 9th Floor and 62.9% Medium term 1,894
Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor
Cheung Fung Industrial Building
No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
AR EE A HFEE23-395% 62.9% FRHA 1,894
RETEKREME
KB 25 A B fiL
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements of the Group, is set out below:

R FEMGHE

UTHEINAERBERLBEYRFEEZER
REEHGERExQERE  NHHEEB
AEBE T HLBZYHFRRK

RESULTS E$ 5 |
Year ended 31 December
BE+_A=+—HILEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= —E-C —E--f CZE-_EE —B-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAERT FET TET FET FTET
Revenue & 11,219,416 6,900,390 1,381,637 819,036 625,004
Profit/(loss) before tax B,/ (58) (556,159) 871,151 4,509,989 1,213,362 834,137
Profit/(loss) for the year atiributable to equity holders ~~ AA R HA AELER
of the company A/ (E518) (118,990) 850,416 4,562,639 1,192,392 834,366
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY EEHEERESHEEE
31 December
+ZB=+-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= —E-C —E--f CZEB”_EE —EB-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAERT FTET AT FET FTET
Non-current assets ErRBEE 8,751,009 8,796,617 5,261,870 3,975,162 3,671,737
Current assets REEE 5,966,648 8,675,314 3,848,292 2,874,758 1,194,828
Current liabilities piEI=N 3,803,230 4,428,192 896,323 694,864 327,551
Net current assets REEERE 2,163,418 4,247,122 2,951,969 2.179,894 867,277
Total assets BEMEE 14,717,657 17,471,931 9,110,162 6,849,920 4,866,565
Total assets less current liabilities BEERERTBEE 10,914,427 13,043,739 8,213,839 6,155,056 4,539,014
Equity atiributable to equity holders of AREREEHE AEGER
the Company 7,719,127 7,993,175 7,616,277 4,329,371 3,021,297
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Glossary
50 5

In this annual report, unless the context requires otherwise, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings:

“‘Board”

EEg)
“Bossini”

M2 fge )
“Bossini Group”
MEfgEEE)

BV’
RBRUHE]

“China” or “PRC”

==l

“Clark”

[ Clark

“Clark Group”
[ClarkEE E

"

“close associate(s)
i YN

“Company” or “Viva Goods”

B NSRRI Y A

”

“connected transaction(s)
MEAEZR 5

“Directors”
===
“Double Happiness”

MIe=

“EMEA’
MERIERER

‘GBP”
M524% )

5

EXRFRA BEXESFBRAEIN TIH
REA TR HE

the board of Directors
EEg

Bossini International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Bermuda with limited
liability, the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board (stock code: 592)
ERMERRERERLAB RERESMRIZEBERAB HEBETR
MR ER L™ BB 592)

Bossini and its subsidiaries
ERERENB AT

the British Virgin Islands
REEEEHES

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this annual report, excludes Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan
REARHNBE MAFERMS > FEESE - PEAREMBERPIFR A
THER A

C&J Clark (No 1) Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales on 1 April 1997
and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

C&J Clark (No 1) Limited » —EIFS — A AT M A — B 50 5548 B8 K B 5 7 53 it
I AB RAREINEZIEZENE AT

Clark and its subsidiaries
Clark Bz EL [}t /8 A B

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Main Board Listing Rules
BB TR EMRBIPMEFTRIRE

Viva Goods Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the issued Shares of which are listed on the Main Board (stock code: 933)
ENBEHERRAR  RASHEFMRIIZERABE HEEHTRMHN
FAR L (BB 1 933)

has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules

BA EWAERPRE T AR E

the directors of the Company
NARES

Shanghai Double Happiness Co., Ltd.
FBAESERNHBREAR

Europe, the Middle East and Africa
BUM ~ AR ER Az IE M

Pound sterling, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom
B HENEE G

VIVA GOODS COMPANY LIMITED FEN.$E#E B R A S



“GEM”
' GEM J

‘HKFRS”
IEBMEIREZER
"HKS"

=S

“Hong Kong”
&%

“HMRC"
"'HMRC 4

“Li Ning Co”

“LN Group”
E2 2N

‘LN Share(s)”

EE T

“Macau”
B

“Main Board”
MMy

“Main Board Listing Rules”

MEMR EHRA

“‘MOP$"
HEPFY T

“Reporting Period”
MR & HA

“AME"
TAR®

‘SFO"
5875 KR BRE 1R AL

ﬂi
#

Glossary

GEM of the Stock Exchange
B 22 PFGEM

All applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
FrEEREANBRSEDN (BEMEEAMBRGEA BB G5 2R]
K52 ¥E)

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of the Hong Kong

BT BBEEE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REBEAFINTHE

Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs
HETRK R ERARE

Li Ning Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability,
the issued LN Shares of which are listed on the Main Board (stock code: 2331)
FEERRBD RNHSEESTMBUILIZBRAR HEZRTEERHG N
Fik b (B © 2331)

Li Ning Co and its subsidiaries
=RAFAREMEAT

the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of Li Ning Co
TERNERATSREEI10E T Z KD

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FREDE IR RITT &

Main Board of the Stock Exchange
B 22 PR =R

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board

FirsEsF LR

Macau pataca , the lawful currency of the Macau
BT BFIEE B

the period of 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023
B2 —HB—HEZE_=HF+"“B=+—HHMB

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
ARE pBIEEEBE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEREN B EE S RBERA
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Glossary %

‘SG$"
T3 038 7 )

“Share(s)”
MR 17 ]
“Shareholder(s)”
3=

“Stock Exchange”
B 2 P )

“Us$’
=S

oy
M% ]

Singapore dollars , the lawful currency of the Singapore
AR T o FMANE A E B

ordinary shares of nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company
RATRAPEREBESHTZEEEK

holder(s) of Share(s)
[PAREST=WN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEARABMESRXZMMARRE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
E ZENBERBENEEST

per cent
B
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